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US Bancorp wrth assets of $364 billion at December 31

2013 is diversf led financal services holding company and

the parent company of US Bank the nations fifth4argest

commercal hank

In 2013 US Bancorp was named Fortune magazines Most

Admred Superregional Bank for the third consecutive year

US Bancorp is headquartered in Mmneapolis Minnesota

and is recognized for delivermg consistent hidustryieading

hnancal results practicing prudent risk management

generating high levels of capital and developing innovahve

services and delivery channs

The Company offers wide range of financial products and

services through four major lines of business Consumer and

Small Busmess Banking Wholesale Banking and Commercial

Real Estate Payment Services and Wealth Management

and Securihes Services US Bancorp has 79 milhon

customers and 67000 employees
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EXTENDING THE ADVANTAGE

Ongoing investments nitiatives and prudent

management practices have given US Bancorp

compefitive advantage aHowing the Company to

operate from position of strength scale growth

and protitability This position creates advantages tor

our shareholders and investors our customers our

employees and our communities and supports

the recovery and strength of cur nations economy
We continue to manage invest and innovate to

further extend this advantageS

Enhanced Content
To see or expehence enhanced content dowffoad the DIpEmarc DAcover App

train the Tunes App Store or Googe PSy
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OUR STRENGTH
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Banking remains crucial to the recovery and the soundness of

2013 was another year of incroasec federi bar kino req rhti rr

with more oxpe Ace to ccme 21

As new req clahons are naMed rc bce me et cctivc ye

rosoond in ckly and sock to under fond ant irrpacts beyr nd

thc nitial ml igs Complrance has cor to phor ty for

cur nc rrstry ad as resLift for ccc ry leader ar ernplo cc

at Boncarp Com once is fc undat ion to Sue and

barrk is hoUr ess of trr st yr bank out have we

me rr complra furrchon and we ia one syste as

ponpe aid on in pace tc frMoct the Company car

custom iors ar rrseoue it5 ir iareho Mrs We hay

chosen to be ye coca and vs be with idu try arrd

cry
lead nq role

ir cor rdinatir to cnk regu atom abc of

the possible or teen en and rape nt the irri ended

eomrsequerrn of regul tory ocer reach

We en tinue ur to is protoctirg ir unte rn or or ts

fr ira Ira id or cyber attacks It re to Bank dab

id cc stomo iforrrrat on ore po sister arrd ncreasing or

we of lao do rar qe of nophistico eo tro detect on and

evenLion tools to ke our Compa and our customers

Ac Ba rk has so token the lead dove

omprshens and Alaboratk op rroch ft or ding

aqoir 51 cyher Otto ku or the fir an seruic ir dListrt

lh tonkir iid retry vi face ma hallerrges ii the coming

year arid boy end but bunk ng ron rs er ucia the re we ry

md of ci ito Be so indness of tire ra on or anomy

Deo nq dreetle arrd ftocti ely ft nqrr of orm is somctf
rig

all

banks aru do for the rake of thom custom rs emp lotees

sharet olders arid tire cc untry We tore that re spor irtv very

serioust \Ae reorrage ff is ornpany riot ust nor the bencfit of

our reputatior arid the value we con returr to shareho ders

for the noncial well being of of our corist its

to furttror strengthen our focus on risk ornd compliance

we roe ontly promoted PW Bi Poorer to th positron of

Vice Chairman and CL of Rink Officer overseeing all risk and

mpliance fur ctcnu at U.S Barer rp ruin or ousl

hief Cred Oh or for U.S Barrcor rn em rr

to oeersoe in rio ro We dr Jy riot cci de uorvco

rc putat on as ado mr
rig

ks fur oar Of erat aq red

aid risk profi rid Hi ls leadr rstr ir he exp rrrded

wi some enM rice fiat stand Re hard It

ously held lie roe Ch of Risk 0th or ref re hr

Roncorp March after 20 ems son to cor tnibni

to is to U.S Bar corp and lo Mr bni no

me inagon ent reputat We ch ft as rio

ns has now chapter hi Ce

U.S Barrcorp enviable
ti rr VS tIe

businesses ae want to be ii Ic riot face the ad

te divest of any br is no rues due Ic requ ato ir pro fib

US BANCORP



XENIINQOUR STRENGTH
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US Bancorp Board of Directors left to right

Doreen Woo Ho President San Frandsco Port Coirrnission

Odell Owens M.D MPH President ncinnati State Technical

and Cornmun ty College

Patrick Stokes former Cha man and Chief Fxecu ye Officer

Anheuser Busch Gore panics Inc

David OMaley retired Chairman Piesicent and Chef xecutive Officer

Ohio Nafional Financial Servces Inc

J001 Johnson- retired ChcCrman and Cf of Execut ye Officer

Hormc Foods Corporation

Victoria Buyniski Gluckman retired is rman and

Chief Executive Officr Un ted Medics sources Inc

Marc Belton Execut ye Vice President global Strategy

Growth and Marketing nnovat on Genera Mills Inc

Douglas Baker Jru Chairrnar and Chief Execut ye Off ocr Fcolab rio

Richard Davis Cha rr an Piesident anJ Chief Fxecut cc Officer

US Bancorp

Craig Schnuck former Ohs rnran arid Chief Executive Officer

Schnuck Markets Inc

Olivia Kirtley 8Lis ness consultant

Arthur Collins Jr retired Chairman ard Chef ExecLi ice Officer

Medtronic Inc

Jerry Lovin Chairmai aid Chief Exe ye Officer lIon Braids Ira

ai Cliasmari ar Chief Execctive Officer JW Levin Part rers LLC

Roland Hernandez Focndi rg Principal and Chief ExecLitive Officer

Horns idea Media Ventures

US Bancorp Managing Committee left to right

James Chosy Executive Vice President General Counse and

Corporate Secretaiy

Michael LaFontaine Executive Vice Prasidenf and

Chef Operational Ask Officer

PW Bill Parker Vice Cha rman and Chief Risk Off ocr

Jeffry von Giflern Vice Chairman rechnology and Operations Senvices

Pamela Joseph Vice Chairman Payment Services

John Elmore Vice Cha rman Conirc uniffi Banking and Branch Be ivory

Richard Davis Chairman President and Cfeef Executive Officer

Howell Mac McCullough Ill Execut ye Vice President

Chief Strategy Officer

Rchard Payne Vice Ohs rman Wholesale Banking

Terrance Dolan Vice Chairman Wealth Manaqenienit and

Securities Services

Jennie Carlson xecuf ye Vice President Human Resources

Joseph Hoesley Vce Chairnran Co nmercial Real Estate

Andrew Cecere Vice Chiirrran and Chief cane Officer

Mark Runkel Executive Vice President ar Cf ef Credit Off cer

Kent Stone Vice Chairman GonsLirn or Ear karp Sales and Support

As we ook ferward to the orning year we err rn ndfu 01

the Orellgtll our noanv arid ho we dS ank re

noere

an integro part of the growth and vibranCy of th rtation

ecortomy our Commun lee and the cuStomers we serve st

support We are focused on the future and Cent dent ou

ability 10 delver outstanding produOs servir arid results tel

the beneft of GuStomeis cones inities employees and

ultilnat ly for you our shareholders

Hi Da\ Is

larrnan Pres lit and Chiet uritive Officer

Februarydl.20 /4
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EXTFENDNO OUR COVERAGE
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Pilot is committed to provid ng high quality innovative products

Shown left to right

Oavtd Waizmann Director at Finance and Accoun
ing

Pilot Chemual Company

Steve Mul nger Vice President Commercial Bankin Bane

Paul Morrisroe Cha rman and CEO Pdot Chemical Company

Pam Butcher President and Chiet Operatmg Ofticer ilot Chemical Company

Scan the photo and

see tiom our business

is your business

U.S BANCOflP
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Innovation through The Grove fuels customers growth and in turn ours

We have completely redesigned our orhnc bank ng atforri

and have taken the rnobte bankr spa by st with

nnovations dig tal and mob Ic cat abitties We have re Sly

pi
etch or lau relied mobile account opening Mohi Phe to

Balance lrarwfer voce ornmands martphonc Pay Poreon

our ha Tare loyalty program Go lo Video Banking and

Save dual Pay to ame just In Payr cnts we hav

ur own Sh rk Tank to gorlerate ideas

Barre has been recognized as one of er most nrrov

ties banks the nation aid we sirr awaids and op rankings

Its not just the ta experts aT in whc are rests

ble for extending our horizons arid for irs ovat ye Tb nk
rip

Innovate form ized in our explic dist nctivc leaderS

expectations for leaders and re ariaqers tr ni Ike CPO and

Manag ng Uonrrnittse to every employee or the froi tine or

ii the back other

ni
At Bank we want al leaders arid employers to Lc

always thinking of ew ways to do ir ohs new ways

to design our products and ne ways to stru Snir tlrer

businesses iirnovat ng ways to make U.S Bank diffe rent

arid better

One way U.S Bank stays abreast of ci ariqinc custorne

preterences and expect stions our Dynaiir Dozen piograr

Its changing group ot twerrtt orr ething op oveos

from across the bank who adviso management the

viewpoint of young custooiers arid hankers They become

especially valeiabk as U.S Bank ntensifies its nteractions

with rustnrnenc on thi nr th ir edoi cro thr xgh 5acet aok

lwitter ir kedlr and other tee

for nnovat ens ii products paymerit arid Mobile and

Or line Bank ng Ihe resu ts oust ad pt on ar

revenue are substar toil

Photo Bill Pay

US Bank is the first major bank in the United States

to offer Mobile Photo Bill Pay Custer mrs

payments simply by snapping pet

their smartphone or

consummn ...our goal

khov ptivs



EXTENDNO OUR REACH

Shown eft to right

Jan Tel In nan iS 011cc dcii Gene

Iii Seen ad rt

Nate Gq eeOc Baib
eq

OS
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We are committed to delvering value and convenienc

exrendw our re to atow irge cred hw rthy custoriers

tr ssue debt to mv mtors and we an trado investmerts

for the nef Cf ir corporate and nshtut nal tents

Strategic acquisit ens ce cxte rded our resch in some

areas and innovatve new pi
ducts and services dc the

same in other bus esses while collaborati rr wth our

custonicrs extends the reach as we as de th of exst ng

relat onst pe Our ridustry leadi ig dot ratings and

fin incia porforrnanec rave opened leers national

01 porato banking as ye for new larger lending

opportun ties particularly in ear and top tier positions

Those positions turr provide potential additional

an sllart services those custo iiers

Already one ot the largest globa prey ders corporate

trust serv ccc we continue to be Id scale and reach in our

sec irities scrvccs business In November Bancoip

Fund Services LLC subsidiar of Bancorp

acguired Ouintill on railed an Ireland dornic led full serv cc

hedge fu rd adm stra or to su port our str itegic initiatve

to expand our alterrrative nvestr rent servicirrg network for

the European invest iient cornmun ty In March U.S Bank

also puichsed the menic pa rd trustee bus ross of

Deutsche Bank aid ng approx iately $f hi en to thr

more than $3 tr II on assets rrently under adm riatra

tor withi U.S Banss corpo at trust visor turiher

strengths rung our position as tIe ii prooder ot muri cpa

trustee arid agerrc services in the nation

In Apri avon wholly own sul sidiarv U.S Ba icorp

and global leader ci paynieii so uforis aid Banco

Sam rtande created to venture to del vei merchant

services in Spain provid ng service support arrcl nnova4 ye

sol it errs iab eel urnerce tsr is nesses of all ass

Oms onlirre arid mobile irimuovatior exterrd OL reach to

anywhere the world and to new customers who sa us

the ease speed ano sec irity
of our dig to nuovations

Bank cenuirnitment to exparrding vvhelesale bank rig

corporate truat arid custody wealth nnanagenner fund

serv eec gh grade bonds cerpurate real estate arid other

corporate businesses en nationsl scale is nowhere ruore

apparent than major ties in st tes alerug the cast ast

particularly New York City Be ton arid Charlotte GrowS

ii locations errrpleyees clients and rev rrue has been

substantial as se ye the sophisticated cnking treasury

ianagernent credit arid capit ci markets nc eds of large

corps rate and nstitutiermal clients Additionally with our

leadership position and expertise in thr payments in uGny

we can iild even deeper re atienh PS th OLil its who

do hirsine nsf n.i lI ar.d qkThaIl Today eon con pate

wth anyone in tie bu ness whIr ths best peenle anc

products ii ftc ndustry

Our exContro inli ie to trelps err card istorirers corrtro

tt en payment scLed iles and ave for our uborrkConnr .c err

ate yes sri all hue rcss owners free tools arrd resour cs an

rciudes Linkedla atern Mob Ic app plot oc

customers to test se aics to quickly aid secumel pa to rcry

by pn rchases tfr wave of tfrer Pt ones rrrd exp rrided

our Dig tal Wallet option wth the add lion of Square

As comnreice ch inges as the world gets cv arrr il er ar

as mobile devices ruiulUply exponent ally U.S Bank she

the foret rent of the globa anrd mob Ic revol di in cxtond rug

in reach

East coast distribution system serves

expanding customer base

US.BANCORP 13



EXYET ND OUR
AND SERVICE
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We know with each stage of growth we can count on Bank Scan the photo and

see how our business

Kate Aten CEO and Paul Allen President Rustica Hardware is your business

22 percent increase in dollar volume over 2012 and

52 percent increase in the number of loans provided

US Bank ranked first in both units and volume in the

S8A districts of Kentucky Portland Seattle/Spokane and

Tennessee In addition the company also ranked first in

units in Iowa Kansas City Minnesota Nevada San Diego

Santa Ana and St Louis U.S Bank was in the top three

in either units or volume in total ci 22 SPA districts

U.S 8ANCORP 15
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Our goal is to transform inner cities and small

000 emp oees Lust year Bank volunteers reported

more ian quarter cf mifi on voft teer ours support no

thousands ot onzahois and cam US Bank encourages

rnployeos part cipah by proVide to hours of

paid hrne oh each ar for them to oftrntcer at ronprohts

US Banks Dol am to Doing program aBo ccogruzes

emplotee vo unteensn with contnbu ions from tt U.S Bank

oundat on to match volurrtcor nic

Bank Pay Dir rg as genmrited $4u3000 in contr

bution trom ou custamer to four ionprof org lni7at

sims it began 11 an near 66000 2013 alone

Noahy 400CC customers have made charitatfte ontr bri

for thrm ugh Pay Dir ing The prcgrnm was designed to

introduce cuDoniers to on inc pr ying by rnaki their first

paym nt contributon to chart cc suppor mg disaster

relict nriror nental protection edu mtic and arts and

hurger and erty reich Bank matches istomers

payment donations up to $50000 annual Bank was

awarded the Best Corporote Socis Responsibility Initiative

2012 hi Is idon based Retail Banking lntei national and

our company also been recogrrizol by United Way and

Jr inior Achievv.nient

Shown eft to rght starting with facing pager

Nd uest fas developed by nonprofit affordab ous ng and service provider

in Thousand Oaks California Bancroft School Apartments LEED certified

re ovation and new construction affordable housing project in the Manheirn Park

Neighborhood of Kansas
City Missouri German own Village new bftunit

affordable housing community in Dayton represents major milestone for the

Gennnantown Broadway area as the first completed development in neighborhood

revitalization initiative

It not lust spec alt nan rig grants or fts that U.S Bank

in offer to comrnunr es At tt vory heart of what we do

to offor tin anca lteray programs ano providc ful nu of

ugh quality products ond serv ce that meet the dir erse necds

our custonmers ar holp theft ach crc the tncal gc

Wery help rig
to ro idc an or ri ft foundation lo our

customers becau3e ir tLirn naric ally healths ri 1cr support

aid eric urago oconomically and culturolly str omnmur tes

Extended family

We take care of our own Bank employees support

another in times of need natural disaster donth

in the family an llnoss military deoloymcnt the

rnployee Assist once Fund EAF allows en ployees to

help their colleaquea facing financial rises heyoi their

control when theyve exhausted the ir ability to pay tor

essential expenses he Al is ur dod by employee

nntribr tions Simm is iriceptior in 2008 the FAF has

granted $3 rnitliort to employees in iced In 2013 alone

nearly 12000 employees donated aIr iost million dollais

to EAE- through payro donations

ierica
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TABLE Selected Financial Data

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

10828

8765

10969

9334

15
20288

10456

1882

7950
224

2236

5490

______
157

5647

5383

10348

8791

31
19108

9911

2343

6854
225

1841

4788

_______
84

4872

4721

9788

8438

78
18148

9383

4356

4409
209

935

3265

52

3317

3332

2.85

2.84

.780

18.31

31.94

1887

1896

2.47

2.46

.500

16.43

27.05

1914

1923

1.74

1.73

.200

14.36

26.97

1912

1921

Year Ended December 31

Dollars and Shares in Millions Except Per Share Data

Condensed Income Statement

Net interest income taxable-equivalent basis

Noninterest income

Securities gains losses net

Total net revenue 19602

Noninterest expense 10274

Provision for credit losses 1340
__________

Income before taxes 7988

Taxable-equivalent adjustment 224

Applicable income taxes 2032

Net income 5732

Net income loss attributable to noncontrolling interests 104

Net income attributable to U.S Bancorp 5836
______

Net income applicable to U.S Bancorp common shareholders 5552

Per Common Share

Earnings per share 3.02

Diluted earnings per share 3.00

Dividends declared per share .885

Book value per share 19.92

Market value per share 40.40

Average common shares outstanding 1839

Average diluted common shares outstanding 1849

Financial Ratios

Return on average assets 1.65%

Return on average common equity 15.8

Net interest margin taxable-equivalent basis 3.44

Efficiency ratio 52.4

Net charge-offs as percent of average loans outstanding .64

Average Balances

Loans $227474

Loans held for sale 5723

Investment securities 75046

Earning assets 315139

Assets 352680

Noninterest-bearing deposits 69020

Deposits 250457

Short-term borrowings 27683

Long-term debt 21280

Total U.S Bancorp shareholders equity 39917

Period End Balances

Loans $235235

Investment securities 79855

Assets 364021

Deposits 262123

Long-term debt 20049

Total U.S Bancorp shareholders equity 41113

Asset Quality

Nonperforming assets 2037

Allowance for credit losses 4537
Allowance for credit losses as percentage of period-end loans 1.93%

Capital Ratios

Tier capital 11.2% 10.8%

Total risk-based capital 13.2 13.1

Leverage 9.6 9.2

Tangible common equity to tangible assets 7.7 7.2

Tangible common equity to risk-weighted assets using Basel definition 9.1 8.6

Tier common equity to risk-weighted assets using Basel definition 9.4 9.0

Common equity tier to risk-weighted assets estimated using final rules for the

Basel Ill standardized approach 8.8

Common equity tier to risk-weighted assets approximated using proposed

rules for the Basel Ill standardized approach released June 2012 8.1

Common equity tier to risk-weighted assets approximated using proposed

rules for the Basel Ill standardized approach released prior to June

2012

1.65% 1.53% 1.16%

16.2 15.8 12.7

3.58 3.65 3.88

51.5 51.8 51.5

.97 1.41 2.17

8716

8403

451

16668

8281

5557

2830
198

395

2237

32

2205

1803

.97

.97

.200

12.79

22.51

1851

1859

.82%

8.2

3.67

48.4

2.08

$185805

5820

42809

237287

268360

37856
167801

29149

36520

26307

$194755

44768
281176

183242
32580

25963

5907
5264

2.70%

9.6%

12.9

8.5

5.3

6.1

6.8

$215374

7847

72501

306270

342849

67241

235710
28549

28448

37611

$223329

74528

353855

249183
25516

38998

$201427

4873

63645

283290

318264

53856
213159

30703

31684

32200

$209835

70814

340122

230885
31953

33978

$193022

5616

47763

252042

285861

40162
184721

33719

30835

28049

$197061

52978

307786

204252
31537

29519

2671 3774 5048
4733 5014 5531

2.12% 2.39% 2.81%

10.8%

13.3

9.1

6.6

8.1

8.6

10.5%

13.3

9.1

6.0

7.2

7.8

Presented on fully taxable-equivalent basis utilizing tax rate of 35 percent

Computed as noniriterest expense divided by the sum of net interest income on taxable-equivalent basis and noninterest income excluding net securities gains losses

Excludes unrealized gains and losses on available-for-sale investment securities and any premiums or discounts recorded related to the transfer of investment securities at fair value

from available-for-sale to held-to-maturity

See Non-GAAP Financial Measures beginning on page 65

8.2 7.3
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Earnings Summary The Company reported net income

attributable to U.S Bancorp of $5.8 billion in 2013 or $3.00

per diuted common share compared with $5.6 billion or

$2.84 per diluted common share in 2012 Return on average

assets and return on average common equity were .65

percent and 15.8 percent respectively in 2013 compared

with 1.65 percent and 16.2 percent respectively in 2012

The results for 2012 included an $80 million expense accrual

for mortgage foreclosure-related regulatory settlement The

provision for credit losses was $125 million lower than ne

charge-offs for 2013 compared with $215 million lower than

net charge-offs for 2012

Total net revenue on taxable-equivalent basis for

2013 was $686 million 3.4 percent lower than 2012

reflecting .3 percent decrease in net interest income and

5.8 percent decrease in noninterest income The decrease

in net interest income from the prior year was the result ol an

increase in average earning assets offset by decrease in

the net interest margin Noninterest income decreased

primarily due to lower mortgage banking revenue and other

revenue partially offset by increases in trust and investment

management fees payments-related revenue and

inveslment products fees

Noninterest expense in 2013 decreased $182 million

1.7 percent compared with 2012 primarily due to lower

mortgage servicing review-related professional services

expense the $80 million expense accrual for mortgage

foreclosure-related regulatory settlement recorded in 2012

and cecreases in insurance-related costs and other

expenses partially offset by higher costs related to

investments in tax-advantaged projects and employee

benefits expense

Acquisitions In February 2013 the Company acquired

Collective Point of Sale Solutions Canadian merchant

processor The Company recorded approximately

$34 million of assets including intangibles and

approximately $4 million of liabilities with this transaction

In November 2013 the Company acquired Quintillion

Holding Company Limited provider of fund administration

services to alternative investment funds The Company

recorded approximately $57 million of assets including

intangibles and assumed approximately $10 million of

liabilities with this transaction

In January 2012 the Company acquired the banking

operations of BankEast subsidiary of BankEast Corporation

from the FDIC This transaction did not include loss shanng

agreement The Company acquired approximately

$261 million of assets and assumed approximately

$252 million of deposits from the FDIC with this transaction

November 2012 the Company acquired the hedge

fund administration servicing business of Alternative

Investment Solutions LLC The Company recorded

approximately $108 million of assets including intangibles

and approximately $3 million of liabilities with this transaction

In December 2012 the Company acquired FSV

Payment Systems Inc prepaid card program manager

with proprietary processing platform The Company

recorded approximately $243 million of assets including

intangibles and approximately $28 million of liabilities with

this transaction

Statement of Income Analysis

Net Interest Income Net interest income on taxable-

equivalent basis was $10.8 billion in 2013 compared with

$11.0 billion in 2012 and $10.3 billion in 2011 The

$141 million 1.3 percent decrease in net interest income in

2013 compared with 2012 was primarily the result of lower

net interest margin partially offset by higher average earning

assets The net interest margin in 2013 was 3.44 percent

compared with 3.58 percent in 2012 and 3.65 percent in

2011 The decrease in the net interest margin in 2013

compared with 2012 primarily reflected lower reinvestment

rates on investment securities as well as growth in the

investment portfolio and lower rates on loans partially offset

by lower rates on deposits and reduction in higher cost

long-term debt Average earning assets increased

$8.9 billion 2.9 percent in 2013 compared with 2012

driven by increases in loans and investment securities

partially offset by decreases in loans held for sale and in

other earning assets primarily due to the deconsolidation of

certain consolidated variable interest entities VIEs during

2013 Refer to the Interest Rate Risk Management section

for further information on the sensitivity of the Companys net

interest income to changes in interest rates

Average total loans were $227.5 billion in 2013

compared with $215.4 billion in 2012 The $12.1 billion

5.6 percent increase was driven by growth in residential

mortgages commercial loans commercial real estate loans

and credit card loans partially offset by decreases in other

retail loans and covered loans Average residential

mortgages increased $7.7 billion 19.1 percent reflecting

origination and refinancing activity due to the low interest

rate environment during the period Average commercial

and commercial real estate loans increased $6.4 billion

10.6 percent and $1.7 billion 4.7 percent respectively

driven by higher demand for loans from new and existing

customers Average credit card balances increased

$160 million 1.0 percent in 2013 compared with 2012 due

to customer growth The $813 million 1.7 percent decrease

in average other retail loans was primarily due to lower home

equity and second mortgage and student loan balances

partially offset by higher auto and installment loan and retail

leasing balances Average covered loans decreased

$3.1 billion 23.7 percent in 2013 compared with 2012

22 U.S BANCORP



TABLE Analysis of Net Interest Income

Year Ended December31 Dollars in Millions

Components of Net Interest Income

Income on earning assets taxable-equivalent basis

Expense on interest-bearing liabilities taxable-equivalent basis

Net interest income taxable-equivalent basis

Net interest income as reported

Average Yields and Rates Paid

Earning assets yield taxable-equivalent basis

Rate paid on interest-bearing liabilities taxable-equivalent basis

Gross interest margin taxable-equivalent basis

Net interest margin taxable-equivalent basis

Average Balances

Investment securities

Loans

Earning assets

Interest-bearing liabilities

Average investment securities in 2013 were $2.5 billion

3.5 percent higher than 2012 primarily due to purchases of

U.S government agency-backed securities made in

anticipation of regulatory liquidity coverage ratio

requirements net of prepayments and maturities

Average total deposits for 2013 were $14.7 billion

6.3 percent higher than 2012 Average noninterest-bearing

deposits in 2013 were $1.8 billion 2.6 percent higher than

2012 due to growth in Consumer and Small Business

Banking balances Average total savings deposits were

$14.3 billion 11.7 percent higher in 2013 compared with

2012 the result of growth in Consumer and Small Business

Banking Wholesale and Commercial Real Estate and

corporate trust balances Average time certificates of deposit

less than $100000 were lower in 2013 by $1.7 billion

11.8 percent compared with 2012 the result of maturities

Average time deposits greater than $100000 were

$356 million 1.1 percent higher in 2013 compared with

2012 Time deposits greater than $100000 are managed as

an alternative to other funding sources such as wholesale

borrowing based largely on relative pricing

The $621 million 6.0 percent increase in net interest

income in 2012 compared with 2011 was primarily the

result of growth in average earning assets and lower cost

core deposit funding as well as the positive impact from

reduction in higher cost long-term debt and the inclusion of

credit card balance transfer fees in interest income

beginning in the first quarter of 2012 Average earning

assets were $23.0 billion 8.1 percent higher in 2012

compared with 2011 driven by increases in loans and

investment securities Average deposits increased $22.6

billion 10.6 percent in 2012 compared with 2011

Average total loans increased $13.9 billion 6.9 percent

in 2012 compared with 2011 driven by growth in

commercial loans residential mortgages credit card loans

and commercial real estate loans partially offset by

decreases in other retail loans and covered loans Average

commercial loans increased $9.2 billion 17.9 percent in

2012 compared with 2011 primarily driven by higher

demand from new and existing customers Average

residential mortgages increased $6.6 billion

19.5 percent reflecting origination and refinancing activity

due to the low interest rate environment Average credit card

balances increased $569 million 3.5 percent in 2012

compared with 2011 reflecting the impact of the purchase of

credit card portfolio in late 2011 partially offset by

portfolio sale in 2012 Growth in average commercial real

estate balances of $991 million 2.8 percent was primarily

due to higher demand from new and existing customers The

$261 million .5 percent decrease in average other retail

loans was primarily due to lower home equity and second

mortgage and student loan balances partially offset by

higher installment loan and retail leasing balances Average

covered loans decreased $3.1 billion 19.3 percent in 2012

compared with 2011

Average investment securities in 2012 were $8.9 billion

13.9 percent higher than 2011 primarily due to purchases

of government agency-backed securities net of

prepayments and maturities as the Company increased its

on-balance sheet liquidity in response to anticipated

regulatory requirements

2013 2012

2013 2012

2011 v2012 v2011

12513 13112 12870 599 242

1685 2143 2522 458 379

10828 10969 10348 141 621

10604 10745 10123 141 622

3.97% 4.28% 4.54% .31%

.73 .95 1.14 .22

3.24% 3.33% 3.40% .09%

3.44% 3.58% 3.65% .14%

.26%

.19

.07%

.07%

75046 72501 63645 2545 8856

227474 215374 201427 12100 13947

315139 306270 283290 8869 22980

230400 225466 221690 4934 3776

Interest and rates are presented on fully taxable-equivalent basis utilizing federal tax rate of 35 percent

Excludes unrealized gains and losses on available-f or-sale investment securities and any premiums or discounts recorded related to the transfer of investment securities at fair value

from available-for-sale to held-to-maturity
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TABLE

Year Ended December31 Doflars in Millions

Increase decrease in

Inteiest Income

Investment securities

Loans held for sale

Loans

Commercial

Commercial real estate

Residential mortgages

Credit card

Other retail

Total loans excluding covered loans

Covered loans

Total loans

Otter earning assets

Total earning assets

Interest Expense
Interest-bearing deposits

Interest checking

Money market savings

Savings accounts

Time certiticates ot deposit less than $100000

Time deposits greater than $100000

Total interest-bearing deposits

Short-term borrowings

Long-term debt

Total interest-bearing liabilities

lncease decrease in net interest income

Average total deposits for 2012 were $22.6 billion 10.6

percent higher than 2011 Average noninterest-bearing

deposits in 2012 were $13.4 billion 24.9 percent higher

than 2011 due to growth in average balances in majority of

the lines of business including Wholesale Banking and

Commercial Real Estate Wealth Management and Securities

Services and Consumer and Small Business Banking

Average total savings deposits were $7.3 billion

6.4 percent higher in 2012 compared with 2011 primarily

due to growth in Consumer and Small Business Banking

balances resulting from strong participation in consumer

savings product offering and higher corporate trust

balances These increases were partially offset by lower

government banking and broker-dealer balances Average

time certificates of deposit less than $100000 were lower in

2012 by $728 million 4.8 percent compared with 2011

result of maturities and lower renewals Average time

depcsits greater than $100000 were $2.6 billion

8.8 percent higher in 2012 compared with 2011

Provision for Credit Losses The provision for credit

losses reflects changes in the size and credit quality of tile

entire portfolio of loans The Company maintains an

allowance for credit losses considered appropriate by

management for probable and estimable incurred losses

based on factors discussed in the Analysis and

Determination of Allowance for Credit Losses section

In 2013 the provision for credit losses was $1.3 billion

compared with $1.9 billion and $2.3 billion in 2012 and 2011

respectively The provision for credit losses was lower than

net charge-offs by $125 million in 2013 $215 million in 2012

and $500 million in 2011 The $542 million 28.8 percent

decrease in the provision for credit losses in 2013

compared with 2012 reflected improving credit trends and

the underlying risk profile of the loan portfolio as economic

conditions continued to slowly improve partially offset by

portfolio growth Accruing loans ninety days or more past

due increased by $53 million 8.0 percent excluding

covered loans from December 31 2012 to December31

2013 primarily reflecting an increase in restructured

residential mortgages in trial period arrangements

Nonperforming assets decreased $275 million 13.2 percent

excluding covered assets from December31 2012 to

Net Interest Income Changes Due to Rate and Volume

2013v2012 2012v2011

volume Yield/Rate Total volume Yield/Rate Total

68 $240 $172 275 $316 41

76 79 122 40 82

229 229 369 272 97

78 127 49 45 29 16

348 216 132 318 123 195

16 18 54 101 155

42 128 170 14 147 161

629 718 89 772 470 302

196 13 183 179 77 102

433 705 272 593 393 200

87 11 76 52 53

338 937 599 938 696 242

13 10 23 19
11 14 17 14

22 17 12 58 46

29 33 62 14 28 42

58 55 26 54 28

123 130 31 180 149

14 76 90 38 52 90

253 15 238 117 23 140

274 184 458 124 255 379

$612 $753 $141 $1062

This table shows the components of the change in net interest income by volume and rate on taxable-equivalent basis utilizing tax rate of 35 percent
This table does not take into

account the level of noninterest-bearing funding nor does it fully reflect changes in the mix of assets and liabilities The change in interest not solely due to changes in volume or rates

has been allocated on pro-rats basis to volume and yield/rate

$441 $621
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December 31 2013 led by reductions in nonperforming

commercial mortgages and construction and development

loans as the Company continued to resolve and reduce

exposure to these problem assets Net charge-offs

decreased $632 million 30.1 percent from 2012 due to the

improvement in the commercial commercial real estate

residential mortgages and home equity and second

mortgages portfolios as economic conditions continued to

slowly improve

The $461 million 19.7 percent decrease in the

provision for credit losses in 2012 compared with 2011

reflected improving credit trends and the underlying risk

profile of the loan portfolio as economic conditions continued

to slowly improve in 2012 partially offset by portfolio growth

Accruing loans ninety days or more past due decreased by

$183 million 21.7 percent excluding covered loans from

December31 2011 to December 31 2012 reflecting

improvement in residential mortgages credit card and other

retail loan portfolios during 2012 Nonperforming assets

decreased $486 million 18.9 percent excluding covered

assets from December 31 2011 to December31 2012 led

by reductions in nonperforming construction and

development loans as well as improvement in other

commercial loan portfolios Net charge-offs decreased

$746 million 26.2 percent in 2012 compared with 2011

due to the improvement in most loan portfolios as economic

conditions continued to slowly improve

Refer to Corporate Risk Profile for further information

on the provision for credit losses net charge-offs

nonperforming assets and other factors considered by the

Company in assessing the credit quality of the loan portfolio

and establishing the allowance for credit losses

Noninterest Income Noninterest income in 2013 was

$8.8 billion compared with $9.3 billion in 2012 and

$8.8 billion in 2011 The $545 million 5.8 percent decrease

in 2013 from 2012 was principally due to lower mortgage

banking revenue of 30.0 percent due to lower origination

and sales revenue partially offset by higher loan servicing

income and favorable changes in the valuation of mortgage

servicing rights MSRs net of hedging activities Growth in

several fee categories partially offset the decline in mortgage

banking revenue Credit and debit card revenue increased

8.2 percent in 2013 compared with 2012 due to higher

transaction volumes including the impact of business

expansion Merchant processing services revenue grew

4.5 percent as result of higher volumes and an increase in

fee-based product revenue Trust and investment

management fees increased 8.0 percent reflecting

improved market conditions and business expansion while

investment products fees and commissions increased

18.7 percent due to higher sales volumes and fees In

addition net securities gains losses were favorable

compared with 2012 as the Company recognized

impairment on certain money center bank securities during

2012 following rating agency downgrades Offsetting these

positive variances was 5.1 percent decrease in corporate

payment products revenue due to lower governmentrelated

transactions 2.2 percent decrease in commercial products

revenue due to lower standby letters of credit fees and loan

syndication fees and 5.5 percent decrease in ATM

processing services revenue due to lower volumes Other

income also decreased 23.4 percent primarily due to 2012

gain on the sale of credit card portfolio and lower retail

lease and equity investment revenue

TABLE Noninterest Income

Year Ended December31 Dollars in Millions 2013 2012

2013 2012

2011 v2012 v2011

Credit and debit card revenue 965 892 $1073

Corporate payment products revenue 706 744 734

Merchant processing services 1458 1395 1355

ATM processing services 327 346 452

Trust and investment management fees 1139 1055 1000

Deposit service charges 670 653 659

Treasury management fees 538 541 551

Commercial products revenue 859 878 841

Mortgage banking revenue 1356 1937 986

Investment products fees 178 150 129

Securities gains losses net 15 31
Other 569 743 1011

Total noninterest income $8774 $9319 $8760

Not meaningful

8.2% 16.9%

5.1 1.4

4.5 3.0

5.5 23.5

8.0 5.5

2.6 .9

.6 18
2.2 4.4

30.0 96.5

18.7 16.3

51.6

23.4 26.5

5.8% 6.4%
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The $559 million 6.4 percent increase in 2012

noniriterest income over 2011 was due to strong mortgage

banking revenue growth of 96.5 percent in 2012 over 2011

principally due to strong origination and sales revenue as

well as an increase in loan servicing revenue In addition

merchant processing services revenue and investment

products fees and commissions increased 3.0 percent and

16.3 percent respectively primarily due to higher

transaction volumes Trust and investment management fees

increased 5.5 percent in 2012 compared with 2011 due to

improved market conditions and business expansion

Commercial products revenue was 4.4 percent higher

principally driven by increases in high-grade bond

underwriting fees and commercial loan fees Net securities

losses were 51.6 percent lower in 2012 compared with

2011 primarily due to higher realized gains on securities

sold 2012 Offsetting these positive variances was 16.9

percent decrease in credit and debit card revenue due to

lower debit card interchange fees as result of 2011

legislation net of mitigation efforts and the impact of the

inclusion of credit card balance transfer fees in interest

income beginning in the first quarter of 2012 ATM

processing services revenue was 23.5 percent lower

primarily due to excluding surcharge fees the Company

passes through to others from revenue beginning in the first

quarler of 2012 rather than reporting those amounts in

occupancy expense as in previous periods Other income

also decreased 26.5 percent in 2012 compared with 2011

primarily due to gains recorded in 2011 from the settlement

of litigation related to the termination of merchant

processing referral agreement and the acquisition of the

operations of bank from the FOIC of $263 million and $46

miltcn respectively and 2012 equity-method investment

charge partially offset by 2012 gain on the sale of credit

card portfolio

NonInterest Expense Noninterest expense in 2013 was

$10.3 billion compared with $10.5 billion in 2012 and

$9.9 billion in 2011 The Companys efficiency ratio was

52.4 percent in 2013 compared with 51.5 percent in 2012 and

51.8 percent in 2011 The $182 million 1.7 percent decrease

in noninterest expense in 2013 from 2012 was primarily due to

reductions in professional services and other expenses

Professional services expense decreased 28.1 percent due to

reduction in mortgage servicing review-related costs Other

expense decreased 13.4 percent reflecting the impact of the

2012 $80 million expense accrual for mortgage foreclosure-

related regulatory settlement the impact of 2012 accrual for

the Companys portion of an indemnification obligation

associated with Visa Inc and lower insurance-related costs

and costs related to other real estate owned and FDIC

insurance expense partially offset by higher tax-advantaged

project costs including changes in the accounting

presentation of certain investments in tax-advantaged projects

during 2013 Those changes in presentation increased 2013

other expense $79 million but had no impact on net income

attributable to U.S Bancorp as the increase in noninterest

expense was offset by the net impact of $132 million

reduction in income tax expense and $53 million reduction in

net income loss attributed to noncontrolling interests In

addition other intangibles expense decreased 18.6 percent

due to the reduction or completion of the amortization of

certain intangibles These decreases were partially offset by

increases in other expense categories Compensation

expense increased 1.2 percent in 2013 over 2012 primarily as

result of growth in staffing for business initiatives and

business expansion and merit increases partially offset by

lower incentive and commission expense reflecting

decrease in mortgage banking activity Employee benefits

expense increased 20.6 percent principally due to higher

pension costs and staffing levels In addition net occupancy

and equipment expense was 3.5 percent higher due to

business initiatives and higher rent and maintenance costs

while technology and communications expense was

3.3 percent higher due to business expansion and technology

projects

TABLE Noninterest Expense

Year Ended December31 Dollars in Millions

2013 2012

2011 v2012 v20112013 2012

Compensation 4371 4320 $4041

Employee benefits 1140 945 845

Net occupancy and equipment 949 917 999

Professional services 381 530 383

Marketing and business development 357 388 369

Technology and communications 848 821 758

Postage printing and supplies 310 304 303

Other intangibles
223 274 299

Other 1695 1957 1914

Total noninterest expense

Efficiency ratio

Computed as noninterest expense divided by the sum of nel interest income on taxable-equivalent basis and noninterest income excluding securities gains losses net

1.2%

20.6

3.5

28.1

8.0

3.3

2.0

186
13.4

6.9%

11.8

8.2

38.4

5.1

8.3

.3

8.4

2.2

$10274 $10456 $9911

52.4% 51.5% 51.8%

1.7% 5.5%
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The $545 million 5.5 percent increase in noninterest

expense in 2012 over 2011 was principally due to higher

compensation expense employee benefits expense and

professional services expense Compensation expense

increased 6.9 percent primarily as result of growth in

staffing for business initiatives and mortgage servicing-

related activities in addition to higher commissions and merit

increases Employee benefits expense increased 11.8

percent principally due to higher pension and medical

insurance costs and staffing levels Professional services

expense increased 38.4 percent principally due to

mortgage servicing review-related projects In addition

technology and communications expense was 8.3 percent

higher due to business expansion and technology projects

Other expense increased 2.2 percent in 2012 over 2011

reflecting the 2012 $80 million expense accrual for the

mortgage foreclosure-related settlement higher regulatory

and insurance-related costs and the 2012 accrual related to

Visa Inc partially offset by $130 million expense accrual

related to mortgage servicing matters recorded in 2011

lower FDIC assessments and lower costs related to other

real estate owned These increases were partially offset by

decrease of 8.2 percent in net occupancy and equipment

expense principally reflecting the change in presentation of

ATM surcharge revenue passed through to others and

8.4 percent decrease in other intangibles expense due to the

reduction or completion of amortization of certain intangibles

Pension Plans Because of the long-term nature of pension

plans the related accounting is complex and can be

impacted by several factors including investment funding

policies accounting methods and actuarial assumptions

The Companys pension accounting reflects the long-

term nature of the benefit obligations and the investment

horizon of plan assets Amounts recorded in the financial

statements reflect actuarial assumptions about participant

benefits and plan asset returns Changes in actuarial

assumptions and differences in actual plan experience

compared with actuarial assumptions are deferred and

recognized in expense in future periods Differences related

to participant benefits are recognized in expense over the

future service period of the employees Differences related to

the expected return on plan assets are included in expense

over period of approximately twelve years

The Company expects pension expense to decrease

$127 million in 2014 driven by an increase in the discount

rate and favorable asset returns partially offset by an

increase related to plan participant life expectancy

assumption changes Because of the complexity of

forecasting pension plan activities the accounting methods

utilized for pension plans the Companys ability to respond

to factors affecting the plans and the hypothetical nature of

actuarial assumptions actual pension expense will differ

from these amounts

Refer to Note 16 of the Notes to the Consolidated

Financial Statements for further information on the

Companys pension plan funding practices investment

policies and asset allocation strategies and accounting

policies for pension plans

The following table shows an analysis of hypothetical

changes in the long-term rate of return LTROR and

discount rate

LTROR Dollars in Millions

Incremental benefit expense 28 28

Percent of 2013 net income .30% .30%

Down 100 up 100

Discount Rate Dollars in Millions Basis Points Basis Points

Incremental benefit expense 100
Percent of 2013 net income 1.05%

Income Tax Expense The provision for income taxes was

$2.0 billion an effective rate of 26.2 percent in 2013

compared with $2.2 billion an effective rate of 28.9 percent

in 2012 and $1.8 billion an effective rate of 27.8 percent in

2011

For further information on income taxes refer to Note 18

of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Balance Sheet Analysis

Average earning assets were $315.1 billion in 2013

compared with $306.3 billion in 2012 The increase in

average earning assets of $8.8 billion 2.9 percent was

primarily due to increases in loan balances of $12.1 billion

5.6 percent and investment securities of $2.5 billion

3.5 percent partially offset by decreases in loans held for

sale of $2.1 billion 27.1 percent and other earning assets of

$3.7 billion 34.6 percent primarily due to the

deconsolidation of certain consolidated VIEs during 2013

For average balance information refer to Consolidated

Daily Average Balance Sheet and Related Yields and Rates

on pages 144 and 145

Loans The Companys loan portfolio was $235.2 billion at

December 31 2013 an increase of $11.9 billion

5.3 percent from December 31 2012 The increase was

driven by growth in residential mortgages of $7.1 billion

16.2 percent commercial loans of $3.8 billion 5.8 percent

commercial real estate loans of $2.9 billion 7.9 percent and

credit card loans of $906 million 5.3 percent partially offset

by decrease in covered loans of $2.8 billion 25.2 percent

Table provides summary of the loan distribution by

product type while Table 12 provides summary of the

selected loan maturity distribution by loan category Average

total loans increased $12.1 billion 5.6 percent in 2013

compared with 2012 The increase was due to growth in

most loan portfolio classes in 2013

Down 100

Basis Points

up ioo

Basis Points

81

.85%
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Commercial Commercial loans including lease financing

increased $3.8 billion 5.8 percent as of December 31

2013 compared with December31 2012 Average

commercial loans increased $6.4 billion 10.6 percent in

2013 compared with 2012 The growth was primarily driven

by higher demand from new and existing customers Table

provides summary of commercial loans by industry and

geogaphical locations

Commercial Real Estate The Companys portfolio of

commercial real estate loans which includes commercial

mortciages and construction and development loans

increased $2.9 billion 7.9 percent at December 31 2013

compared with December31 2012 Average commercial

real estate loans increased $1.7 billion 4.7 percent in 2013

compared with 2012 The increases reflected higher

demond from new and existing customers Table provides

summary of commercial real estate loans by property type

and geographical location The collateral for $726 million of

commercial real estate loans included in covered loans at

Loan Portfolio Distribution

At December 31 Dollars in Millions

Commercial

Commercial 64762

Lease financing 5271

Total commercial

Commercial Real Estate

Commercial mortgages

Construction and development

Total commercial real estate

Residential Mortgages

Residential mortgages

Home equity loans first liens

Total residential mortgages

Credit Card

Other Retail

Retsil leasing

Home equity and second mortgages

Revolving credit

Installment

Autjmobile

Student

Total other retail

Total loans excluding covered

loans

Covered Loans

December 31 2013 was in California compared with

$1.7 billion at December31 2012

The Company reclassifies construction loans to the

commercial mortgage category if permanent financing is

provided by the Company In 2013 approximately $404 million

of construction loans were reclassified to the commercial

mortgage category At December 31 2013 and 2012

$282 million and $225 million respectively of tax-exempt

industrial development loans were secured by real estate The

Companys commercial mortgage and construction and

development loans had unfunded commitments of $10.2 billion

and $9.0 billion at December 31 2013 and 2012 respectively

The Company also finances the operations of real estate

developers and other entities with operations related to real

estate These loans are not secured directly by real estate

but are subject to terms and conditions similar to commercial

loans These loans were included in the commercial loan

category and totaled $3.4 billion and $3.1 billion at

December31 2013 and 2012 respectively

42255 21.7%

6537 3.4

48792 25.1

25306 13.0

8787 4.5

TABLE

2013 2012 2011 2010

Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent

Amount of Total Amount of Total Amount of Total Amount of Total Amount of Total

2009

70033 29.8 66223 29.7

27.5% 60742 27.2% 50734 242% 42272 21.5%

2.3 5481 2.5 5914 2.8 6126 3.1

32183

7702

13.7

3.3

56648 27.0 48398 24.6

31005 13.9

5948 2.6

29664 14.1

6187 3.0

27254 13.8

7441 3.8

39885 17.0 36953 16.5 35851 17.1 34695 17.6 34093 17.5

37545 15.9 32648 14.6 28669 13.7 24315 12.3 20581 10.6

13611 5.8 11370 5.1 8413 4.0 6417 3.3 5475 2.8

51156 21.7 44018 19.7 37082 17.7 30732 15.6 26056 13.4

18021 7.7 17115 7.7 17360 8.3 16803 8.5 16814 8.6

5929 2.5 5419 2.4 5118 2.4 4569 2.3 4568 2.3

15442 6.6 16726 7.5 18131 8.6 18940 9.6 19439 10.0

3276 1.4 3332 1.5 3344 1.6 3472 1.8 3506 1.8

5709 2.4 5463 2.4 5348 2.6 5459 2.8 5455 2.8

13743 5.8 12593 5.6 11508 5.5 10897 5.5 9544 4.9

3579 1.5 4179 1.9 4658 2.2 5054 2.5 4629 2.4

47678 20.2 47712 21.3 48107 22.9 48391 24.5 47141 24.2

226773 96.4 212021 94.9 195048 93.0 179019 90.8 172896 88.8

8462 3.6 11308 5.1 14787 7.0 18042 9.2 21859 11.2

Total loans $235235 100.0% $223329 100.0% $209835 100.0% $197061 100.0% $194755 100.0%
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Residential Mortgages Residential mortgages held in the

loan portfolio at December 31 2013 increased $7.1 billion

16.2 percent over December 31 2012 Average residential

mortgages increased $7.7 billion 19.1 percent in 2013

compared with 2012 The growth reflected origination and

refinancing activity due to the low interest rate environment

during the period Residential mortgages originated and

placed in the Companys loan portfolio are primarily well

secured jumbo mortgages and branch-originated first lien

home equity loans to borrowers with high credit quality The

Company generally retains portfolio loans through maturity

however the Companys intent may change over time

based upon various factors such as ongoing asset/liability

management activities assessment of product profitability

credit risk liquidity needs and capital implications If the

Companys intent or ability to hold an existing portfolio loan

changes it is transferred to loans held for sale

Credit Card Total credit card loans increased $906 million

5.3 percent at December 31 2013 compared with

December 31 2012 Average credit card balances

increased $160 million 1.0 percent in 2013 compared with

2012 The increases reflected customer growth during the

period

TABLE Commercial Loans by Industry Group and Geography

2013

Loans Percent

2012

Loans Percent
At December 31 Dollars in Millions

Industry Group

Manufacturing

Real estate rental and leasing

Wholesale trade

Finance and insurance

Retail trade

Healthcare and social assistance

Public administration

Professional scientific and technical services

Information

Transport and storage

Educational services

Arts entertainment and recreation

Mining

Agriculture forestry fishing and hunting

Other services

Utilities

Other

Total

$10738

6788

6346

5864

5401

5048

3934

2747

2443

2322

2222

2214

2094

1508

1507

1374

7483

15.3%

9.7

9.1

8.4

7.7

7.2

5.6

3.9

3.5

3.3

3.2

3.2

3.0

2.1

2.1

2.0

10.7

9518

5855

6297

6579

4735

4733

4709

2185

2203

2549

1964

2124

2122

1553

1670

1390

6037

14.4%

8.8

9.5

9.9

7.2

7.1

7.1

3.3

3.3

3.9

3.0

3.2

3.2

2.4

2.5

2.1

9.1

$70033 100.0% $66223 100.0%

Geography
California

Colorado

Illinois

Minnesota

Missouri

Ohio

Oregon

Washington

Wisconsin

Iowa Kansas Nebraska North Dakota South Dakota

Arkansas Indiana Kentucky Tennessee

Idaho Montana Wyoming

Arizona Nevada New Mexico Utah

Total banking region

Florida Michigan New York Pennsylvania Texas

All other states

Total outside Companys banking region

Total

8748

2970

3539

5086

2893

3385

1941

2823

2768

4091

4024

1148

2917

12.5%

4.2

5.1

7.3

4.1

4.8

2.8

4.0

4.0

5.8

5.8

1.6

4.2

8081

2722

3544

4720

2922

3240

1792

2626

2727

4244

3545

1096

2435

122%

4.1

5.3

7.1

4.4

4.9

2.7

4.0

4.1

6.4

5.4

1.7

3.7

46333 66.2 43694 66.0

11762 16.8 11082 16.7

11938 17.0 11447 17.3

23700 33.8 22529 34.0

$70033 100.0% $66223 100.0%
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TABLE

At December31 Dollars in Millions

Commercial Real Estate Loans by Property Type and Geography
2013

Loans Percent

2012

Property Type
Business owner occupied

Commercial property

Industrial

Office

Retail

Other commercial

MUlti-family

Hotel/motel

Residential homebuilders

Health care facilities

Total

Loans Percent

$11223

1567

5173

4503

4253

7886

3251

1728

301

28.1%

3.9

13.0

11.3

10.7

19.8

8.1

4.3

.8

$11405

1586

4833

4537

3735

6857

2569

1142

289

30.9%

4.3

13.1

12.3

10.1

18.5

6.9

3.1

.8

$39885 100.0% $36953 100.0%

Geography
California

Colorado

Illinois

Miinesota

Mi5souri

Ohio

Oregon

Washington

Wisconsin

Iowa Kansas Nebraska North Dakota South Dakota

Arkansas Indiana Kentucky Tennessee

Idaho Montana Wyoming

Arizona Nevada New Mexico Utah

Total banking region

Florida Michigan New York Pennsylvania Texas

All other states

Total outside Companys banking region

Total

9148

1781

1586

2052

1573

1491

1999

3548

2410

2237

1718

1265

3214

22.9%

4.5

4.0

5.2

3.9

3.7

5.0

8.9

6.0

5.6

4.3

3.2

8.1

8039

1644

1555

1958

1560

1512

1921

3586

2011

2349

1886

1156

2958

21.8%

4.5

4.2

5.3

4.2

4.1

5.2

9.7

5.4

6.4

5.1

3.1

8.0

34022 85.3 32135 87.0

3178 8.0 2405 6.5

2685 6.7 2413 6.5

5863 14.7 4818 13.0

$39885 100.0%

TABLE

$36953 100.0%

Other Retail Total other retail loans which include retail compared with 2012 The decreases were primarily due to

leasing home equity and second mortgages and other retail lower home equity and second mortgages and student loan

loans decreased $34 million .1 percent at December 31 balances partially offset by higher auto and installment

2013 compared with December 31 2012 Average other loans and retail leasing balances

retai loans decreased $813 million 1.7 percent in 2013

_________
Residential Mortgages by Geography

2013 2012

At December 31 Dollars in Millions Loans Percent Loans Percent

California

Colorado

Illinois

Minnssota

Missouri

Ohio

Oregon

Washington

Wisconsin

Iowa Kansas Nebraska North Dakota South Dakota

Arkansas Indiana Kentucky Tennessee

Idaho Montana Wyoming

Arizona Nevada New Mexico Utah

Total banking region

Florida Michigan New York Pennsylvania Texas

All other states

Total outside Companys banking region

Total

8754

3012

3151

4029

2224

2511

2104

2868

1606

2298

3510

1160

3344

17.1%

5.9

6.2

7.9

43

4.9

4.1

5.6

3.1

45

6.9

2.3

6.5

6022

2674

2882

3521

2064

2301

1836

2543

1482

2049

3233

989

2753

13.7%

6.1

6.5

8.0

4.7

5.2

4.2

5.8

3.4

4.6

7.3

2.2

6.3

40571 79.3 34349 78.0

4586 9.0 4329 9.9

5999 11.7 5340 12.1

10585 20.7 9669 22.0

$51156 100.0% $44018 100.0%
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Of the total residential mortgages credit card and other

retail loans outstanding at December31 2013 approximately

72.8 percent were to customers located in the Companys

primary banking region compared with 72.5 percent at

December 31 2012 Tables 10 and 11 provide

geographic summary of residential mortgages credit card

loans and other retail loans outstanding respectively as of

December 31 2013 and 2012 The collateral for $3.9 billion of

residential mortgages and other retail loans included in

covered loans at December 31 2013 was in California

compared with $5.1 billion at December 31 2012

Loans Held for Sale Loans held for sale consisting

primarily of residential mortgages to be sold in the

secondary market were $3.3 billion at December31 2013

compared with $8.0 billion at December31 2012 The

decrease in loans held for sale was principally due to lower

residential mortgage loan originations during the fourth

quarter of 2013 compared with the fourth quarter of 2012

Most of the residential mortgage loans the Company

originates or purchases follow guidelines that allow the loans

to be sold into existing highly liquid secondary markets in

particular in government agency transactions and to

government sponsored enterprises GSEs

TABLE 10 Credit Card Loans by Geography

At December31 Dollars in Millions

2013

Loans Percent

2012

Loans Percent

California

Colorado

Illinois

Minnesota

Missouri

Ohio

Oregon

Washington

Wisconsin

Iowa Kansas Nebraska North Dakota South Dakota

Arkansas Indiana Kentucky Tennessee

Idaho Montana Wyoming

Arizona Nevada New Mexico Utah

Total banking region

Florida Michigan New York Pennsylvania Texas

All other states

Total outside Companys banking region

Total

1856

688

830

1226

647

1097

613

801

1015

892

1408

360

840

10.3%

3.8

4.6

6.8

3.6

6.1

34

4.4

5.6

5.0

7.8

2.0

4.7

1757

665

796

1196

616

1071

597

771

972

862

1342

352

794

10.3%

3.9

4.6

7.0

3.6

6.3

3.5

4.5

5.7

5.0

7.8

2.1

4.6

TABLE 11

12273 68.1 11791 68.9

3070 17.0 2884 16.8

2678 14.9 2440 14.3

5748 31.9 5324 31.1

$18021 100.0% $17115 100.0%

__________ Other Retail Loans by Geography

2013 2012

At December 31 Dollars in Millions Loans Percent Loans Percent

California

Colorado

Illinois

Minnesota

Missouri

Ohio

Oregon

Washington

Wisconsin

Iowa Kansas Nebraska North Dakota South Dakota

Arkansas Indiana Kentucky Tennessee

Idaho Montana Wyoming

Arizona Nevada New Mexico Utah

Total banking region

Florida Michigan New York Pennsylvania Texas

All other states

Total outside Companys banking region

Total

5785

1921

2295

3815

2160

2638

1627

1793

1785

2378

2824

986

2165

12.1%

4.0

4.8

8.0

4.5

5.5

3.4

3.8

3.8

5.0

5.9

2.1

4.6

5545

2068

2232

4113

2234

2628

1748

1954

1845

2465

2772

1071

2080

11.6%

4.3

4.7

8.6

4.7

5.5

3.7

4.1

3.9

5.2

5.8

2.2

4.4

32172 67.5 32755 68.7

7681 16.1 6957 14.6

7825 16.4 8000 16.7

15506 32.5 14957 31.3

$47678 100.0% $47712 100.0%
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Selected Loan Maturity DistributionTABLE 12

Investment Securities The Company uses its investment

securities portfolio to manage enterprise interest rate risk

provide liquidity including the ability to meet proposed

regulatory requirements generate interest and dividend

income and as collateral for public deposits and wholesale

funding sources While the Company intends to hold its

invesment securities indefinitely it may sell available-for-

sale securities in response to structural changes in the

balance sheet and related interest rate risk and to meet

liquidity requirements among other factors

Investment securities totaled $79.9 billion at

December 31 2013 compared with $74.5 billion at

December31 2012 The $5.4 billion 7.1 percent increase

reflected $6.7 billion of net investment purchases partially

offset by $1 .2 billion unfavorable change in net unrealized

gains losses on available-for-sale investment securities

Held-to-maturity securities were $38.9 billion at

December 31 2013 compared with $34.4 billion at

December 31 2012 primarily reflecting net purchases of

U.S government agency-backed securities made in

anticipation of final liquidity coverage ratio regulatory

requirements

Average investment securities were $75.0 billion in 2013

compared with $72.5 billion in 2012 The weighted-average

yield of the available-for-sale portfolio was 2.64 percent at

December 31 2013 compared with 2.93 percent at

December 31 2012 The average maturity of the available-for-

sale portfolio was 6.0 years at December 31 2013 compared

with 4.1 years
at December 31 2012 The weighted-average

yield of the held-to-maturity portfolio was 2.00 percent at

December 31 2013 compared with 1.94 percent at

December 31 2012 The average maturity of the held-to-

maturity portfolio was 4.5 years at December 31 2013

compared with 3.3 years at December 31 2012 The increases

in the weighted-average maturities from December 31 2012 to

December 31 2013 related to the impact of higher interest

rates on anticipated prepayments on mortgage-backed

securities Investment securities by type are shown in Table 13

The Companys available-for-sale securities are carried

at fair value with changes in fair value reflected in other

comprehensive income loss unless security is deemed to

be olher-than-temporarily impaired At December31 2013

Over One

One Year Through Over

or Less Five Years Five Years

79952

92056

the Companys net unrealized losses on available-for-sale

securities were $125 million compared with unrealized gains

of $1.1 billion at December 31 2012 The unfavorable

change in net unrealized gains losses was primarily due to

decreases in the fair value of agency mortgage-backed and

state and political securities as result of increases in

interest rates Gross unrealized losses on available-for-sale

securities totaled $775 million at December31 2013

compared with $147 million at December 31 2012

The Company conducts regular assessment of its

investment portfolio to determine whether any securities are

other-than-temporarily impaired When assessing unrealized

losses for other-than-temporary impairment the Company

considers the nature of the investment the financial

condition of the issuer the extent and duration of unrealized

loss expected cash flows of underlying assets and market

conditions At December31 2013 the Company had no

plans to sell securities with unrealized losses and believes it

is more likely than not that it would not be required to sell

such securities before recovery of their amortized cost

There is limited market activity for non-agency mortgage-

backed securities held by the Company As result the

Company estimates the fair value of these securities using

estimates of expected cash flows discount rates and

managements assessment of various other market factors

which are judgmental in nature The Company recorded

$14 million of impairment charges in earnings during 2013 on

non-agency mortgage-backed securities These impairment

charges were due to changes in expected cash flows

primarily resulting from changes in voluntary prepayment and

default assumptions in the underlying mortgage pools Further

adverse changes in market conditions may result in additional

impairment charges in future periods

During 2012 the Company recorded $46 million of

impairment charges in earnings on non-agency mortgage-

backed securities These impairment charges were due to

changes in expected cash flows primarily resulting from

increases in defaults in the underlying mortgage pools During

2012 the Company also recognized impairment charges of

$27 million in earnings related to certain perpetual preferred

securities issued by financial institutions following the

downgrades of money center banks by rating agency

At December 31 2013 IDoflars in Millions

Totai

Commercial $23380 42810 3843 70033

Commercial real estate 8338 24915 6632 39885

Residential mortgages
2563 8100 40493 51156

Credit card 18021 18021

Other retail
9296 25491 12891 47678

Covered loans 1629 2027 4806 8462

Total loans $63227 $103343 $68665 $235235

Total of loans due after one year with

Predetermined interest rates

Floating interest rates

32 ILLS BANCORP



TABLE 13 Investment Securities

At December 312013 Dollars in Millions

U.S Treasury and Agencies
Maturing in one year or less

Maturing after one year through five years

Maturing after five years through ten years

Maturing after ten years

Total

Mortgage-Backed Securities

Maturing in one year or less

Maturing after one year through five years

Maturing after five years through ten years

Maturing after ten years

Total

Asset-Backed Securities

Maturing in one year or less

Maturing after one year through five years

Maturing after five years through ten years

Maturing after ten years

Total

Obligations of State and Political

Subdivisions

Maturing in one year or less

Maturing after one year through five years

Maturing after five years through ten years

Maturing after ten years

Total

Other Debt Securities

Maturing in one year or less

Maturing after one year through five years

Maturing after five years through ten years

Maturing after ten years

Total

Other Investments

Total investment securities

1811 1814 .2 1.01%

80 81 1.4 1.36

1163 1085 8.5 2.05

60 60 11.3 1.75

.6 2.77%

22441 22217 3.7 2.30

12424 12159 5.7 166

798 809 12.8 1.24

$35672 $35194 4.6 2.05%

11 14 3.4 .79

7.1 .94

20.8 .76

16 27 5.0 .82%

.4 7.48%

2.0 9.52

7.3 7.85

12.2 2.64

12 12 8.9 5.02%

.5 1.60%

76 76 1.9 1.12

24 13 6.8 .98

Available-for-Sale

Weighted-

Average Weighted-

Amortized Fair Maturity Average

Cost Value in Years Yield

Held-to-Maturity

Amortized

Cost

Weighted-

Average

Fair Maturity

Vslue in Years

28 28 .3 4.44%

32 33 2.7 3.11

347 331 8.1 2.59

701 653 14.7 2.39

Weighted-

Average

Yield

1108 1045 11.9 2.52%

226 231 .6 2.63%

13864 13752 3.9 2.16

16000 16007 5.9 1.91

2474 2490 13.1 1.20

3114 3040 3.6 1.42%

$32564 $32480 5.5 1.97%

7.65%

272 282 4.1 1.31

364 371 7.6 2.57

17.6 5.15

636 653 6.1 2.03%

70 70 .4 6.16%

4671 4772 2.6 6.72

445 438 6.6 5.80

487 458 20.8 6.25

5673 5738 4.5 6.60%

.2 1.16%

734 640 21.5 2.71

740 646 21.4 2.70% 106 95 2.9 1.12%

338 373 18.9 2.88%

$41059 $40935 6.0 2.64% $38920 $38368 4.5 2.00%

Information related to asset and mortgage-backed securities included above is presented based upon weighted-a verage maturities anticipating future prepayments
In formation related to obtations of state and political subdivisions is presented based upon yield to first optional call date if the security is purchased at premium yield to maturity if

purchased at par or discount

Maturity calculations for obligations of state and political subdivisions are based on the first optional call date for securities with fair value above par and contractual maturity for securities with
fail- value equal to or below par

The weighted-average maturity of the available-for-sale investment securities was years at December 2012 with corresponding weighted-average yield of 2.93 percent The weighted-
average maturity of the held-to-maturity investment securities was 3.3 years at December31 2012 with corresponding weighted-average yield of 1.94 percent

Average yields are presented on fully-taxable equivalent basis under tax rate of 35 percent Yields on available-for-sale and held-to-maturity investment securities are computed based on
amortized cost balances excluding any premiums or discounts recorded related to the transfer of investment securities at fair value from available-for-sale to held-to-maturity Average yield and
maturity calculations exclude equity securities that have no stated yield or maturity

2013 2012

At December31 Dollars in Millions

Amortized Percent

Cost of Total

U.S Treasury and agencies 4222 5.3%

Mortgage-backed securities 68236 85.3

Asset-backed securities 652 .8

Obligations of state and political subdivisions 5685 7.1

Other debt securities and investments 1184 1.5

Total investment securities $79979 100.0%

Amortized Percent

Cost of Total

4365

61019

637

6079

1329

5.9%

83.1

.9

8.3

1.8

$73429 100.0%
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TABLE 14 Deposits

The composition of deposits was as fotows

At December 31 Dollars in Millions

Noninterest-bearing deposits

Interest-bearing deposits

Interest checking

Money market savings

Savings accounts

Thtal of savings deposits

Time certificates of deposit less

than $100000

Time deposits greater than

$100000

Domestic

Foreign

rotal interest-bearing

deposits

Total deposits $262123

Percent Percent

Amount of Total

22.2% 38186 20.8%

38436 21.0

40848 22.3

16885 9.2

52.5

The maturity of time deposits was as follows

At December 31 2013 Dollars in Millions

Three months or less

Three months through six months

Six months through one year

2015

2016

2017

2018

Thereafter

Toal

Certificates

Less Than $100000

2246

1519

2025

3364

1275

718

633

$11784

Time Deposits

Greater Than $100000 Total

$21372 $23618

1495 3014

1372 3397

2431 5795

1203 2478

662 1380

459 1092

23 27

$29017 $40801

In December 2013 U.S banking regulators approved

final rules that prohibit banks from holding certain types of

investments such as investments in hedge and private

equily funds The Company does not anticipate the

implementation of these final rules will require any signifIcant

liquidation of securities held or impairment charges

Refer to Notes and 21 in the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements for further information on investment

securities

Deposits Total deposits were $262.1 billion at

December 31 2013 compared with $249.2 billion at

December 31 2012 The $12.9 billion 5.2 percent increase

in total deposits reflected organic growth in core deposits

due to the overall flight-to-quality by customers particularly

in light of the expiration of unlimited insurance on

noninterest-bearing transaction accounts and uncertainty

about the United States Congress raising the domestic debt

ceiling Average total deposits increased $14.7 billion 6.3

percent over 2012 due to increases in noninterest-bearing

and total savings account balances

Noninterest-bearing deposits at December 31 2013

increased $2.8 billion 3.7 percent over December 31

2012 reflecting growth in Wholesale Banking and

Commercial Real Estate balances Average noninterest

bearing deposits increased $1 .8 billion 2.6 percent in

2013 compared with 2012 primarily due to higher average

Consumer and Small Business Banking balances

Interest-bearing savings deposits increased

$12.2 billion 9.2 percent at December 31 2013 compared

with December 31 2012 The increase related to money

market savings interest checking and savings account

balances The $8.8 billion 17.2 percent increase in money

market savings account balances was primarily due to

higher Wholesale Banking and Commercial Real Estate and

Wealth Management and Securities Services balances The

$1.7 billion 3.4 percent increase in interest checking

account balances was primarily due to higher Consumer

and Small Business Banking and corporate trust balances

partially offset by lower broker-dealer balances The

$1.7 billion 5.4 percent increase in savings account

balances reflected continued strong participation in

2013 2012

Percent

Amount of Total

Percent

Amount of Total

2011 2010

Percent

Amount of Total

2009

Amount of Total

76941 29.4% 74172 29.8% 68579 29.7% 45314

52140 19.9 50430 20.2 45933 19.9 43183 21.2

59772 22.8 50987 20.5 45854 19.9 46855 22.9

32469 12.4 30811 12.4 28018 12.1 24260 11.9

144381 55.1 132228 53.1 119805 51.9 114298 56.0 96169

11784 4.5 13744 5.5 14952 6.5 15083 7.4 18966 10.4

9527 3.6 12148 4.8 12583 5.4 12330 6.0 16858 9.2

19490 7.4 16891 6.8 14966 6.5 17227 8.4 13063 7.1

185182 70.6 175011 70.2

100.0% $249183 100.0% $230885

162306 70.3 158938 77.8

100.0% $204252 100.0%

145056 79.2

$183242 100.0%
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savings product offered by Consumer and Small Business statement and framework for the Company which defines

Banking Average interest-bearing savings deposits in 2013

increased $14.3 billion 11.7 percent compared with 2012

primarily due to growth in Consumer and Small Business

Banking Wholesale and Commercial Real Estate and

corporate trust balances

Interest-bearing time deposits at December31 2013

decreased $2.0 billion 4.6 percent compared with

December 31 2012 driven primarily by decrease in time

certificates of deposit less than $100000 Time certificates of

deposit less than $100000 decreased $2.0 billion 14.3

percent at December 31 2013 compared with

December 31 2012 Average time certificates of deposit

less than $100000 decreased $1.7 billion 11.8 percent in

2013 compared with 2012 The decreases were the result of

lower Consumer and Small Business Banking balances

primarily due to maturities Time deposits greater than

$100000 were essentially unchanged at December 31

2013 compared with December 31 2012 Average time

deposits greater than $100000 in 2013 increased $356

million 1.1 percent compared with 2012 Time deposits

greater than $100000 are managed as an alternative to

other funding sources such as wholesale borrowing based

largely on relative pricing

Borrowings The Company utilizes both short-term and

long-term borrowings as part of its asset/liability

management and funding strategies Short-term borrowings

which include federal funds purchased commercial paper

repurchase agreements borrowings secured by high-grade

assets and other short-term borrowings were $27.6 billion at

December 31 2013 compared with $26.3 billion at

December 31 2012 The $1.3 billion 5.0 percent increase

in short-term borrowings was primarily due to higher

commercial paper balances partially offset by lower

repurchase agreement federal funds purchased and other

short-term borrowings balances

Long-term debt was $20.0 billion at December 31 2013

compared with $25.5 billion at December 31 2012 The

$5.5 billion 21.4 percent decrease was primarily due to

$4.5 billion decrease in long-term debt related to the

deconsolidation of certain consolidated VIEs and $2.9 billion

of medium-term note maturities partially offset by the

issuance of $1.5 billion of medium-term notes Refer to

Note 12 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for additional information regarding long-term debt and the

Liquidity Risk Management section for discussion of

liquidity management of the Company

Corporate Risk Profile

Overview Managing risks is an essential part of

successfully operating financial services company The

Companys Board of Directors has approved risk appetite

acceptable levels of risk taking including risk limits and

establishes the governance and oversight activities over risk

management and reporting Compliance with the risk

appetite statement is monitored by the Companys Board of

Directors and the management Executive Risk Committee

Within this framework the Company has established

quantitative measurements and qualitative considerations for

monitoring risk across the Company

The Companys most prominent risk exposures are

credit residual value operational interest rate market

liquidity and reputation risk Credit risk is the risk of not

collecting the interest and/or the principal balance of loan

investment or derivative contract when it is due Residual

value risk is the potential reduction in the end-of-term value

of leased assets Operational risk includes risks related to

fraud processing errors technology breaches of internal

controls and in data security and business continuation and

disaster recovery Operational risk also includes legal and

compliance risks including risks arising from the failure to

adhere to laws rules regulations and internal policies and

procedures Interest rate risk is the potential reduction of net

interest income as result of changes in interest rates which

can affect the re-pricing of assets and liabilities differently

Market risk arises from fluctuations in interest rates foreign

exchange rates and security prices that may result in

changes in the values of financial instruments such as

trading and available-for-sale securities mortgage loans

held for sale MSRs and derivatives that are accounted for on

fair value basis Liquidity risk is the possible inability to

fund obligations to depositors investors or borrowers

Further corporate strategic decisions as well as the risks

described above could give rise to reputation risk

Reputation risk is the risk that negative publicity or press

whether true or not could result in costly litigation or cause

decline in the Companys stock value customer base

funding sources or revenue In addition to the risks identified

above other risk factors exist that may impact the Company

Refer to Risk Factors beginning on page 147 for detailed

discussion of these factors

The Companys risk management governance approach

is designed to ensure specific lines of risk management

accountability and escalation of key risk information Under

the guidance of the Executive Risk Committee designated

risk management personnel implement risk management

policies and interact with the Companys business lines to

monitor significant risks on regular basis In addition risk

management personnel help promote culture of

compliance through compliance program standards and

policies and through oversight credible challenge advice

monitoring testing and reporting with respect to the

Companys adherence to laws rules regulations and

internal policies and procedures
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Company that it considers to have potential or well-defined
Management also provides various risk-related reporting

to the Risk Management Committee of the Board of

Directors The Risk Management Committee discusses with

management the Companys risk management performance

quarterly covering the status of existing matters areas of

potential future concern and specific information on certain

types of loss events The discussion also covers quarterly

reports by management assessing the Companys

performance relative to the risk appetite statement and the

associated risk tolerance limits including

Qualitative considerations such as macroeconomic

environment regulatory and compliance changes

litigation developments and technology and

bersecurity

Capital ratios and regulatory projections including

regulatory measures and stressed scenarios

Credit measures including adversely rated and

nonperforming loans leveraged transactions credit

concentrations and lending limits

Market risk including interest rate risk market value and

net income simulation and trading-related Value at Risk

and

Operational risk including operational losses system

availability performance and various regulatory

compliances measures

Credit Risk Management The Companys strategy for

credit risk management includes well-defined centralized

credit policies uniform underwriting criteria and ongoing

risk monitoring and review processes
for all commercial and

consumer credit exposures The strategy also emphasizes

diversification on geographic industry and customer level

regular credit examinations and management reviews of

loans exhibiting deterioration of credit quality The Risk

Management Committee of the Companys Board of

Directors oversees the Companys credit risk management

process

In addition credit quality ratings as defined by the

Company are an important part of the Companys overall

credit risk management and evaluation of its allowance for

credit losses Loans with pass rating represent those not

classified on the Companys rating scale for problem credits

as minimal risk has been identified Loans with special

mention or classified rating including all of the Companys

loans that are 90 days or more past due and still accruing

nonaccrual loans those considered troubled debt

restructurings TDRs and loans in junior lien position

that are current but are behind modified or delinquent loan

in first lien position encompass all loans held by the

weakness that may put full collection of contractual cash

flows at risk The Companys internal credit quality ratings for

consumer loans are primarily based on delinquency and

nonperforming status except for limited population of

larger loans within those portfolios that are individually

evaluated For this limited population the determination of

the internal credit quality rating may also consider collateral

value and customer cash flows The Company obtains

recent collateral value estimates for the majority of its

residential mortgage and home equity and second mortgage

portfolios which allows the Company to compute estimated

loan-to-value LTV ratios reflecting current market

conditions These individual refreshed LTV ratios are

considered in the determination of the appropriate allowance

for credit losses However the underwriting criteria the

Company employs consider the relevant income and credit

characteristics of the borrower such that the collateral is not

the primary source of repayment The Company strives to

identify potential problem loans early record any necessary

charge-offs promptly and maintain appropriate allowance

levels for probable incurred loan losses Refer to Notes

and in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for

further information of the Companys loan portfolios including

internal credit quality ratings

The Company categorizes its loan portfolio into three

segments which is the level at which it develops and

documents systematic methodology to determine the

allowance for credit losses The Companys three loan

portfolio segments are commercial lending consumer

lending and covered loans The commercial lending

segment includes loans and leases made to small business

middle market large corporate commercial real estate

financial institution non-profit and public sector customers

Key risk characteristics relevant to commercial lending

segment loans include the industry and geography of the

borrowers business purpose of the loan repayment source

borrowers debt capacity and financial flexibility loan

covenants and nature of pledged collateral if any These

risk characteristics among others are considered in

determining estimates about the likelihood of default by the

borrowers and the severity of loss in the event of default The

Company considers these risk characteristics in assigning

internal risk ratings to or forecasting losses on these loans

which are the significant factors in determining the allowance

for credit losses for loans in the commercial lending

segment

The consumer lending segment represents loans and

leases made to consumer customers including residential

mortgages credit card loans and other retail loans such as

revolving consumer lines auto loans and leases student

loans and home equity loans and lines Home equity or
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second mortgage loans are junior lien closed-end accounts

fully disbursed at origination These loans typically are fixed

rate loans secured by residential real estate with 10 or

15 year fixed payment amortization schedule Home equity

lines are revolving accounts giving the borrower the ability to

draw and repay balances repeatedly up to maximum

commitment and are secured by residential real estate

These include accounts in either first or junior lien position

Typical terms on home equity lines in the portfolio are

variable rates benchmarked to the prime rate with 15-year

draw period during which minimum payment is equivalent

to the monthly interest followed by 10-year amortization

period new 10-year draw and 20-year amortization

product was introduced during 2013 to provide customers

the option to repay their outstanding balances over longer

period At December 31 2013 substantially all of the

Companys home equity lines were in the draw period Key

risk characteristics relevant to consumer lending segment

loans primarily relate to the borrowers capacity and

willingness to repay and include unemployment rates and

other economic factors customer payment history and in

some cases updated LTV information on real estate based

loans These risk characteristics among others are reflected

in forecasts of delinquency levels bankruptcies and losses

which are the primary factors in determining the allowance

for credit losses for the consumer lending segment

The covered loan segment represents loans acquired in

FDIC-assisted transactions that are covered by loss sharing

agreements with the FDIC that greatly reduce the risk of

future credit losses to the Company Key risk characteristics

for covered segment loans are consistent with the segment

they would otherwise be included in had the loss share

coverage not been in place but consider the indemnification

provided by the FDIC

The Company further disaggregates its loan portfolio

segments into various classes based on their underlying risk

characteristics The two classes within the commercial

lending segment are commercial loans and commercial real

estate loans The three classes within the consumer lending

segment are residential mortgages credit card loans and

other retail loans The covered loan segment consists of only

one class

Because business processes and credit risks

associated with unfunded credit commitments are essentially

the same as for loans the Company utilizes similar

processes to estimate its
liability

for unfunded credit

commitments The Company also engages in non-lending

activities that may give rise to credit risk including derivative

transactions for balance sheet hedging purposes foreign

exchange transactions deposit overdrafts and interest rate

swap contracts for customers investments in securities and

other financial assets and settlement risk including

Automated Clearing House transactions and the processing

of credit card transactions for merchants These activities are

subject to credit review analysis and approval processes

Economic and Other Factors In evaluating its credit risk

the Company considers changes if any in underwriting

activities the loan portfolio composition including product

mix and geographic industry or customer-specific

concentrations trends in loan performance the level of

allowance coverage relative to similar banking institutions

and macroeconomic factors such as changes in

unemployment rates gross domestic product and consumer

bankruptcy filings

Beginning in late 2007 financial markets suffered

significant disruptions leading to and exacerbated by

declining real estate values and subsequent economic

challenges both domestically and globally Median home

prices declined across most domestic markets which had

significant adverse impact on the collectability of residential

mortgage loans Residential mortgage delinquencies

increased throughout 2008 and 2009 High unemployment

levels beginning in 2009 further increased losses in prime-

based residential portfolios and credit cards

Although economic conditions generally have stabilized

from the dramatic downturn experienced in 2008 and 2009

and the financial markets have generally improved business

activities across range of industries continue to face

difficulties due to lower consumer confidence and spending

continued elevated unemployment and under-employment

and continued stress in the residential mortgage portfolio

Credit costs peaked for the Company in late 2009 and have

trended downward thereafter The provision for credit losses

was lower than net charge-offs by $125 million in 2013

$215 million in 2012 and $500 million in 2011 The $542

million 28.8 percent decrease in the provision for credit

losses in 2013 compared with 2012 reflected improving

credit trends and the underlying risk profile of the loan

portfolio as economic conditions continued to slowly

improve partially offset by portfolio growth

Credit Diversification The Company manages its credit

risk in part through diversification of its loan portfolio and

limit setting by product type criteria and concentrations As

part of its normal business activities the Company offers

broad array of traditional commercial lending products and

specialized products such as asset-based lending

commercial lease financing agricultural credit warehouse

mortgage lending small business lending commercial real

estate health care and correspondent banking The

Company also offers an array of consumer lending products

including residential mortgages credit card loans auto

loans retail leases home equity revolving credit and other

consumer loans These consumer lending products are
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primarily offered through the branch office network home

mortgage and loan production offices and indirect

distribution channels such as auto dealers The Company

monitors and manages the portfolio diversification by

industry customer and geography Table provides

information with respect to the overall product diversification

and changes in the mix during 2013

The commercial loan class is diversified among various

industries with somewhat higher concentrations in

manufacturing wholesale trade finance and insurance and

real estate rental and leasing Additionally the commercial

loan class is diversified across the Companys geographical

markets with 66.2 percent of total commercial loans within

the Companys Consumer and Small Business Banking

markets Credit relationships outside of the Companys

Consumer and Small Business Banking markets relate to the

corporate banking mortgage banking auto dealer and

leasing businesses focusing on large national customers

and specifically targeted industries Loans to mortgage

banking customers are primarily warehouse lines which are

collateralized with the underlying mortgages The Company

regularly monitors its mortgage collateral position to manage

its risk exposure Table provides summary of significant

industry groups and geographical locations of commercial

loans outstanding at December 31 2013 and 2012

The commercial real estate loan class reflects the

Companys focus on serving business owners within its

geographic footprint as well as regional and national

investment-based real estate owners and builders Within the

commercial real estate loan class different property types

have varying degrees of credit risk Table provides

summary of the significant property types and geographical

locaions of commercial real estate loans outstanding at

December 31 2013 and 2012 At December31 2013

approximately 28.1 percent of the commercial real estate

loans represented business owner-occupied properties that

tend to exhibit less credit risk than non owner-occupied

properties The investment-based real estate mortgages are

diversified among various property types with somewhat

higher concentrations in multi-family office and retail

properties From geographical perspective the Companys

commercial real estate loan class is generally well

diversified However at December 31 2013 22.9 percent of

the Companys commercial real estate loans were secured

by collateral in California which has historically experienced

higher delinquency levels and credit quality deterioration in

recessionary periods due to excess home inventory levels

and declining valuations Included in commercial real estate

at year-end 2013 was approximately $463 million in loans

related to land held for development and $566 million of

loans related to residential and commercial acquisition and

development properties These loans are subject to quarterly

monitoring for changes in local market conditions due to

higher credit risk profile The commercial real estate loan

class is diversified across the Companys geographical

markets with 85.3 percent of total commercial real estate

loans outstanding at December 31 2013 within the

Companys Consumer and Small Business Banking markets

The Companys consumer lending segment utilizes

several distinct business processes
and channels to

originate consumer credit including traditional branch

lending indirect lending portfolio acquisitions

correspondent banks and loan brokers Each distinct

underwriting and origination activity manages unique credit

risk characteristics and prices its loan production

commensurate with the differing risk profiles

Residential mortgages are originated through the

Companys branches loan production offices and

wholesale network of originators The Company may retain

residential mortgage loans it originates on its balance sheet

or sell the loans into the secondary market while retaining the

servicing rights and customer relationships Utilizing the

secondary markets enables the Company to effectively

reduce its credit and other asset/liability risks For residential

mortgages that are retained in the Companys portfolio and

for home equity and second mortgages credit risk is also

diversified by geography and managed by adherence to

LTV and borrower credit criteria during the underwriting

process

The Company estimates updated LTV information

quarterly based on method that combines automated

valuation model updates and relevant home price indices

LTV is the ratio of the loans outstanding principal balance to

the current estimate of property value For home equity and

second mortgages combined loan-to-value CLTV is the

combination of the first mortgage original principal balance

and the second lien outstanding principal balance relative to

the current estimate of property value Certain loans do not

have LTV or CLTV primarily due to lack of availability of

relevant automated valuation model and/or home price

indices values or lack of necessary valuation data on

acquired loans

38 U.S BANCORP



Residential mortgages

Dollars in Millions

Prime Borrowers

Less than or equal to 80%...

Over 80% through 90%

Over 90% through 100%

Over 100%

No LIV available

Total

Sub-Prime Borrowers

Less than or equal to 80%...

Over 80% through 90%

Over 90% through 100%

Over 100%

No LIV available

Total

Other Borrowers

Less than or equal to 80%...

Over 80% through 90%

Over 90% through 100%

Over 100%

No LIV available

Less than or equal to 80%...

Over 80% through 90%

Over 90% through 100%

Over 100%

No LIV available

Loans purchased from GNMA

mortgage pools

Total

431 440 48.4%

206 208 22.9

86 87 9.6

172 174 19.1

14 895 909 100.0%

5766 5766 100.0%

Total

Less than or equal to 80% ...

Over 80% through 90%

Over 90% through 100%

Over 100%

No LTV/CLTV available

Represents loans purchased from Government National Mortgage Association

GNMA mortgage pools whose payments are primarily insured by the Federal

Housing Administration or guaranteed by the Department of Veterans Affairs

The following tables provide summary information for the

LTVs of residential mortgages and home equity and second

mortgages by borrower type at December 31 2013

Percent

Lines Loans Total of Total

589 9365

252 2364

154 1215

253 1464

33 254

1281 $14662

Home equity and second mortgages

Dollars in Millions

Prime Borrowers

Less than or equal to 80% ... 8776

Interest Percent
Over 80% through 90% 2112

Only Amortizing Total of Total Over 90% through 100% 1061

OverlOO% 1211

No LTV/CLTV available 221

2188 $35163 $37351 86.7%

394 2530 2924 6.8 Total $13381

311 988 1299 3.0 Sub-Prime Borrowers
456 973 1429 3.3 Less than or equal to 80% 44

83 83 .2 Over 80% through 90% 15

3349 $39737 $43086 100.0%
Over 90% through 100% 13

Over 100% 26

No LTV/CLTV available

630 632 45.3%

229 231 16.6
Total 98

199 202 14.5 Other Borrowers

326 330 23.6 Less than or equal to 80% ... 355

Over 80% through 90% 75

11 1384 1395 100.0%
Over 90% through 100% 17

OverlOO% 14

No LTV/CLTV available

Total

28

26

36

108

198

10

463$ 21$

63.9%

16.1

8.3

10.0

1.7

100.0%

24.3%

13.8

16.6

45.3

100.0%

75.4%

16.6

3.9

3.7

.4

100.0%

63.5%

16.1

8.3

10.5

1.6

72

41

49

134

296

365

80

19

18

484

9802

2485

1283

1616

256

Total

Loans Purchased From

GNMA Mortgage
Pools

Total

9175

2202

1091

1251

223

627

283

192

365

33

Total $13942

2199 $36224 $38423 75.1%

398 2965 3363 6.6

315 1273 1588 3.1

462 1471 1933 3.8

83 83 .1

5766 5766 11.3

3374 $4778 $51156__100.0%

1500 $15442 100.0%
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At December31 2013 approximately $1.4 billion of

residential mortgages were to customers that may be

defined as sub-prime borrowers based on credit scores from

independent agencies at loan origination compared with

$1.6 billion at December 31 2012 In addition to residential

mortgages at December 31 2013 $.3 billion of home equity

and second mortgage loans and lines were to customers

that may be defined as sub-prime borrowers compared with

$.4 billion at December 31 2012 The total amount of

consumer lending segment residential mortgage home

equity and second mortgage loans to customers that may be

defined as sub-prime borrowers represented only .5 percent

of total assets at December 31 2013 compared with

.6 percent at December31 2012 The Company considers

sub-prime loans to be those made to borrowers with risk of

default significantly higher than those approved for prime

lending programs as reflected in credit scores obtained

from independent agencies at loan origination in addition to

other credit underwriting criteria Sub-prime portfolios

include only loans originated according to the Companys

underwriting programs specifically designed to serve

customers with weakened credit histories The sub-prime

desiclnation indicators have been and will continue to be

subject to re-evaluation over time as borrower

characteristics payment performance and economic

conditions change The sub-prime loans originated during

periods from June 2009 and after are with borrowers who

met ifie Companys program guidelines and have credit

score that generally is at or below threshold of 620 to 650

at loan origination depending on the program Sub-prime

loans originated during periods prior to June 2009 were

based upon program level guidelines without regard to

credit score

Covered loans included $986 million in loans with

negative-amortization payment options at December 31

2013 compared with $1.3 billion at December 31 2012

Othe than covered loans the Company does not have any

residential mortgages with payment schedules that would

cause balances to increase over time

Home equity and second mortgages were $15.4 billion

at December 31 2013 compared with $16.7 billion at

December 31 2012 and included $4.7 billion of home

equity lines in first lien position and $10.7 billion of home

equity and second mortgage loans and lines in junior lien

positon Loans and lines in junior lien position at

December 31 2013 included approximately $3.9 billion of

loans and lines for which the Company also serviced the

related first lien loan and approximately $6 billion where

the Company did not service the related first lien loan The

Company was able to determine the status of the related first

liens using information the Company has as the servicer of

the first lien or information reported on customer credit

bureau files The Company also evaluates other indicators of

credit risk for these junior lien loans and lines including

delinquency estimated average CLTV ratios and updated

weighted-average credit scores in making its assessment of

credit risk related loss estimates and determining the

allowance for credit losses

The following table provides summary of delinquency

statistics and other credit quality indicators for the

Companys junior lien positions at December 31 2013

Junior Liens Behind

Company
Owned or

Serviced Third Party

First Lien First Lien

See the Analysis and Determination of the Allowance for

Credit Losses section for additional information on how the

Company determines the allowance for credit losses for

loans in junior lien position

Credit card and other retail loans principally reflect the

Companys focus on consumers within its geographical

footprint of branches and certain niche lending activities that

are nationally focused Approximately 67.8 percent of the

Companys credit card balances relate to cards originated

through the Companys branches or co-branded travel and

affinity programs that generally experience better credit

quality performance than portfolios generated through other

channels

Tables 10 and 11 provide geographical summary of

the residential mortgage credit card and other retail loan

portfolios respectively

Assets acquired by the Company in FDIC-assisted

transactions included nonperforming loans and other loans

with characteristics indicative of high credit risk profile

including substantial concentration in California loans with

negative-amortization payment options and homebuilder

and other construction finance loans Because most of these

loans are covered under loss sharing agreements with the

FDIC the Companys financial exposure to losses from these

assets is substantially reduced To the extent actual losses

exceed the Companys estimates at acquisition the

Companys financial risk would only be its share of those

losses under the loss sharing agreements

Dollars in Millions

Total

Percent 30-89 days past due

Percent 90 days or more past due

Weighted-average CLTV

Weighted-average credit score

Total

$3901 $6813 $10714

.55% .80% .71%

.13% .21% .18%

78% 76% 77%

748 742 744
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TABLE 15 Delinquent Loan Ratios as Percent of Ending Loan Balances

At December31

90 days or more past due excluding nonperforming loans

Commercial
Commercial

Lease financing

Total commercial

Commercial Real Estate

Commercial mortgages

Construction and development

Total commercial real estate

Residential Mortgages
Credit Card

Other Retail

Retail leasing

Other

Total other retail

Total loans excluding covered loans

Covered Loans
Total loans

2011

63%

2.55

2.73

2.65

.52

1.54

12.42

2.30%

2010

1.37%

3.73

3.70

3.22

.58

2.19

12.94

3.17%

2009

2.25%

5.22

4.59

3.43

.66

2.87

9.76

3.64%

Delinquent loan ratios exclude $3.7 billion $3.2 billion $2.6 billion $2.6 billion and $2.2 billion at December31 2013 20122011 2010 and 2009 respectively of loans purchased

from GNMA mortgage pools whose repayments are primarily insured by the Federal Housing Administration or guaranteed by the Department of Veterans Affairs
Including these loans

the ratio of residential mortgages 90 days or more past due including all nonperforming loans was 9.34 percent 9.45 percent 84 percent 1228
percent and 12.86 percent at

December 31 2013 2012 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

Delinquent loan ratios exclude student loans that are guaranteed by the federal government Including these loans the ratio of total other retail loans 90 days or more past due including

all nonperforming loans was .93 percent 1.08 percent 99 percent 04 percent and .91 percent at December 31 2013 2012 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively

Loan Delinquencies Trends in delinquency ratios are an

indicator among other considerations of credit risk within

the Companys loan portfolios The entire balance of an

account is considered delinquent if the minimum payment

contractually required to be made is not received by the

specified date on the billing statement The Company

measures delinquencies both including and excluding

nonperforming loans to enable comparability with other

companies Delinquent loans purchased from Government

National Mortgage Association GNMA mortgage pools

whose repayments of principal and interest are primarily

insured by the Federal Housing Administration or

guaranteed by the Department of Veterans Affairs are

excluded from delinquency statistics In addition in certain

situations consumer lending customers account may be

re-aged to remove it from delinquent status Generally the

purpose of re-aging accounts is to assist customers who

have recently overcome temporary financial difficulties and

have demonstrated both the ability and willingness to

resume regular payments To qualify for re-aging the

account must have been open for at least nine months and

cannot have been re-aged during the preceding 365 days

An account may not be re-aged more than two times in

five-year period To qualify for re-aging the customer must

also have made three regular minimum monthly payments

within the last 90 days In addition the Company may re-age

the consumer lending account of customer who has

experienced longer-term financial difficulties and apply

modified concessionary terms and conditions to the

account Such additional re-ages are limited to one in

five-year period and must meet the qualifications for re-aging

described above All re-aging strategies must be

independently approved by the Companys credit

administration function Commercial lending loans are

generally not subject to re-aging policies

Accruing loans 90 days or more past due totaled

$1.2 billion $713 million excluding covered loans at

December31 2013 compared with $1.3 billion $660 million

excluding covered loans at December 31 2012 and

$1.8 billion $843 million excluding covered loans at

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

.08% .10% .09% .15% .25%

.02

.08 .09 .08 .13 .22

.02 .02 .02

.30 .02 .13 .01 .07

.07 .02 .04 .02

.65 .64 .98 1.63 2.80

1.17 1.27 1.36 1.86 2.59

.02

.21 .22

.18 .20

.31 .31

.02

.43

.38

.43

6.15

.84%

5.63 5.86

.51% .59%

.05

.49

.45

.61

6.04

1.11%

.11

.57

.53

.88

3.59

1.19%

At December 31

90 days or more past due including nonperforming loans

Commercial

Commercial real estate

Residential mortgages

Credit card

Other retail

Total loans excluding covered loans

Covered loans

Total loans

2013 2012

.27% .27%

.83 1.50

2.16 2.14

1.60 2.12

.58 .66

.97 1.11

7.13 9.28

1.19% 1.52%
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The allowing table provides summary delinquency

information for residential mortgages credit card and other

retail loans included in the consumer lending segment

At December 31

Dollars
in Millions 2013 2012

Residential

mortgages
30-89 days

90 days or more

Nonperforming

Total

Credit card

30-89 days

90 days or more

Nonperforming

Total

Other retail

Retail leasing

30-89 days

90 days or more

Nonperforming

Total

Home equity and

second mortgages

30-89 days

90 days or more

Nonperforming

Other

30-89 days

90 days or more

Nonperforming

As Percent of Ending

Loan Balances

The following tables provide further information on

residential mortgages and home equity and second

mortgages as percent of ending loan balances by

borrower type at December 31

Residential mortgages 2013

Prime Borrowers

30-89 days

90 days or more

Nonperforming ______________

Total

Sub-Prime Borrowers

30-89 days

90 days or more

Nonperforming ______________

Total

Other Borrowers

30-89 days

90 days or more

Nonperforming _______________

Total

Excludes delinquent and nonperforming
information on loans purchased from GNMA

mortgage pools as their repayments are primarily
insured by the Federal Housing

Administration or guaranteed by the Department of Veterans Affairs

Home equity and second mortgages 2013 2012

Total

The following table provides summary delInquency

information for covered loans

As Percent of Ending

Amount Loan Balances

At December 31

Dollars in Millions
2013 2012 2013 2012

30-89 days $166 359

90 days or more.. 476 663

Nonperforming ... 127 386

Total $769 $1408

December 31 2011 The $53 million 8.0 percent increase

excluding covered loans from December 31 2012 to

December 31 2013 primarily reflected an increase in

restructured residential mortgages in trial period

arrargements that have yet to be re-aged upon permanent

modification These loans are not included in nonperforming

assas and continue to accrue interest because they are

adequately secured by collateral are in the process of

collection and are reasonably expected to result in

repayment or restoration to current status or are managed in

homogeneous portfolios with specified charge-off

timeframes adhering to regulatory guidelines The ratio of

accruing loans 90 days or more past due to total loans was

.51 percent .31 percent excluding covered loans at

December 31 2013 compared with .59 percent .31 percent

excluding covered loans at December 31 2012 and .84

percent .43 percent excluding covered loans at

December31 2011

2012

.55% .65%

.55 .58

1.31 1.36

2.41% 2.59%

7.60% 6.41%

6.02 3.89

13.19 9.60

26.81% 19.90%

1.65% .97%

1.43 .97

2.09 1.83

5.17% 3.77%

Amount

Prime Borrowers

30-89 days

90 days or more

Nonperforming

Total

2013 2012 Sub-Prime Borrowers

30-89 days

90 days or more

Nonperforming
358 348

333 281

770 661

.70% .79%

.65 .64

1.51 1.50

2.86% 2.93%$1461 $1290

226 227

210 217

78 146

.57% .64%

.27 .28

.98 1.03

1.82% 1.95%

4.39% 4.92%

2.03 1.36

4.73 4.10

11.15% 10.38%

1.24% 1.41%

.62 .47

1.86 2.35

3.72% 4.23%

Total

Other Borrowers

30-89 days

90 days or more

Nonperforming

1.25%

1.17

43

1.33%

1.27

.85

514 590

11 12

2.85% 3.45%

.18% .22%

.02

.02 .02

.20% .26%12$ 14

102 126

49 51

167 189

Total 318 366

1.96%

5.63

1.50

3.18%

5.86

3.41

9.09% 12.45%

132 152

37 44

23 27

192 223Total

Restructured Loans In certain circumstances the

.66% .76%

32 30
Company may modify the terms of loan to maximize the

08 13 collection of amounts due when borrower is experiencing

06% 9% financial difficulties or is expected to experience difficulties

in the near-term In most cases the modification is either

50% .59% concessionary reduction in interest rate extension of the

14 .17
maturity date or reduction in the principal balance that would

09 __- otherwise not be considered

.73% .87%

Excludes $440 million of loans 30-89 days past due and $3 billion of loans 90 days or

more past due at December 31 2013 purchased from GA/MA mortgage pools that

continue to accrue interest compared with $44 million and $32 billion at

December 31 2012 respectively

Includes revolving credit installment automobile and student loans

Troubled Debt Restructurings Concessionary

modifications are classified as TDRs unless the modification

results in only an insignificant delay in the payments to be

received TDRs accrue interest if the borrower complies with
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the revised terms and conditions and has demonstrated

repayment performance at level commensurate with the

modified terms over several payment cycles At

December 31 2013 performing TDRs were $6.0 billion

compared with $5.6 billion and $4.9 billion at December 31

2012 and 2011 respectively Loans classified as TDRs are

considered impaired loans for reporting and measurement

purposes

The Company continues to work with customers to modify

loans for borrowers who are experiencing financial difficulties

including those acquired through FDIC-assisted acquisitions

Many of the Companys TDRs are determined on case-by-

case basis in connection with ongoing loan collection

processes The modifications vary within each of the

Companys loan classes Commercial lending segment TDRs

generally include extensions of the maturity date and may be

accompanied by an increase or decrease to the interest rate

The Company may also work with the borrower to make other

changes to the loan to mitigate losses such as obtaining

additional collateral and/or guarantees to support the loan

The Company has also implemented certain residential

mortgage loan restructuring programs that may result in TDRs

The Company participates in the U.S Department of the

Treasury Home Affordable Modification Program HAMP
HAMP gives qualifying homeowners an opportunity to

permanently modify their loan and achieve more affordable

monthly payments with the U.S Department of the Treasury

compensating the Company for portion of the reduction in

monthly amounts due from borrowers participating in this

program The Company also modifies residential mortgage

loans under Federal Housing Administration Department of

Veterans Affairs and its own internal programs Under these

programs the Company provides concessions to qualifying

borrowers experiencing financial difficulties The concessions

may include adjustments to interest rates conversion of

adjustable rates to fixed rates extensions of maturity dates or

deferrals of payments capitalization of accrued interest and/or

outstanding advances or in limited situations partial

forgiveness of loan principal In most instances participation

in residential mortgage loan restructuring programs requires

the customer to complete short-term trial period

permanent loan modification is contingent on the customer

successfully completing the trial period arrangement and the

loan documents are not modified until that time The Company

reports loans in trial period arrangement as TDRs

Credit card and other retail loan modifications are

generally part of distinct restructuring programs The

Company offers workout program providing customers

modification solutions over specified time period generally

up to 60 months The Company also provides modification

programs to qualifying customers experiencing temporary

financial hardship in which reductions are made to monthly

required minimum payments for up to 12 months

In accordance with regulatory guidance the Company

considers secured consumer loans that have had debt

discharged through bankruptcy where the borrower has not

reaffirmed the debt to be TDRs If the loan amount exceeds

the collateral value the loan is charged down to collateral

value and the remaining amount is reported as

nonperforming

Modifications to loans in the covered segment are

similar in nature to that described above for non-covered

loans and the evaluation and determination of TDR status is

similar except that acquired loans restructured after

acquisition are not considered TDRs for purposes of the

Companys accounting and disclosure if the loans

evidenced credit deterioration as of the acquisition date and

are accounted for in pools Losses associated with

modifications on covered loans including the economic

impact of interest rate reductions are generally eligible for

reimbursement under the loss sharing agreements

Total

TDRs

348

533

2457d
310

269e

3917

2607f
375

$6899

Primarily represents loans less than six months from the modification date that have not met the performance period required to return to accrual status generally six months and small

business credit cards with modified rate equal to percent

Primarily represents loans less than six months from the modification date that have not met the performance period required to return to accrual status generally six months

Primarily represents loans with modified rate equal to percent

Includes $281 million of residential mortgage loans to borrowers that have had debt discharged through bankruptcy and $124 million in trial period arrangements or previously placed

in trial period arrangements but not successfully completed

Includes $146 million of other retail loans to borrowers that have had debt discharged through bankruptcy and $3 million in trial period arrangements or previously placed in trial period

arrangements but not successfully completed

Includes $474 million of Federal Housing Administration and Department of Veterans Affairs residential mortgage loans to borrowers that have had debt discharged through bankruptcy

and $987 million in trial period arrangements or previously placed in trial period arrangements but not successfully completed

The following table provides summary of TDRs by loan class including the delinquency status for TDRs that continue to

accrue interest and TDRs included in nonperforming assets

As Percent of Performing TDRs

At December31 2013 Performing 30-89 Days 90 Days or More Nonperforming

lDollars in Millions TDRs Past Due Past Due TDRs

Commercial 248 3.0% 1.1% $100a
Commercial real estate 390 1.7 2.3 143b
Residential mortgages 1997 7.4 7.9 460

Credit card 232 8.6 6.4 78c
Other retail 200 6.1 4.3 69c

TDRs excluding GNMA and covered loans 3067 6.3 6.3 850

Loans purchased from ONMA mortgage pools 2607 7.4 66.6

Covered loans 325 .9 1.1 50

Total $5999 6.5% 32.2% $900
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Short-term Modifications The Company makes short-

term modifications that it does not consider to be TDRs in

limited circumstances to assist borrowers experiencing

temporary hardships Consumer lending programs include

payment reductions deferrals of up to three past due

payments and the ability to return to current status if the

borrower makes required payments The Company may also

make short-term modifications to commercial lending loans

with the most common modification being an extension of

the maturity date of three months or less Such extensions

generally are used when the maturity date is imminent and

the borrower is experiencing some level of financial stress

but the Company believes the borrower will pay all

contractual amounts owed Short-term modifications were

not material at December 31 2013

Nonperforming Assets The level of nonperforming assets

represents another indicator of the potential for future credit

losses Nonperforming assets include nonaccrual loans

restructured loans not performing in accordance with

modified terms and not accruing interest restructured loans

that have not met the performance period required to return

to accrual status other real estate owned and other

nonperforming assets owned by the Company

Nonperforming assets are generally either originated by the

Company or acquired under FDIC loss sharing agreements

that substantially reduce the risk of credit losses to the

Company Interest payments collected from assets on

nonaccrual status are generally applied against the principal

balance and not recorded as income However interest

income may be recognized for interest payments if the

remaining carrying amount of the loan is believed to be

collectible

At December 31 2013 total nonperforming assets were

$2.0 billion compared with $2.7 billion at December 31

2012 and $3.8 billion at December 31 2011 Excluding

covered assets nonperforming assets were $1.8 billion at

December 31 2013 compared with $2.1 billion at

December 31 2012 and $2.6 billion at December 31 2011

The $275 million 13.2 percent decrease in nonperforming

assets excluding covered assets from December 31 2012

to December 31 2013 was primarily driven by reductions in

the commercial mortgage and construction and

development portfolios as well as credit card loans

Nonperforming covered assets at December31 2013 were

$224 million compared with $583 million at December 31

2012 and $1.2 billion at December 31 2011 These assets

are covered by loss sharing agreements with the FDIC that

substantially reduce the risk of credit losses to the Company

The ratio of total nonperforming assets to total loans and

other real estate was .86 percent .80 percent excluding

covered assets at December31 2013 compared with

1.19 percent .98 percent excluding covered assets at

December 31 2012 and 1.79 percent 1.32 percent

excluding covered assets at December 31 2011

Other real estate owned excluding covered assets was

$327 million at December 31 2013 compared with

$381 million at December 31 2012 and $404 million at

December 31 2011 and was related to foreclosed

properties that previously secured loan balances These

balances exclude foreclosed GNMA loans whose

repayments are primarily insured by the Federal Housing

Administration or guaranteed by the Department of Veterans

Affairs

The following table provides an analysis of other real estate

owned excluding covered assets as percent of their

related loan balances including geographical location

detail for residential residential mortgage home equity and

second mortgage and commercial commercial and

commercial real estate loan balances

266 268 .40

14

14 17

22 73

At December31

Dollars
in Millions

Amount

2013 2012

As Percent of Ending

Loan Balances

2013 2012

17

17

16

15

15

186

14

13

14

16

20

191

Residential

Florida

Ohio

Washington

California

Minnesota

All other states

Total residential

Commercial

California

Missouri

Tennessee

Oregon

Wisconsin

All other states

1.03% 1.55%

.52 .51

.40 .38

.13 .18

.24 .34

.49

.44

Total commercial 61 113

.08 .05

.30 .37

.25 .41

.07 .13

.06 .06

.03 .10

.06 .11

.14% .18%Total $327 $381
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Total nonperforming loans excluding covered loans

Covered Loans

Total nonperforming loans

Other Real Estate cd
Covered Other Real Estate

Other Assets

Total nonperforming assets

Total nonperforming assets excluding covered assets

Excluding covered assets

Accruing loans 90 days or more past due

Nonperforming loans to total loans

Nonperforming assets to total loans plus other real estate

Including covered assets

Accruing loans 90 days or more past due

Nonperforming loans to total loans

Nonperforming assets to total loans plus other real estate

Changes in Nonperforming Assets

308 354 545

238 545 748

546 899 1293

661 650 636

146 224 228

TABLE 16

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

_________ Nonperforming Assets

At December31 Dollars in Millions

Commercial
Commercial

Lease financing

Total commercial

Commercial Real Estate

Commercial mortgages

Construction and development

Total commercial real estate

Residential Mortgages
Credit Card

Other Retail

Retail leasing

Other

Total other retail

107

16

123

280

32

312

122

12

134

182

121

303

770

78

519

78

597

866

125

991

581

1192

1773

467

142

190 216 67 65 62

191 217 67 65 62

1476 1693 2152 2819 3435

127 386 926 1244 1350

1603 2079 3078 4063 4785

327 381 404 511 437

97 197 274 453 653

10 14 18 21 32

$2037 $2671 $3774 $5048 $5907

$1813 $2088 $2574 $3351 $3904

713 660 843 $1094 $1525

.65% .80% 1.10% 1.57% 1.99%

.80% .98% 1.32% 1.87% 2.25%

$1189 $1323 $1753 $2184 $2309

.68% .93% 1.47% 2.06% 2.46%

.86% 1.19% 1.79% 2.55% 3.02%

Dollars in Millions

Commercial and

Commercial

Real Estate

780

427

46

Credit Card

Other Retail

and Residential

Mortgages

$1308

977

Covered

Assets

583

Total

Balance December 31 2012 2671

Additions to nonperforming assets

New nonaccrual loans and foreclosed properties 146 1550

Advances on loans 46

Total additions 1596

Reductions in nonperforming assets

Paydowns payoffs 266 276 247 789
Net sales 209 151 249 609
Return to performing status 38 166 212
Charge-offs 246 373 620

Total reductions 759 966 505 2230

Net additions to reductions in nonperforming assets 286 11 359 634

Balance December 31 2013 494 $1319 224 2037

473 977 146

Throughout this document nonperforming assets and related ratios do not include accruing loans 90 days or more past due

bExcludes $3.7 billion $32billion $2.6 billion $2.6 billion and $2.2 billion at December 31 2013 20t2 20t 2010 and 2009 respectively of loans purchased from GNMA mortgage

pools that are 90 days or more past due that continue to accrue interest as their repayments are primarily insured by the Federal Housing Administration or guaranteed by the

Department of Veterans Affairs

Foreclosed GNMA loans of $527 million $548 million $692 million $575 million and $359 million at December 31 2013 2012 2011 2010 and 2009 respectively continue to accrue

interest and are recorded as other assets and excluded from nonperforming assets because they are insured by the Federal Housing Administration or guaranteed by the Department

of Veterans Affairs

Includes equity investments in entities whose principal assets are other real estate owned

Charge-offs exclude actions for certain card products and loan sales that were not classified as nonperforming at the time the charge-off occurred
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Net Charge-o ifs as Percent of Average Loans Outstanding

Analysis of Loan Net Charge-o ifs Total loan net charge

offs were $1.5 billion in 2013 compared with $2.1 billion in

2012 and $2.8 billion in 2011 The ratio of total loan net

charge-offs to average loans was .64 percent in 2013

compared with .97 percent in 2012 and 1.41 percent in

2011 The decrease in total net charge-offs in 2013

compared with 2012 primarily reflected improvement in the

commercial commercial real estate residential mortgages

and home equity and second mortgages portfolios as

economic conditions continue to slowly improve

Commercial and commercial real estate loan net

charge-offs for 2013 were $87 million .08 percent of average

loans outstanding compared with $441 million .45 percent

of average loans outstanding in 2012 and $904 million

1.04 percent of average loans outstanding in 2011 The

decrease in net charge-offs in 2013 compared with 2012

reflected the impact of more stable economic conditions and

higher level of recoveries The decrease in net charge-offs

in 2012 compared with 2011 reflected the Companys

efforts to resolve and reduce exposure to problem assets in

its commercial real estate portfolios and improvement in its

other commercial portfolios due to improvement in the

ecoromy

.09 .45 1.40

.57 109 1.45

3.90 4.01 5.19

.02 .04 .27 .74

1.33 1.72 1.66 1.72 1.75

.81 .94 1.20 1.68 1.85

.89 1.13 1.25 1.56 1.69

.66 1.03 1.53 2.41 2.23

.32 .08 .07 .09 .09

.64% .97% 1.41% 2.17% 2.08%

Residential mortgage loan net charge-offs for 2013 were

$272 million .57 percent of average loans outstanding

compared with $438 million 1.09 percent of average loans

outstanding in 2012 and $489 million 1.45 percent of

average loans outstanding in 2011 Credit card loan net

charge-offs in 2013 were $656 million 3.90 percent of

average loans outstanding compared with $667 million

4.01 percent of average loans outstanding in 2012 and

$834 million 5.19 percent of average loans outstanding in

2011 Other retail loan net charge-offs for 2013 were

$418 million .89 percent of average loans outstanding

compared with $541 million 1.13 percent of average loans

outstanding in 2012 and $604 million 1.25 percent of

average loans outstanding in 2011 The decrease in total

residential mortgage credit card and other retail loan net

charge-offs in 2013 compared with 2012 reflected the

impact of more stable economic conditions The decrease in

total residential mortgage credit card and other retail loan

net charge-offs in 2012 compared with 2011 reflected the

impact of more stable economic conditions partially offset

by incremental charge-offs in the residential mortgages and

other retail loan portfolios recorded in 2012 related to

regulatory clarification on bankruptcy loans

TABLE 17

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

.19% .43% .76% 1.80% 1.60%

.06 .63 .96 1.47 2.82

.18 .45 .79 1.76 1.75

Year Ended December 31

Commercial

Commercial

Lease financing

lotal commercial

Commercial Real Estate

Commercial mortgages

Construction and development

Total commercial real estate

Residential Mortgages

Credit Card

Other Retail

Retail leasing

Home equity and second mortgages

Other

Total other retail

Total loans excluding covered loans

Covered Loans

Total loans

.08

.87

.37 .73 1.23

.86 4.20 6.32

2.47

1.97

7.32

.42

5.35

1.82

2.00

6.90

Net harge-off as percent
of

average
loans outstanding excluding portfolio purchases where the acquired loans were recorded at fair value at the purchase date were 92 percent

16 percent 5.36 percent 799 percent
arid t4 percent for the years ended December 31 2013 20t2 20t 2fttO and 2009 respectively
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The following table provides an analysis of net charge-offs

as percent of average loans outstanding for residential

mortgages and home equity and second mortgages by

borrower type

Total $15887 $17451

Represents loans purchased from GNMA mortgage pools whose payments are

primarily insured by the Federal Housing Administration or guaranteed by the

Department of Veterans Affairs

Analysis of the Allowance for Credit Losses The

allowance for credit losses reserves for probable and

estimable losses incurred in the Companys loan and lease

portfolio including unfunded credit commitments and

includes certain amounts that do not represent loss

exposure to the Company because those losses are

recoverable under loss sharing agreements with the FDIC

The allowance for credit losses is increased through

provisions charged to operating earnings and reduced by

net charge-offs Management evaluates the allowance each

quarter to ensure it appropriately reserves for incurred

losses The evaluation of each element and the overall

allowance is based on continuing assessment of problem

loans recent loss experience and other factors including

regulatory guidance and economic conditions Because

business processes and credit risks associated with

unfunded credit commitments are essentially the same as for

loans the Company utilizes similar processes to estimate its

liability
for unfunded credit commitments which is included

in other liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheet Both

the allowance for loan losses and the liability for unfunded

credit commitments are included in the Companys analysis

of credit losses and reported reserve ratios

At December 31 2013 the allowance for credit losses

was $4.5 billion 1.93 percent of total loans and 1.94 percent

of loans excluding covered loans compared with an

allowance of $4.7 billion 2.12 percent of total loans and 2.15

percent of loans excluding covered loans at December 31

2012 The ratio of the allowance for credit losses to

non performing loans was 283 percent 297 percent

excluding covered loans at December 31 2013

due to stabilizing economic conditions Management

determined the allowance for credit losses was appropriate

6.43
at December 31 2013

1.88 The allowance recorded for loans in the commercial

lending segment is based on reviews of individual credit

relationships and considers the migration analysis of

.04

commercial lending segment loans and actual loss

experience In the migration analysis applied to risk rated

loan portfolios the Company currently examines up to

13-year period of historical loss experience For each loan

type this historical loss experience is adjusted as necessary

to consider any relevant changes in portfolio composition

timeframe is selected for each commercial loan type The

allowance recorded for impaired loans greater than

$5 million in the commercial lending segment is based on an

individual loan analysis utilizing expected cash flows

discounted using the original effective interest rate the

observable market price of the loan or the fair value of the

collateral for collateral-dependent loans rather than the

migration analysis The allowance recorded for all other

commercial lending segment loans is determined on

homogenous pool basis and includes consideration of

product mix risk characteristics of the portfolio bankruptcy

experience portfolio growth and historical losses adjusted

for current trends The allowance established for commercial

lending segment loans was $1.9 billion at December 31

2013 unchanged from December 31 2012 reflecting

growth in the portfolios offset by the impact of the overall

improvement in economic conditions affecting incurred

losses

The allowance recorded for TDR loans and purchased

impaired loans in the consumer lending segment is

determined on homogenous pool basis utilizing expected

cash flows discounted using the original effective interest

rate of the pool or the prior quarter effective rate

respectively The allowance for collateral-dependent loans in

the consumer lending segment is determined based on the

fair value of the collateral less costs to sell The allowance

recorded for all other consumer lending segment loans is

determined on homogenous pool basis and includes

consideration of product mix risk characteristics of the

portfolio bankruptcy experience delinquency status

refreshed LTV ratios when possible portfolio growth and

Year Ended December 31

Dollars in Millions

Average Loans

2013 2012

compared with 228 percent 269 percent excluding covered

loans at December31 2012 reflecting decrease in

nonperforming loans The ratio of the allowance for credit

losses to annual loan net charge-offs at December31 2013

Percent of was 310 percent compared with 226 percent at

Average Loans

2013 2012
December 31 2012 as net charge-offs continue to decline

$40077

1478

883

$32811

1725

745

Residential Mortgages
Prime borrowers

Sub-prime borrowers

Other borrowers

Loans purchased from

GNMA mortgage

pools

Total

Home Equity and

Second Mortgages

Prime borrowers

Sub-prime borrowers

Other borrowers

.48%

4.74

1.02

.025544 5009

$47982 $40290 .57% 1.09%

$15114

324

449

$16622

407

422

1.19%

7.09

1.78

1.53%

8.85

2.37

1.33% 1.72% lending policies underwriting standards risk management

practices or economic conditions The results of the analysis

are evaluated quarterly to confirm an appropriate historical
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TABLE 18

2012

$5014

2011 2010

$5531 $5264

2009

$3639

312 423 784 769

66 93 134 227

378 516 918 996

145 231 333

97 312 538

242 543 871

461 502 554

769 922 1270

103

516

619

493

1093

10 25 47

327 327 348 347

330 396 490 504

666 733 863 898

11 13 20 12

2527 3229 4496 4111

72 74 48 30

31 36 43 40

103 110 91 70

31 22 13

45 23 13

76 45 26

23 13

102 88 70 62

10 13 11

26 19 17

92 100 88 81

125 129 118 101

430 386 3th 243

__________ Summary of Allowance for Credit Losses

Dollars in Millions
2013

Balance at beginning of year $4733

Charge-Offs
Commercial

Commercial 212

Lease financing

Total commercial 246

Commercial real estate

Commercial mortgages 71

Construction and development 21

Total commercial real estate 92

Residential mortgages
297

Credit card 739

Other retail

Retail leasing

Home equity and second mortgages 237

Other 281

Total other retail 523

Coered loans 37

Total charge-offs 1934

Recoveries
Commercial

Commercial

I_ease financing
31

Total commercial 126

Commercial real estate

Commercial mortgages
45

Construction and development 80

Total commercial real estate 125

Residential mortgages
25

Credit card 83

Other retail

Retail leasing

Home equity and second mortgages
26

Other

Total other retail 105

Covered loans

Tot al recoveries 469

Net Charge.Offs
Commercial

Commercial 117

_ease financing

Total commercial 120

Commercial real estate

Commercial mortgages
26

Construction and development 59

Total commercial real estate 33
Residential mortgages

272

Credit card 656

Other retail

Retail leasing

Home equity and second mortgages 211

Cther 206

Total other retail 418

Covered loans 32

Total net charge-offs 1465

Provision for credit losses 1340

Other changes 71

Balance at end of year $4537

Components
Allowance for loan losses $4250

Liability for unfunded credit commitments 287

Total allowance for credit losses $4537

Allowance for Credit Losses as Percentage of

Peiod-end loans excluding covered loans 1.94%

Nonperforming loans excluding covered loans 297

Nonperforming and accruing loans 90 days or more past due excluding covered loans 201

Nonperforming assets excluding covered assets 242

Net charge-offs excluding covered loans 306

Peiod-end loans 1.93%

Nonperforming loans 283

Ncnperforming and accruing loans 90 days or more past due 163

Ncnperforming assets 223

Net charge-offs
..

310

240 349 736 739

35 57 91 187

275 406 827 926

114 209 320 101

52 289 525 513

166 498 845 614

438 489 546 489

667 834 1200 1031

12 36

301 308 331 338

238 296 402 423

541 604 745 797

10 12 18 11

2097 2843 4181 3868

1882 2343 4356 5557

66 17 92 64

$4733 $5014 $5531 $5264

$4424 $4753 $5310 $5079

309 261 221 185

$4733 $5014 $5531 $5264

2.15% 2.52% 3.03% 3.04%

269 228 192 153

194 164 138 106

218 191 162 135

218 174 130 136

2.12% 2.39% 2.81% 2.70%

228 163 136 110

139 104 89 74

177 133 110 89

226 176 132 136

Reates to covered loan charge-o
ffs and recoveries not reimbursable by the FOiC

Beginning in 20 10 includes net changes in credit losses to be reimbursed by the FDIC and beginning
in 2013 reductions in the allowance for covered loans where the reversal of

pry viously recorded allowance was offset by an associated decrease in the indemnification asset
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At December31 Dollars In Millions

Commercial

Commercial

Lease financing

Total commercial

Commercial Real Estate

Commercial mortgages

Construction and development

Total commercial real estate

Residential Mortgages
Credit Card

Other Retail

Retail leasing

Home equity and second mortgages

Other

Total other retail

Covered Loans

Total allowance

historical losses adjusted for current trends Credit card and

other retail loans 90 days or more past due are generally not

placed on nonaccrual status because of the relatively short

period of time to charge-off and therefore are excluded

from nonperforming loans and measures that include

nonperforming loans as part of the calculation

When evaluating the appropriateness of the allowance

for credit losses for any loans and lines in junior lien

position the Company considers the delinquency and

modification status of the first lien At December 31 2013

the Company serviced the first lien on 36 percent of the

home equity loans and lines in junior lien position The

Company also considers information received from its

primary regulator on the status of the first liens that are

serviced by other large servicers in the industry and the

status of first lien mortgage accounts reported on customer

credit bureau files Regardless of whether or not the

Company services the first lien an assessment is made of

economic conditions problem loans recent loss experience

and other factors in determining the allowance for credit

losses Based on the available information the Company

estimated $398 million or 2.6 percent of the total home equity

portfolio at December 31 2013 represented junior liens

where the first lien was delinquent or modified

The Company uses historical loss experience on the loans

and lines in junior lien position where the first lien is serviced

by the Company or can be identified in credit bureau data to

establish loss estimates for junior lien loans and lines the

Company services that are current but the first lien is

delinquent or modified Historically the number of junior lien

defaults in any period has been small percentage of the total

portfolio for example only 1.4 percent for the twelve months

ended December31 2013 and the long-term average loss

rate on the small percentage of loans that default has been

approximately 80 percent In addition the Company obtains

updated credit scores on its home equity portfolio each

quarter and in some cases more frequently and uses this

information to qualitatively supplement its loss estimation

methods Credit score distributions for the portfolio are

monitored monthly and any changes in the distribution are one

of the factors considered in assessing the Companys loss

estimates

The allowance established for consumer lending

segment loans was $2.5 billion at December31 2013

compared with $2.6 billion at December 31 2012 The

$106 million decrease in the allowance for consumer lending

segment loans at December 31 2013 compared with

December 31 2012 reflected the impact of more stable

economic conditions partially offset by portfolio growth

The allowance for the covered loan segment is

evaluated each quarter in manner similar to that described

for non-covered loans and represents any decreases in

expected cash flows on those loans after the acquisition

date The provision for credit losses for covered loans

considers the indemnification provided by the FDIC The

allowance established for covered loans was $146 million at

December 31 2013 compared with $179 million at

December 31 2012 reflecting expected credit losses in

excess of initial fair value adjustments including $21 million

and $42 million at December 31 2013 and 2012

respectively to be reimbursed by the FDIC

In addition the evaluation of the appropriate allowance

for credit losses for purchased non-impaired loans acquired

after January 2009 in the various loan segments

considers credit discounts recorded as part of the initial

determination of the fair value of the loans For these loans

TABLE 19 Elements of the Allowance for Credit Losses

Allowance Amount Allowance as Percent of Loans

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

$1019 979 929 992 $1026 1.57% 1.61% 1.83% 2.35% 2.43%

56 72 81 112 182 1.06 1.31 1.37 1.83 2.78

1075 1051 1010 1104 1208 1.53 1.59 1.78 2.28 2.48

532 641 850 929 548 1.65 2.07 2.87 3.41 2.17

244 216 304 362 453 3.17 3.63 4.91 4.86 5.16

776 857 1154 1291 1001 1.95 2.32 3.22 3.72 2.94

875 935 927 820 672 1.71 2.12 2.50 2.67 2.58

884 863 992 1395 1495 4.91 5.04 5.71 8.30 8.89

14 11 12 11 30 .24 .20 .23 .24 .66

497 583 536 411 374 3.22 3.49 2.96 2.17 1.92

270 254 283 385 467 1.03 .99 1.14 1.55 2.02

781 848 831 807 871 1.64 1.78 1.73 1.67 1.85

146 179 100 114 17 1.73 158 .68 .63 .08

$4537 $4733 $5014 $5531 $5264 1.93% 2.12% 2.39% 2.81% 2.70%
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no allowance for credit losses is recorded at the purchase

date Credit discounts representing the principal losses

expected over the life of the loans are component of the

initial fair value Subsequent to the purchase date the

methods utilized to estimate the required allowance for credit

losses for these loans is similar to originated loans however

the Company records provision for credit losses only when

the required allowance net of any expected reimbursement

under any loss sharing agreements with the FDIC exceeds

any remaining credit discounts

The evaluation of the appropriate allowance for credit

losses for purchased impaired loans in the various loan

segments considers the expected cash flows to be collected

from the borrower These loans are initially recorded at fair

value and therefore no allowance for credit losses is

recorded at the purchase date

Subsequent to the purchase date the expected cash

flows of purchased loans are subject to evaluation Decreases

in thE present value of expected cash flows are recognized by

recording an allowance for credit losses with the related

provision for credit losses reduced for the amount

reimbursable by the FDIC where applicable If the expected

cash flows on the purchased loans increase such that

previously recorded impairment allowance can be reversed

the Company records reduction in the allowance with

related reduction in losses reimbursable by the FDIC where

applicable Increases in expected cash flows of purchased

loans when there are no reversals of previous impairment

allowances are recognized over the remaining life of the loans

and resulting decreases in expected cash flows of the FDIC

indemnification assets are amortized over the shorter of the

remaining contractual term of the indemnification agreements

or the remaining life of the loans Refer to Note of the Notes

to Consolidated Financial Statements for more information

The Companys methodology for determining the

appropriate allowance for credit losses for all the loan

segments also considers the imprecision inherent in the

methodologies used As result in addition to the amounts

determined under the methodologies described above

management also considers the potential impact of other

qualitative factors which include but are not limited to

ecoromic factors geographic and other concentration risks

delinquency and nonaccrual trends current business

conditions changes in lending policy underwriting

standards internal review and other relevant business

practices and the regulatory environment The consideration

of these items results in adjustments to allowance amounts

included in the Companys allowance for credit losses for

each of the above loan segments Table 19 shows the

amount of the allowance for credit losses by loan segment

class and underlying portfolio category

Although the Company determines the amount of each

element of the allowance separately and considers this

process to be an important credit management tool the

entire allowance for credit losses is available for the entire

loan portfolio The actual amount of losses incurred can vary

significantly from the estimated amounts

Residual Value Risk Management The Company

manages its risk to changes in the residual value of leased

assets through disciplined residual valuation setting at the

inception of lease diversification of its leased assets

regular residual asset valuation reviews and monitoring of

residual value gains or losses upon the disposition of assets

Commercial lease originations are subject to the same well-

defined underwriting standards referred to in the Credit Risk

Management section which includes an evaluation of the

residual value risk Retail lease residual value risk is

mitigated further by originating longer-term vehicle leases

and effective end-of-term marketing of off-lease vehicles

Included in the retail leasing portfolio was approximately

$4.6 billion of retail leasing residuals at December 31 2013

compared with $3.8 billion at December 31 2012 The

Company monitors concentrations of leases by manufacturer

and vehicle make and model As of December 31 2013

vehicle lease residuals related to sport utility
vehicles were

56.4 percent of the portfolio while upscale and mid-range

vehicle classes represented approximately 15.5 percent and

13.9 percent of the portfolio respectively At year-end 2013

the largest vehicle-type concentration represented

8.9 percent of the aggregate residual value of the vehicles in

the portfolio At December 31 2013 the weighted-average

origination term of the portfolio was 40 months compared

with 41 months at December 31 2012

At December 31 2013 the commercial leasing portfolio

had $542 million of residuals compared with $567 million at

December 31 2012 At year-end 2013 lease residuals

related to trucks and other transportation equipment were

33.8 percent of the total residual portfolio Business and

office equipment represented 26.5 percent of the aggregate

portfolio while railcars represented 12.1 percent and

manufacturing equipment represented 11.0 percent No

other concentrations of more than 10 percent existed at

December 31 2013

Operational Risk Management Operational risk

represents the risk of loss resulting from the Companys

operations including but not limited to the risk of fraud by

employees or persons outside the Company unauthorized

access to its computer systems the execution of

unauthorized transactions by employees errors relating to

transaction processing and technology breaches of internal

controls and in data security compliance requirements and

business continuation and disaster recovery Operational risk
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also includes the potential legal actions that could arise as

result of an operational deficiency or as result of

noncompliance with applicable regulatory standards

adverse business decisions or their implementation and

customer attrition due to potential negative publicity

The Company operates in many different businesses in

diverse markets and relies on the ability of its employees and

systems to process high number of transactions

Operational risk is inherent in all business activities and the

management of this risk is important to the achievement of

the Companys objectives In the event of breakdown in the

internal control system unauthorized access or improper

operation of systems or improper employees actions the

Company could suffer financial loss face regulatory action

and suffer damage to its reputation

Business lines have direct and primary responsibility

and accountability for identifying controlling and monitoring

operational risks embedded in their business activities

Business managers maintain system of controls with the

objective of providing proper transaction authorization and

execution proper system operations safeguarding of assets

from misuse or theft and ensuring the reliability of financial

and other data Business managers ensure the controls are

appropriate and are implemented as designed

Each business line within the Company has designated risk

managers These risk managers are responsible for among

other things coordinating the completion of ongoing risk

assessments and ensuring that operational risk management is

integrated into business decision-making activities The

Companys internal audit function validates the system of

internal controls through regular and ongoing risk-based audit

procedures and reports on the effectiveness of internal controls

to executive management and the Audit Committee of the

Board of Directors Business managers are also required to

report on their business lines management of operational risk

Business managers are responsible for resolving escalated

matters and keeping the Companys operating executive and

Board committees informed of the status of such matters In

addition the Companys enterprise risk management personnel

are also expected to promptly escalate known instances where

risk limit has been exceeded

The significant increase in regulation and regulatory

oversight initiatives over the past several years has

substantially increased the importance of the Companys risk

management personnel and activities For example the

Consumer Financial Protection Bureau CFPB has authority

to prescribe rules or issue orders or guidelines pursuant to

any federal consumer financial law The CFPB regulates and

examines the Company its banks and other subsidiaries with

respect to matters that relate to these laws and consumer

financial services and products The CFPBs rulemaking

examination and enforcement authority increases enforcement

risk in this area including the potential for fines and penalties

Refer to Supervision and Regulation in the Companys

Annual Report on Form 10-K for further discussion of the

regulatory framework applicable to bank holding companies

and their subsidiaries and the substantial changes to that

regulation

Customer-related business conditions may also increase

operational risk or the level of operational losses in certain

transaction processing business units including merchant

processing activities Ongoing risk monitoring of customer

activities and their financial condition and operational

processes serve to mitigate customer-related operational risk

Refer to Note 22 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements for further discussion on merchant processing

Business continuation and disaster recovery planning is also

critical to effectively managing operational risks Each

business unit of the Company is required to develop maintain

and test these plans at least annually to ensure that recovery

activities if needed can support mission critical functions

including technology networks and data centers supporting

customer applications and business operations

While the Company believes it has designed effective

methods to minimize operational risks there is no absolute

assurance that business disruption or operational losses

would not occur in the event of disaster On an ongoing

basis management makes process changes and

investments to enhance its systems of internal controls and

business continuity and disaster recovery plans

In the past the Company has experienced attack

attempts on its computer systems including various denial-of-

service attacks on customer-facing websites The Company

has not experienced any material losses relating to these

attempts as result of its controls processes and systems to

protect its networks computers software and data from

attack damage or unauthorized access However attack

attempts on the Companys computer systems are increasing

and the Company continues to develop and enhance its

controls and processes to protect against these attempts

Interest Rate Risk Management In the banking industry

changes in interest rates are significant risk that can impact

earnings market valuations and safety and soundness of an

entity To minimize the volatility of net interest income and the

market value of assets and liabilities the Company manages

its exposure to changes in interest rates through asset and

liability management activities within guidelines established by

its Asset Liability Committee ALCO and approved by the

Board of Directors The ALCO has the responsibility for

approving and ensuring compliance with the ALCO

management policies including interest rate risk exposure

The Company uses net interest income simulation analysis

and market value of equity modeling for measuring and

analyzing consolidated interest rate risk
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Net Interest Income Simulation Analysis One of the

primary tools used to measure interest rate risk and the

effect of interest rate changes on net interest income is

simulation analysis The monthly analysis incorporates

substantially all of the Companys assets and liabilities arid

off-balance sheet instruments together with forecasted

changes in the balance sheet and assumptions that reflect

the current interest rate environment Through this simulation

management estimates the impact on net interest income of

200 basis point bps upward or downward gradual

change of market interest rates over one-year period The

simulation also estimates the effect of immediate and

sustained parallel shifts in the yield curve of 50 bps as well

as the effect of immediate and sustained flattening or

steepening of the yield curve This simulation includes

assumptions about how the balance sheet is likely to be

affected by changes in loan and deposit growth

Assumptions are made to project interest rates for new loans

and deposits based on historical analysis managements

outlook and re-pricing strategies These assumptions are

validated on periodic basis sensitivity analysis is

provided for key variables of the simulation The results are

reviewed by the ALCO monthly and are used to guide asset

liability management strategies

The table below summarizes the projected impact to net

interest income over the next 12 months of various potential

interest rate changes The Company manages its interest

rate risk position by holding assets on the balance sheet with

desired interest rate risk characteristics implementing

certain pricing strategies for loans and deposits and through

the selection of derivatives and various funding and

investment portfolio strategies The Company manages the

overall interest rate risk profile within policy limits The ALCO

policy limits the estimated change in net interest income in

gradual 200 bps rate change scenario to 4.0 percent

decline of forecasted net interest income over the next 12

months At December 31 2013 and 2012 the Company was

within policy

Market Value of Equity Modeling The Company also

manages interest rate sensitivity by utilizing market value of

equily modeling which measures the degree to which the

market values of the Companys assets and liabilities and off-

balance sheet instruments will change given change in

Sensitivity of Net Interest Income

interest rates Management measures the impact of changes

in market interest rates under number of scenarios

including immediate and sustained parallel shifts and

flattening or steepening of the yield curve The ALCO policy

limits the change in the market value of equity in 200 bps

parallel rate shock to 15.0 percent decline 200 bps

increase would have resulted in 5.1 percent decrease in

the market value of equity at December 31 2013 compared

with 2.5 percent decrease at December 31 2012

200 bps decrease where possible given current rates

would have resulted in .8 percent decrease in the market

value of equity at December31 2013 compared with

5.3 percent decrease at December31 2012

The valuation analysis is dependent upon certain key

assumptions about the nature of assets and liabilities with

non-contractual maturities Management estimates the

average life and rate characteristics of asset and liability

accounts based upon historical analysis and managements

expectation of rate behavior Mortgage prepayment

assumptions are based on many key variables including

current and projected interest rates compared with

underlying contractual rates the time since origination and

period to next reset date if floating rate loans and other

factors including housing price indices and geography

which are updated regularly based on historical experience

and forward market expectations The balance and pricing

assumptions of deposits that have no stated maturity are

based on historical performance the competitive

environment customer behavior and product mix These

assumptions are validated on periodic basis sensitivity

analysis of key variables of the valuation analysis is provided

to the ALCO monthly and is used to guide asset/liability

management strategies

Use of Derivatives to Manage Interest Rate and

Other Risks To reduce the sensitivity of earnings to interest

rate prepayment credit price and foreign currency

fluctuations asset and liability management positions the

Company enters into derivative transactions The Company

uses derivatives for asset and liability management

purposes primarily in the following ways

To convert fixed-rate debt from fixed-rate payments to

floating-rate payments

December 31 2013

Down 50 bps Up 50 bps Down 200 bps

immediate immediate Graduai

107%

December 31 2012

Up 50 bps Down 200 bps

immediate Graduai

1.42%

Up 200 bps

Graduai

1.53%Net interest income

Gben the current level of interest rates downward rate scenario can not be computed

Down 50 bps

immediate

Up 200 bps

Graduai

1.90%
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To convert the cash flows associated with floating-rate

loans and debt from floating-rate payments to fixed-rate

payments

To mitigate changes in value of the Companys mortgage

origination pipeline funded mortgage loans held for sale

and MSR5

To mitigate remeasurement volatility of foreign currency

denominated balances and

To mitigate the volatility of the Companys investment in

foreign operations driven by fluctuations in foreign

currency exchange rates

To manage these risks the Company may enter into

exchange-traded centrally cleared and over-the-counter

derivative contracts including interest rate swaps swaptions

futures forwards and options In addition the Company enters

into interest rate and foreign exchange derivative contracts to

support the business requirements of its customers customer

related positions The Company historically has minimized the

market and liquidity risks of customer-related positions by

entering into similar offsetting positions with broker-dealers In

2014 the Company began to instead actively manage the risks

from its exposure to these customer-related positions on

portfolio basis by entering into other derivative or

non-derivative financial instruments that partially or fully offset

the exposure from these customer-related positions The

Company does not utilize derivatives for speculative purposes

The Company does not designate all of the derivatives

that it enters into for risk management purposes as accounting

hedges because of the inefficiency of applying the accounting

requirements and may instead elect fair value accounting for

the related hedged items In particular the Company enters

into interest rate swaps forward commitments to buy to-be-

announced securities TBAs U.S Treasury futures and

options on U.S Treasury futures to mitigate fluctuations in the

value of its MSRs but does not designate those derivatives as

accounting hedges The estimated net sensitivity to changes

in interest rates of the fair value of the MSRs and the related

derivative instruments at December31 2013 to an immediate

25 50 and 100 bps downward movement in interest rates

would be decrease of approximately $2 million $5 million

and $36 million respectively An upward movement in interest

rates at December 31 2013 of 25bps would result in no

change in the fair value of the MSRs and related derivative

instruments while 50 and 100 bps increase would decrease

the fair value of the MSRs and related derivative instruments

by $3 million and $14 million respectively Refer to Note of

the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for additional

information regarding MSRs

Additionally the Company uses forward commitments to

sell TBAs and other commitments to sell residential mortgage

loans at specified prices to economically hedge the interest

rate risk in its residential mortgage loan production activities

At December31 2013 the Company had $5.3 billion of

forward commitments to sell hedging $2.8 billion of mortgage

loans held for sale and $3.1 billion of unfunded mortgage loan

commitments The forward commitments to sell and the

unfunded mortgage loan commitments on loans intended to

be sold are considered derivatives under the accounting

guidance related to accounting for derivative instruments and

hedging activities The Company has elected the fair value

option for the mortgage loans held for sale

Derivatives are subject to credit risk associated with

counterparties to the contracts Credit risk associated with

derivatives is measured by the Company based on the

probability of counterparty default The Company manages the

credit risk of its derivative positions by diversifying its positions

among various counterparties by entering into master netting

arrangements and where possible by requiring collateral

arrangements The Company may also transfer counterparty

credit risk related to interest rate swaps to third parties through

the use of risk participation agreements In addition effective in

2013 certain interest rate swaps and credit contracts are

required to be centrally cleared through clearing houses to

further mitigate counterparty credit risk

For additional information on derivatives and hedging

activities refer to Notes 19 and 20 in the Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements

Market Risk Management In addition to interest rate risk

the Company is exposed to other forms of market risk

principally related to trading activities which support

customers strategies to manage their own foreign currency

interest rate risk and funding activities For purposes of its

internal capital adequacy assessment process the

Company considers risk arising from its trading activities

employing methodologies consistent with the requirements

of regulatory rules for market risk The Companys Market

Risk Committee MRC within the framework of the ALCO

oversees market risk management The MRC monitors and

reviews the Companys trading positions and establishes

policies for market risk management including exposure

limits for each portfolio The Company uses Value at Risk

VaR approach to measure general market risk

Theoretically VaR represents the statistical risk of loss the

Company has to adverse market movements over one-day

time horizon The Company uses the Historical Simulation

method to calculate VaR for its trading businesses measured

at the ninety-ninth percentile using one-year look-back

period for distributions derived from past market data The

market factors used in the calculations include those

pertinent to market risks inherent in the underlying trading

portfolios principally those that affect its corporate bond

trading business foreign currency transaction business

client derivatives business loan trading business and
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municipal securities business On average the Company

expects the one-day VaR to be exceeded by actual losses

two to three times per year for its trading businesses The

Company monitors the effectiveness of its risk programs by

backtesting the performance of its VaR models regularly

updating the historical data used by the VaR models and

stress testing If the Company were to experience market

losses in excess of the estimated VaR more often than

expected the VaR models and associated assumptions

would be analyzed and adjusted

The average high low and period-end VaR amounts for the

Companys trading positions were as follows

Year Ended December31

lDoilar in Millions
2013 2012

Average $1 $1

High

Low

Period-end

The Company did not experience any actual trading

losses for its combined trading businesses that exceeded

VaR by more than negligible amount during 2013 The

Company stress tests its market risk measurements to

provide management with perspectives on market events

that may not be captured by its VaR models including worst

case historical market movement combinations that have not

necessarily occurred on the same date

The Company calculates Stressed VaR using the same

underlying methodology and model as VaR except that

historical continuous one-year look-back period is utilized

that reflects period of significant financial stress

appropriate to the Companys trading portfolio The period

selected by the Company includes the significant market

volatility
of the last four months of 2008 The average high

low and period-end Stressed VaR amounts for the

Comoanys trading positions for 2013 were $4 million

$8 million $2 million and $3 million respectively

Valuations of positions in the client derivatives and

foreign currency transaction businesses are based on

quotes from third parties which are generally compared with

an additional third party quote to determine if there are

material variances Material variances are approved by the

Companys market risk management department Valuation

of pcsitions in the corporate bond trading loan trading and

municipal securities businesses are based on trader marks

These trader marks are evaluated against third party prices

with material variances approved by the Companys market

risk management and credit administration departments

The Company also measures the market risk of its

hedging activities related to residential mortgage loans held

for sale and MSRs using the Historical Simulation method

The VaRs are measured at the ninety-ninth percentile and

emp oy factors pertinent to the market risks inherent in the

valuation of the assets and hedges The Company monitors

the effectiveness of the models through back-testing

updating the data and regular validations three-year look-

back period is used to obtain past market data for the

residential mortgage loans held for sale and related hedges

Beginning in late 2013 the Company began to use

seven-year look-back period to obtain past market data for

the MSRs and related hedges Previously three-year look-

back period was used The change in the look-back period

for the MSRs and related hedges allows the Company to

more appropriately capture the expected market volatility
in

its VaR analysis

The average high and low VaR amounts for residential

mortgage loans held for sale and related hedges and the

MSRs and related hedges were as follows

Year Ended December 31

Dollars in Millions

Residential Mortgage Loans Held For

Sale and Related Hedges

Average

High

Low

Mortgage Servicing Rights and

Related Hedges

Average

High

Low

2013 2012

$1 $2

$3 $4

Liquidity Risk Management The Companys liquidity risk

management process is designed to identify measure and

manage the Companys funding and liquidity risk to meet its

daily funding needs and to address expected and

unexpected changes in its funding requirements The

Company engages in various activities to manage its liquidity

risk These activities include diversifying its funding sources

stress testing and holding readily-marketable assets which

can be used as source of liquidity if needed In addition

the Companys profitable operations sound credit quality

and strong capital position have enabled it to develop

large and reliable base of core deposit funding within its

market areas and in domestic and global capital markets

The Risk Management Committee of the Companys

Board of Directors oversees the Companys liquidity risk

management process approves the Companys liquidity

policy and reviews the contingency funding plan The ALCO

reviews and approves the Companys liquidity policy and

guidelines and regularly assesses the Companys ability to

meet funding requirements arising from adverse company-

specific or market events

The Companys liquidity policy requires it to maintain

diversified wholesale funding sources to avoid maturity name

and market concentrations The Company operates Grand

Cayman branch for issuing Eurodollar time deposits In

addition the Company has relationships with dealers to issue
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national market retail and institutional savings certificates and

short-term and medium-term notes The Company also

maintains significant correspondent banking network and

relationships Accordingly the Company has access to

national federal funds funding through repurchase

agreements and sources of stable regionally-based

certificates of deposit and commercial paper

The Company regularly projects its funding needs under

various stress scenarios and maintains contingency plans

consistent with the Companys access to diversified sources

of contingent funding The Company maintains substantial

level of total available liquidity in the form of on-balance sheet

and off-balance sheet funding sources These include cash at

the Federal Reserve Bank unencumbered liquid assets and

capacity to borrow at the Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB
and the Federal Reserve Banks Discount Window

Unencumbered liquid assets in the Companys available-for-

sale and held-to-maturity investment portfolios provide asset

liquidity through the Companys ability to sell the securities or

pledge and borrow against them At December 31 2013 the

fair value of unencumbered available-for-sale and held-to-

maturity investment securities totaled $61.7 billion compared

with $54.1 billion at December 31 2012 Refer to Table 13 and

Balance Sheet Analysis for further information on investment

securities maturities and trends Asset liquidity is further

enhanced by the Companys ability to pledge loans to access

secured borrowing facilities through the FHLB and Federal

Reserve Bank At December31 2013 the Company could

have borrowed an additional $69.7 billion at the FHLB and

Federal Reserve Bank based on collateral available for

additional borrowings

The Companys diversified deposit base provides

sizeable source of relatively stable and low-cost funding

while reducing the Companys reliance on the wholesale

markets Total deposits were $262.1 billion at December31

2013 compared with $249.2 billion at December 31 2012

Refer to Table 14 and Balance Sheet Analysis for further

information on the Companys deposit trends

Additional funding is provided by long-term debt and

short-term borrowings Long-term debt was $20.0 billion at

December 31 2013 and is an important funding source

because of its multi-year borrowing structure Refer to Note

12 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements for

information on the terms and maturities of the Companys

long-term debt issuances and Balance Sheet Analysis for

discussion on long-term debt trends Short-term borrowings

were $27.6 billion at December 31 2013 and supplement

the Companys other funding sources Refer to Note 11 of

the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements and

Balance Sheet Analysis for information on the terms and

trends of the Companys short-term borrowings

The Companys ability to raise negotiated funding at

competitive prices is influenced by rating agencies views of

the Companys credit quality liquidity capital and earnings

Table 20 details the rating agencies most recent

assessments

In addition to assessing liquidity risk on consolidated

basis the Company monitors the parent companys liquidity

The parent companys routine funding requirements consist

primarily of operating expenses dividends paid to

shareholders debt service repurchases of common stock

and funds used for acquisitions The parent company

obtains funding to meet its obligations from dividends

collected from its subsidiaries and the issuance of debt

securities The Company maintains sufficient funding to meet

expected parent company obligations without access to the

wholesale funding markets or dividends from subsidiaries

for 12 months when forecasted payments of common stock

dividends are included and 24 months assuming dividends

were reduced to zero The parent company currently has

available funds considerably greater than the amounts

required to satisfy these conditions

TABLE 20 Debt Ratings

Moodys

Standard

Poors

Dominion

Bond

Fitch Rating Service

U.S Bancorp
Short-term borrowings F1 R-1 middle
Senior debt and medium-term notes Al AA- AA
Subordinated debt A2 AA low
Preferred stock Baai BBB BBB
Commercial paper P-i A-i Fl A-i middle

U.S Bank National Association

Short-term time deposits P-i A-i Fl A-i high
Long-term time deposits Aa3 AA- AA AA high
Banknotes Aa3/P-l AA-/A-l AA-/Fl AAhigh
Subordinated debt Al AA
Senior unsecured debt Aa3 AA- AA- AA high
Commercial paper P-i A-l F1 A-i high
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Under United States Securities and Exchange

Commission rules the parent company is classified as

well-known seasoned issuer which allows it to file

registration statement that does not have limit on issuance

capacity Well-known seasoned issuers generally include

those companies with outstanding common securities with

market value of at least $700 million held by non-affiliated

parties or those companies that have issued at least $1 billion

in aggregate principal amount of non-convertible securities

other than common equity in the last three years However

the parent companys ability to issue debt and other

securities under registration statement filed with the United

States Securities and Exchange Commission under these

rules is limited by the debt issuance authority granted by the

Companys Board of Directors and/or the ALCO policy

At December 31 2013 parent company long-term debt

outstanding was $1 1.4 billion compared with $12.8 billion at

December 31 2012 The $1.4 billion decrease was primarily

due to $2.9 billion of medium-term note maturities partially

offset by issuances of $1 .5 billion of mediumterm notes At

December 31 2013 there was $1.5 billion of parent

company debt scheduled to mature in 2014 Future debt

maturities may be met through medium-term note and

capital security issuances and dividends from subsidiaries

as well as from parent company cash and cash equivalents

Dividend payments to the Company by its subsidiary

bank are subject to regulatory review and statutory

limitations and in some instances regulatory approval In

general dividends to the parent company from its banking

subsidiary are limited by rules which compare dividends to

net iocome for regulatorily-defined periods For further

information see Note 23 of the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements

In 2010 the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision

issued Basel Ill global regulatory framework proposed to

enhance international capital and liquidity standards In

October 2013 U.S banking regulators released proposed

regulatory requirement for U.S banks which would

implement Liquidity Coverage Ratio LCR similar to the

measure proposed by the Basel Committee as part of Basel

Ill The LCR requires that banks maintain an adequate level

of unencumbered high quality liquid assets to meet

estimated liquidity needs over 30-day stressed period The

Company continues to evaluate the impact of the proposed

rule and expects to meet the final standards within the

regulatory timelines

European Exposures Certain European countries have

experienced severe credit deterioration The Company does

not hold sovereign debt of any European country but may

have indirect exposure to sovereign debt through its

investments in and transactions with European banks At

December 31 2013 the Company had investments in

perpetual preferred stock issued by European banks with an

amortized cost totaling $70 million and unrealized losses

totaling $7 million compared with an amortized cost totaling

$70 million and unrealized losses totaling $10 million at

December 31 2012 The Company also transacts with various

European banks as counterpartieS to interest rate

mortgage-related and foreign currency derivatives for its

hedging and customer-related activities however none of

these banks are domiciled in the countries experiencing the

most significant credit deterioration These derivatives are

subject to master netting arrangements In addition interest

rate and foreign currency derivative transactions are subject

to collateral arrangements which significantly
limit the

Companys exposure to loss as they generally require daily

posting of collateral At December 31 2013 the Company

was in net receivable position with one bank in the United

Kingdom in the amount of $64 million The Company was in

net payable position to all of the other European banks

TABLE 21 Contractual Obligations

Payments Due By Period

Over One Over Three

One Year Through Through

or Less Three Years Five Years

Over Five

Years

AtDecenber 31 2013 Dotars in Miflionsl

Contractual Obligations

Long-term debtb 4132 6826 $4079 $5012 $20049

Operating leases
244 397 270 474 1385

Purchase obligations
338 310 69 717

Benefit obligations
20 41 43 131 235

Time deposits
30029 8273 2472 27 40801

Cortractual interest payments
854 755 455 671 2735

Equity Investment Commitments 1214 389 23 23 1649

Total
$36831 $16991 $7411 $6338 $67571

Total

Unrecognized tax positions of $264 million at December 2013 are excluded as the Company cannot make reasonably reliable estimate of the per/nd cf cash settlement with the

respective taxing authority

Includes obligations under capital leases

Amounts only include obligations
related to the unfunded non-qualified pension plans

lncudes accrued interest and future contractual interest obligations
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The Company has not bought or sold credit protection

on the debt of any European country or any company

domiciled in Europe nor does it provide retail lending

services in Europe While the Company does not offer

commercial lending services in Europe it does provide

financing to domestic multinational corporations that

generate revenue from customers in European countries and

provides limited number of corporate credit cards to their

European subsidiaries While an economic downturn in

Europe could have negative impact on these customers

revenues it is unlikely that any effect on the overall credit

worthiness of these multinational corporations would be

material to the Company

The Company provides merchant processing and

corporate trust services in Europe either directly or through

banking affiliations in Europe Operating cash for these

businesses is deposited on short-term basis with certain

European banks However exposure is mitigated by the

Company placing deposits at multiple banks and managing

the amounts on deposit at any bank based on institution-

specific deposit limits At December 31 2013 the Company

had an aggregate amount on deposit with European banks

of approximately $382 million

The money market funds managed by subsidiary of

the Company do not have any investments in European

sovereign debt other than approximately $315 million

guaranteed by the country of Germany Other than

investments in banks in the countries of the Netherlands

France and Germany those funds do not have any

unsecured investments in banks domiciled in the Eurozone

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements Off-balance sheet

arrangements include any contractual arrangements to

which an unconsolidated entity is party under which the

Company has an obligation to provide credit or liquidity

enhancements or market risk support Off-balance sheet

arrangements also include any obligation related to

variable interest held in an unconsolidated entity that

provides financing liquidity credit enhancement or market

risk support The Company has not utilized private label

asset securitizations as source of funding

Commitments to extend credit are legally binding and

generally have fixed expiration dates or other termination

clauses Many of the Companys commitments to extend

credit expire without being drawn and therefore total

commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future

liquidity requirements or the Companys exposure to credit

loss Commitments to extend credit also include consumer

credit lines that are cancelable upon notification to the

consumer Total contractual amounts of commitments to

extend credit at December 31 2013 were $230.3 billion The

Company also issues various types of letters of credit

including standby and commercial Total contractual

amounts of letters of credit at December 31 2013 were

$17.2 billion For more information on the Companys

commitments to extend credit and letters of credit refer to

Note 22 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

The Companys off-balance sheet arrangements with

unconsolidated entities primarily consist of private

investment funds or partnerships that make equity

investments provide debt financing or support community-

based investments in tax-advantaged projects In addition to

providing investment returns these arrangements in many

cases assist the Company in complying with requirements of

the Community Reinvestment Act The investments in these

entities generate return primarily through the realization of

federal and state income tax credits The entities in which the

Company invests are generally considered VIEs The

Companys recorded investment in these entities as of

December31 2013 was approximately $2.5 billion

The Company also has non-controlling financial

investments in private funds and partnerships considered

VIEs The Companys recorded investment in these entities

was approximately $44 million at December31 2013 and

the Company had unfunded commitments to invest an

additional $8 million For more information on the Companys

interests in unconsolidated VIEs refer to Note in the Notes

to Consolidated Financial Statements

Guarantees are contingent commitments issued by the

Company to customers or other third parties requiring the

Company to perform if certain conditions exist or upon the

occurrence or nonoccurrence of specified event such as

scheduled payment to be made under contract The

Companys primary guarantees include commitments from

securities lending activities in which indemnifications are

provided to customers indemnification or buy-back

provisions related to sales of loans and tax credit

investments merchant charge-back guarantees through the

Companys involvement in providing merchant processing

services and minimum revenue guarantee arrangements

For certain guarantees the Company may have access to

collateral to support the guarantee or through the exercise

of other recourse provisions be able to offset some or all of

any payments made under these guarantees

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries along with

other Visa U.S.A Inc member banks have contingent

guarantee obligation to indemnify Visa Inc for potential

losses arising from antitrust lawsuits challenging the

practices of Visa U.S.A Inc and MasterCard International

The indemnification by the Company and other Visa U.S.A

Inc member banks has no maximum amount Refer to

Note 22 in the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

for further details regarding guarantees other commitments

and contingent liabilities including maximum potential future

payments and current carrying amounts
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Capital Management The Company is committed to

managing capital to maintain strong protection for depositors

and creditors and for maximum shareholder benefit The

Company continually assesses its business risks and capital

position The Company also manages its capital to exceed

regulatory capital requirements for well-capitalized bank

holdirg companies To achieve its capital goals the Company

employs variety of capital management tools including

dividends common share repurchases and the issuance of

subordinated debt non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock

common stock and other capital instruments

On June 18 2013 the Company announced its Board of

Directors had approved an 18 percent increase in the

Companys dividend rate per common share from $195 per

quarter to $.23 per quarter

The Company repurchased approximately 65 million

shares of its common stock in 2013 compared with

approximately 59 million shares in 2012 The average price

paid for the shares repurchased in 2013 was $35.55 per

share compared with $31.78 per share in 2012 As of

December 31 2013 the approximate dollar value of shares

that may yet be purchased by the Company under the current

Board of Directors approved authorization was $488 million

For more complete analysis of activities impacting

shareholders equity and capital management programs refer

to Note 14 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Total U.S Bancorp shareholders equity was

$41.1 billion at December 31 2013 compared with

$39.0 billion at December31 2012 The increase was

primarily the result of corporate earnings partially offset by

dividends and common share repurchases

As of December31 2013 the regulatory capital

requirements effective for the Company follow the Capital

Accord of the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision

Basal Under Basel banking regulators define

minimum capital requirements for banks and financial

services holding companies These requirements are

expressed in the form of minimum Tier capital ratio total

risk-based capital ratio and Tier leverage ratio The

minimum required level for these ratios is 4.0 percent

8.0 percent and 4.0 percent respectively The Company

targets its regulatory capital levels at both the bank and

bank holding company level to exceed the well-capitalized

threshold for these ratios of 6.0 percent 10.0 percent and

5.0 percent respectively The most recent notification from

the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency categorized the

Companys bank subsidiary as well-capitalized under the

FDIC Improvement Act prompt corrective action provisions

that are applicable to all banks There are no conditions or

events since that notification that management believes have

changed the risk-based category of its covered subsidiary

bank

In June 2012 U.S banking regulators proposed

regulatory enhancements to the regulatory capital

requirements for U.S banks which implement aspects of

Basel III and the Dodd-Frank Act such as redefining the

regulatory capital elements and minimum capital ratios

introducing regulatory capital buffers above those

minimums revising the rules for calculating risk-weighted

assets and introducing new common equity tier ratio In

October 2013 U.S banking regulators approved final

regulatory capital rule enhancements effective for the

Company beginning January 2014 that are largely

consistent with the June 2012 proposals

As an approved mortgage seller and servicer U.S Bank

National Association through its mortgage banking division

is required to maintain various levels of shareholders equity

as specified by various agencies including the United States

Department of Housing and Urban Development

Government National Mortgage Association Federal Home

Loan Mortgage Corporation and the Federal National

Mortgage Association At December 31 2013 U.S Bank

National Association met these requirements

Table 22 provides summary of regulatory capital ratios

defined by banking regulators under the FDIC Improvement

Act prompt corrective action provisions applicable to all

banks in effect at December 31 2013 and 2012 including

Tier and total risk-based capital ratios

The Company believes certain capital ratios in addition to

regulatory capital ratios defined by banking regulators under

the FDIC Improvement Act prompt corrective action provisions

are useful in evaluating its capital adequacy The Companys

Tier common equity using Basel definition and tangible

common equity as percent of risk-weighted assets were 9.4

percent and 9.1 percent respectively at December31 2013

compared with 9.0 percent and 8.6 percent respectively at

December 31 2012 The Companys tangible common equity

divided by tangible assets was 7.7 percent at December 31

2013 compared with 7.2 percent at December 312012 The

Companys estimated common equity tier to risk-weighted

assets ratio using final rules for the Basel III standardized

approach was 8.8 percent at December 31 2013 Refer to

Non-GAAP Financial Measures for further information

regarding the calculation of these ratios
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TABLE 22 Regulatory Capital Ratios

At December31 Dollars in Millions
2013

U.S Bancorp
Tier capital

As percent of risk-weighted assets

As percent of adjusted quarterly average assets leverage ratio

Total risk-based capital

As percent of risk-weighted assets

Bank Subsidiary

U.S Bank National Association

Tier capital

Total risk-based capital

Leverage

Bank Regulatory Capital Requirements

Tier capital

Total risk-based capital

Leverage

Fourth Quarter Summary

The Company reported net income attributable to

U.S Bancorp of $1.5 billion for the fourth quarter of 2013 or

$.76 per diluted common share compared with $1.4 billion

or $.72 per diluted common share for the fourth quarter of

2012 Return on average assets and return on average

common equity were 1.62 percent and 15.4 percent

respectively for the fourth quarter of 2013 compared with

1.62 percent and 15.6 percent respectively for the fourth

quarter of 2012 The provision for credit losses was

$35 million lower than net charge-offs for the fourth quarter of

2013 compared with $25 million lower than net charge-offs

for the fourth quarter of 2012 Also included in the fourth

quarter 2012 results was the $80 million expense accrual for

mortgage foreclosure-related regulatory settlement

Total net revenue on taxable-equivalent basis for the

fourth quarter of 2013 was $223 million 4.4 percent lower

than the fourth quarter of 2012 reflecting 1.8 percent

decrease in net interest income and 7.4 percent decrease

in noninterest income The decrease in net interest income

from 2012 was the result of an increase in average earning

assets offset by decrease in the net interest margin

Noninterest income decreased from year ago primarily

due to lower mortgage banking revenue

Noninterest expense in the fourth quarter of 2013 was

$4 million .1 percent lower than the fourth quarter of 2012

The modest decrease was primarily due to the impact of the

$80 million mortgage foreclosure-related settlement accrual

in the fourth quarter of 2012 and reduction in mortgage

servicing review-related professional services expense

offset by higher costs related to investments in tax-

advantaged projects and employee benefits expense

Fourth quarter 2013 net interest income on taxable-

equivalent basis was $2.7 billion compared with $2.8 billion

in the fourth quarter of 2012 The $50 million 1.8 percent

decrease was principally the result of lower net interest

margin partially offset by higher average earning assets

The net interest margin in the fourth quarter of 2013 was

3.40 percent compared with 3.55 percent in the fourth

quarter of 2012 primarily reflecting lower rates on loans and

investment securities partially offset by lower rates on

deposits and the positive impact from maturities of higher-

rate long-term debt Average earning assets for the fourth

quarter of 2013 increased over the fourth quarter of 2012 by

$7.3 billion 2.3 percent driven by increases of $12.5 billion

5.7 percent in loans and $4.4 billion 6.0 percent in

investment securities partially offset by decreases in loans

held for sale of $5.8 billion 66.2 percent and other earning

assets of $3.8 billion 37.0 percent primarily due to the

deconsolidation of certain consolidated VIEs during the

second quarter of 2013

Noninterest income in the fourth quarter of 2013 was

$2.2 billion compared with $2.3 billion in the same period of

2012 decrease of $173 million 7.4 percent The

decrease was principally driven by $245 million

51 .5 percent reduction in mortgage banking revenue due

to lower origination and sales revenue partially offset by

favorable changes in the valuation of MSRs net of hedging

activities Growth in several fee categories helped to offset

the decline in mortgage banking revenue Credit and debit

card revenue increased $21 million 8.7 percent over the

prior year due to higher transaction volumes including the

impact of business expansion Merchant processing

services revenue was $13 million 3.7 percent higher as

result of an increase in fee-based product revenue and

2012

$33386 $31203

11.2% 10.8%

9.6% 9.2%

$39340 $37780

13.2% 13.1%

10.3% 10.6%

12.4 12.7

8.8 9.0

Well-

Minimum capitalized

4.0%

80

4.0

6.0%

10.0

5.0
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TABLE 23 Fourth Quarter Results

Three Months Ended

December 31

Doflars and Shares in Millions Except Per Share Data 2013 2012

Condensed Income Statement

Net interest income taxable-equivalent basis

Noninterest income

Securities gains losses net

Total net revenue

Noninlerest expense

Provis on for credit losses

Income before taxes

Taxable-equivalent adjustment

Applicable income taxes
______________

Net income

Net income loss attributable to noncontrolling interests

Net income attributable to U.S Bancorp

Net income applicable to U.S Bancorp common shareholders

Per Common Share

Earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share

Dividends declared per share

Average common shares outstanding

Average diluted common shares outstanding

Financial Ratios

Return on average assets

Return on average common equity

Net interest margin taxable-equivalent basis

Efticiency_ratio

Interest and rates are presented on fully taxable-equivalent basis utilizing tax rate of 35 percent

higher volumes Trust and investment management fees

increased $21 million 7.6 percent reflecting improved

market conditions and business expansion Deposit service

charges were $7 million 4.1 percent higher as result of

pricing changes and an increase in monthly account fees

and account growth Commercial products revenue

increased $17 million 7.5 percent principally due to higher

syndication fees and tax-advantaged projects while

investment products fees increased $6 million 15.4 percent

due to higher sales volumes and fees Offsetting these

positive variances was decline in corporate payment

prodUcts revenue of $12 million 6.7 percent due to lower

government-related transactions

Noninterest expense in the fourth quarter of 2013 was

$2.7 billion or $4 million .1 percent lower than the fourth

quarter of 2012 The slight decrease was primarily due to

reductions in professional services other intangibles and

other expense offset by higher compensation and employee

benefits expense Professional services expense decreased

$48 million 28.9 percent due to reduction in mortgage

servicing review-related costs Other intangibles expense

decreased $10 million 15.2 percent due to the reduction or

completion of the amortization of certain intangibles Other

expense was lower $13 million 2.5 percent due to the

$80 million fourth quarter 2012 accrual for mortgage

foreclosure-related regulatory settlement partially offset by

higher tax-advantaged project costs including the

accounting presentation changes in the fourth quarter of

2013 Compensation expense increased $20 million

1.8 percent reflecting growth in staffing for business

initiatives and the impact of merit increases partially offset

by lower incentive and commission expense Employee

benefits expense increased $44 million 19.0 percent

principally due to higher pension costs and staffing levels In

addition net occupancy and equipment expense was

$6 million 2.6 percent higher due to business initiatives and

higher rent expense and maintenance costs

The provision for credit losses for the fourth quarter of

2013 was $277 million decrease of $166 million

37.5 percent from the same period of 2012 Net charge-offs

decreased $156 million 33.3 percent in the fourth quarter of

2013 compared with the fourth quarter of 2012 principally

due to improvement in the commercial commercial real

estate residential mortgages and home equity and second

mortgages portfolios The provision for credit losses was

lower than net charge-offs by $35 million in the fourth quarter

of 2013 compared with $25 million in the fourth quarter of

$2733 $2783

2155 2326

4889 5112

2682 2686

277 443

1930 1983

56 56

403 552

1471 1375

15 45

$1456 $1420

$1389 $1349

.76

.76

.230

1821

1832

.72

.72

.195

1872

1880

1.62% 1.62%

15.4 15.6

3.40 3.55

54.9 52.6
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2012 Given the current economic conditions the Company

expects the level of net charge-offs to increase modestly and

total nonperforming assets to be relatively stable in the first

quarter of 2014

The provision for income taxes for the fourth quarter of

2013 resulted in an effective tax rate of 21.5 percent

reflecting the reduction in income tax expense due to the

accounting presentation changes related to investments in

tax-advantaged projects and the favorable resolution of

certain state tax matters The effective tax rate was

28.6 percent in the fourth quarter of 2012

Line of Business Financial Review

The Companys major lines of business are Wholesale

Banking and Commercial Real Estate Consumer and Small

Business Banking Wealth Management and Securities

Services Payment Services and Treasury and Corporate

Support These operating segments are components of the

Company about which financial information is prepared and

is evaluated regularly by management in deciding how to

allocate resources and assess performance

Basis for Financial Presentation Business line results

are derived from the Companys business unit profitability

reporting systems by specifically attributing managed
balance sheet assets deposits and other liabilities and their

related income or expense The allowance for credit losses

and related provision expense are allocated to the lines of

business based on the related loan balances managed
Goodwill and other intangible assets are assigned to the

lines of business based on the mix of business of the

acquired entity Within the Company capital levels are

evaluated and managed centrally however capital is

allocated to the operating segments to support evaluation of

business performance Business lines are allocated capital

on risk-adjusted basis considering economic and

regulatory capital requirements Generally the determination

of the amount of capital allocated to each business line

includes credit and operational capital allocations following

Basel II regulatory framework Interest income and expense

is determined based on the assets and liabilities managed

by the business line Because funding and asset liability

management is central function funds transfer-pricing

methodologies are utilized to allocate cost of funds used or

credit for funds provided to all business line assets and

liabilities respectively using matched funding concept

Also each business unit is allocated the taxable-equivalent

benefit of tax-exempt products The residual effect on net

interest income of asset/liability management activities is

included in Treasury and Corporate Support Noninterest

income and expenses directly managed by each business

line including fees service charges salaries and benefits

and other direct revenues and costs are accounted for within

each segments financial results in manner similar to the

consolidated financial statements Occupancy costs are

allocated based on utilization of facilities by the lines of

business Generally operating losses are charged to the line

of business when the loss event is realized in manner

similar to loan charge-off Noninterest expenses incurred

by centrally managed operations or business lines that

directly support another business lines operations are

charged to the applicable business line based on its

utilization of those services primarily measured by the

volume of customer activities number of employees or other

relevant factors These allocated expenses are reported as

net shared services expense within noninterest expense

Certain activities that do not directly support the operations

of the lines of business or for which the lines of business are

not considered financially accountable in evaluating their

performance are not charged to the lines of business The

income or expenses associated with these corporate

activities is reported within the Treasury and Corporate

Support line of business Income taxes are assessed to each

line of business at standard tax rate with the residual tax

expense or benefit to arrive at the consolidated effective tax

rate included in Treasury and Corporate Support

Designations assignments and allocations change from

time to time as management systems are enhanced

methods of evaluating performance or product lines change

or business segments are realigned to better respond to the

Companys diverse customer base During 2013 certain

organization and methodology changes were made and

accordingly 2012 results were restated and presented on

comparable basis

Wholesale Banking and Commercial Real Estate

Wholesale Banking and Commercial Real Estate offers

lending equipment finance and small-ticket leasing

depository services treasury management capital markets

international trade services and other financial services to

middle market large corporate commercial real estate

financial institution non-profit and public sector clients

Wholesale Banking and Commercial Real Estate contributed

$1.3 billion of the Companys net income in 2013 or

decrease of $22 million 1.7 percent compared with 2012

The decrease was primarily driven by lower net revenue

partially offset by lower provision for credit losses and

decrease in noninterest expense

Net revenue decreased $158 million 4.7 percent in

2013 compared with 2012 Net interest income on

taxable-equivalent basis decreased $16 million

.8 percent in 2013 compared with 2012 driven by lower

rates on loans and the impact of lower rates on the margin

benefit from deposits partially offset by higher average loan

and deposit balances and higher loan fees Noninterest

income decreased $142 11.5 percent in 2013 compared

with 2012 driven by lower commercial products revenue

primarily due to lower standby letters of credit and other

loan-related fees and capital markets revenue In addition

equity investment revenue was lower year-over-year
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Noninterest expense decreased $25 million 2.0

percent in 2013 compared with 2012 primarily due to lower

costs related to other real estate owned and other

intangibles expense The provision for credit losses

decreased $99 million in 2013 compared with 2012 due to

lower net charge-offs partially offset by lower reserve

releases Nonperforming assets were $322 million at

December 31 2013 compared with $520 million at

December 31 2012 Nonperforming assets as percenlage

of period-end loans were .43 percent at December31 2013

compared with .75 percent at December 31 2012 Refer to

the Corporate Risk Profile section for further information on

factcrs impacting the credit quality of the loan portfolios

Consumer and Small Business Banking Consumer and

Small Business Banking delivers products and services

through banking offices telephone servicing and sales on

line services direct mail ATM processing and mobile

devices such as mobile phones and tablet computers It

encompasses community banking metropolitan banking in-

store banking small business banking consumer lending

mortgage banking workplace banking student banking and

24-hour banking Consumer and Small Business Banking

contributed $1 .4 billion of the Companys net income in

2013 or decrease of $21 million 1.5 percent compared

with 2012 The decrease was due to lower net revenue

offset by lower provision for credit losses and noninterest

expense Within Consumer and Small Business Banking the

retail banking division contributed $716 million of the total net

TABLE 24 Line of Business Financial Performance

Wholesale Banking and

commerciai Real Eatate

conaumer and Smail

Business Banking

2013

Percent

2012 change

4554 4737

2904 3565

7458 8302

4684 4923

40 51

3.9%

18.5

10.2

4.9

_________________
21.6

____________________
5.0

17.8

____________________
48.0

2127 2161 1.6

4724 4974

2734 3328

607 1167

Year Ended December 31
Percent

Doflars in MWhons
2013 2012 change

Condensed Income Statement

Net interest income taxable-equivalent basis 2088 2104 .8%

Noninterest income 1092 1234 11.5

Securities gains losses net

Total net revenue 3180 3338 4.7

Noninterest expense
1248 1265 1.3

Othe intangibles
16 50.0

Total noninterest expense
256 1281 2.0

Income before provision and income taxes 1924 2057 6.5

Provision for credit losses 97

Income before income taxes 2021 2055 1.7

Income taxes and taxable-equivalent adjustment 736 748 1.6

Net income 1285 1307 1.7

Net income loss attributable to noncontrolling interests

Net i2come attributable to U.S Bancorp 1285 1307 1.7

Average Balance Sheet

Commercial $50873 $45091 12.8%

Commercial real estate 20550 19635 4.7

Residential mortgages
26 60 56.7

Crecit card

Other retail
14.3

Total loans excluding covered loans 71457 64793 10.3

Covered loans
363 921 60.6

Total loans 71820 65714 9.3

Goodwill 1604 1604

OthEr intangible assets 25 36 30.6

Assets 78253 71606 9.3

Noninterest-bearing deposits 31153 31224 .2

Interest checking
10515 10354 1.6

Savings products
14144 9413 50.3

Time deposits
18481 17197 7.5

Total deposits
74293 68188 9.0

Total U.S Bancorp shareholders equity 7356 6436 14.3

774 786 1.5

1353 1375

1353 1374

8396 8225

16934 16136

47081 39827

44847 45594

1.6

1.5

2.1%

4.9

18.2

1.6

6.8

12.6

5.6

34.6

3.7

7.8

10.3

6.8

11.1

4.3

7.8

Not meanngfu1

117258 109782

6566 7510

123824 117292

3515 3515

2406 1787

139174 134258

21969 20386

33006 29911

46308 43342

21136 23787

122419 117426

12148 11268
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income in 2013 or an increase of $215 million 42.9 percent

over the prior year Mortgage banking contributed

$637 million of the business lines net income in 2013 or

decrease of $236 million 27.0 percent from the prior year

reflecting lower mortgage banking activity in 2013

Net revenue decreased $844 million 10.2 percent in

2013 compared with 2012 Net interest income on taxable-

equivalent basis decreased $183 million 3.9 percent in

2013 compared with 2012 primarily due to lower loan rates

the impact of lower rates on the margin benefit from deposits

and lower average loans held for sale balances partially offset

by higher average loan and deposit balances Noninterest

income decreased $661 million 18.5 percent in 2013

compared with 2012 due to lower mortgage banking revenue

primarily the result of lower mortgage origination and

sales revenue partially offset by higher mortgage servicing

income and favorable changes in the valuation of MSRs net of

hedging activities and lower retail lease revenue

Noninterest expense decreased $250 million

5.0 percent in 2013 compared with 2012 The decrease

reflected reductions in mortgage servicing review-related

costs the 2012 foreclosure-related regulatory settlement

accrual lower compensation and employee benefits

expense and lower costs related to other intangibles

expense and other real estate owned partially offset by

higher net shared services costs

The provision for credit losses decreased $560 million

48.0 percent in 2013 compared with 2012 due to lower

net charge-offs and favorable change in the reserve

allocation As percentage of average loans outstanding

Percent

2013 2012 Change

Wealth Management and Payment Treasury and Consolidated

Securities Services Services Corporate Support Company

Percent

2013 2012 Change

356 355

1235 1121

Percent Percent

2013 2012 Change 2013 2012 Change

10828 $10969 1.3%
8765 9334 6.1

15

19602 20288

10051 10182

223 274

10274 10456

1591 1476

1304 1155

36 40

1340 1195

251 281

14

245 267

89 96

156 171

156 171

1712 1333

650 609

874 400

1533 1527

4769 3869

14 11

4783 3880

1535 1473

173 171

7643 6538

14610 14514

4821 3975

26830 23543

4906 5105

1584 1548

3205 3195

4789 4743

1964 1830

139 167

2103 1997

2686 2746

769 697

1917 2049

697 746

1220 1303

39 38

1181 1265

6086 5962

16813 16653

737 810

23636 23425

23641 23430

2510 2361

572 690

29843 29580

703 643

449 1192

57 39

1209 1874

6046 5701

.3%

10.2

7.8

129

10.0

12.1

10.7

57.1

8.2

7.3

8.8

8.8

28.4%

6.7

.4

23.3

27.3

23.3

4.2

1.2

16.9

.7

21.3

14.0

3.9

8.5

6.9

3.4

1.3

18.6

1.7

5.1

28.8

.5

8.3

4.4

33.8

3.3

2246 2225

329 219

15

2584 2429

851 1009

851 1009

1733 1420

55

1678 1418

40 84

1718 1334

143 196

1861 1530

207 219

103 125

311 347

3095 4711

3406 5058

97767 100867

585 474

89 133

694 477

1369 1085

11982 11974

2.3%

.3

1.0

7.3

16.8

5.3

2.2
10.3

6.4

6.6

6.4

2.6

6.6

2.1%

1.0

9.0

.9

.9

6.3

17.1

.9

9.3

62.3

46.2

35.5

6.1

.9%

50.2

6.4

15.7

15.7

22.0

18.3

28.8

27.0

21.6

5.5%

17.6

66.7

10.4

34.3

32.7

50.0

3.1

23.4

33.1

45.5

26.2

9328 9832

1340 1882

7988 7950

2256 2460

5732 5490

104 157

5836 5647

67274 $60830

38237 36505

47982 40290

16813 16653

47125 47938

217431 202216

10043 13158

227474 215374

9164 8953

3178 2688

352680 342849

69020 67241

48792 45433

87428 76470

45217 46566

51167 47137

2385 2232

10.6%

4.7

19.1

1.0

__________________
1.7

7.5

___________________
23.7

5.6

2.4

18.2

2.9

2.6

7.4

14.3

_________
2.9

250457 235710 6.3

39917 37611 6.1
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net charge-offs decreased to .58 percent in 2013 compared

with 92 percent in 2012 Nonperforming assets were

$1.4 billion at December31 2013 and 2012 Nonperforrning

assets as percentage of period-end loans were 1.11

percent at December 31 2013 compared with 1.16 percent

at December 31 2012 Refer to the Corporate Risk Profile

section for further information on factors impacting the credit

quality of the loan portfolios

Wealth Management and Securities Services Wealth

Management and Securities Services provides private

banking financial advisory services investment management

retail brokerage services insurance trust custody and fund

servicing through five businesses Wealth Management

Corporate Trust Services U.S Bancorp Asset Management

Institutional Trust Custody and Fund Services Wealth

Management and Securities Services contributed $156 million

of the Companys net income in 2013 decrease of $15

millicin 8.8 percent compared with 2012 The decrease from

the prior year was primarily due to higher noninterest expense

partially offset by higher net revenue

Net revenue increased $115 million 7.8 percent in

2013 compared with 2012 driven by $114 million 10.2

percent increase in noninterest income primarily due to the

impact of improved market conditions business expansion

and higher investment product fees Net interest income was

essentially unchanged reflecting higher average loan and

deposit balances offset by the impact of lower rates on

loans and the margin benefit from deposits

Noninterest expense increased $145 million 12.1

percent in 2013 compared with 2012 The increase in

noninterest expense was primarily due to higher

compensation and employee benefits expense and an

increase in net shared services costs including the impact

of business expansion

Payment Services Payment Services includes consumer

and business credit cards stored-value cards debit cards

corporate and purchasing card services consumer lines of

credit and merchant processing Payment Services

contributed $1.2 billion of the Companys net income in

2013 or decrease of $84 million 6.6 percent compared

with 2012 The decrease was primarily due to higher

noninterest expense and provision for credit losses partially

offset by higher net revenue

Net revenue increased $46 million 1.0 percent in 2013

compared with 2012 Net interest income on taxable-

equivalent basis increased $36 million 2.3 percent in 2013

compared with 2012 driven by higher average loan

balances improved loan rates and lower rebate costs on the

Companys government card program Noninterest income

increased $10 million .3 percent in 2013 compared with

2012 reflecting higher credit and debit card revenue on

higher volumes including the impact of business expansion

and higher merchant processing services revenue due to

higher volumes and an increase in fee-based product

revenue partially offset by the impact of gain on credit

card portfolio sale in 2012 and lower corporate payment

products revenue due to reduction in government-related

transactions

Noninterest expense increased $106 million 5.3

percent in 2013 compared with 2012 primarily due to

higher total compensation and employee benefits expense

and higher net shared services expense including the

impact of business expansion partially offset by reduction

in other intangibles expense The provision for credit losses

increased $72 million 10.3 percent in 2013 compared with

2012 principally due to lower reserve releases partially

offset by lower net charge-offs As percentage of average

loans outstanding net charge-offs were 3.29 percent in

2013 compared with 3.44 percent in 2012

Treasury and Corporate Support Treasury and

Corporate Support includes the Companys investment

portfolios most covered commercial and commercial real

estate loans and related other real estate owned funding

capital management interest rate risk management the net

effect of transfer pricing related to average balances income

taxes not allocated to the business lines including most

investments in tax-advantaged projects and the residual

aggregate of those expenses associated with corporate

activities that are managed on consolidated basis

Treasury and Corporate Support recorded net income of

$1.9 billion in 2013 compared with $1.5 billion in 2012

Net revenue increased $155 million 6.4 percent in

2013 compared with 2012 Net interest income on

taxable-equivalent basis increased $21 million .9 percent

in 2013 compared with 2012 reflecting lower funding costs

partially offset by lower rates on loans and investment

securities Noninterest income increased $134 million 65.7

percent in 2013 compared with 2012 primarily due to

higher commercial products revenue and favorable

change in net securities gains losses as the Company

recognized impairments on number of securities during the

second quarter of 2012

Noninterest expense decreased $158 million 15.7

percent in 2013 compared with 2012 primarily reflecting

lower net shared services expense reductions in litigation

and insurance-related costs and the 2012 accrual for the

Companys portion of an indemnification obligation

associated with Visa Inc These decreases were partially

offset by increases in total compensation and employee

benefits expense and higher costs related to investments in

tax-advantaged projects

Income taxes are assessed to each line of business at

managerial tax rate of 36.4 percent with the residual tax
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expense or benefit to arrive at the consolidated effective tax These measures are viewed by management as useful

rate included in Treasury and Corporate Support additional methods of reflecting the level of capital available to

withstand unexpected market or economic conditions

Non-GAAP Financial Measures
Additionally presentation of these measures allows investors

In addition to capital ratios defined by banking regulators analysts and banking regulators to assess the Companys

under the FDIC Improvement Act prompt corrective action capital position relative to other financial services companies

provisions that are currently effective the Company These measures differ from the currently effective capital

considers various other measures when evaluating capital
ratios defined by banking regulations principally in that the

utilization and adequacy including
numerator excludes trust preferred securities and preferred

stock the nature and extent of which varies among different

Tangible common equity to tangible assets
financial services companies These measures are not defined

Tangible common equity to risk-weighted assets using in generally accepted accounting principles GAAP or are

Basel definition not currently effective or defined in federal banking

regulations As result these measures disclosed by the
Tier common equity to risk-weighted assets using Basel

Company may be considered non-GAAP financial measures
definition

There may be limits in the usefulness of these measures

Common equity tier to risk-weighted assets estimated to investors As result the Company encourages readers

using final rules for the Basel III standardized approach to consider the consolidated financial statements and other

and for additional information financial information contained in this report in their entirety

and not to rely on any single financial measure
Common equity tier to risk-weighted assets approximated

using proposed rules for the Basel Ill standardized

approach released prior to and during June2012

U.S BANCORP 65



The following table shows the Companys calculation of these Non-GAAP financial measures

At December31 lDollars in Millions
__________________________

Total equity

Preferred stock

Noncontrolling interests

Goodwill net of deferred tax liability

Intangible assets other than mortgage servicing rights

Tangible common equity

Tier capital determined in accordance with prescribed regulatory requirements

using Basel definition

Trust preferred securities

Preferred stock

Noncontrolling interests less preferred stock not eligible for Tier capital

Tier common equity using Basel definition

Tangible common equity as calculated above

Adjustments

Ccmmon equity tier estimated using final rules for the Basel III standardized

approach

Tangible common equity as calculated above

Adjustments

Common equity tier approximated using proposed rules for the Basel Ill

standardized approach released June 2012

Tangible common equity as calculated above

Adjustments

Common equity tier approximated using proposed rules for the Basel Ill

standardized approach released prior to June 2012

Total assets

Goodwill net of deferred tax liability

Intangible assets other than mortgage servicing rights

Tangible assets

Risk-weighted assets determined in accordance with prescribed regulatory

requirements using Basel definition

Risk-weighted assets determined in accordance with prescribed regulatory

requirements using Basel definition

Adjustments

Risk-weighted assets estimated using final rules for the Basel Ill standardized

approach

Risk-weighted assets determined in accordance with prescribed regulatory

requirements using Basel definition

Adjustments 45
Risk-weighted assets approximated using proposed rules for the Basel Ill

standardized approach released June 2012

Risk-weighted assets approximated using proposed rules for the Basel Ill

standardized approach released prior to June 2012

Rahos

Tangible common equity to tangible assets a/f
Tancible common equity to risk-weighted assets using Basel definition aIg
Tier common equity to risk-weighted assets using Basel definition b/g
Common equity tier to risk-weighted assets estimated using final rules for the

Basel Ill standardized approach cIh
Common equity tier to risk-weighted assets approximated using proposed rules for

the Basel Ill standardized approach released June 2012 dl/
Common equity tier to risk-weighted assets approximated using proposed rules for

the Basel Ill standardized approach released prior to June 2012 e/j

2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

41807 40267 34971 30322 26661

4756 4769 2606 1930 1500

694 1269 993 803 698

8343 8351 8239 8337 8482
849 1006 1217 1376 1657

27165 24872 21916 17876 14324

33386 31203 29173 25947 22610

2675 3949 4524
4756 4769 2606 1930 1500

688 685 687 692 692

27942 25749 23205 19376 15894

27165

224

27389

24872

126

24998

21916 17876

450 381

22366 18257

364021 353855 340122 307786 281176

8343 8351 8239 8337 8482
849 1006 1217 1376 1657

354829 344498 330666 298073 271037

Includes net losses on cash flow hedges included in accumulated other comprehensive income and unrealized losses on securities transferred

from available-for-sale to held-to-maturity included in accumula ted other comprehensive income

Includes disallowed mortgage servicing rights

Principally net losses on cash flow hedges included in accumulated other comprehensive income

Includes higher risk-weighting for unfunded loan commitments investment securities and mortgage servicing nghts and other adjustments

Includes higher risk-weighting for residential mortgages

297919 287611 271333 247619 235233

297919

13712

311631

287611

21233

308844

274351 251704

7.7% 7.2% 6.6% 6.0% 5.3%

9.1 8.6 8.1 7.2 6.1

9.4 9.0 8.6 7.8 6.8

8.8

8.1

8.2 7.3
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Accounting Changes

To the extent the adoption of new accounting standards

materially affects the Companys financial condition or results

of operations the impacts are discussed in the applicable

sections of the Managements Discussion and Analysis and

the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Critical Accounting Policies

The accounting and reporting policies of the Company

comply with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States and conform to general practices within the

banking industry The preparation of financial statements in

conformity with GAAP requires management to make

estimates and assumptions The Companys financial

position and results of operations can be affected by these

estimates and assumptions which are integral to

understanding the Companys financial statements Critical

accounting policies are those policies management believes

are the most important to the portrayal of the Companys

financial condition and results and require management to

make estimates that are difficult subjective or complex Most

accounting policies are not considered by management to

be critical accounting policies Several factors are

considered in determining whether or not policy is critical

in the preparation of financial statements These factors

include among other things whether the estimates are

significant to the financial statements the nature of the

estimates the ability to readily validate the estimates with

other information including third-parties sources or available

prices and sensitivity of the estimates to changes in

economic conditions and whether alternative accounting

methods may be utilized under GAAP Management has

discussed the development and the selection of critical

accounting policies with the Companys Audit Committee

Significant accounting policies are discussed in Note

of the Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Those

policies considered to be critical accounting policies are

described below

Allowance for Credit Losses The allowance for credit

losses is established to provide for probable losses incurred

in the Companys credit portfolio The methods utilized to

estimate the allowance for credit losses key assumptions

and quantitative and qualitative information considered by

management in determining the appropriate allowance for

credit losses are discussed in the Credit Risk Management

section

Managements evaluation of the appropriate allowance

for credit losses is often the most critical of all the accounting

estimates for banking institution It is an inherently

subjective process impacted by many factors as discussed

throughout the Managements Discussion and Analysis

section of the Annual Report Although risk management

practices methodologies and other tools are utilized to

determine each element of the allowance degrees of

imprecision exist in these measurement tools due in part to

subjective judgments involved and an inherent lagging of

credit quality measurements relative to the stage of the

business cycle Even determining the stage of the business

cycle is highly subjective As discussed in the Analysis and

Determination of Allowance for Credit Losses section

management considers the effect of imprecision and many

other factors in determining the allowance for credit losses If

not considered incurred losses in the portfolio related to

imprecision and other subjective factors could have

dramatic adverse impact on the liquidity and financial

viability of bank

Given the many subjective factors affecting the credit

portfolio changes in the allowance for credit losses may not

directly coincide with changes in the risk ratings of the credit

portfolio reflected in the risk rating process This is in part

due to the timing of the risk rating process in relation to

changes in the business cycle the exposure and mix of

loans within risk rating categories levels of nonperforming

loans and the timing of charge-offs and recoveries For

example the amount of loans within specific risk ratings may

change providing leading indicator of improving credit

quality while nonperforming loans and net charge-offs

continue at elevated levels Also inherent loss ratios

determined through migration analysis and historical loss

performance over the estimated business cycle of loan

may not change to the same degree as net charge-offs

Because risk ratings and inherent loss ratios primarily drive

the allowance specifically allocated to commercial lending

segment loans the amount of the allowance might decline

however the degree of change differs somewhat from the

level of changes in nonperforming loans and net charge-offs

Also management would maintain an appropriate allowance

for credit losses by increasing the allowance during periods

of economic uncertainty or changes in the business cycle

Some factors considered in determining the appropriate

allowance for credit losses are quantifiable while other

factors require qualitative judgment Management conducts

an analysis with respect to the accuracy of risk ratings and

the
volatility

of inherent losses and utilizes this analysis

along with qualitative factors including uncertainty in the

economy from changes in unemployment rates the level of

bankruptcies and concentration risks including risks

associated with the housing market and highly leveraged

enterprise-value credits in determining the overall level of

the allowance for credit losses The Companys

determination of the allowance for commercial lending

segment loans is sensitive to the assigned credit risk ratings

and inherent loss rates at December 31 2013 In the event
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that 10 percent of period ending loan balances including

unfunded commitments within each risk category of this

segment of the loan portfolio experienced downgrades of

two risk categories the allowance for credit losses would

increase by approximately $220 million at December 31

2013 The Company believes the allowance for credit losses

appropriately considers the imprecision in estimating credit

losses based on credit risk ratings and inherent loss rates

but actual losses may differ from those estimates In the

eveni that inherent loss or estimated loss rates for

commercial lending segment loans increased by 10 percent

the lowance for credit losses would increase by

approximately $138 million at December31 2013 The

Companys determination of the allowance for consumer

lending segment loans is sensitive to changes in estimated

loss rates and estimated impairments on restructured loans

In the event that estimated losses for this segment of the loan

portfolio increased by 10 percent the allowance for credit

losses would increase by approximately $21 million at

December 31 2013 Because several quantitative and

qualilative factors are considered in determining the

allowance for credit losses these sensitivity analyses do not

necessarily reflect the nature and extent of future changes in

the lowance for credit losses They are intended to provide

insights into the impact of adverse changes in risk rating and

inherent losses and do not imply any expectation of future

deterioration in the risk rating or loss rates Given current

processes employed by the Company management

belieies the risk ratings and inherent loss rates currently

assigned are appropriate It is possible that others given the

same information may at any point in time reach different

reasonable conclusions that could be significant to the

Companys financial statements Refer to the Analysis and

Determination of the Allowance for Credit Losses section for

further information

Fair Value Estimates portion of the Companys assets

and liabilities are carried at fair value on the Consolidated

Balance Sheet with changes in fair value recorded either

through earnings or other comprehensive income loss in

accordance with applicable accounting principles generally

accepted in the United States These include all of the

Companys available-for-sale securities derivatives and

other trading instruments MSR5 and mortgage loans held for

sale The estimation of fair value also affects other loans held

for sale which are recorded at the lower-of-cost-or-fair value

The determination of fair value is important for certain other

assets that are periodically evaluated for impairment using

fair value estimates including goodwill and other intangible

assets impaired loans other real estate owned and other

repossessed assets

lair value is generally defined as the exit price at which

an asset or liability could be exchanged in current

transaction between willing unrelated parties other than in

forced or liquidation sale Fair value is based on quoted

market prices in an active market or if market prices are not

available is estimated using models employing techniques

such as matrix pricing or discounting expected cash flows

The significant assumptions used in the models which

include assumptions for interest rates discount rates

prepayments and credit losses are independently verified

against observable market data where possible Where

observable market data is not available the estimate of fair

value becomes more subjective and involves high degree

of judgment In this circumstance fair value is estimated

based on managements judgment regarding the value that

market participants would assign to the asset or liability This

valuation process takes into consideration factors such as

market illiquidity Imprecision in estimating these factors can

impact the amount recorded on the balance sheet for

particular asset or liability with related impacts to earnings or

other comprehensive income loss

When available trading and available-for-sale securities

are valued based on quoted market prices However certain

securities are traded less actively and therefore quoted

market prices may not be available The determination of fair

value may require benchmarking to similar instruments or

performing discounted cash flow analysis using estimates

of future cash flows and prepayment interest and default

rates An example is non-agency residential mortgage-

backed securities For more information on investment

securities refer to Note of the Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements

As few derivative contracts are listed on an exchange

the majority of the Companys derivative positions are valued

using valuation techniques that use readily observable

market inputs Certain derivatives however must be valued

using techniques that include unobservable inputs For these

instruments the significant assumptions must be estimated

and therefore are subject to judgment Note 19 of the Notes

to Consolidated Financial Statements provides summary of

the Companys derivative positions

Refer to Note 21 of the Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements for additional information regarding estimations

of fair value

Purchased Loans and Related Indemnification

Assets In accordance with applicable authoritative

accounting guidance effective for the Company beginning

January 2009 all purchased loans and related

indemnification assets arising from loss-sharing

arrangements with the FDIC are recorded at fair value at

date of purchase The initial valuation of these loans and the

related indemnification assets requires management to make

subjective judgments concerning estimates about how the

acquired loans will perform in the future using valuation
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methods including discounted cash flow analysis and

independent third party appraisals Factors that may

significantly affect the initial valuation include among others

market-based and industry data related to expected

changes in interest rates assumptions related to probability

and severity of credit losses estimated timing of credit

losses including the foreclosure and liquidation of collateral

expected prepayment rates required or anticipated loan

modifications unfunded loan commitments the specific

terms and provisions of any loss sharing agreements and

specific industry and market conditions that may impact

discount rates and independent third party appraisals

On an ongoing basis the accounting for purchased

loans and related indemnification assets follows applicable

authoritative accounting guidance for purchased non-

impaired loans and purchased impaired loans Refer to

Note and Note of the Notes to Consolidated Financial

Statements for additional information In addition refer to the

Analysis and Determination of the Allowance for Credit

Losses section for information on the determination of the

required allowance for credit losses if any for these loans

Mortgage Servicing Rights MSRs are capitalized as

separate assets when loans are sold and servicing is

retained or may be purchased from others MSRs are initially

recorded at fair value and re-measured at each subsequent

reporting date Because MSR5 do not trade in an active

market with readily observable prices the Company

determines the fair value by estimating the present value of

the assets future cash flows utilizing market-based

prepayment rates discount rates and other assumptions

validated through comparison to trade information industry

surveys and independent third party valuations Changes in

the fair value of MSRs are recorded in earnings during the

period in which they occur Risks inherent in the MSRs

valuation include higher than expected prepayment rates

and/or delayed receipt of cash flows The Company may

utilize derivatives including interest rate swaps forward

commitments to buy IBA5 and futures and options

contracts to mitigate the valuation risk

Goodwill and Other Intangibles The Company records

all assets and liabilities acquired in purchase acquisitions

including goodwill and other intangibles at fair value

Goodwill is not amortized but is subject at minimum to

annual tests for impairment In certain situations interim

impairment tests may be required if events occur or

circumstances change that would more likely than not

reduce the fair value of reporting unit below its carrying

amount Other intangible assets are amortized over their

estimated useful lives using straight-line and accelerated

methods and are subject to impairment if events or

circumstances indicate possible inability to realize the

carrying amount

The initial recognition of goodwill and other intangible

assets and subsequent impairment analysis require

management to make subjective judgments concerning

estimates of how the acquired assets will perform in the

future using valuation methods including discounted cash

flow analysis Additionally estimated cash flows may extend

beyond ten years and by their nature are difficult to

determine over an extended timeframe Events and factors

that may significantly affect the estimates include among

others competitive forces customer behaviors and attrition

changes in revenue growth trends cost structures

technology changes in discount rates and specific industry

and market conditions In determining the reasonableness of

cash flow estimates the Company reviews historical

performance of the underlying assets or similar assets in an

effort to assess and validate assumptions utilized in its

estimates

In assessing the fair value of reporting units the

Company considers the stage of the current business cycle

and potential changes in market conditions in estimating the

timing and extent of future cash flows Also management

often utilizes other information to validate the reasonableness

of its valuations including public market comparables and

multiples of recent mergers and acquisitions of similar

businesses Valuation multiples may be based on revenue

price-to-earnings and tangible capital ratios of comparable

public companies and business segments These multiples

may be adjusted to consider competitive differences

including size operating leverage and other factors The

carrying amount of reporting unit is determined based on

the amount of equity required for the reporting units

activities considering the specific assets and liabilities of the

reporting unit The Company determines the amount of

equity for each reporting unit on risk-adjusted basis

considering economic and regulatory capital requirements

and includes deductions and limitations related to certain

types of assets including MSRs purchased credit card

relationship intangibles and capital markets activity in the

Companys Wholesale Banking and Commercial Real Estate

segment The Company does not assign corporate assets

and liabilities to reporting units that do not relate to the

operations of the reporting unit or are not considered in

determining the fair value of the reporting unit These assets

and liabilities primarily relate to the Companys investment

securities portfolio and other investments including direct

equity investments bank-owned life insurance and tax-

advantaged investments and corporate debt and other

funding liabilities In the most recent goodwill impairment

test the portion of the Companys total equity allocated to

the Treasury and Corporate Support operating segment

included approximately $4 billion in excess of the economic

and regulatory capital requirements of that segment
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The Companys annual assessment of potential goodwill

impairment was completed during the second quarter of

2013 Based on the results of this assessment no goodwill

mpairment was recognized The Company continues to

monitor goodwill and other intangible assets for impairment

indicators throughout the year

Income Taxes The Company estimates income tax

expense based on amounts expected to be owed to various

tax jurisdictions Currently the Company files tax returns in

approximately 279 federal state and local domestic

jurisdictions and 12 foreign jurisdictions The estimated

income tax expense is reported in the Consolidated

Statement of Income Accrued taxes represent the net

estimated amount due to or to be received from taxing

jurisdictions either currently or in the future and are reported

in other assets or other liabilities on the Consolidated

Balance Sheet In estimating accrued taxes the Company

assesses the relative merits and risks of the appropriate tax

treatment considering statutory judicial and regulatory

guidance in the context of the tax position Because of the

complexity of tax laws and regulations interpretation can be

difficult and subject to legal judgment given specific facts

and circumstances It is possible that others given the same

information may at any point in time reach different

reasonable conclusions regarding the estimated amounts of

accrLled taxes

Changes in the estimate of accrued taxes occur

periodically due to changes in tax rates interpretations of tax

laws the status of examinations being conducted by various

taxing authorities and newly enacted statutory judicial and

regulatory guidance that impacts the relative merits and risks

of tax positions These changes when they occur affect

accrued taxes and can be significant to the operating results

of the Company Refer to Note 18 of the Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements for additional information

regarding income taxes

Controls and Procedures

Under the supervision and with the participation of the

Companys management including its principal executive

officer and principal financial officer the Company has

evaluated the effectiveness of the design and operation of its

disclosure controls and procedures as defined in

Rules 13a-15e and 15d-15e under the Securities

Exchange Act of 1934 the Exchange Act Based upon

this evaluation the principal executive officer and principal

financial officer have concluded that as of the end of the

period covered by this report the Companys disclosure

controls and procedures were effective

During the most recently completed fiscal quarter there

was no change made in the Companys internal controls

over financial reporting as defined in Rules 13a-15f and

15d-15f under the Exchange Act that has materially

affected or is reasonably likely to materially affect the

Companys internal control over financial reporting

The annual report of the Companys management on

internal control over financial reporting is provided on

page 71 The attestation report of Ernst Young LLP the

Companys independent accountants regarding the

Companys internal control over financial reporting is

provided on page 73
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Report of Management

Responsibility for the financial statements and other information presented throughout this Annual Report rests with the

management of U.S Bancorp The Company believes the consolidated financial statements have been prepared in conformity

with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States and present the substance of transactions based on the

circumstances and managements best estimates and judgment

In meeting its responsibilities for the reliability of the financial statements management is responsible for establishing and

maintaining an adequate system of internal control over financial reporting as defined by Rules 13a-15f and 15d-15f under

the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 The Companys system of internal control is designed to provide reasonable assurance

regarding the reliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of publicly filed financial statements in accordance with

accounting principles generally accepted in the United States

To test compliance the Company carries out an extensive audit program This program includes review for compliance with

written policies and procedures and comprehensive review of the adequacy and effectiveness of the system of internal

control Although control procedures are designed and tested it must be recognized that there are limits inherent in all

systems of internal control and therefore errors and irregularities may nevertheless occur Also estimates and judgments are

required to assess and balance the relative cost and expected benefits of the controls Projection of any evaluation of

effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions

or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

The Board of Directors of the Company has an Audit Committee composed of directors who are independent of U.S Bancorp

The Audit Committee meets periodically with management the internal auditors and the independent accountants to consider

audit results and to discuss internal accounting control auditing and financial reporting matters

Management assessed the effectiveness of the Companys system of internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2013 In making this assessment management used the criteria set forth by the Committee of Sponsoring

Organizations of the Treadway Commission in its Internal Control-Integrated Framework Based on our assessment and those

criteria management believes the Company designed and maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2013

The Companys independent accountants Ernst Young LLP have been engaged to render an independent professional

opinion on the financial statements and issue an attestation report on the Companys internal control over financial reporting

Their opinion on the financial statements appearing on page 72 and their attestation on internal control over financial reporting

appearing on page 73 are based on procedures conducted in accordance with auditing standards of the Public Company

Accounting Oversight Board United States

U.S BANCORP 71



Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firmon

the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of U.S Bancorp

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of U.S Bancorp as of December 31 2013 and 2012 and

the related consolidated statements of income comprehensive income shareholders equity and cash flows for each of the

three years in the period ended December 31 2013 These financial statements are the responsibility of U.S Bancorps

management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United

States Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the

financial statements are free of material misstatement An audit includes examining on test basis evidence supporting the

amounts and disclosures in the financial statements An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and

significant estimates made by management as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation We believe that

our audits provide reasonable basis for our opinion

In or opinion the financial statements referred to above present fairly in all material respects the consolidated financial

position of U.S Bancorp at December 31 2013 and 2012 and the consolidated results of its operations and its cash flows for

each of the three years in the period ended December31 2013 in conformity with U.S generally accepted accounting

principles

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

U.S Bancorps internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2013 based on criteria established in Internal

Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission

1992 framework and our report dated February 21 2014 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

44t4

Minneapolis Minnesota

February 21 2014
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

on InternalControl Over Financial Reporting

The Board of Directors and Shareholders of U.S Bancorp

We have audited U.S Bancorps internal control over financial reporting as of December 31 2013 based on criteria

established in Internal Control Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway

Commission 1992 framework the COSO criteria U.S Bancorps management is responsible for maintaining effective

internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting

included in the accompanying Report of Management Our responsibility is to express an opinion on U.S Bancorps internal

control over financial reporting based on our audit

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal

control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects Our audit included obtaining an understanding of

internal control over financial reporting assessing the risk that material weakness exists testing and evaluating the design

and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk and performing such other procedures as we

considered necessary in the circumstances We believe that our audit provides reasonable basis for our opinion

companys internal control over financial reporting is process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the

reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles companys internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures

that pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and

dispositions of the assets of the company provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to

permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles and that receipts and

expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the

company and provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition use or

disposition of the companys assets that could have material effect on the financial statements

Because of its inherent limitations internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements Also

projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate

because of changes in conditions or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate

In our opinion U.S Bancorp maintained in all material respects effective internal control over financial reporting as of

December 31 2013 based on the COSO criteria

We also have audited in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board United States

the consolidated balance sheets of U.S Bancorp as of December 31 2013 and 2012 and the related consolidated statements

of income comprehensive income shareholders equity and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended

December 31 2013 and our report dated February 21 2014 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon

Minneapolis Minnesota

February 21 2014
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US Bancorp
Consolidated Balance Sheet

70033 66223

39885 36953

51156 44018

18021 17115

47678 47712

226773 212021

8462 11308

235235 223329

4250 4424

230985 218905

2606 2670

9205 9143

3529 2706

26096 29675

$364021 $353855

322214

4756 4769

21 21

8216 8201

38667 34720

9476 7790

1071 923

41113 38998

694 1269

41807 40267

At December31 Dollars in Millions
2013 2012

8477 8252

38920

40935

3268

34389

40139

7976

Assets

Cash and due from banks

Investment securities

Held-to-maturity fair value $38368 and $34952 respectively including $994 and $1482 at fair value

pledged as collateral respectively

Available-for-sale $1106 and $2042 pledged as collateral respectively

Loans held for sale including $3263 and $7957 of mortgage loans carried at fair value respectively

Loans

Commercial

Commercial real estate

Residential mortgages

Credit card

Other retail

Total loans excluding covered loans

Covered loans

Total loans

Less allowance for loan losses

Net loans

Premises and equipment

Goodwill

Other intangible assets

Other assets including $111 and $47 of trading securities at fair value pledged as collateral respectively

Total assets

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

Deposits

Noninterest-bearing

Interest-bearing

Time deposits greater than $100000

Total deposits

Short-term borrowings

Long-term debt

Other liabilities

Total liabilities

Shareholders equity

Preferred stock

Common stock par value $0.01 share authorized 4000000000 shares issued 2013 and

20122125725742 shares

Capital surplus

Retained earnings

Less cost of common stock in treasury 2013300977274 shares 2012256294227 shares

Accumulated other comprehensive income loss

Total U.S Bancorp shareholders equity

Noncontrolling interests

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

76941

156165

29017

262123

27608

20049

12434

74172

145972

29039

249183

26302

25516

12587

313588

Includes only collateral pledged by the Company where count erpa rties have the right to self or pledge the collateral

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

$364021 $353855
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US Bancorp
Consolidated Statement of Income

Year Ended December31 Dollars and Shares in Millions Except Per Share Data 2013 2012 2011

Interest Income

Loans $10277 $10558 $10370

Loans held for sale 203 282 200

Investment securities 1631 1792 1820

Other interest income 174 251 249

Total interest income 12285 12883 12639

Interest Expense
Deposits 561 691 840

Short-term borrowings 353 442 531

Long-term debt 767 1005 1145

Total interest expense 1681 2138 2516

Net interest income 10604 10745 10123

Provision for credit losses 1340 1882 2343

Net interest income after provision for credit losses 9264 8863 7780

Noninterest Income
Credit and debit card revenue 965 892 1073

Corporate payment products revenue 706 744 734

Merchant processing services 1458 1395 1355

ATM Drocessing services 327 346 452

Trust and investment management fees 1139 1055 1000

Deposit service charges 670 653 659

Treasury management fees 538 541 551

Commercial products revenue 859 878 841

Mortgage banking revenue 1356 1937 986

Investment products fees 178 150 129

Securities gains losses net

Realized gains losses net 23 59

Total other-than-temporary impairment 62 60
Portion of other-than-temporary impairment recognized in other comprehensive income 12 25

Total securities gains losses net 15 31
Other 569 743 1011

Total noninterest income 8774 9319 8760

Noninterest Expense
Compensation 4371 4320 4041

Employee benefits 1140 945 845

Net occupancy and equipment 949 917 999

Professional services 381 530 383

Marketing and business development 357 388 369

Technology and communications 848 821 758

Postage printing and supplies 310 304 303

Other intangibles 223 274 299

Other 1695 1957 1914

Total noninterest expense 10274 10456 9911

Income before income taxes 7764 7726 6629

Applicable income taxes 2032 2236 1841

Net income 5732 5490 4788

Net income loss attributable to noncontrolling interests 104 157 84

Net income attributable to U.S Bancorp 5836 5647 4872

Net ircome applicable to U.S Bancorp common shareholders 5552 5383 4721

Earnings per common share 3.02 2.85 2.47

Diluted earnings per common share 3.00 2.84 2.46

Dividends declared per common share .885 .780 .500

AversLge common shares outstanding 1839 1887 1914

Average diluted common shares outstanding 1849 1896 1923

See Notes to Consolidated F7nancial Statements
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US Bancorp
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income

Year Ended December31 Dollars in Millions

Net income

Other Comprehensive Income Loss
Changes in unrealized gains and losses on securities available-for-sale

Other-than-temporary impairment not recognized in earnings on securities available-for-sale

Changes in unrealized gains and losses on derivative hedges

Foreign currency translation

Changes in unrealized gains and losses on retirement plans

Reclassification to earnings of realized gains and losses

Income taxes related to other comprehensive income

Total other comprehensive income loss

Comprehensive income

Comprehensive income loss attributable to noncontrolling interests

101

2013 2012 2011

148 277 269

5584 5767 5057

104 157 84

Comprehensive income attributable to U.S Bancorp 5688 $5924 $5141

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

$5490 $47885732

1223 715

12

37 74
34 14

590 543
373 325

172

920

25
343

16
464
363

166
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US Bancorp
Consolidated Statement of Shareholders Equity

U.S Bancorp Shareholders

Accumulated Total

Common Other U.S Bancorp

Shares Preferred Common Capital Retained Treasury Comprehensive Shareholders Noncontrolling Total

Dollais and Shares in Millions Outstanding Stock Stock Surplus Earnings Stock Income Loss Equity Interests Equity

Balance December 31 2010 1921 $1930 $21 $8294 $27005 $6262 $1469 $29519 803 $30322

Change in accounting principle

Net income loss 4872 4872 84 4788

Other comprehensive income loss 269 269 269

Preferred stock dividends 129 129 129

Common stock dividends 961 961 961

Issuance of preferred stock 676 676 676

Issuance of common and treasury

stock 11 147 340 193 193

Purchase of treasury stock 22 550 550 550

Distr butions to noncontrolling

interests 80 80

Purcnase of noncontrolling interests 11

Net other changes in noncontrolling

interests
362 362

Stock option and restricted stock

grants
94

Balance December 31 2011 ... 1910 $2606 $21 $8238 $30785 $6472 $1200 $33978 993 $34971

Net income loss 5647 5647 157 5490

Other comprehensive income loss 277 277 277

Preferred stock dividends 238 238 238

Common stock dividends 1474 1474 1474

Issuance of preferred stock 2163 2163 2163

Issuance of common and treasury

stock 18 119 560 441 441

Purchase of treasury stock 59 1878 1878 1878

Distributions to noncontrolling

inlerests
76 76

Net other changes in noncontrolling

inlerests
509 509

Stock option and restricted stock

grants
82 82 82

Balance December 31 2012... 1869 $4769 $21 $8201 $34720 $7790 923 $38998 $1269 $40267

Net income loss 5836 5836 104 5732

Other comprehensive income loss 148 148 148

Redemption of preferred stock 500 500 500

Preferred stock dividends 250 250 250

Conmon stock dividends 1631 1631 1631

Issuance of preferred stock 487 487 487

Issuance of common and treasury

stDck 21 100 650 550 550

Purchase of treasury stock 65 2336 2336 2336

Distributions to noncontrolling

interests
62 62

Net other changes in noncontrolling

interests
409 409

Stock option and restricted stock

grants
107 107 107

Balance December 31 2013 1825 $4756 $21 $8216 $38667 $9476 $1071 $41113 694 $41807

See Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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US Bancorp
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December31 Dollars in Millions 2013 2012 2011

Operating Activities

Net income attributable to U.S Bancorp 5836 5647 4872

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities

Provision for credit losses 1340 1882 2343

Depreciation and amortization of premises and equipment 297 287 266

Amortization of intangibles 223 274 299

Provision for deferred income taxes 69 49 748

Gain loss on sale of loans held for sale 1044 2889 860
Gain loss on sale of securities and other assets 74 242 25
Loans originated for sale in the secondary market net of repayments 56698 81219 46366
Proceeds from sales of loans held for sale 61681 82302 48094

Other net 46 1867 449

Net cash provided by operating activities 11446 7958 9820

Investing Activities

Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale investment securities 947 2060 1018

Proceeds from maturities of held-to-maturity investment securities 8587 6336 1404

Proceeds from maturities of available-for-sale investment securities 10147 15374 12713

Purchases of held-to-maturity investment securities 13218 10247 18500
Purchases of available-for-sale investment securities 13146 16605 13229
Net increase in loans outstanding 12331 15158 13418
Proceeds from sales of loans 819 1895 820

Purchases of loans 2468 2741 3078
Acquisitions net of cash acquired 58 94 636

Other net 303 1261 1070

Net cash used in investing activities 21024 20253 32704
Financing Activities

Net increase in deposits

Net increase decrease in short-term borrowings

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt

Principal payments or redemption of long-term debt

Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock

Proceeds from issuance of common stock

Redemption of preferred stock

Repurchase of common stock

Cash dividends paid on preferred stock

Cash dividends paid on common stock

Net cash provided by financing activities

Change in cash and due from banks

Cash and due from banks at beginning of period

Cash and due from banks at end of period

Supplemental Cash Flow Disclosures

Cash paid for income taxes 812 1469 495

Cash paid for interest 1759 2218 2563

Net noncash transfers to foreclosed property 323 564 702

Noncash transfer of investment securities available-for-sale to held-to-maturity 11705

Acquisitions

Assets sold acquired 126 194 1761

Liabilities sold assumed 24 260 2100

Net 102 66 339

See Notes to consolidated Rnancdl Statements
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Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

NOTE Significant Accounting Policies

U.S Etancorp is multi-state financial services holding

company headquartered in Minneapolis Minnesota

U.S Bancorp and its subsidiaries the Company provide

full range of financial services including lending and

depository services through banking offices principally in the

Midwest and West regions of the United States The

Company also engages in credit card merchant and ATM

processing mortgage banking insurance trust and

investment management brokerage and leasing activities

principally in domestic markets

Basis of Presentation The consolidated financial

statements include the accounts of the Company and its

subsidiaries and all variable interest entities VIEs for

which the Company has both the power to direct the

activilies of the VIE that most significantly impact the VIEs

economic performance and the obligation to absorb losses

or right to receive benefits of the VIE that could potentially be

significant to the VIE Consolidation eliminates all significant

intercompany accounts and transactions Certain items in

prior periods have been reclassified to conform to the

current presentation

Uses of Estimates The preparation of financial statements

in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles

requires management to make estimates and assumptions

that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements

and accompanying notes Actual experience could differ

from those estimates

Business Segments

Within the Company financial performance is measured by

major lines of business based on the products and services

provided to customers through its distribution channels The

Company has five reportable operating segments

Wholesale Banking and Commercial Real Estate

Wholesale Banking and Commercial Real Estate offers

lending equipment finance and small-ticket leasing

depository services treasury management capital markets

international trade services and other financial services to

midcle market large corporate commercial real estate

financial institution non-profit and public sector clients

Consumer and Small Business Banking Consumer and

Sma Business Banking delivers products and services

throLigh banking offices telephone servicing and sales on

line services direct mail ATM processing and mobile

devices such as mobile phones and tablet computers It

encompasses community banking metropolitan banking in-

store banking small business banking consumer lending

mortgage banking workplace banking student banking and

24-hour banking

Wealth Management and Securities Services Wealth

Management and Securities Services provides private

banking financial advisory services investment

management retail brokerage services insurance trust

custody and fund servicing through five businesses Wealth

Management Corporate Trust Services U.S Bancorp Asset

Management Institutional Trust Custody and

Fund Services

Payment Services Payment Services includes consumer

and business credit cards stored-value cards debit cards

corporate and purchasing card services consumer lines of

credit and merchant processing

Treasury and Corporate Support Treasury and

Corporate Support includes the Companys investment

portfolios most covered commercial and commercial real

estate loans and related other real estate owned OREO
funding capital management interest rate risk management

the net effect of transfer pricing related to average balances

income taxes not allocated to business lines including most

tax-advantaged investments and the residual aggregate of

those expenses associated with corporate activities that are

managed on consolidated basis

Segment Results Accounting policies for the lines of

business are the same as those used in preparation of the

consolidated financial statements with respect to activities

specifically attributable to each business line However the

preparation of business line results requires management to

allocate funding costs and benefits expenses and other

financial elements to each line of business For details of

these methodologies and segment results see Basis for

Financial Presentation and Table 24 Line of Business

Financial Performance included in Managements

Discussion and Analysis which is incorporated by reference

into these Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Securities

Realized gains or losses on securities are determined on

trade date basis based on the specific amortized cost of the

investments sold

Trading Securities Debt and equity securities held for

resale are classified as trading securities and are included in

other assets and reported at fair value Changes in fair value
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and realized gains or losses are reported in noninterest

income

Available-for-sale Securities These securities are not

trading securities but may be sold before maturity in

response to changes in the Companys interest rate risk

profile funding needs demand for collateralized deposits by

public entities or other reasons Available-for-sale securities

are carried at fair value with unrealized net gains or losses

reported within other comprehensive income loss in

shareholders equity Declines in fair value related to other-

than-temporary impairment if any are reported in

noninterest income

Held-to-maturity Securities Debt securities for which the

Company has the positive intent and ability to hold to

maturity are reported at historical cost adjusted for

amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts

Declines in fair value for credit-related other-than-temporary

impairment if any are reported in noninterest income

Securities Purchased Under Agreements to Resell

and Securities Sold Under Agreements to

Repurchase Securities purchased under agreements to

resell and securities sold under agreements to repurchase

are accounted for as collateralized financing transactions

and are recorded at the amounts at which the securities

were acquired or sold plus accrued interest The fair value

of collateral received is continually monitored and additional

collateral is obtained or requested to be returned to the

Company as deemed appropriate

Equity Investments in Operating Entities

Equity investments in public entities in which the Companys

ownership is less than 20 percent are accounted for as

available-for-sale securities and are carried at fair value

Similar investments in private entities are accounted for

using the cost method Investments in entities where the

Company has significant influence generally between

20 percent and 50 percent ownership but does not control

the entity are accounted for using the equity method

Investments in limited partnerships and limited
liability

companies where the Companys ownership interest is

greater than percent are accounted for using the equity

method All equity investments are evaluated for impairment

at least annually and more frequently if certain criteria are

met

Loans

The Company offers broad array of lending products and

categorizes its loan portfolio into three segments which is

the level at which it develops and documents systematic

methodology to determine the allowance for credit losses

The Companys three loan portfolio segments are

commercial lending consumer lending and covered loans

The Company further disaggregates its loan portfolio

segments into various classes based on their underlying risk

characteristics The two classes within the commercial

lending segment are commercial loans and commercial real

estate loans The three classes within the consumer lending

segment are residential mortgages credit card loans and

other retail loans The covered loan segment consists of only

one class

The Companys accounting methods for loans differ

depending on whether the loans are originated or

purchased and for purchased loans whether the loans were

acquired at discount related to evidence of credit

deterioration since date of origination

Originated Loans Held for Investment Loans the

Company originates as held for investment are reported at

the principal amount outstanding net of unearned income

net deferred loan fees or costs and any direct principal

charge-offs Interest income is accrued on the unpaid

principal balances as earned Loan and commitment fees

and certain direct loan origination costs are deferred and

recognized over the life of the loan and/or commitment

period as yield adjustments

Purchased Loans All purchased loans non-impaired and

impaired acquired after January 2009 are initially

measured at fair value as of the acquisition date in

accordance with applicable authoritative accounting

guidance Credit discounts are included in the determination

of fair value An allowance for credit losses is not recorded at

the acquisition date for loans purchased after January

2009 In accordance with applicable authoritative

accounting guidance purchased non-impaired loans

acquired in business combination prior to January 2009

were generally recorded at the predecessors carrying value

including an allowance for credit losses

In determining the acquisition date fair value of

purchased impaired loans and in subsequent accounting

the Company generally aggregates purchased consumer

loans and certain smaller balance commercial loans into

pools of loans with common risk characteristics while

accounting for larger balance commercial loans individually

Expected cash flows at the purchase date in excess of the

fair value of loans are recorded as interest income over the

life of the loans if the timing and amount of the future cash

flows is reasonably estimable Subsequent to the purchase

date increases in cash flows over those expected at the

purchase date are recognized as interest income

prospectively The present value of any decreases in

expected cash flows other than from decreases in variable

interest rates after the purchase date is recognized by

recording an allowance for credit losses Revolving loans
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including lines of credit and credit cards loans and leases

are excluded from purchased impaired loans accounting

For purchased loans acquired after January 2009 that

are not deemed impaired at acquisition credit discounts

representing the principal losses expected over the life of the

loan are component of the initial fair value Subsequent to

the purchase date the methods utilized to estimate the

required allowance for credit losses for these loans is similar

to originated loans however the Company records

provision for credit losses only when the required allowance

exceeds any remaining credit discounts The remaining

differences between the purchase price and the unpaid

principal balance at the date of acquisition are recorded in

interest income over the life of the loans

Covered Assets Loans covered under loss sharing or

similar credit protection agreements with the Federal Deposit

Insurance Corporation FDIC are reported in loans along

with the related indemnification asset Foreclosed real estate

covered under similar agreements is recorded in other

assets In accordance with applicable authoritative

accounting guidance effective for the Company beginning

January 2009 all purchased loans and related

indemnification assets are recorded at fair value at the date

of purchase

Effective January 2013 the Company adopted new

indemnification asset accounting guidance applicable to

FDIC loss-sharing agreements The guidance requires any

reduction in expected cash flows from the FDIC resulting

from increases in expected cash flows from the covered

assets when there are no previous valuation allowances to

reverse to be amortized over the shorter of the remaining

conlractual term of the indemnification agreements or the

remaining life of the covered assets Prior to adoption of this

guidance the Company considered such increases in

expected cash flows of purchased loans and decreases in

expected cash flows of the FDIC indemnification assets

together and recognized them over the remaining life of the

loans The adoption of this guidance did not materially affect

the Companys financial statements

Commitments to Extend Credit Unfunded commitments

for residential mortgage loans intended to be held for sale

are considered derivatives and recorded on the balance

sheet at fair value with changes in fair value recorded in

inccme All other unfunded loan commitments are not

considered derivatives and are not reported on the balance

sheet For loans purchased after January 2009 the fair

value of the unfunded credit commitments is considered in

the determination of the fair value of the loans recorded at

the date of acquisition Reserves for credit exposure on all

other unfunded credit commitments are recorded in other

liabilities

Allowance for Credit Losses The allowance for credit

losses reserves for probable and estimable losses incurred

in the Companys loan and lease portfolio including

unfunded credit commitments and includes certain amounts

that do not represent loss exposure to the Company

because those losses are recoverable under loss sharing

agreements with the FDIC The allowance for credit losses is

increased through provisions charged to operating earnings

and reduced by net charge-offs Management evaluates the

allowance each quarter to ensure it appropriately reserves

for incurred losses

The allowance recorded for loans in the commercial

lending segment is based on reviews of individual credit

relationships and considers the migration analysis of

commercial lending segment loans and actual loss

experience In the migration analysis applied to risk rated loan

portfolios the Company currently examines up to 13-year

period of loss experience For each loan type this historical

loss experience is adjusted as necessary to consider any

relevant changes in portfolio composition lending policies

underwriting standards risk management practices or

economic conditions The results of the analysis are evaluated

quarterly to confirm an appropriate historical time frame is

selected for each commercial loan type The allowance

recorded for impaired loans greater than $5 million in the

commercial lending segment is based on an individual loan

analysis utilizing expected cash flows discounted using the

original effective interest rate the observable market price of

the loan or the fair value of the collateral for collateral-

dependent loans rather than the migration analysis The

allowance recorded for all other commercial lending segment

loans is determined on homogenous pool basis and

includes consideration of product mix risk characteristics of

the portfolio bankruptcy experience portfolio growth and

historical losses adjusted for current trends The Company

also considers the impacts of any loan modifications made to

commercial lending segment loans and any subsequent

payment defaults to its expectations of cash flows principal

balance and current expectations about the borrowers ability

to pay in determining the allowance for credit losses

The allowance recorded for Troubled Debt Restructuring

TDR loans and purchased impaired loans in the

consumer lending segment is determined on homogenous

pool basis utilizing expected cash flows discounted using

the original effective interest rate of the pool or the prior

quarter effective rate respectively The allowance for

collateral-dependent loans in the consumer lending segment

is determined based on the fair value of the collateral less

costs to sell The allowance recorded for all other consumer

lending segment loans is determined on homogenous pool

basis and includes consideration of product mix risk

characteristics of the portfolio bankruptcy experience

82 U.S BANCORP



delinquency status refreshed loan-to-value ratios when

possible portfolio growth and historical losses adjusted for

current trends The Company also considers any

modifications made to consumer lending segment loans

including the impacts of any subsequent payment defaults

since modification in determining the allowance for credit

losses such as the borrowers ability to pay under the

restructured terms and the timing and amount of payments

The allowance for the covered loan segment is

evaluated each quarter in manner similar to that described

for non-covered loans and represents any decreases in

expected cash flows of those loans after the acquisition date

The provision for credit losses for covered loans considers

the indemnification provided by the FOIC

In addition subsequent payment defaults on loan

modifications considered TDRs are considered in the

underlying factors used in the determination of the

appropriateness of the allowance for credit losses For each

loan segment the Company estimates future loan charge

offs through variety of analysis trends and underlying

assumptions With respect to the commercial lending

segment TORs may be collectively evaluated for impairment

where observed performance history including defaults is

primary driver of the loss allocation For commercial TDRs

individually evaluated for impairment attributes of the

borrower are the primary factors in determining the

allowance for credit losses However incorporation of loss

history is factored into the allowance methodology applied to

this category of loans With respect to the consumer lending

segment performance of the portfolio including defaults on

TDRs is considered when estimating future cash flows

The Companys methodology for determining the

appropriate allowance for credit losses for all the loan

segments also considers the imprecision inherent in the

methodologies used As result in addition to the amounts

determined under the methodologies described above

management also considers the potential impact of other

qualitative factors which include but are not limited to

economic factors geographic and other concentration risks

delinquency and nonaccrual trends current business

conditions changes in lending policy underwriting

standards internal review and other relevant business

practices and the regulatory environment The consideration

of these items results in adjustments to allowance amounts

included in the Companys allowance for credit losses for

each of the above loan segments

The Company also assesses the credit risk associated

with off-balance sheet loan commitments letters of credit

and derivatives Credit risk associated with derivatives is

reflected in the fair values recorded for those positions The

liability for off-balance sheet credit exposure related to loan

commitments and other credit guarantees is included in

other liabilities Because business processes and credit risks

associated with unfunded credit commitments are essentially

the same as for loans the Company utilizes similar

processes to estimate its liability for unfunded credit

commitments

Credit Quality The quality of the Companys loan portfolios

is assessed as function of net credit losses levels of

nonperforming assets and delinquencies and credit quality

ratings as defined by the Company

For all loan classes loans are considered past due

based on the number of days delinquent except for monthly

amortizing loans which are classified delinquent based upon

the number of contractually required payments not made for

example two missed payments is considered 30 days

delinquent When loan is placed on nonaccrual status

unpaid accrued interest is reversed

Commercial lending segment loans are generally

placed on nonaccrual status when the collection of principal

and interest has become 90 days past due or is otherwise

considered doubtful Commercial lending segment loans are

generally fully or partially charged down to the fair value of

the collateral securing the loan less costs to sell when the

loan is considered uncollectible

Consumer lending segment loans are generally

charged-off at specific number of days or payments past

due Residential mortgages and other retail loans secured

by 1-4 family properties are generally charged down to the

fair value of the collateral securing the loan less costs to sell

at 180 days past due and placed on nonaccrual status in

instances where partial charge-off occurs unless the loan

is well secured and in the process of collection Loans and

lines in junior lien position secured by 1-4 family properties

are placed on nonaccrual status at 120 days past due or

when behind first lien that has become 180 days or greater

past due or placed on nonaccrual status Any secured

consumer lending segment loan whose borrower has had

debt discharged through bankruptcy for which the loan

amount exceeds the fair value of the collateral is charged

down to the fair value of the related collateral and the

remaining balance is placed on nonaccrual status Credit

card loans continue to accrue interest until the account is

charged off Credit cards are charged off at 180 days past

due Other retail loans not secured by 1-4 family properties

are charged-off at 120 days past due and revolving

consumer lines are charged off at 180 days past due Similar

to credit cards other retail loans are generally not placed on

nonaccrual status because of the relative short period of time

to charge-off Certain retail customers having financial

difficulties may have the terms of their credit card and other

loan agreements modified to require only principal payments

and as such are reported as nonaccrual
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For all loan classes interest payments received on

nonaccrual loans are generally recorded as reduction to

the loan carrying amount Interest payments are generally

recorded as reductions to loans carrying amount while

loan is on nonaccrual and are recognized as interest income

upon payoff of the loan Interest income may be recognized

for interest payments if the remaining carrying amount of the

loan is believed to be collectible In certain circumstances

loans in any class may be restored to accrual status such as

when loan has demonstrated sustained repayment

performance or no amounts are past due and prospects for

future payment are no longer in doubt or the loan becomes

well secured and is in the process of collection Loans where

there has been partial charge-off may be returned to

accrual status if all principal and interest including amounts

previously charged-off is expected to be collected and the

loan is current

Covered loans not considered to be purchased

impaired are evaluated for delinquency nonaccrual status

and charge-off consistent with the class of loan they would

be included in had the loss share coverage not been in

place Generally purchased impaired loans are considered

accruing loans However the timing and amount of future

cash flows for some loans is not reasonably estimable

Those loans are classified as nonaccrual loans and interest

income is not recognized until the timing and amount of the

future cash flows can be reasonably estimated

The Com5any classifies its loan portfolios using internal

credit quality ratings on quarterly basis These ratings

include pass special mention and classified and are an

important part of the Companys overall credit risk

management process and evaluation of the allowance for

credit losses Loans with pass rating represent those not

classified on the Companys rating scale for problem credits

as minimal credit risk has been identified Special mention

loans are those that have potential weakness deserving

managements close attention Classified loans are those

where well-defined weakness has been identified that may

put full collection of contractual cash flows at risk It is

possible that others given the same information may reach

different reasonable conclusions regarding the credit quality

rating classification of specific loans

Troubled Debt Restructurings In certain circumstances

the Company may modify the terms of loan to maximize the

collection of amounts due when borrower is experiencing

financial difficulties or is expected to experience difficulties

in the near-term Concessionary modifications are classified

as TDRs unless the modification results in only an

insignificant delay in payments to be received The

Company recognizes interest on TDRs if the borrower

complies with the revised terms and conditions as agreed

upon with the Company and has demonstrated repayment

performance at level commensurate with the modified

terms over several payment cycles To the extent previous

restructuring was insignificant the Company considers the

cumulative effect of past restructurings related to the

receivable when determining whether current restructuring

is TDR Loans classified as TDRs are considered impaired

loans for reporting and measurement purposes

The Company has implemented certain restructuring

programs that may result in TDRs However many of the

Companys TDRs are also determined on case-by-case

basis in connection with ongoing loan collection processes

For the commercial lending segment modifications

generally result in the Company working with borrowers on

case-by-case basis Commercial and commercial real estate

modifications generally include extensions of the maturity

date and may be accompanied by an increase or decrease

to the interest rate which may not be deemed market rate

of interest In addition the Company may work with the

borrower in identifying other changes that mitigate loss to the

Company which may include additional collateral or

guarantees to support the loan To lesser extent the

Company may waive contractual principal The Company

classifies these concessions as TDRs to the extent the

Company determines that the borrower is experiencing

financial difficulty

Modifications for the consumer lending segment are

generally part of programs the Company has initiated The

Company participates in the U.S Department of Treasury

Home Affordable Modification Program HAMP HAMP

gives qualifying homeowners an opportunity to permanently

modify residential mortgage loans and achieve more

affordable monthly payments with the U.S Department of

Treasury compensating the Company for portion of the

reduction in monthly amounts due from borrowers

participating in this program The Company also modifies

residential mortgage loans under Federal Housing

Administration Department of Veterans Affairs or its own

internal programs Under these programs the Company

provides concessions to qualifying borrowers experiencing

financial difficulties The concessions may include

adjustments to interest rates conversion of adjustable rates

to fixed rates extension of maturity dates or deferrals of

payments capitalization of accrued interest and/or

outstanding advances or in limited situations partial

forgiveness of loan principal In most instances participation

in residential mortgage loan restructuring programs requires

the customer to complete short-term trial period

permanent loan modification is contingent on the customer

successfully completing the trial period arrangement and the

loan documents are not modified until that time The

Company reports loans in trial period arrangement as

TDRs
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Credit card and other retail loan modifications are

generally part of two distinct restructuring programs The

Company offers workout programs providing customers

experiencing financial difficulty with modifications whereby

balances may be amortized up to 60 months and generally

include waiver of fees and reduced interest rates The

Company also provides modification programs to qualifying

customers experiencing temporary financial hardship in

which reductions are made to monthly required minimum

payments for up to 12 months Balances related to these

programs are generally frozen however accounts may be

reopened upon successful exit of the program in which

account privileges may be restored

In addition the Company considers secured loans to

consumer borrowers that have debt discharged through

bankruptcy where the borrower has not reaffirmed the debt

to be TDRs

Modifications to loans in the covered segment are

similar in nature to that described above for non-covered

loans and the evaluation and determination of TDR status is

similar except that acquired loans restructured after

acquisition are not considered TDRs for purposes of the

Companys accounting and disclosure if the loans

evidenced credit deterioration as of the acquisition date and

are accounted for in pools Losses associated with the

modification on covered loans including the economic

impact of interest rate reductions are generally eligible for

reimbursement under loss sharing agreements with the

FDIC

Impaired Loans For all loan classes loan is considered

to be impaired when based on current events or information

it is probable the Company will be unable to collect all

amounts due per the contractual terms of the loan

agreement Impaired loans include all nonaccrual and TDR

loans For all loan classes interest income on TDR loans is

recognized under the modified terms and conditions if the

borrower has demonstrated repayment performance at

level commensurate with the modified terms over several

payment cycles Interest income is generally not recognized

on other impaired loans until the loan is paid off However

interest income may be recognized for interest payments if

the remaining carrying amount of the loan is believed to be

collectible

Factors used by the Company in determining whether all

principal and interest payments due on commercial and

commercial real estate loans will be collected and therefore

whether those loans are impaired include but are not limited

to the financial condition of the borrower collateral and/or

guarantees on the loan and the borrowers estimated future

ability to pay based on industry geographic location and

certain financial ratios The evaluation of impairment on

residential mortgages credit card loans and other retail

loans is primarily driven by delinquency status of individual

loans or whether loan has been modified and considers

any government guarantee where applicable Individual

covered loans whose future losses are covered by loss

sharing agreements with the FDIC that substantially reduce

the risk of credit losses to the Company are evaluated for

impairment and accounted for in manner consistent with

the class of loan they would have been included in had the

loss sharing coverage not been in place

Leases The Companys lease portfolio includes both direct

financing and leveraged eases The net investment in direct

financing leases is the sum of all minimum lease payments

and estimated residual values less unearned income

Unearned income is recorded in interest income over the

terms of the leases to produce level yield

The investment in leveraged leases is the sum of all

lease payments less nonrecourse debt payments plus

estimated residual values less unearned income Income

from leveraged leases is recognized over the term of the

leases based on the unrecovered equity investment

Residual values on leased assets are reviewed regularly

for other-than-temporary impairment Residual valuations for

retail automobile leases are based on independent

assessments of expected used car sale prices at the end-of-

term Impairment tests are conducted based on these

valuations considering the probability of the lessee returning

the asset to the Company re-marketing efforts insurance

coverage and ancillary fees and costs Valuations for

commercial leases are based upon external or internal

management appraisals When there is impairment of the

Companys interest in the residual value of leased asset

the carrying value is reduced to the estimated fair value with

the writedown recognized in the current period

Other Real Estate OREO is included in other assets and

is property acquired through foreclosure or other

proceedings on defaulted loans OREO is initially recorded

at fair value less estimated selling costs OREO is evaluated

regularly and any decreases in value along with holding

costs such as taxes and insurance are reported in

noninterest expense

Loans Held for Sale

Loans held for sale LHFS represent mortgage loans

intended to be sold in the secondary market and other loans

that management has an active plan to sell LHFS are

carried at the lower-of-cost-or-fair value as determined on an

aggregate basis by type of loan with the exception of loans

for which the Company has elected fair value accounting

which are carried at fair value The credit component of any

writedowns upon the transfer of loans to LHFS is reflected in

loan charge-offs
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Where an election is made to carry the LHFS at fair

value any further decreases or subsequent increases in fair

value are recognized in noninterest income Where an

election is made to carry LHFS at lower-of-cost-or-fair value

any further decreases are recognized in noninterest income

and increases in fair value are not recognized until the loans

are sold Fair value elections are made at the time of

origination or purchase based on the Companys fair value

election policy The Company has elected fair value

accounting for substantially all its mortgage loans held for

sale

Derivative Financial Instruments

In the ordinary course of business the Company enters into

derivative transactions to manage various risks and to

accommodate the business requirements of its customers

Derivative instruments are reported in other assets or other

liabilities at fair value Changes in derivatives fair value are

recognized currently in earnings unless specific hedge

accounting criteria are met

All derivative instruments that qualify and are

desicinated for hedge accounting are recorded at fair value

and classified as either hedge of the fair value of

recognized asset or liability fair value hedge hedge of

forecasted transaction or the variability of cash flows to be

received or paid related to recognized asset or liability

cash flow hedge or hedge of the
volatility

of an

investment in foreign operations driven by changes in foreign

currency exchange rates net investment hedge Changes

in the fair value of derivative that is highly effective and

designated as fair value hedge and the offsetting changes

in the fair value of the hedged item are recorded in

earnings Changes in the fair value of derivative that is

highly effective and designated as cash flow hedge are

recorded in other comprehensive income loss until cash

flows of the hedged item are realized Any change in fair

value resulting from hedge ineffectiveness is immediately

recorded in noninterest income Changes in the fair value of

net investment hedges that are highly effective are recorded

in other comprehensive income loss The Company

performs an assessment at inception and at minimum

quarterly thereafter to determine the effectiveness of the

derivative in offsetting changes in the value or cash flows of

the hedged items

If derivative designated as cash flow hedge is

terminated or ceases to be highly effective the gain or loss

in other comprehensive income loss is amortized to

earnings over the period the forecasted hedged

transactions impact earnings If hedged forecasted

transaction is no longer probable hedge accounting is

ceased and any gain or loss included in other

comprehensive income loss is reported in earnings

immediately unless the forecasted transaction is at least

reasonably possible of occurring whereby the amounts

remain within other comprehensive income loss

Revenue Recognition

The Company recognizes revenue as it is earned based on

contractual terms as transactions occur or as services are

provided and collectability is reasonably assured In certain

circumstances noninterest income is reported net of

associated expenses that are directly related to variable

volume-based sales or revenue sharing arrangements or

when the Company acts on an agency basis for others

Certain specific policies include the following

Credit and Debit Card Revenue and Corporate

Payment Products Revenue Credit and debit card

revenue includes interchange income from consumer credit

and debit cards annual fees and other transaction and

account management fees Corporate payment products

revenue primarily includes interchange income from

corporate and purchasing card transactions processed

through card association networks and merchant discount

income from closed loop network transactions Interchange

income is fee paid by merchant bank to the card-issuing

bank through the interchange network Interchange fees are

set by the credit card associations and are based on

cardholder purchase volumes Merchant discount income is

fee paid by merchant to the Company through the closed

loop network Merchant discount fees are set by the

Company directly with the merchant The Company records

interchange and merchant discount income as transactions

occur Transaction and account management fees are

recognized as transactions occur or services are provided

except for annual fees which are recognized over the

applicable period Volume-related payments to partners and

credit card associations and expenses for rewards programs

are also recorded within credit and debit card revenue and

corporate payment products revenue Payments to partners

and expenses related to rewards programs are recorded

when earned by the partner or customer

Merchant Processing Services Merchant processing

services revenue consists principally of transaction and

account management fees charged to merchants for the

electronic processing of transactions net of interchange fees

paid to the card-issuing bank card association

assessments and revenue sharing amounts and is

recognized at the time the merchants transactions are

processed or other services are performed The Company

may enter into revenue sharing agreements with referral

partners or in connection with purchases of merchant

contracts from sellers The revenue sharing amounts are

determined primarily on sales volume processed or revenue
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generated for particular group of merchants Merchant

processing revenue also includes revenues related to point-

of-sale equipment recorded as sales when the equipment is

shipped or as earned for equipment rentals

Trust and Investment Management Fees Trust and

investment management fees are recognized over the period

in which services are performed and are based on

percentage of the fair value of the assets under management

or administration fixed based on account type or

transaction-based fees

Commercial Products Revenue Commercial products

revenue primarily includes revenue related to ancillary

services provided to Wholesale Banking and Commercial Real

Estate customers including standby letter of credit fees non-

yield related loan fees capital markets related revenue and

non-yield related leasing revenue These fees are recognized

as earned or as transactions occur and services are provided

Mortgage Banking Revenue Mortgage banking revenue

includes revenue derived from mortgages originated and

subsequently sold generally with servicing retained The

primary components include gains and losses on mortgage

sales servicing revenue including losses related to the

repurchase of previously sold loans changes in fair value for

mortgage loans originated with the intent to sell and

measured at fair value under the fair value option changes

in the fair value of mortgage servicing rights MSRs and

the impact of risk management activities associated with the

mortgage origination pipeline funded loans and MSRs Net

interest income from mortgage loans is recorded in interest

income Refer to Other Significant Policies in Note as well

as Note and Note 21 for further discussion of MSRs

Deposit Service Charges Service charges on deposit

accounts are primarily monthly fees based on minimum

balances or transaction-based fees These fees are

recognized as earned or as transactions occur and services

are provided

Other Significant Policies

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets Goodwill is

recorded on acquired businesses if the purchase price

exceeds the fair value of the net assets acquired Other

intangible assets are recorded at their fair value upon

completion of business acquisition or certain other

transactions and generally represent the value of customer

contracts or relationships Goodwill is not amortized but is

subject at minimum to annual tests for impairment at

reporting unit level In certain situations an interim impairment

test may be required if events occur or circumstances change

that would more likely
than not reduce the fair value of

reporting unit below its carrying amount Other intangible

assets are amortized over their estimated useful lives using

straight-line and accelerated methods and are subject to

impairment if events or circumstances indicate possible

inability to realize the carrying amount Determining the

amount of goodwill impairment if any includes assessing the

current implied fair value of the reporting unit as if it were

being acquired in business combination and comparing it to

the carrying amount of the reporting units goodwill

Determining the amount of other intangible asset impairment

if any includes assessing the present value of the estimated

future cash flows associated with the intangible asset and

comparing it to the carrying amount of the asset

Income Taxes Deferred taxes are recorded to reflect the

tax consequences on future years of differences between

the tax basis of assets and liabilities and their financial

reporting carrying amounts The Company uses the deferral

method of accounting on investments that generate

investment tax credits Under this method the investment tax

credits are recognized as reduction to the related asset In

January 2014 the Financial Accounting Standards Board

issued accounting guidance on the presentation of

investment costs for qualified affordable housing projects on

net basis with the related tax benefits in income tax

expense This will permit the Company to apply this

presentation to certain qualified affordable housing

investments for which the costs were previously presented in

other expense The Company will adopt this guidance

January 2014 and does not expect material impact to its

financial statements

Mortgage Servicing Rights MSRs are capitalized as

separate assets when loans are sold and servicing is retained

or if they are purchased from others MSRs are recorded at

fair value The Company determines the fair value by

estimating the present value of the assets future cash flows

utilizing market-based prepayment rates discount rates and

other assumptions validated through comparison to trade

information industry surveys and independent third party

valuations Changes in the fair value of MSRs are recorded in

earnings during the period in which they occur

Pensions For purposes of its pension plans the Company

utilizes its fiscal year-end as the measurement date At the

measurement date plan assets are determined based on

fair value generally representing observable market prices

or the net asset value provided by the plans administrator

The actuarial cost method used to compute the pension

liabilities and related expense is the projected unit credit

method The projected benefit obligation is principally

determined based on the present value of projected benefit

distributions at an assumed discount rate The discount rate

utilized is based on the investment yield of high quality

corporate bonds available in the marketplace with maturities

equal to projected cash flows of future benefit payments as

of the measurement date Periodic pension expense or
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incone includes service costs interest costs based on the

assumed discount rate the expected return on plan assets

based on an actuarially derived market-related value and

amortization of actuarial gains and losses Pension

accounting reflects the long-term nature of benefit

obliqations and the investment horizon of plan assets and

can have the effect of reducing earnings volatility related to

short-term changes in interest rates and market valuations

ActLarial gains and losses include the impact of plan

amendments and various unrecognized gains and losses

which are deferred and amortized over the future service

periods of active employees The market-related value

utilized to determine the expected return on plan assets is

based on fair value adjusted for the difference between

expected returns and actual performance of plan assets

The unrealized difference between actual experience arid

expected returns is included in expense over period of

approximately twelve years The overfunded or underfunded

status of the plans is recorded as an asset or liability on the

Consolidated Balance Sheet with changes in that status

recognized through other comprehensive income loss

Premises and Equipment Premises and equipment are

stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and

depreciated primarily on straight-line basis over the

estimated life of the assets Estimated useful lives range up

to 40 years for newly constructed buildings and from to

20 years for furniture and equipment

Capitalized leases less accumulated amortization are

inclLided in premises and equipment Capitalized lease

obliqations are included in long-term debt Capitalized leases

are amortized on straight-line basis over the lease term and

the amortization is included in depreciation expense

Stock-Based Compensation The Company grants stock-

based awards including restricted stock restricted stock

units and options to purchase common stock of the

Company Stock option grants are for fixed number of

shares to employees and directors with an exercise price

equal to the fair value of the shares at the date of grant

Resi rioted stock and restricted stock unit grants are awarded

at flO cost to the recipient Stock-based compensation for

awards is recognized in the Companys results of operations

on straight-line basis over the vesting period The

Company immediately recognizes compensation cost of

awards to employees that meet retirement status despite

their continued active employment The amortization of

stock-based compensation reflects estimated forfeitures

adjLsted for actual forfeiture experience As compensation

expense is recognized deferred tax asset is recorded that

represents an estimate of the future tax deduction from

exercise or release of restrictions At the time stock-based

awards are exercised cancelled expire or restrictions are

released the Company may be required to recognize an

adjustment to tax expense depending on the market price of

the Companys common stock at that time

Per Share Calculations Earnings per common share is

calculated by dividing net income applicable to

U.S Bancorp common shareholders by the weighted

average number of common shares outstanding Diluted

earnings per common share is calculated by adjusting

income and outstanding shares assuming conversion of all

potentially dilutive securities

NOTE Business Combinations and

Divest itures

In February 2013 the Company acquired Collective Point of

Sale Solutions Canadian merchant processor The

Company recorded approximately $34 million of assets

including intangibles and approximately $4 million of

liabilities with this transaction

In November 2013 the Company acquired Quintillion

Holding Company Limited provider of fund administration

services to alternative investment funds The Company

recorded approximately $57 million of assets including

intangibles and assumed approximately $10 million of

liabilities with this transaction

In January 2012 the Company acquired the banking

operations of BankEast subsidiary of BankEast

Corporation from the FDIC This transaction did not include

loss sharing agreement The Company acquired

approximately $261 million of assets and assumed

approximately $252 million of deposits from the FDIC with

this transaction

In November 2012 the Company acquired the hedge

fund administration servicing business of Alternative

Investment Solutions LLC The Company recorded

approximately $108 million of assets including intangibles

and approximately $3 million of liabilities with this transaction

In December 2012 the Company acquired FSV Payment

Systems Inc prepaid card program manager with

proprietary processing platform The Company recorded

approximately $243 million of assets including intangibles

and approximately $28 million of liabilities with this transaction

NOTE Restrictions on Cash and Due

from Banks

The Federal Reserve Bank requires bank subsidiaries to

maintain minimum average reserve balances either in the

form of cash or reserve balances held with the Federal

Reserve Bank The amount of those required reserve

balances were approximately $1.8 billion and $1.7 billion at

December31 2013 and 2012 respectively At

December31 2013 and 2012 the Company held $1.9 billion

and $.9 billion respectively of balances at the Federal

Reserve Bank These balances are included in cash and due

from banks on the Consolidated Balance Sheet
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2013

Unrealized Losses

Amortized Unrealized Other-than-

Cost Gains Temporary Other Fair Value

3114

35671

$5

187

16

12

99

$38920 $205

$1108

79 3040

665 35193

18

12

11 88

$756 $38368

67 1045

Amortized Unrealized

Cost Gains

3154 27

31064 545

15

19

20

115

$34389 590

1211 16

The amortized Cost other-than-temporary impairment recorded in other comprehensive income loss gross unrealized

holding gains and losses and fair value of held-to-maturity and available-for-sale investment securities at December 31 were

as follows

Dollars in Millions
__________________________________________________________

Held-to-maturity

U.S Treasury and agencies

Mortgage-backed securities

Residential

Agency

Non-agency non-prime

Commercial non-agency

Asset-backed securities

Collateralized debt obligations

Collateralized loan

obligations

Other

Obligations of state and political

subdivisions

Obligations of foreign

governments

Other debt securities

Total held-to-maturity

Available-for-sale

U.S Treasury and agencies

Mortgage-backed securities

Residential

Agency

Non-agency

Primec

Non-prime

Commercial agency

Asset-backed securities

Collateralized debt obligations

Collateralized loan

obligations

Other

Obligations of state and political

subdivisions

Obligations of foreign

governments

Corporate debt securities

Perpetual preferred securities

Other investments
-_________________________________________

Total available-for-sale

Held-to-maturity investment securities are carried at historical cost or at fair value at the time of transfer from the available-for-sale to held-to-maturity category adjusted for amortization

of premiums and accretion of discounts and credit-related other-than-temporary impairment

Available-for-sale investment securities are carried at fair value with unrealized net gains or losses reported within accumulated other comprehensive income loss in shareholders

equity

Prime securities are those designated as such by the issuer at origination When an issuer designation is unavailable the Company determines at acquisition date the categorization

based on asset pooi characteristics such as weighted-average credit score loan-to-value loan type prevalence of low documentation loans and deal performance such as pool

delinquencies and security market spreads When the Company determines the designation prime securities typically have weighted average credit score of 725 or higher and

loan-to-value of 80 percent or lower however other pool characteristics may result in designations that deviate from these credit score and loan-to-value thresholds

Includes all securities not meeting the conditions to be designated as prime

Represents impairment not related to credit for those investment securities that have been determined to be other-than-temporarily impaired

Represents unrealized losses on investment securities that have not been determined to be other-than-temporarily impaired

31633 449

486

297

148

20

616 13

5673 116

734

205

133

24

28

$41059 $651

529 31553

478

297

152

24

629

51 5738

94
17

640

212

161

$13 $762 $40935

28754 746

641

372

185

32 10

579 14

6059 396

814

205 27

182 20

$39040 $1246

2012

Unrealized Losses

Other-than-

Temporary Other Fair Value

$3181

31603

22

17

21

17 98

24 $34952

1226

29495

16 624

20 355

193

42

592

6455

85
14

731

218

202

$36 $111 $40139

NOTE Investment Securities
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The weighted-average maturity of the available-for-sale

investment securities was 6.0 years at December 31 2013

compared with 4.1 years at December 31 2012 The

corresponding weighted-average yields were 2.64 percent

and 2.93 percent respectively The weighted-average

maturity of the held-to-maturity investment securities was 4.5

years at December 31 2013 and 3.3 years at December 31

2012 The corresponding weighted-average yields were 2.00

percent and .94 percent respectively

For amortized cost fair value and yield by maturity date

of held-to-maturity and available-for-sale investment

securities outstanding at December 31 2013 refer to Table

13 included in Managements Discussion and Analysis

which is incorporated by reference into these Notes to

Consolidated Financial Statements

Investment securities with fair value of $17.3 billion at

December 31 2013 and $20.1 billion at December31

2012 were pledged to secure public private and trust

deposits repurchase agreements and for other purposes

required by contractual obligation or law Included in these

amounts were securities where the Company and certain

counterparties have agreements granting the counterparties

the right to sell or pledge the securities Investment

securities delivered under these types of arrangements had

fair value of $2.1 billion at December31 2013 and $3.5

billion at December 31 2012

Total interest income from investment securities $1631 $1792 $1820

The following table provides information about the amount of gross gains and losses realized through the sales of available-for-

sale hvestment securities

Year Ended December31 IDollars
in Millions

2013 2012 2011

Realized gains $23 $158 $11

Realized losses 99

Net realized gains losses $23 59

Income tax benefit on net realized gains losses 23

The Company conducts regular assessment of its expected cash flows of underlying collateral the existence of

investment securities with unrealized losses to determine any government or agency guarantees market conditions

whether investment securities are other-than-temporarily and whether the Company intends to sell or it is more likely

impaired considering among other factors the nature of the than not the Company will be required to sell the investment

investment securities credit ratings or financial condition of securities

the issuer the extent and duration of the unrealized loss

The following table summarizes other-than-temporary impairment by investment category

2013 2012 2011

Losses Losses Losses

Recorded in Other Gains Recorded Other Gains Recorded Other Gains

Year Ended December 31 Dollars in Millions Earnings Losses Total in Earnings Losses Ic Total in Earnings Lossesl Total

Available-for-sale

Mortgage-backed securities

Non-agency residential

Prime $2 $4 sf12 59 sf21

Non-prime 33 21 12 24 23 47

Commercial non-agency

Other asset-backed securities

Obligations of state and political

subdivisions

Perpetual preferred securities 27 27

Total available-for-sale $14 $8 $6 $74 $12 $62 $35 $25 $60

Prime securities are those designated as such by the issuer at origination
When an issuer designation is unavailable the Company determines at acquisition date the categorization

based on asset pool characteristics such as weighted-average credit score loan-to-value loan type prevalence of low documentation loans and deal performance such as pool

delinquencies and security market spreads

Includes all securities not meeting the conditions to be designated as prime

Losses represent the non-credit portion
of other-than-temporary impairment recorded in other comprehensive income loss for investment securities determined to be other-than-

temporarily impaired during the period Gains represent recoveries in the fair value of securities that had non-credit other-than-temporary impairment during the period

The following table provides information about the amount of interest income from taxable and non-taxable investment securities

Year Ended December31 Dotars in Millions
2013 2012 2011

Taxable $1375

Non-taxable 256

$1515 $1517

277 303

90 U.S BANCORP



December 31 2013
Estimated lifetime prepayment rates

Lifetime probability of default rates

Lifetime loss severity rates

December 31 2012
Estimated lifetime prepayment rates

Lifetime probability of default rates

Lifetime loss severity rates

Prime securities are those designated as such by The issuer at origination
When an issuer designation is unavailable the Company determines at acquisition date the categorization

based on asset pool characteristics such as weighted-average credit score loan-to-value loan type prevalence of low documentation loans and deal performance such as pool

delinquencies and security market spreads

Includes all securities not meeting the conditions to be designated as prime

Changes in the credit losses on debt securities excluding perpetual preferred securities are summarized as follows

Year Ended December31 Dollars in Millions 2013 2012 2011

Balance at beginning of period $134 298

Additions to Credit Losses Due to Other-than-temporary Impairments

Credit losses on securities not previously considered other-than-temporarily impaired

Decreases in expected cash flows on securities for which other-than-temporary impairment was previously

recognized 14

Total other-than-temporary impairment on debt securities 14

Other Changes in Credit Losses

Increases in expected cash flows 15
Realized losses 23 39
Credit losses on security sales and securities expected to be sold 157

Balance at end of period $116 134

Primarily represents principal losses allocated to mortgage and asset-backed securities in the Companys portfolio under the terms of the securitization transaction documents

The Company determined the other-than-temporary

impairment recorded in earnings for debt securities not

intended to be sold by estimating the future cash flows of

each individual investment security using market information

where available and discounting the cash flows at the

original effective rate of the investment security Other-than-

temporary impairment recorded in other comprehensive

income loss was measured as the difference between that

discounted amount and the fair value of each investment

security For perpetual preferred securities determined to be

other-than-temporarily impaired the Company recorded

loss in earnings for the entire difference between the

securities fair value and their amortized cost

The following table includes the ranges for significant assumptions used for those available-for-sale non-agency mortgage-

backed securities determined to be other-than-temporarily impaired

Prime Non-Prime bi

Minimum Maximum Average Minimum Maximum Average

7% 18% 15%

30 50 48

6% 22% 14%

40 50 47

4% 9% 5%
12

50 65 58

3% 10% 6%
10

45 65 56

$358

41 28

47 35

21
73

$298
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At December 31 2013 certain investment securities had fair value below amortized cost The following table shows the

gross unrealized losses and fair value of the Companys investment securities with unrealized losses aggregated by

investment category and length of time the individual investment securities have been in continuous unrealized loss positions

at December 31 2013

Dollas in Millions
Fair value

Held-to-maturity

U.S Treasury and agencies

Mortgage-backed securities

Residential agency

Other asset-backed securities

Obligations of state and political subdivisions

Other debt securities

Total held-to-maturity

Available-for-sale

U.S Treasury and agencies

Mortgage-backed securities

Residential

Agency

Non-agency

Prime

Non-prime

Other asset-backed securities

Obligations of state and political subdivisions

Corporate debt securities

Perpetual preterred securities

Total available-tor-sale

12

51
94

$775

Less Than 12 Months 12 Months or Greater

Unrealized

Losses Fair Value

Unrealized

Losses

Total

1085

23922

Fair Value

Unrealized

Losses

79

647 373

10

12

18

11

1085

24295

10

12

79

665

11

$757$25010 $726 395 31 $25405

849 59 93 942 67

14015 484 1056 45 15071 529

65 182 11 247

74 57 131

23 26

1479 51 10 1489

223 418 89 641

116 17 116

$16728 $601 $1935 $174 $18663

The Company has $17 million of unrealized losses on residential non-agency mortga go-backed securities Credit-related other-than-temporary impairment on these securities may occur if there

is further deter/oration in the underlying collateral pool performance Borrower defaults may increase if economic conditions worsen Additionally deterioration in home prices may increase the

severity of projected losses

Prune securities are those designated as such by the issuer at origination When an issuer designation is unavailable the Company determines at acquisition date the categorization
based on

ass at pool characteristics such as weighted-average credit score loan-to-value loan type prevalence of low documentation loans and deal performance such as pool delinquencies and

security market spreads

Inc udes all securities not meeting the conditions to be designated as prime

The Company does not consider these unrealized

losses to be credit-related These unrealized losses primarily

relate to changes in interest rates and market spreads

subsequent to purchase substantial portion of investment

securities that have Unrealized losses are either corporate

deb issued with high investment grade credit ratings or

agency mortgage-backed securities In general the issuers

of the investment securities are contractually prohibited from

prepayment at less than par and the Company did not pay

significant purchase premiums for these investment

securities At December 31 2013 the Company had no

plans to sell investment securities with unrealized losses

and believes it is more likely than not it would not be required

to sell such investment securities before recovery of their

amortized cost
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NOTE Loans and Allowance for Credit Losses

The composition of the loan portfolio at December 31 disaggregated by class and underlying specific portfolio type was as

follows

Dollars in Millions 2013 2012

Commercial
Commercial 64762 60742
Lease financing 5271 5481

Total commercial 70033 66223

Commercial Real Estate

Commercial mortgages

Construction and development

Total commercial real estate

Residential Mortgages
Residential mortgages

Home equity loans first liens

Total residential mortgages

Credit Card

Other Retail

Retail leasing

Home equity and second mortgages

Revolving credit

Installment

Automobile

Student

Total other retail

Total loans excluding covered loans

Covered Loans

Total loans

32183 31005

7702 5948

39885 36953

The Company had loans of $77.2 billion at

December 31 2013 and $74.1 billion at December 31

2012 pledged at the Federal Home Loan Bank FHLB
and loans of $53.0 billion at December 31 2013 and

$48.6 billion at December 31 2012 pledged at the Federal

Reserve Bank

The majority of the Companys loans are to borrowers in

the states in which it has Consumer and Small Business

Banking offices Collateral for commercial loans may include

marketable securities accounts receivable inventory and

equipment For details of the Companys commercial

portfolio by industry group and geography as of

December 31 2013 and 2012 see Table included in

Managements Discussion and Analysis which is

incorporated by reference into these Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements

For detail of the Companys commercial real estate

portfolio by property type and geography as of December 31

2013 and 2012 see Table included in Managements

Discussion and Analysis which is incorporated by reference

into these Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements Such

loans are collateralized by the related property The Company

has an equity interest in
joint venture that it accounts for

under the equity method whose principal activities are to lend

to entities that develop land and construct and sell residential

homes The Company provides warehousing line to this joint

venture Warehousing advances to this joint venture are repaid

when the sale of loans is completed or the real estate is

permanently refinanced by others At December 31 2013 and

2012 the Company had $205 million and $486 million

respectively of outstanding advances to this joint venture

These advances are included in commercial real estate loans

Originated loans are reported at the principal amount

outstanding net of unearned interest and deferred fees and

costs Net unearned interest and deferred fees and costs

amounted to $556 million at December31 2013 and $753

million at December 31 2012 All purchased loans and

related indemnification assets are recorded at fair value at

the date of purchase The Company evaluates purchased

loans for impairment at the date of purchase in accordance

with applicable authoritative accounting guidance

Purchased loans with evidence of credit deterioration since

origination for which it is probable that all contractually

required payments will not be collected are considered

purchased impaired loans All other purchased loans are

considered purchased nonimpaired loans

37545 32648

13611 11370

51156 44018

18021 17115

5929

15442

3276

5709

13743

3579

47678

226773

8462

$235235

5419

16726

3332

5463

12593

4179

47712

212021

11308

$223329
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Changes in the accretable balance for purchased impaired loans for the years ended December 31 were as follows

DoIIrs in Millions
2013 2012 2011

Balance at beginning of period
$1709 $2619 $2890

Purchases
13 100

Accretion 499 437 451

Disposals
172 208 67

Reclassifications from nonaccretable difference 258 454 184

Other
359 732 37

Bance at end of period
$1655 $1709 $2619

Primarily relates to changes in expected credit performance

The amount for the year ended December 31 2013 primarily represents the reclassification of unamortized decreases in the FDIC asset which are now presented as separate

component within the covered assets table on page 101 partially offset by the impact of changes in expectations about retaining covered single-family loans beyond the term of the

indemnification agreements The amount for the year end December31 2012 primarily represents change in the Companys expectations regarding potential sale of modified

ccvered loans at the end of the indemnification agreements which results in reduction in the expected contractual interest payments included in the accret able balance for those

loans that may be sold

Activity in the allowance for credit losses by portfolio class was as follows

Total Loans

Excluding covered Total

tDollars in Millions
covered Loans Loans Loans

Balance at December 31 2010 $5417 $114 $5531

Add

Povision for credit losses 2328 15 2343

Deduct

Loans charged off
13 3229

Less recoveries of loans charged off
386

Net loans charged off
12 2843

Other changes
17 17

Balance at December 31 2011

Adc

Provision for credit losses

Dec uct

LDans charged off

Less recoveries of loans charged off
______________________________________________________________________

Net loans charged off

Other changes _____________________________________________________________________

Balance at December 31 2012
______________________________________________________

Add

Provision for credit losses

Deduct

Loans charged off

Less recoveries of loans charged off
______________________________________________________________________

Net loans charged off

Other changes _____________________________________________________________________

Balance at December 31 2013 ________

Allowance for Credit Losses The allowance for credit

losses reserves for probable and estimable losses incurred

in the Companys loan and lease portfolio including

unfunded credit commitments and includes certain amounts

that do not represent loss exposure to the Company

because those losses are recoverable under loss sharing

agreements with the FDIC

commercial Residential credit Other

commercial Real Estate Mortgages card Retail

$1104 $1291 $820 $1395 $807

312 361 596 431 628

516

110

406

543

45

498

502

13

489

922

88

834

733

129

604

3216

385

2831

$1010 $1154 $927 992 $831 $4914 $100 $5014

316 131 446 571 558 1760 122 1882

378 242 461 769 666 2516 11 2527

103 76 23 102 125 429 430

275 166 438 667 541 2087 10 2097

33 33 33 66

$1051 857 $935 863 $848 $4554 $179 $4733

144 114 212 677 351 1270 70 1340

246 92 297 739 523 1897 37 1934

126 125 25 83 105 464 469

120 33 272 656 418 1433 32 1465

71 71

$1075 776 $875 884 781 $4391 $146 $4537

Includes net changes in credit losses to be reimbursed by the FDIC and for the year ended December 31 2013 reductions in the allowance for covered loans where the reversal of

previously recorded allowance was offset by an associated decrease in the indemnification asset
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Additional detail of the allowance for credit losses by portfolio class was as follows

Dotars in Mitions

Allowance Balance at December 31 2013

Related to

Loans individually evaluated for impairment

TORs collectively evaluated for impairment

Other loans collectively evaluated for impairment

Loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality

Total allowance for credit losses

Allowance Balance at December 31 2012

Related to

Loans individually evaluated for impairment

TDRs collectively evaluated for impairment

Other loans collectively evaluated for impairment

Loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality

32

520

3815

137 170

Credit Quality The quality of the Companys loan portfolios

is assessed as function of net credit losses levels of

nonperforming assets and delinquencies and credit quality

ratings as defined by the Company These credit quality

ratings are an important part of the Companys overall credit

risk management process and evaluation of its allowance for

credit losses

commercial Residential credit Other

commercial Real Eatate Mortgages card Retail

Total Loans

Excluding covered

covered Loans Loans

Total

Loans

15 $17 32

19 26 329 87 55 516

1041 700 546 797 726 3810

33 33

$1075 $776 $875 $884 $781 $4391 $146 $4537

$10 $30 $$$ $40 $$40
28 29 446 153 97 753 754

1013 791 489 710 751 3754 17 3771

161 168

Total allowance for credit losses $1051 $857 $935 $863 $848 $4554 $179 $4733

Represents the allowance for credit losses related to loans greater than $5 million classified as nonperforming or TORs

Additional detail of loan balances by portfolio class was as follows

Total Loans

Commercial Residential credit Other Excluding covered Total

Dollars in Millions Commercial Real Estate Mortgages Card Retail Covered Loans Loans Loans

December 31 2013

Loans individually evaluated for impairment 197 237 434 62 496

TDRs collectively evaluated for impairment 155 358 5064 310 269 6156 87 6243
Other loans collectively evaluated for impairment 69680 39128 46090 17711 47409 220018 4539 224557

Loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality 162 165 3774 3939

Total loans $70033 $39885 $51156 $18021 $47678 $226773 8462 $235235

December 31 2012

Loans individually evaluated for impairment 171 510 681 48 729

TDRs collectively evaluated for impairment 185 391 4199 442 313 5530 145 5675
Other loans collectively evaluated for impairment 65863 35952 39813 16673 47399 205700 5814 211514
Loans acquired with deteriorated credit quality 100 110 5301 5411

Totalloans $66223 $36953 $44018 $17115 $47712 $212021 $11308 $223329

Represents loans greater than $5 million classified as nonperforming or TORs

Includes expected reimbursements from the FDIC under loss sharing agreements
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The following table provides summary of loans by portfolio class including the delinquency status of those that continue to

accrue interest and those that are nonperforming

Dollars
in Millions

December 31 2013

Commercial

Commercial real estate

Residential mortgages

Credt card

Other retail

Toal loans excluding covered loans

Covered loans

Toal loans

December 31 2012

Commercial

Commercial real estate

Residential mortgages

Credt card

Othe retail

Total loans excluding covered loans

Covered loans

Total loans

Accruing

30-89 Days

current Past Due

The following table provides summary of loans by portfolio class and the Companys internal credit quality rating

Dollars in Millions

December 31 2013

Commercial

Commercial real estate

Residential mortgages

Credit card

Other retail

Total loans excluding covered loans

Covered loans

Total loans

Total outstanding commitments

December 31 2012

Commercial

Commercial real estate

Residential mortgages

Credit card

Other retail

Total loans excluding covered loans

Covered loans

Total loans

Total outstanding commitments

criticized

90 Days or

More Past Due Nonperforming Total

69587 257 55 134 70033

39459 94 29 303 39885

49695 358 333 770 51156

17507 226 210 78 18021

47156 245 86 191 47678

223404 1180 713 1476 226773

7693 166 476 127 8462

$231097 $1346 $1189 $1603 $235235

65701 341 58 123 66223

36241 158 546 36953

42728 348 281 661 44018

16525 227 217 146 17115

47109 290 96 217 47712

208304 1364 660 1693 212021

9900 359 663 386 11308

$218204 $1723 $1323 $2079 $223329

Al December 31 2013 $440 million of loans 3089 days past due and $3.7 billion of loans 90 days or more past due purchased from Government National Mortgage Association

GNMA mortgage pools whose repayments are insured by the Federal Housing Administration or guaranteed by the Department of Veterans Affairs were classified as current

compared with $441 million and $32 billion at December31 2012 respectively

Total nonperforming assets include nonaccrual loans

restructured loans not performing in accordance with

modified terms other real estate and other nonperformlng

assets owned by the Company For details of the Companys

nonperforming assets as of December31 2013 and 2012

see Table 16 included in Managements Discussion and

Analysis which is incorporated by reference into these Notes

to Consolidated Financial Statements

Special

Pass Mention

Total

classified criticized Total

68075 $1013 945 $1958 70033

38113 616 1156 1772 39885

50152 999 1004 51156

17733 288 288 18021

47313 27 338 365 47678

221386 1661 3726 5387 226773

8160 18 284 302 8462

$229546 $1679 $4010 $5689 $235235

$470046 $2939 $4812 $7751 $477797

63906 $1114 $1203 $2317 66223

34096 621 2236 2857 36953

42897 18 1103 1121 44018

16752 363 363 17115

47294 36 382 418 47712

204945 1789 5287 7076 212021

10786 61 461 522 11308

$215731 $1850 $5748 $7598 $223329

$442047 $3231 $6563 $9794 $451841

C1assified rating on consumer loans primarily based on delinquency status

ADecember3l 2013 $3 billion of GNMA loans 90 days or more past due and $2.6 billion of restructured GNMA loans whose repayments are insured by the Federal Housing

ffminislration or guaranteed by the Department of Veterans Affairs were classified with pass rating compared with $3.2 billion and $2.4 billion at December 31 20l2 respectively
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For all loan classes loan is considered to be impaired when based on current events or information it is probable the

Company will be unable to collect all amounts due per the contractual terms of the loan agreement summary of impaired

loans which include all nonaccrual and TDR loans by portfolio class was as follows

Commitments

Period-end unpaid to Lend

Recorded Principal valuation Additional

Investment Balance Allowance FundsDollars in Millions

December 31 2013
Commercial

Commercial real estate

Residential mortgages

Credit card

Other retail

Total impaired loans excluding GNMA and covered loans

Loans purchased from GNMA mortgage pools

Covered loans

Total

December 31 2012
Commercial

Commercial real estate

Residential mortgages

Credit card

Other retail

Total impaired loans excluding GNMA and covered loans

Loans purchased from GNMA mortgage pools

Covered loans

Total

382 804 $36 $54
693 1322 51 40

2767 3492 308

310 310 87

391 593 59 14

4543 6521 541 108

2607 2607 28

452 1008 30

$7602 $10136 $599 $112

404 1200 40 39

1077 2251 70

2748 3341 415

442 442 153

443 486 101

5114 7720 779 46

1778 1778 39

767 1584 20 12

$7659 $11082 $838 58

Substantially all loans classified as impaired at December 31 2013 and 2012 had an associated allowance for credit losses The total amount of interest income recognized during

2013 on loans classified as impaired at December 31 2013 excluding those acquired with deteriorated credit quality was $233 million compared to what would have been recognized

at the original contractual terms of the loans of $399 million
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Additional information on impaired loans for the years ended December 31 follows

Average Interest

Recorded Income

Dollars in Millions Investment Recognized

2013

Commercial 382 29

Commercial real estate 889 39

Residential mortgages 2749 134

Credit card 366 16

Other retail 424 24

Total impaired loans excluding GNMA and covered loans 4810 242

Loans purchased from GNMA mortgage pools 1967 100

Covered loans 561 27

Total $7338 $369

2012
Commercial

Commercial real estate

Residential mortgages

Credit card

Othei retail

Total impaired loans excluding GNMA and covered loans

Loans purchased from GNMA mortgage pools

Covered loans

Total

2011

Commercial

Commercial real estate

Residential mortgages

Credit card

Othe retail

Total impaired loans excluding GNMA and covered loans

Loans purchased from GNMA mortgage pools

Covered loans

$7740 $340

534 12

1537 18

2557 100

485 15

164

5277 150

710 25

780 11

Total $6767

470

1314

2717

510

301

5312

1448

980

18

43

130

28

19

238

73

29

$186
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Dollars in Millions

2013

Commercial

Commercial real estate

Residential mortgages

Credit card

Other retail

Total loans excluding GNMA and covered loans

Loans purchased from GNMA mortgage pools

Covered loans

Total loans

2012

Commercial

Commercial real estate

Residential mortgages

Credit card

Other retail

Total loans excluding GNMA and covered loans

Loans purchased from GNMA mortgage pools

Covered loans

Total loans

2011

Commercial

Commercial real estate

Residential mortgages

Credit card

Other retail

Total loans excluding GNMA and covered loans

Loans purchased from GNMA mortgage pools

Covered loans

Total loans 79233

Residential mortgages home equity and second

mortgages and loans purchased from Government National

Mortgage Association GNMA mortgage pools in the table

above include trial period arrangements offered to

customers during the periods presented The post-

modification balances for these loans reflect the current

outstanding balance until permanent modification is made

In addition the post-modification balances typically include

capitalization of unpaid accrued interest and/or fees under

the various modification programs For those loans modified

as TDRs during the fourth quarter of 2013 at December31

2013 416 residential mortgages 10 home equity and

second mortgage loans and 2536 loans purchased from

GNMA mortgage pools with outstanding balances of $58

million $1 million and $328 million respectively were in

trial period and have estimated post-modification balances

of $47 million $1 million and $307 million respectively

assuming permanent modification occurs at the end of the

trial period

Troubled Debt Restructurings In certain circumstances the Company may modify the terms of loan to maximizethe

collection of amounts due when borrower is experiencing financial difficulties or is expected to experience difficulties in the

near-term The following table provides summary of loans modified as TDRs for the years ended December 31 by portfolio

class

Pre-Modification Post-Modification

Outstanding Outstanding

Number Loan Loan

of Loans Balance Balance

2429 166 155

165 205 198

2179 309 304

26669 160 161

4290 103 102

35732 943 920

8878 1121 1066

123 94 72

44733 $2158 $2058

4843 307 272

312 493 461

4616 638 623

49320 241 255

10461 279 275

69552 1958 1886

9518 1280 1245

192 277 263

79262 $3515 $3394

5285 456 427

506 1078 1060

3611 708 704

55951 322 321

4028 73 72

69381 2637 2584

9569 1277 1356

283 604 575

$4518 $4515
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The fDllowing table provides summary of TDR loans that defaulted fully or partially charged-off or became 90 days or more

past due for the years ended December 31 that were modified as TDRs within 12 months previous to default

Number Amount

Dollars in Millioris
of Loans Defaulted

2013

Commercial
642 46

Commercial real estate
87 102

Residential mortgages
1099 163

Credit card 6640 37

Other retail
1841 80

Total loans excluding GNMA and covered loans 10309 428

Loans purchased from GNMA mortgage pools 4972 640

Covered loans
63 49

Total loans 15344 $1117

2012

Commercial

Comriercial real estate

Residential mortgages

Credit card

Other retail ___________________

Total loans excluding GNMA and covered loans

Loans purchased from GNMA mortgage pools

Covered loans
__________________

Total loans
__________________

20111

Commercial

Commercial real estate

Residential mortgages

Credit card

Other retail ____________________

Total loans excluding GNMA and covered loans

Loans purchased from GNMA mortgage pools

Covered loans
__________________

Total loans

In addition to the defaults in the table above for the year where borrowers did not successfully complete the trial

ended December 31 2013 the Company had total of 591 period arrangement and therefore are no longer eligible for

residential mortgage loans home equity and second permanent modification under the applicable modification

mortgage loans and loans purchased from GNMA mortgage program

pools with aggregate outstanding balances of $78 million

859 48

111 232

1073 146

9774 54

1818 56

13635 536

1245 177

68 97

14948 810

665 26

64 67

623 127

7108 36

557 13

9017 269

857 124

11 26

9885 419
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Covered Assets Covered assets represent loans and other assets acquired from the FDIC subject to loss sharing

agreements and include expected reimbursements from the FDIC The carrying amount of the covered assets at

December 31 consisted of purchased impaired loans purchased nonimpaired loans and other assets as shown in the

following table

2013 2012

Purchased Purchased Purchased Purchased

Impaired Nonimpaired Other Impaired Nonimpaired Other

Dollars in Millions Loans Loans Assets Total Loans Loans Assets Total

Commercial loans 32 32 143 143

Commercial real estate loans 738 1494 2232 1323 2695 4018

Residential mortgage loans 3037 890 3927 3978 1109 5087

Credit card loans

Other retail loans 666 666 775 775

Losses reimbursable by the FDIC 798 798 1280 1280

Unamortized changes in FOIC asset b.. 802 802

Covered loans 3775 3087 1600 8462 5301 4727 1280 11308

Foreclosed real estate 97 97 197 197

Total covered assets $3775 $3087 $1697 $8559 $5301 $4727 $1477 $11505

Relates to loss sharing agreements with remaining terms up to six years

Represents decreases in expected reimbursements by the FDIC as result of decreases in expected losses on the covered loans These amounts are amortized as reduction in

interest income on covered loans over the shorter of the expected life of the respective covered loans or the remaining contractual term of the indemnification agreements These

amounts were presented within the separate loan categories prior to January 2013

NOTE Leases

The components of the net investment in sales-type and direct financing leases at December 31 were as follows

Dollars in Millions 2013

Aggregate future minimum lease payments to be received $11074 $10738

Unguaranteed residual values accruing to the lessors benefit 783 890

Unearned income 1045 1123
Initial direct costs 189 175

Total net investment in sales-type and direct financing leases $11001 $10680

The accumulated allowance for uncollectible minimum lease payments was $68 million and $80 million at December 31 2013 and 20t2 respectively

The minimum future lease payments to be received from sales-type and direct financing leases were as follows at

December31 2013

Dollars in Millions

2014 $3891

2015 3240

2016 2518

2017 826

2018 275

Thereafter 324

At December 31 2013 $5 million of the purchased

impaired loans included in covered loans were classified as

nonperforming assets compared with $82 million at

December 31 2012 because the expected cash flows are

primarily based on the liquidation of underlying collateral and

the timing and amount of the cash flows could not be

reasonably estimated Interest income is recognized on

other purchased impaired loans through accretion of the

difference between the carrying amount of those loans and

their expected cash flows The initial determination of the fair

value of the purchased loans includes the impact of

expected credit losses and therefore no allowance for

credit losses is recorded at the purchase date To the extent

credit deterioration occurs after the date of acquisition the

Company records an allowance for credit losses

2012
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Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Variable Interest EntitiesNOTE

The Company transfers financial assets in the normal course

of business The majority of the Companys financial asset

transfers are residential mortgage loan sales primarily to

government-sponsored enterprises GSEs transfers of

tax-advantaged investments commercial loan sales through

participation agreements and other individual or portfolio

loan and securities sales In accordance with the accounting

guidance for asset transfers the Company considers any

ongoing involvement with transferred assets in determining

whether the assets can be derecognized from the balance

sheet Guarantees provided to certain third-parties in

conrection with the transfer of assets are further discussed

in Note 22

cor loans sold under participation agreements the

Company also considers whether the terms of the loan

participation agreement meet the accounting definition of

participating interest With the exception of servicing and

certain performance-based guarantees the Companys

continuing involvement with financial assets sold is minimal

and generally limited to market customary representation

and warranty clauses Any gain or loss on sale depends on

the previous carrying amount of the transferred financial

assets the consideration received and any liabilities

incurred in exchange for the transferred assets Upon

transfer any servicing assets and other interests that

contnue to be held by the Company are initially recognized

at far value For further information on MSRs refer to Note

On limited basis the Company may acquire and package

high-grade corporate bonds for select corporate customers

in which the Company generally has no continuing

involvement with these transactions Additionally the

Company is an authorized GNMA issuer and issues GNMA

securities on regular basis The Company has no other

asset securitizations or similar asset-backed financing

arrangements that are off-balance sheet

The Company is involved in various entities that are

considered to be VIEs The Companys investments in VIEs

are primarily related to investments promoting the

development of affordable housing community development

and renewable energy sources Some of these investments

support the Companys regulatory compliance with the

Community Reinvestment Act The Companys investments

in these entities are designed to generate return primarily

through the realization of federal and state income tax

crecits and other tax benefits over specified time periods

The Company realized federal and state income tax credits

related to these investments of $1.5 billion $883 million and

$756 million for the years ended December 31 2013 2012

and 2011 respectively These tax credits are recognized as

reduction of tax expense or for certain investments as

reduction to the related investment asset The Company also

recognized in its Consolidated Statement of Income $1.2

billion $1.0 billion and $806 million of costs related to these

investments for the years ended December 31 2013 2012

and 2011 respectively of which $604 million $482 million

and $278 million respectively was included in tax expense

and the remainder was included in noninterest expense

During 2013 the Company transferred its control over

the most significant activities of certain community

development and tax-advantaged investment VIEs to third

party manager The third party manager provides

guarantee to these VIEs related to the occurrence of certain

tax credit recapture events and therefore has an obligation

to absorb certain losses that could potentially be significant

to the VIEs Previously the Company consolidated these

VIEs because it had controlling financial interest in the

entities After the transfer of control to the third party

manager the Company no longer had controlling financial

interest and deconsolidated the VIEs The deconsolidation

resulted in decrease in both assets and liabilities primarily

other assets and long-term debt respectively of

approximately $4.6 billion The deconsolidation and

remeasurement of the Companys investment in these

unconsolidated VIEs to fair value did not materially impact

the Companys Consolidated Statement of Income The total

amount of the Companys investment in the VIEs was $957

million at December 31 2013 and is reported in other assets

In addition the Company sponsors entities to which it

transfers tax-advantaged investments At December 31

2013 approximately $2.5 billion of the Companys assets

and $1.8 billion of its liabilities included on the Consolidated

Balance Sheet were related to community development and

tax-advantaged investment VIEs which the Company has

consolidated primarily related to these transfers These

amounts compared to $7.1 billion and $5.2 billion

respectively at December 31 2012 which included VIEs

related to these asset transfers and also the VIEs for which

control transferred in 2013 The majority of the assets of

these consolidated VIEs are reported in other assets and the

liabilities are reported in long-term debt and other liabilities

The assets of particular VIE are the primary source of funds

to settle its obligations The creditors of the VIEs do not have

recourse to the general credit of the Company The

Companys exposure to the consolidated VIEs is generally

limited to the carrying value of its variable interests plus any

related tax credits previously recognized or sold to others

with guarantee

In addition the Company sponsors conduit to which it

previously transferred high-grade investment securities The

Company consolidates the conduit because of its ability to

manage the activities of the conduit At December 31 2013

$116 million of the held-to-maturity investment securities on the
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Companys Consolidated Balance Sheet were related to the

conduit compared with $144 million at December 31 2012

The Company also sponsors municipal bond

securities tender option bond program The Company

controls the activities of the programs entities is entitled to

the residual returns and provides credit liquidity and

remarketing arrangements to the program As result the

Company has consolidated the programs entities At

December31 2013 $4.6 billion of available-for-sale

securities and $4.6 billion of short-term borrowings on the

Consolidated Balance Sheet were related to the tender

option bond program compared with $5.3 billion of

available-for-sale securities and $5.0 billion of short-term

borrowings at December 31 2012

The Company is not required to consolidate VIEs in

which it has concluded it does not have controlling

financial interest and thus is not the primary beneficiary In

such cases the Company does not have both the power to

direct the entities most significant activities and the

obligation to absorb losses or the right to receive benefits

that could potentially be significant to the VIEs The

Companys investments in these unconsolidated VIEs

generally are carried in other assets on the Consolidated

Balance Sheet The Companys investments in

unconsolidated VIEs at December 31 2013 ranged from less

than $1 million to $37 million with an aggregate amount of

$2.6 billion net of $1.7 billion of liabilities recorded primarily

for unfunded capital commitments of the Company to

NOTE Premises and Equipment

specific project sponsors The Companys investments in

unconsolidated VIEs at December31 2012 ranged from

less than $1 million to $58 million with an aggregate amount

of $1.9 billion net of liabilities of $1.3 billion recorded

primarily for unfunded capital commitments While the

Company believes potential losses from these investments

are remote the Companys maximum exposure to loss from

these unconsolidated VIEs was $7.4 billion at December 31

2013 and $5.2 billion at December 31 2012 The maximum

exposure to loss was primarily related to community

development tax-advantaged investments and included $2.5

billion at December31 2013 and $1.8 billion at

December 31 2012 on the Companys Consolidated

Balance Sheet and $4.9 billion at December 31 2013 and

$3.3 billion at December 31 2012 of previously recorded tax

credits which remain subject to recapture by taxing

authorities based on compliance features required to be met

at the project level The remaining amounts related to

investments in private investment funds and partnerships for

which the maximum exposure to loss included amounts

recorded on the Consolidated Balance Sheet and any

unfunded commitments The maximum exposure was

determined by assuming scenario where the separate

investments within the individual private funds become

worthless and the community-based business and housing

projects and related tax credits completely fail and do not

meet certain government compliance requirements

Premises and equipment at December 31 consisted of the following

Dollars in Millions
2013

Land 529 534

Buildings and improvements 3256 3222

Furniture fixtures and equipment 2593 2543

Capitalized building and equipment leases 103 97

Construction in progress 24 42

6505 6438

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 3899 3768

Total 2606 2670

NOTE Mortgage Servicing Rights

The Company serviced $226.8 billion of residential mortgage

loans for others at December 31 2013 and $215.6 billion at

December 31 2012 The net impact included in mortgage

banking revenue of fair value changes of MSRs due to

changes in valuation assumptions and derivatives used to

economically hedge MSRs were net gains of $192 million

$102 million and $183 million for the years ended

December31 2013 2012 and 2011 respectively Loan

servicing fees not including valuation changes included in

mortgage banking revenue were $754 million $720 million

and $651 million for the years ended December 31 2013

2012 and 2011 respectively

2012
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Changes in fair value of capitalized MSRs for the years ended December 31 are summarized as follows

Doilais in Millions
2013 2012 2011

Balance at beginning of period $1700 $1519 $1837

Rights purchased
42 35

Rights capitalized
769 957 619

Changes in fair value of MSRs

Due to fluctuations in market interest rates 617 249 619

Due to revised assumptions or models 33 21 33

Other changes in fair value 447 548 386

Balance at end of period $2680 $1700 $1519

Includes changes in MSR value associated with changes in market interest rates including estimated prepayment rates and anticipated earnings on escrow deposits

tncludes changes in MSR value not caused by changes in market interest rates such as changes in cost to service ancillary income and discount rate as well as the impact of any

model changes

Primarily represents changes due to realization of expected cash flows over time decay

The estimated sensitivity to changes in interest rates of the fair value of the MSRs portfolio and the related derivative

instrjments as of December 31 follows

2013 2012

Dollars in Millions

Down Down Down Up Up Up Down Down Down Up Up

100 bps 50 bps 25 bps 25 bps 50 bps 100 bps 100 bps 50 bps 25 bps 25 bps 50bps

Up
100 bps

MSR portfolio $435 $199 $93 $82 154 287 $370 $217 $118 126 249 480

Derivative instrument hedges 399 194 91 82 157 301 473 249 124 121 243 486

NEtt sensitivity 36 14 103 32

The fair value of MSRs and their sensitivity to changes in rate or jumbo mortgage loans The MRBP division

interest rates is influenced by the mix of the servicing specializes in servicing loans made under state and local

portfolio and characteristics of each segment of the portfolio housing authority programs These programs provide

The Companys servicing portfolio consists of the distinct mortgages to low-income and moderate-income borrowers

portlolios of government-insured mortgages conventional and are generally government-insured programs with

mortgages and Mortgage Revenue Bond Programs favorable rate subsidy down payment and/or closing cost

MRBP The servicing portfolios are predominantly assistance

comprised of fixed-rate agency loans with limited adjustable-

summary of the Companys MSRs and related characteristics by portfolio as of December 31 follows

2013 2012

Dollars in Millions MRBP Government Conventional Total MRBP Government Conventional Total

Servicing portfolio $15896 $41659 $169287 $226842

Fair value 180 500 2000 2680

Valuebpsa 113 120 118 118

Weighted-average servicing fees bps 39 32 29 30

Multiple value/servicing fees 2.90 3.75 4.07 3.93

Weighted-average note rate 4.70% 4.24% 4.17% 4.22%

Weiclhted-average age in years 3.8 2.6 2.5 2.6

Weighted-average expected prepayment

constant prepayment rate 13.5% 1.5% 10.9% 1.2%

Weighted-average expected life

in years 6.2 6.9 7.2 7.1

Weighted-average discount rate 11.9% 11.2% 9.8% 10.2%

$14143 $39048 $162446 $215637

154 314 1232 1700

109 80 76 79

40 33 30 31

2.73 2.42 2.53 2.55

5.13% 4.57% 4.48% 4.54%

4.2 2.4 2.5 2.6

13.2% 21.2% 20.4% 20.1%

6.1 4.2 4.1 4.2

12.1% 11.4% 10.0% 10.4%

Va1ue is calculated as fair value divided by the servicing portfolio

Reoresents loans sold primarily to GSEs
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NOTE 10 Intangible Assets

Intangible assets consisted of the following

At December31 Dollars in Millions
2013 2012

Goodwill 9205 9143

Merchant processing contracts 10 years/8 years SL/AC 229 281

Core deposit benefits 22 years/5 years SL/AC 135 176

Mortgage servicing rights
2680 1700

Trust relationships
14 years/6 years SL/AC 122 149

Other identified intangibles years/S years SL/AC 363 400

Total $12734 $11849

Estimated life represents the amortization period ior assets subject to the straight line method and the weighted average or life of the underlying cash flows amortization period for

intangibles subject to accelerated methods If more than one amortization method is used for category
the estimated life for each method is calculated and reported separately

Amortization methods SL straight line method

AC accelerated methods generally based on cash flows

goodwill is evaluated for impairment but not amortized Mortgage servicing rights are recorded at fair value and are not amortized

Aggregate amortization expense consisted of the following

Year Ended December31 Dollars
in Millions

2013 2012 2011

Merchant processing contracts 64 74 90

Core deposit benefits 41 60 81

Trust relationships 34 39 35

Other identified intangibles 84 101 93

Total $223 $274 $299

The estimated amortization expense for the next five years is as follows

Dollars in Millions

2014 $184

2015
148

2016
119

2017
98

2018 78

The following table reflects the changes in the carrying value of goodwill for the years ended December 31 2013 2012 and

2011

Wholesale Banking and consumer and Small Wealth Management and Payment Treasury and consolidated

commercial Real Estate Business Banking 5ecurities Services 5ervices Corporate 5upport Company
Dollars in Millions

Balance at December 31 2010 $1605 $3535 $1463 $2351 $8954

Othera 21 27

Balance at December 31 2011 $1605 $3514 $1463 $2345 $8927

Goodwill acquired 65 143 208

Othera

Balance at December 31 2012 $1605 $3514 $1528 $2496 $9143

Goodwill acquired 37 20 57

Othera

Balance at December 31 2013 .. $1605 $3514 $1565 $2521 $9205

Other changes in goodwill include reclassification from goodwill to covered loans related to an FDIC-assisted acquisition for Consumer and Small Business Banking and the effect of

foreign exchange translation for Payment Services

Estimated Amortization

Life Method

Balance

U.S BANCORP 105



NOTE 11 Short-Term Borrowings

The following table is summary of short-term borrowings for the last three years

NOTE 12 Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt debt with original maturities of more than one year at December 31 consisted of the following

Dollars in Millions

At year-end

2013

Amount Rate

2012

Amount

Federal funds purchased 594 .11%

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 2057 5.34

Commercial paper 19400 .11

Other short-term borrowings 5557 .19

Total 27608 .52%

Rate

Average for the year

2011

Amount Rate

950

3388

16202

5762

.11%

3.26

.12

.29

1036

6986

15973

6473

$26302

Federal funds purchased 1879 9.72%

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 2403 4.65

Commercial paper 17467 .12

Other short-term borrowings 5934 .72

Total $27683 1.29%

.11%

3.35

.12

.26

.57% $30468 .89%

1338

4942

15806

6463

15.32%

3.52

.14

.72

968

7483

15204

7048

$28549

22.61%

3.22

.15

77

1.57%

MaxMmum month-end balance

Federal funds purchased 3569 2467 1172

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 3121 5922 9071

Commercial paper 19400 17385 16768

Other short-term borrowings 6301 7443 7514

$30703 1.75%

lntei est and rates are presented on fully taxable-equivalent basis utilizing tax rate of 35 percent

Average federal funds purchased and total short-term borrowings rates include amounts paid by the Company to certain corporate card customers for
paying outstanding noninterest

bearing corporate card balances within certain time frames per specific agreements These activities reduce the Companys short-term funding needs and if they did not occur the

Company would use other funding alternatives including the use of federal funds purchased The amount of this compensation expense paid by the Company and included in federal

funcs purchased and total short-term borrowings rates for 2013 20t2 and 20t was $t81 million $203 million and $218 million respectively

Dollars in Millions Rate Type Rate Maturity Date 2013

Fixed 2.950%

Fixed 7.500%

Fixed 1.650% 4.200%

Floating .728%

Fixed 3.442%

2012

2022

2026

2014-2022

2018

2016

U.S Bancorp Parent Company
Subordinated notes

MediLim-term notes

Junior subordinated debentures

Capitalized lease obligations mortgage indebtedness and

other

Subtotal

Subsidiaries

Subordinated notes

Federal Home Loan Bank advances

Bank notes

Capitalized lease obligations mortgage indebtedness and

other

Subtotal

Total

1300

199

8750

500

500

167

1300

199

10600

500

173

Fixed

Fixed

Fixed

Fixed

Floating

Fixed

Floating

Floating

6.300% 2014

4.950% 2014

4.800% 2015

3.778% 2020

.524% 2014

1.250% 8.250% 2014-2026

.238%- .505% 2014-2022

2046 2048

11416

963

1000

500

500

373

13

4579

142

12772

963

1000

500

500

373

16

4579

143

Weighted-average interest rates of Federal Home Loan Bank advances and fixed-rate medium-term notes were .28 percent and 2.78 percent respectively

Other includes consolidated community development and tax-advantaged invesment VIEs debt issuance fees and unrealized gains and losses and deferred amounts relating to

derivative nstruments

563 4670

8633 12744

$20049 $25516
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During 2012 the Company elected to redeem $2.7 billion of

junior subordinated debentures issued to five wholly-owned

unconsolidated trusts that had interest payable at fixed rates

ranging from 6.30 percent to 6.63 percent There were no

issuances of lunior subordinated debentures in 2013 or

2012

The Company has arrangements with the Federal Home

Loan Bank and Federal Reserve Bank whereby the

Company could have borrowed an additional $69.7 billion

and $60.9 billion at December 31 2013 and 2012

respectively based on collateral available

Maturities of long-term debt outstanding at December 31

2013 were

Parent

company
Dollars in MChons consolidated

2014 1499 4132

2015 1749 3013

2016 1940 3813

2017 1247 2545

2018 1496 1534

Thereafter 3485 5012

Total $11416 $20049

NOTE 13 Junior Subordinated Debentures

As of December 31 2013 the Company sponsored and

wholly owned 100 percent of the common equity of USB

Capital IX wholly-owned unconsolidated trust formed for

the purpose of issuing redeemable Income Trust Securities

ITS to third party investors originally investing the

proceeds in junior subordinated debt securities

Debentures issued by the Company and entering into

stock purchase contracts to purchase preferred stock in the

future During 2010 the Company exchanged depositary

shares representing an ownership interest in its Series

Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock Series

Preferred Stock to acquire portion of the ITS issued by

USB Capital IX and retire portion of the Debentures and

cancel pro-rata portion of stock purchase contracts During

2011 USB Capital IX sold the remaining Debentures

NOTE 14 Shareholders Equity

At December 31 2013 and 2012 the Company had authority

to issue billion shares of common stock and 50 million

shares of preferred stock The Company had 1.8 billion

shares and .9 billion shares of common stock

originally issued by the Company to the trust to investors to

generate cash proceeds to purchase the Companys Series

Preferred Stock pursuant to the stock purchase contracts

As part of this sale consolidated subsidiary of the

Company purchased $176 million of the Debentures which

effectively retired the debt The Company classifies the

remaining $500 million of debentures at December31 2013

and 2012 as long-term debt As of December 31 2013 and

2012 $676 million of the Companys Series Preferred

Stock was the sole asset of USB Capital IX The Companys

obligations under the transaction documents taken together

have the effect of providing full and unconditional

guarantee by the Company on junior subordinated basis

of the payment obligations of the trust

outstanding at December 31 2013 and 2012 respectively

The Company had 106 million shares reserved for future

issuances primarily under stock option plans at

December 31 2013

The par value of all shares issued and outstanding at December31 2013 and 2012 was $1 00 per
share

During 2013 the Company issued depositary shares

representing an ownership interest in 20000 shares of

Series Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock with

liquidation preference of $25000 per share the Series

Preferred Stock The Series Preferred Stock has no

stated maturity and will not be subject to any sinking fund or

other obligation of the Company Dividends if declared will

accrue and be payable quarterly in arrears at rate per

The number of shares issued and outstanding and the carrying amount of each outstanding series of the Companys preferred

stock was as follows

2013 2012

Shares Shares

At December 31 Issued and Liquidation carrying Issued and Liquidation carrying

Dollars in Millions Outstanding Preference Discount Amount Outstanding Preference Discount Amount

SeriesA 12510 $1251 $145 $1106 12510 $1251 $145 $1106

Series 40000 1000 1000 40000 1000 1000

Series 20000 500 500

Series 44000 1100 12 1088 44000 1100 12 1088

Series 43400 1085 10 1075 43400 1085 10 1075

SeriesH 20000 500 13 487

Total preferred stock 159910 $4936 $180 $4756 159910 $4936 $167 $4769
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annum equal to 5.15 percent The Series Preferred Stock

is redeemable at the Companys option in whole or in part

on or after July 15 2018 The Series Preferred stock is

redeemable at the Companys option in whole but not in

part prior to July 15 2018 within 90 days following an official

administrative or judicial decision amendment to or change

in the laws or regulations that would not allow the Company

to treat the full liquidation value of the Series Preferred

Stock as Tier capital for purposes of the capital adequacy

guidelines of the Federal Reserve

During 2012 the Company issued depositary shares

representing an ownership interest in 44000 shares of

Series Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock with

liquidation preference of $25000 per share the Series

Preferred Stock and depositary shares representing an

ownership interest in 43400 shares of Series Non-

Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock with liquidation

preference of $25000 per share the Series Preferred

Stock The Series Preferred Stock and Series Preferred

Stock have no stated maturity and will not be subject to any

sinking fund or other obligation of the Company Dividends if

declared will accrue and be payable quarterly in arrears at

rate per annum equal to 6.50 percent from the date of

issuance to but excluding January 15 2022 and thereafter

at floating rate per annum equal to three-month LIBOR plus

4.4613 percent for the Series Preferred Stock and 6.00

percent from the date of issuance to but excluding April 15

2017 and thereafter at floating rate per annum equal to

three-month LIBOR plus 4.86 125 percent for the Series

Preferred Stock Both series are redeemable at the

Companys option in whole or in part on or after January 15

2022 for the Series Preferred Stock and April 15 2017 for

the Series Preferred Stock Both series are redeemable at

the Companys option in whole but not in part prior to

January 15 2022 for the Series Preferred Stock and prior

to April 15 2017 for the Series Preferred Stock within 90

days following an official administrative or judicial decision

amendment to or change in the laws or regulations that

would not allow the Company to treat the full liquidation value

of the Series Preferred Stock or Series Preferred Stock

respectively as Tier capital for purposes of the capital

adecuacy guidelines of the Federal Reserve Board

During 2010 the Company issued depositary shares

representing an ownership interest in 5746 shares of

Series Preferred Stock to investors in exchange for their

portion of USB Capital IX Income Trust Securities During

2011 the Company issued depositary shares representing

an ownership interest in 6764 shares of Series Preferred

Stock to USB Capital IX thereby settling the stock purchase

contract established between the Company and USB Capital

IX as part of the 2006 issuance of USB Capital IX Income

Trust Securities The preferred shares were issued to USB

Capital IX for the purchase price specified in the stock

forward purchase contract The Series Preferred stock has

liquidation preference of $100000 per share no stated

maturity and will not be subject to any sinking fund or other

obligation of the Company Dividends if declared will

accrue and be payable quarterly in arrears at rate per

annum equal to the greater of three-month LIBOR plus

1.02 percent or 3.50 percent The Series Preferred Stock is

redeemable at the Companys option subject to prior

approval by the Federal Reserve Board

During 2008 the Company issued depositary shares

representing an ownership interest in 20000 shares of

Series Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock with

liquidation preference of $25000 per share the Series

Preferred Stock In conjunction with the issuance of the

Series Preferred Stock the Company redeemed at par

value all shares of the Series Preferred Stock during 2013

The Company included an $8 million loss in its computation of

earnings per diluted common share for 2013 which

represents the stock issuance costs recorded in capital

surplus upon the issuance of the Series Preferred Stock that

were reclassified to retained earnings on the redemption date

During 2006 the Company issued depositary shares

representing an ownership interest in 40000 shares of

Series Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock with

liquidation preference of $25000 per share the Series

Preferred Stock The Series Preferred Stock has no

stated maturity and will not be subject to any sinking fund or

other obligation of the Company Dividends if declared will

accrue and be payable quarterly in arrears at rate per

annum equal to the greater of three-month LIBOR plus

.60 percent or 3.50 percent The Series Preferred Stock is

redeemable at the Companys option subject to the prior

approval of the Federal Reserve Board

During 2013 2012 and 2011 the Company repurchased

shares of its common stock under various authorizations

approved by its Board of Directors As of December 31 2013

the approximate dollar value of shares that may yet be

purchased by the Company under the current Board of

Directors approved authorization was $488 million

Shares value

65 $2336

59 1878

22 550

The following table summarizes the Companys common stock repurchased in each of the last three years

Dollars and 5hares in Millions

2013

2012

2011
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Dollars in Millions

2013

Balance at beginning of period

Changes in unrealized gains and

losses

Other-than-temporary impairment not

recognized in earnings on

securities available-for-sale

Foreign currency translation

adjustment

Reclassification to earnings of

realized gains and losses

Applicable income taxes

Balance at end of period

2012

Balance at beginning of period

Changes in unrealized gains and

losses

Other-than-temporary impairment not

recognized in earnings on

securities available-for-sale

Transfer of securities from available-

for-sale to held-to-maturity

Foreign currency translation

adjustment

Reclassification to earnings of

realized gains and losses

Applicable income taxes

Balance at end of period

2011

Balance at beginning of period

Changes in unrealized gains and

losses

Other-than-temporary impairment not

recognized in earnings on

securities available-for-sale

Foreign currency translation

adjustment

Reclassification to earnings of

realized gains and losses

Applicable income taxes

Balance at end of period

Shareholders equity is affected by transactions and valuations of asset and liability positions that require adjustments to

accumulated other comprehensive income loss The reconciliation of the transactions affecting accumulated other

comprehensive income loss included in shareholders equity for the years ended December 31 is as follows

unrealized Gains

Losses on

Securities

Available-For-Sale

Unrealized Gains

Losses on

Securities

Transferred From

Available-For-Sale

to Held-To-Maturity

Unrealized Gains

Losses on

Derivative Hedges

Unrealized Gains

Losses on

Retirement Plans

Foreign currency

Translation Total

679 $107 $404 $1265 $40 923

1223 37 590 596

34 34

373

14 101

59 192 249

468 22 86 317

77 70 $261 743 $60 $1071

360 $489 $1022 $49 $1200

715 74 543 98

12 12

224 224

14 14

15 51 211 150 325

199 66 52 150 172

679 $107 $404 $1265 $40 923

213 $414 803 $39 $1469

920 343 464 113

25 25

16 16

31 222 110 363

353 46 135 166

360 $489 $1022 $49 $1200
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Add tional detail about the impact to net income for items reclassified out of accumulated other comprehensive income and

into earnings for the year ended December 31 2013 is as follows

Dollars in Millions

Unrealized gains losses on securities available-for-sale

Realized gains losses on sale of securities

Other-than-temporary impairment recognized in earnings

Impact to

Net Income

23

14

Affected Line Item in the

consolidated Statement of Income

Total securities gains losses net

Total before tax

Applicable income taxes

Net-of-tax

Unrealized gains losses on securities transferred from available-tor-sale to

held-to-maturity

Amortization of unrealized gains

Unrealized gains losses on derivative hedges

Realized gains losses on derivative hedges

Unrealized gains losses on retirement plans

Actuarial gains losses prior service cost credit and transition obligation asset

amortization

59 Interest income

22 Applicable income taxes

37 Net-of-tax

192 Net interest income

74 Applicable income taxes

118 Net-of-tax

249 Employee benefits expense

96 Applicable income taxes

153 Net-ct-tax

Total impact to net income $229

Regulatory Capital The measures used to assess capital

by bank regulatory agencies include two principal risk-

based ratios Tier and total risk-based capital Tier

capital is considered core capital and includes common

shareholders equity plus qualifying preferred stock trust

preferred securities and noncontrolling interests in

consolidated subsidiaries subject to certain limitations and

is adjusted for the aggregate impact of certain items

inclLlded in other comprehensive income loss Total risk-

based capital includes Tier capital and other items such as

subordinated debt and the allowance for credit losses Both

measures are stated as percentage of risk-adjusted

assets which are measured based on their perceived credit

risk and include certain off-balance sheet exposures such

as unfunded loan commitments letters of credit and

derivative contracts The Company is also subject to

leverage ratio requirement non risk-based asset ratio

which is defined as Tier capital as percentage of average

assets adjusted for goodwill and other non-qualifying

intangibles and other assets

For summary of the regulatory capital requirements

and the actual ratios as of December31 2013 and 2012 for

the Company and its bank subsidiary see Table 22 included

in Managements Discussion and Analysis which is

incorporated by reference into these Notes to Consolidated

Financial Statements
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The following table provides the components of the Companys regulatory capital at December 31

Dollars in Millions 2013 2012

Tier Capital

Common shareholders equity 36357 34229

Qualifying preferred stock 4756 4769

Noncontrolling interests less preferred stock not eligible for Tier capital 688 685

Less intangible assets

Goodwill net of deferred tax liability 8343 8351
Other disallowed intangible assets 708 829

Other 636 700

Total Tier Capital 33386 31203

Tier Capital

Eligible portion of allowance for credit losses 3734 3609

Eligible subordinated debt 2299 2953

Other 79 15

Total Tier Capital 5954 6577

Total Risk Based Capital 39340 37780

Risk-Weighted Assets $297919 $287611

Includes the impact of items included in ether comprehensive income loss such as unrealized gains losses on available-for-sale securities accumulated net gains on cash flow

hedges pension liability adjustments etc

Noncontrolling interests principally represent third party

investors interests in consolidated entities including

preferred stock of consolidated subsidiaries During 2006

the Companys banking subsidiary formed USB Realty

Corp real estate investment trust for the purpose of

issuing 5000 shares of Fixed-to-Floating Rate Exchangeable

Non-cumulative Perpetual Series Preferred Stock with

liquidation preference of $100000 per share Series

Preferred Securities to third party investors Dividends on

the Series Preferred Securities if declared will accrue and

be payable quarterly in arrears at rate per annum equal to

three-month LIBOR plus 1.147 percent If USB Realty Corp

has not declared dividend on the Series Preferred

NOTE 15 Earnings Per Share

Securities before the dividend payment date for any

dividend period such dividend shall not be cumulative and

shall cease to accrue and be payable and USB Realty Corp

will have no obligation to pay dividends accrued for such

dividend period whether or not dividends on the Series

Preferred Securities are declared for any future dividend

period

The Series Preferred Securities will be redeemable in

whole or in part at the option of USB Realty Corp on each

fifth anniversary after the dividend payment date occurring in

January 2012 Any redemption will be subject to the

approval of the Office of the Comptroller of the Currency

The components of earnings per share were

Year Ended December 31

Dollars and Shares in Millions Except Per Share Data

Net income attributable to U.S Bancorp

Preferred dividends

Impact of preferred stock redemption

Earnings allocated to participating stock awards

2013 2012 2011

$5836 $5647 $4872

250 238 129

26 26 22

Net income applicable to U.S Bancorp common shareholders $5552 $5383 $4721

Average common shares outstanding 1839 1887 1914

Net effect of the exercise and assumed purchase of stock awards 10

Average diluted common shares outstanding 1849 1896 1923

Earnings per common share 3.02 2.85 2.47

Diluted earnings per common share 3.00 2.84 2.46

Represents stock issuance costs originally recorded in capital surplus upon the issuance of the Companys Series Non-Cumulative Perpetual Preferred Stock that were reclassified to

retained earnings on the redemption date
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Options outstanding at December 31 2013 2012 and

2011 to purchase million 22 million and 54 million

common shares respectively were not included in the

computation of diluted earnings per share for the years

ended December31 2013 2012 and 2011 respectively

because they were antidilutive Convertible senior

debentures outstanding at December 31 2012 and 2011

that could potentially be converted into shares of the

Companys common stock pursuant to specified formulas

were not included in the computation of dilutive earnings per

share for the years ended December 31 2012 and 2011

because they were antidilutive

NOTE 16 Employee Benefits

Employee Retirement Savings Plan The Company has

defined contribution retirement savings plan that covers

substantially all its employees Qualified employees are

alloed to contribute up to 75 percent of their annual

compensation subject to Internal Revenue Service limits

through salary deductions under Section 401k of the Internal

Revenue Code Employee contributions are invested at their

direction among variety of investment alternatives Employee

contributions are 100 percent matched by the Company up to

four percent of an employees eligible annual compensation

The Companys matching contribution vests immediately

Beghning with the 2013 matching contribution paid in January

2014 the matching contribution will be invested in the same

manner as an employees future contribution elections

Previously the matching contribution was initially invested in

the Companys common stock and the employee was able to

reinvest the matching contribution among various investment

alternatives Total expense for the Companys matching

contributions was $118 million $111 million and $103 million in

2013 2012 and 2011 respectively

Pension Plans The Company has tax qualified

noncontributory defined benefit pension plans that provide

benefits to substantially all its employees Participants

receive annual cash balance pay credits based on eligible

pay multiplied by percentage determined by their age and

years of service Participants also receive an annual interest

credit Employees become vested upon completing three

years of vesting service For participants in the plan before

2010 that elected to stay under their existing formula

pension benefits are provided to eligible employees based

on years of service multiplied by percentage of their final

average pay Additionally as result of plan mergers

portion of pension benefits may also be provided using

cash balance benefit formula where only interest credits

continue to be credited to participants accounts

In general the Companys qualified pension plans

funding objectives include maintaining funded status

sufficient to meet participant benefit obligations over time

while reducing long-term funding requirements and pension

costs The Company has an established process for

evaluating all of the plans their performance and significant

plan assumptions including the assumed discount rate and

the long-term rate of return LTROR Annually the

Companys Compensation and Human Resources

Committee the Committee assisted by outside

consultants evaluates plan objectives funding policies and

plan investment policies considering its long-term investment

time horizon and asset allocation strategies The process

also evaluates significant plan assumptions Although plan

assumptions are established annually the Company may

update its analysis on an interim basis in order to be

responsive to significant events that occur during the year

such as plan mergers and amendments

The Companys funding policy is to contribute amounts

to its plans sufficient to meet the minimum funding

requirements of the Employee Retirement Income Security

Act of 1974 as amended by the Pension Protection Act plus

such additional amounts as the Company determines to be

appropriate The Company made contributions of

$296 million and $35 million to its main pension plan in 2013

and 2012 respectively and anticipates making contributions

of $185 million to its main pension plan in 2014 Any

contributions made to the qualified plans are invested in

accordance with established investment policies and asset

allocation strategies

In addition to the funded qualified pension plans the

Company maintains non-qualified plans that are unfunded

and provide benefits to certain employees The assumptions

used in computing the accumulated benefit obligation the

projected benefit obligation and net pension expense are

substantially consistent with those assumptions used for the

funded qualified plans In 2014 the Company expects to

contribute $20 million to its non-qualified pension plans

which equals the 2014 expected benefit payments

Postretirement Welfare Plan In addition to providing

pension benefits the Company provides health care and

death benefits to certain former employees who retired prior

to January 2014 Employees retiring after December 31

2013 are not eligible for retiree health care benefits This

plan change decreased the plans benefit obligation by $35

million during 2013 which will be amortized as reduction to

plan expense over the remaining life of the plan participants

The Company expects to contribute $9 million to its

postretirement welfare plan in 2014
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The following table summarizes the changes in benefit obligations and plan assets for the years ended December 31 and the

funded status and amounts recognized in the Consolidated Balance Sheet at December 31 for the retirement plans

Postretirement

Pension Plans Welfare Plan

Dollars in Millions
2013 2012 2013 2012

Change In Projected Benefit Obligation

Benefit obligation at beginning of measurement period 4096 3261 $142 $170

Service cost 168 129

Interest cost 170 168

Participants contributions 10 10

Plan amendments 35
Actuarial loss gain 388 681 26
Lump sum settlements 34 33
Benefit payments 117 110 24 26
Federal subsidy on benefits paid

Benefit obligation at end of measurement period 3895 4096 $100 $142

Change In Fair Value Of Plan Assets

Fair value at beginning of measurement period 2321 2103 $105 $120

Actual return on plan assets 343 305

Employer contributions 318 56

Participants contributions 10 10

Lump sum settlements 34 33
Benefit payments 117 110 24 26

Fair value at end of measurement period 2831 2321 92 $105

Funded Unfunded Status $1064 $1775 $37

Components Of The Consolidated Balance Sheet

Current benefit liability 20 23
Noncurrent benefit

liability 1044 1752 37

Recognized amount $1064 $1775 $37

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income Loss Pretax

Net actuarial gain loss $1333 $2152 75 84

Net prior service credit cost 16 21 34

Recognized amount $1317 $2131 $109 84

At December31 2013 and 2012 the accumulated benefit obligation for all pension plans was $3.6 billion and $3.8 billion respectively

The following table provides information for pension plans with benefit obligations in excess of plan assets at December 31

Dollars in Millions 2013 2012

Pension Plans with Projected Benefit Obligations in Excess of Plan Assets

Proiected benefit obligation $3853 $4096

Fair value of plan assets 2787 2321

Pension Plans with Accumulated Benefit Obligations in Excess of Plan Assets

Projected benefit obligation $3853 $4096

Accumulated benefit obligation 3566 3776

Fair value of plan assets 2787 2321
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The following table sets forth the components of net periodic benefit cost and other amounts recognized in accumulated other

Components Of Net Periodic Benefit Cost

Service cost

Interest cost

Expected return on plan assets

Prior service cost credit and transition obligation asset

amortization

Actuarial loss gain amortization

Net periodic benefit cost

Other Changes In Plan Assets And Benefit Obligations

Recognized In Other Comprehensive Income Loss
Net actuarial gain loss arising during the year

Net actuarial loss gain amortized during the year

Net prior service credit cost arising during the year

Net prior service cost credit and transition obligation asset amortized

during the year

Total recognized in other comprehensive income loss

$168 $129 $119

170 168 169

176 191 207

264 161 125

Total recognized in net periodic benefit cost and other

comprehensive income loss ab 393 $673 $555 $30 $14

The lollowing table sets forth weighted average assumptions used to determine the projected benefit obligations at

December 31
Postretirement

Pension Plans Welfare Plan

Dollars in Millions
2013

--

2012 2013

Discount rate 4.97%

Rate of compensation increase 4.02

Dollars in Millions

comprehensive income loss for the years ended December 31 for the retirement plans

2013 2012

Pension Plans Postretirement Welfare Plan

2011 2013 2012 2011

421

$3 $5 $4

263 197 $5 $3 $2

555

264

$567
161

$474
125

814

$24

35

$10

$410 $358 $17

The pretax estimated actuarial loss gain and prior service cost credit for the pension plans that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income loss into net

periodic benefit cost in 2014 are $t58 million and $5 million respectively

The pretax estimated actuarial loss gain and prior service cost credit for the postretirement welfare plan
that will be amortized from accumulated other comprehensive income loss

into net periodic benefit cost in 20t4 are $6 million and $3 million respectively

Health care cost trend rate for the next year

Effect on accumulated postretirement benefit obligation

Orte percent increase

One percent decrease

4.07%

4.08

2012

3.93% 3.10%

The discount rates were developed using
cash flow matching bond model wiTh modified duration for the qualified pension plans non-qualified pension plans and postretirement

weifare plan of 14 and years respectively for 2013 and t5 t2 and 72 years respectively for 20 t2

Determined on an active liability weighted basis

The rate is assumed to decrease gradually to 5.0 percent by 20 tg and remain at this level thereafter

Not applicable

7.50% 8.00%

$5 $5
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The following table sets forth weighted average assumptions used to determine net periodic benefit cost for the years ended

December 31

Dollars in Millions 2013

Discount rate 4.07%

Expected return on plan assets 7.50

Rate of compensation increase 4.08

Health care cost trend rate

Prior to age 65

After age 65

Effect on total of service cost and interest cost

One percent increase

One percent decrease

Postretirement Welfare Plan

2013 2012 2011

3.10% 4.30% 4.90%

1.50 2.25 3.50

The discount rates were developed using cash flow matching bond model with mod/fled duration for the qualified pension plans non-qualified pens/on plans and postrelirement

welfare plan of 159 122 and 7.2 years respectively for 2013 and 14.8 11 and 7.7 years respectively for 2012

With the help of an independent pension consultant the Company considers several sources when developing its expected long-term rates of return on plan assets assumptions

including but not limited to past returns and estimates of future returns given the plans asset allocation economic conditions and peer group TROR in format/on

The Company determined its 2013 expected long-term rates of return reflecting current economic conditions and plan assets The decrease in the pension plans TROR is primarily

due to an increase in the debt securities target asset allocation from 10 percent as of December31 2011 to 30 percent as of December31 2013

Determined on an active liability weighted basis

The pre-65 and post-65 rates are both assumed to decrease gradually to 00 percent by 2019 and remain at that level thereafter

Not applicable

Investment Policies and Asset Allocation In

establishing its investment policies and asset allocation

strategies the Company considers expected returns and the

volatility
associated with different strategies An independent

consultant performs modeling that projects numerous

outcomes using broad range of possible scenarios

including mix of possible rates of inflation and economic

growth Starting with current economic information the

model bases its projections on past relationships between

inflation fixed income rates and equity returns when these

types of economic conditions have existed over the previous

30 years both in the U.S and in foreign countries Estimated

future returns and other actuarially determined adjustments

are also considered in calculating the estimated return on

assets

Generally based on historical performance of the

various investment asset classes investments in equities

have outperformed other investment classes but are subject

to higher volatility In an effort to reduce volatility while

recognizing the long-term up-side potential of investing in

equities the Committee increased the target asset allocation

to 30 percent debt securities for the Companys qualified

pension plans at December 31 2013 The remaining target

asset allocation at December 31 2013 was 35 percent

passively managed global equities percent actively

managed global equities percent mid-small cap equities

percent emerging markets equities percent real estate

equities percent hedge funds and percent private

equity The target asset allocation at December 31 2012

was 35 percent passively managed global equities 25

percent actively managed global equities 10 percent mid-

small cap equities percent emerging markets equities

percent real estate equities and 20 percent debt

securities

At December 31 2013 and 2012 plan assets of the

qualified pension plans included asset management

arrangements with related parties totaling $119 million and

$168 million respectively

Under contractual agreement with U.S Bancorp Asset

Management Inc an affiliate of the Company certain plan

assets were lent to qualified borrowers on short-term basis

in exchange for investment fee income These borrowers

collateralized the loaned securities with either cash or non-

cash securities In 2013 the qualified pension plan

discontinued its participation in the securities lending

program Cash collateral held at December 31 2012 totaled

$14 million with an obligation to return the cash collateral of

$20 million

In accordance with authoritative accounting guidance

the Company groups plan assets into three-level hierarchy

for valuation techniques used to measure their fair value

based on whether the valuation inputs are observable or

unobservable Refer to Note 21 for further discussion on these

levels

The assets of the qualified pension plans include

investments in equity and U.S Treasury securities whose fair

values are determined based on quoted prices in active

markets and are classified within Level of the fair value

hierarchy The qualified pension plans also invest in

collective investment and mutual funds whose fair values are

determined using the net asset value provided by the

administrator of the fund and are classified as Level In

addition the qualified pension plans invest in debt securities

and foreign currency transactions that are valued using third

party pricing services and are classified as Level In 2012

the qualified pension plan invested in money market

mutual fund with cash collateral from its securities lending

arrangement whose fair value was determined based on

Pension Plans

2012

5.07%

8.00

4.05

2011

5.66%

8.25

4.02

8.00% 8.00% 8.00%

800 12.00 14.00
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Postretirement

Pension Plans Welfare Plan

Dollars in Millions

Cash and cash equivalents

Debt securities

Corporate stock

Domestic equity securities

Mid-small cap equity securities

International equity securities

Real estate equity securities

Collective investment funds

Domestic equity securities

Mid-small cap equity securities

Emerging markets equity securities

International equity securities

Mutual funds

Money market

Dect securities

Emerging markets equity securities

Hedge funds

Other

Total

62

217 343

Debt Hedge

Dollars in Millions
Securities Funds

Balance at beginning of period

Unrealized gains losses relating to assets

still held at end of year

Purchases sales and settlements net

Balance at end of period

Dollais in Millions

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

20182023

Net of expected retiree contributions and before Medicare Part subsidy

Level Level Level

119

151 114

129

71

$1135 $1196 $10

$15

14

13

12

11

44

quoted prices in markets that are less active and was

class fled as Level The qualified pension plans invest in

hedge funds and private equity funds whose fair values are

determined using the net asset value provided by the fund

administrators The Companys ability to redeem at net asset

value is currently restricted and accordingly the

investments in hedge and private equity funds are classified

as Level Additionally the qualified pension plans invest in

limited partnership interests and in debt securities whose

fair values are determined by the Company by analyzing the

limited partnerships audited financial statements and by

averaging the prices obtained from independent pricing

services respectively These securities are classified as

Level

The following table summarizes the plan investment assets measured at fair value at December 31

Level Level Level

2013 2012 2013 2012

Level

$92

217

1413

229

137

275

173

285

132

400

59

61

362

538

58

58

472

177

75

Level

$105

$105

103

$1010 $1714 $107 $92

At Liecember 31 2013 and 20t2 securities included $14 million and $164 million in domestic equities respectively and $7 million and $9 million in international equities respectively

At Ltecember 2013 and 2012 securities included $67 million and $66 million in domestic equities respectively and $70 million and $66 million in international equities respectively

At December 3t 2013 and 2012 securities included $26 million and $24 million in domestic equities respectively $22 million and $t6 million in international equities respectively and

$10 million and $19 million in cash and cash equivalents respectively

The category consists of several investment strategies diversified across several hedge fund managers

Total investment assets of the pension plans exclude obligations to return cash collateral to qualified borrowers of $20 million at December 31 2012 undet security lending

arrangements

The following table summarizes the changes in fair value for all plan investment assets measured at fair value using significant

unobservable inputs Level for the years ended December 31

2013 2012 2011

Other

Debt

Securities Other

$7 $3

103

$103 $4

$7 $6

Debt

Securities Other

$8 $6

$7 $6$7 $3

The ollowing benefit payments are expected to be paid from the retirement plans for the years ended December 31

Pension Postretirement Medicare Part

Plsns Welfare Plans Subsidy Receipts

169

177

189

200

205

1205

$2
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NOTE 17 Stock-Based Compensation

As part of its employee and director compensation

programs the Company may grant certain stock awards

under the provisions of the existing stock compensation

plans including plans assumed in acquisitions The plans

provide for grants of options to purchase shares of common

stock at fixed price equal to the fair value of the underlying

stock at the date of grant Option grants are generally

exercisable up to ten years from the date of grant In

addition the plans provide for grants of shares of common

stock or stock units that are subject to restriction on transfer

prior to vesting Most stock and unit awards vest over three

to five years and are subject to forfeiture if certain vesting

requirements are not met Stock incentive plans of acquired

companies are generally terminated at the merger closing

dates Participants under such plans receive the Companys

common stock or options to buy the Companys stock

based on the conversion terms of the various merger

agreements At December 31 2013 there were 54 million

shares subject to adjustment for forfeitures available for

grant under various plans

The following is summary of stock options outstanding and exercised under various stock option plans of the Company

Stock Option Awards

Year Ended December 31

Weighted- Weighted-Average

Stock Average Remaining contractual

Options/Shares Exercise Price Term

Aggregate

Intrinsic value

in millions

2013

Number outstanding at beginning of period 63171918 $28.83

Granted 1168011 3399

Exercised 17260740 28.41

Cancelled 354424 29.22

Number outstanding at end of period 46724765 $29.12 4.4 527

Exercisable at end of period 39556000 $29.19 3.8 444

2012

Number outstanding at beginning of period 75823941 $27.60

Granted 4180492 28.65

Exercised 15681323 23.12

Cancelled 1151192 24.90

Number outstanding at end of period 63171918 $28.83 4.9 196

Exercisable at end of period 50671654 $30.12 4.2 92

2011

Number outstanding at beginning of period 85622705 $26.80

Granted 4063369 28.66

Exercised 8508107 19.49

Cancelled 5354026 28.44

Number outstanding at end of period 75823941 $27.60 5.2 42
Exercisable at end of period 57039334 $29.14 4.4 $120

Options cancelled include both non-vested i.e forfeitures and vested options

Outstanding options include stock-based awards that may be forfeited in future periods The impact of the estimated forfeitures is reflected in compensation expense

Stock-based compensation expense is based on the estimated fair value of the award at the date of grant or modification The

fair value of each option award is estimated on the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model requiring the

use of subjective assumptions Because employee stock options have characteristics that differ from those of traded options

including vesting provisions and trading limitations that impact their liquidity the determined value used to measure

compensation expense may vary from their actual fair value The following table includes the weighted average estimated fair

value and assumptions utilized by the Company for newly issued grants

Year Ended December31 2013 2012 2011

Estimated fair value $12.13 $10.19 $10.55

Risk-free interest rates 1.0% .9% 2.5%

Dividend yield 2.6% 2.6% 2.5%

Stock volatility factor .49 .49 .47

Expected life of options in years 5.5 5.5 5.5
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Expected stock volatility is based on several factors

including the historical volatility of the Companys stock

implied volatility
determined from traded options and other

factors The Company uses historical data to estimate option

exercises and employee terminations to estimate the

The following summarizes certain stock option activity of the Company

Year Ended December31 Dollars in Millions

fhe total fair value of shares vested was $127 million

$86 million and $72 million for the years ended December

31 2013 2012 and 2011 respectively Stock-based

compensation expense was $129 million $129 million and

$118 million for the years ended December31 2013 2012

and 2011 respectively On an after-tax basis stock-based

comoensation was $80 million $80 million and $73 mIllion

expected life of options The risk-free interest rate for the

expected life of the options is based on the U.S Treasury

yield curve in effect on the date of grant The expected

dividend yield is based on the Companys expected

dividend yield over the life of the options

for the years ended December 31 2013 2012 and 2011

respectively As of December31 2013 there was $142

million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to

nonvested share-based arrangements granted under the

plans That cost is expected to be recognized over

weighted-average period of 2.4 years as compensation

expense

2013 2012 2011

Fair value of options vested
41 49 54

Intrinsic value of options exercised 144 143 61

Cash received from options exercised
489 362 165

Tax benefit realized from options exercised 56 75 23

To satisfy option exercises the Company predominantly uses treasury stock

Addilional information regarding stock options outstanding as of December 31 2013 is as follows

Outstanding Options Exercisable Options

Weighted-

Average Weighted- Weighted-

Remaining Average Average

contractual Exercise Exercise

Range of Exercise Prices Shares Life Years Price Shares Price

$11.02$15.00 4661087 5.1 $11.39 4661087 $11.40

$15.01 $20.00 167391 2.4 19.54 167391 19.54

$20.01 $25.00 3390179 6.2 23.85 2216001 23.84

$25.01 $30.00 13108918 5.2 29.05 8276837 29.29

$30.01 $35.00 17999955 3.9 31.97 16837858 31.83

$35.01 $36.25 7397235 3.1 36.07 7396826 36.07

Total 46724765 4.4 $29.12 39556000 $29.19

Restricted Stock and Unit Awards

summary of the status of the Companys restricted shares of stock and unit awards is presented below

2013 2012 2011

Weighted- Weighted- Weighted-

Average Grant- Average Grant- Average Grant-

Year Ended December 31 Shares Date Fair Value Shares Date Fair Value Shares Date Fair Value

Nonvested Shares

Outstanding at beginning of period 8935743 $25.04 8995295 $22.46 8811027 $19.74

Granted 3717635 33.88 3085077 2870 3136086 28.20

Vested 3744411 22.17 2931820 20.97 2552979 20.15

Cancelled 255108 29.18 212809 25.01 398839 22.20

Outstanding at end of period 8653859 $29.96 8935743 $25.04 8995295 $22.46
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NOTE 18 Income Taxes

The components of income tax expense were

Year Ended December31 Dollars in Millions

The total amount of unrecognized tax positions that if

recognized would impact the effective income tax rate as of

December 31 2013 2012 and 2011 were $181 million $240

million and $220 million respectively The Company

classifies interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax

positions as component of income tax expense At

2013 2012 2011

December31 2013 the Companys uncertain tax position

balance included $27 million in accrued interest During the

years ended December 31 2013 2012 and 2011 the

Company recorded approximately $12 million $8 million

and $2 million respectively in interest on unrecognized tax

positions

Federal

Current $1885 $1853 907

Deferred 83 45 689

Federal income tax 1802 1898 1596

State

Current 216 334 186

Deferred 14 59

State income tax 230 338 245

Total income tax provision $2032 $2236 $1841

reconciliation of expected income tax expense at the federal statutory rate of 35 percent to the Companys applicable

income tax expense follows

Year Ended December31 Dollars in Millions 2013 2012 2011

Tax at statutory rate $2717 $2704 $2320

State income tax at statutory rates net of federal tax benefit 150 220 159

Tax effect of

Tax credits net of related expenses 648 479 458
Tax-exempt income 212 219 226
Noncontrolling interests 37 55 29

Other items 12 45 17

Applicable income taxes $2032 $2236 $1841

Excludes tax credits of $473 million for the year ended December31 2013 which were recognized as reduction to the related investment asset

The tax effects of fair value adjustments on securities authorities that may give rise to differing interpretations of

available-for-sale derivative instruments in cash flow these complex laws regulations and methods Due to the

hedges foreign currency translation adjustments pension nature of the examination process it generally takes years

and post-retirement plans and certain tax benefits related to before these examinations are completed and matters are

stock options are recorded directly to shareholders equity resolved Federal tax examinations for all years ending

as part of other comprehensive income loss through December 31 2010 are completed and resolved

In preparing its tax returns the Company is required to The Companys tax returns for the years ended

interpret complex tax laws and regulations and utilize income December31 2011 and 2012 are under examination by the

and cost allocation methods to determine its taxable income Internal Revenue Service The years open to examination by

On an ongoing basis the Company is subject to state and local government authorities vary by jurisdiction

examinations by federal state local and foreign taxing

reconciliation of the changes in the federal state and foreign unrecognized tax position balances are summarized as

follows

Year Ended December31 Dollars in Millions 2013 2012 2011

Balance at beginning of period $302 479 $532

Additions for tax positions taken in prior years 44 73 24

Additions for tax positions taken in the current year

Exam resolutions 56 245 70
Statute expirations 26 10

Balance at end of period $264 302 $479
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The significant components of the Companys net deferred tax asset liability follows

AtDecmber 31 Dollars in Millions
2013 2012

Deferred Tax Assets

Allowance for credit losses 1722 1756

Accrued expenses
485 476

Pension and postretirement benefits
277 523

Securities available-for-sale and financial instruments 172

Stock compensation
165 183

Federal state and foreign net operating loss carryforwards
72 60

Partnerships and other investment assets
646 395

Other deferred tax assets net
179 180

Gross deferred tax assets
3718 3573

Deferred Tax Liabilities

Leasiig activities
2872 2792

Mortgage servicing rights
835 490

Goodwill and other intangible assets 666 565

Loans 211 168

Fixed assets
147 201

Securities available-for-sale and financial instruments 232

Other deferred tax liabilities net 210 361

Gross deferred tax liabilities
4941 4809

Valuation allowance
82 84

Net Deferred Tax Asset Liability sf1305 $1320

NOTE 19 Derivative Instruments

In the ordinary course of business the Company enters into

derivative transactions to manage various risks and to

accommodate the business requirements of its customers

The Company recognizes all derivatives on the Consolidated

Balance Sheet at fair value in other assets or in other liabilities

On the date the Company enters into derivative contract the

derivative is designated as either hedge of the fair value of

recognized asset or liability fair value hedge hedge of

forecasted transaction or the variability of cash flows to be

received or paid related to recognized asset or liability

cash flow hedge hedge of the volatility
of an investment

in foeign operations driven by changes in foreign currency

exchange rates net investment hedge or designation is

not made as it is customer-related transaction an economic

hedge for asset/liability risk management purposes or another

stand-alone derivative created through the Companys

operations free-standing derivative When derivative is

designated as fair value cash flow or net investment hedge

the Company performs an assessment at inception and at

minimum quarterly thereafter to determine the effectiveness

of the derivative in offsetting changes in the value or cash

flows of the hedged items

Fair Value Hedges These derivatives are interest rate

swaps the Company uses to hedge the change in fair value

related to interest rate changes of its underlying fixed-rate

debt Changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as

fair value hedges and changes in the fair value of the

hedged items are recorded in earnings All fair value

hedges were highly effective for the year ended

December31 2013 and the change in fair value attributed

to hedge ineffectiveness was not material

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities reflect the tax

effect of estimated temporary differences between the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for financial

reporting purposes and the amounts used for the same

items for income tax reporting purposes

The Company has approximately $579 million of federal

state and foreign net operating loss carryforwards which

expire at various times through 2033 Limitations on the

abiliti to realize these carryforwards is reflected in the

associated valuation allowance Management has

determined it is more likely
than not the other net deferred

tax assets could be realized through carry back to taxable

income in prior years future reversals of existing taxable

temporary differences and future taxable income

At December 31 2013 retained earnings included

approximately $102 million of base year reserves of acquired

thrift institutions for which no deferred federal income tax

liability has been recognized These base year reserves

would be recaptured if the Companys banking subsidiaries

cease to qualify as bank for federal income tax purposes

The base year reserves also remain subject to income tax

penalty provisions that in general require recapture upon

certain stock redemptions of and excess distributions to

stockholders

120 U.S BANCORP



Cash Flow Hedges These derivatives are interest rate

swaps the Company uses to hedge the forecasted cash

flows from its underlying variable-rate loans and debt

Changes in the fair value of derivatives designated as cash

flow hedges are recorded in other comprehensive income

loss until the cash flows of the hedged items are realized If

derivative designated as cash flow hedge is terminated

or ceases to be highly effective the gain or loss in other

comprehensive income loss is amortized to earnings over

the period the forecasted hedged transactions impact

earnings If hedged forecasted transaction is no longer

probable hedge accounting is ceased and any gain or loss

included in other comprehensive income loss is reported in

earnings immediately unless the forecasted transaction is at

least reasonably possible of occurring whereby the amounts

remain within other comprehensive income loss At

December 31 2013 the Company had $261 million net-of-

tax of realized and unrealized losses on derivatives

classified as cash flow hedges recorded in other

comprehensive income loss compared with $404 million

net-of-tax at December 31 2012 The estimated amount to

be reclassified from other comprehensive income loss into

earnings during the next 12 months is loss of $117 million

net-of-tax This amount includes gains and losses related to

hedges that were terminated early for which the forecasted

transactions are still probable All cash flow hedges were

highly effective for the year ended December 31 2013 and

the change in fair value attributed to hedge ineffectiveness

was not material

Net Investment Hedges The Company uses forward

commitments to sell specified amounts of certain foreign

currencies and occasionally non-derivative debt

instruments to hedge the volatility of its investment in foreign

operations driven by fluctuations in foreign currency

exchange rates The ineffectiveness on all net investment

hedges was not material for the year ended December 31

2013 There were no non-derivative debt instruments

designated as net investment hedges at December 31 2013

or 2012

Other Derivative Positions The Company enters into

free-standing derivatives to mitigate interest rate risk and for

other risk management purposes These derivatives include

forward commitments to sell to-be-announced securities

TBAs and other commitments to sell residential mortgage

loans which are used to economically hedge the interest

rate risk related to residential mortgage loans held for sale

MLHFS and unfunded mortgage loan commitments The

Company also enters into interest rate swaps forward

commitments to buy TBAs U.S Treasury futures and options

on U.S Treasury futures to economically hedge the change

in the fair value of the Companys MSRs The Company also

enters into foreign currency forwards to economically hedge

remeasurement gains and losses the Company recognizes

on foreign currency denominated assets and liabilities In

addition the Company acts as seller and buyer of interest

rate derivatives and foreign exchange contracts for its

customers To mitigate the market and liquidity risk

associated with these customer derivatives the Company

historically has entered into similar offsetting positions with

broker-dealers In 2014 the Company began to instead

actively manage the risks from its exposure to these

customer-related positions on portfolio basis by entering

into other derivative or non-derivative financial instruments

that partially or fully
offset the exposure from these customer-

related positions The Company also has derivative contracts

that are created through its operations including

commitments to originate MLHFS

For additional information on the Companys purpose for

entering into derivative transactions and its overall risk

management strategies refer to Management Discussion

and Analysis Use of Derivatives to Manage Interest Rate

and Other Risks which is incorporated by reference into

these Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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The following table summarizes the asset and
liability management derivative positions of the Company

Dollars in Millions

December 31 2013

Fair value hedges

Interest rate contracts

Receive fixed/pay floating swaps

Cash flow hedges

Interest rate contracts

Pay fixed/receive floating swaps

Receive fixed/pay floating swaps

Net investment hedges

Foreign exchange forward contracts

Other economic hedges

Interest rate contracts

Futures and forwards

Buy

Sell

Options

Purchased

Written

Receive fixed/pay floating swaps

Foreign exchange forward contracts

Equity contracts

Credit contracts

Total

December 31 2012

Fair value hedges

Interest rate contracts

Receive fixed/pay floating swaps

Cash flow hedges

Interest rate contracts

Fay fixed/receive floating swaps

Receive fixed/pay floating swaps

Net investment hedges

Foreign exchange forward contracts

Other economic hedges

Interest rate contracts

Futures and forwards

Buy

Sell

Opt ions

Purchased

Written

Feceive fixed/pay floating swaps

Foreicn exchange forward contracts

Equity contracts

Credit contracts

Total

2300

1902 17

6813 24

79

1209

$28119 $189

2435

4991 123

350

618

31

1056

$35234 $363

.04

.09

.06

10.21

.01

2.46

3.11

Asset Derivatives

Weighted-Average

Remaining

Notional Fair Maturity

value value In Years

Liability Derivatives

Weighted-Average

Remaining

Notional Fair Maturity

value Value In Years

500 $22

772

7000

2310

5234

26

26

58

4288 498

1056

2.09

6.25

.84

.07

.08

.07

.07

.02

1.62

4.04

3.09

9.88

1.84

1025

346

3540

2121

2352

56

2.46

.04

.06

.17

08

10.22

.02

3.08

3.79

500 330

32

7000 45

758 .07

11164 138

6299 18

$14730 $580

4528 718

2921 13

12223 57

3775 14

1383

27

1947 10

.07

.11

.07

.12

10.21

.03

2.80

4.56

$26808 $818
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The following table summarizes the customer-related derivative positions of the Company

Dollars in Millions

December 31 2013

Interest rate contracts

Receive fixed/pay floating swaps

Pay fixed/receive floating swaps

Options

Purchased

Written

Foreign exchange rate contracts

Forwards spots and swaps

Options

Purchased

Written
__________ ____________

Total

December 31 2012

Interest rate contracts

Receive fixed/pay floating swaps

Pay fixed/receive floating swaps

Options

Purchased

Written

Foreign exchange rate contracts

Forwards spots and swaps

Options

Purchased

Written
__________________________

Total

The table below shows the effective portion of the gains losses recognized in other comprehensive income loss and the

gains losses reclassified from other comprehensive income loss into earnings net-of-tax for the years ended

December 31

Gains Losses Reclassified from

Other comprehensive Income Lossl

into Earnings

Dollars in Millions
2013 2012 2011 2013 2012 2011

Asset and Liability Management Positions

Cash flow hedges

Interest rate contracts $25 $46 $213 $118 $131 $138

Net investment hedges

Foreign exchange forward contracts 45 19 34

Non-derivative debt instruments 20

Asset Derivatives

Notional

value

Fair

value

Weighted-Average

Remaining

Maturity

In Years

Liability Derivatives

$11717

6746

Weighted-Average

Remaining

Notional Fair Maturity

value value In Years

600

114

3489 33

10970 457

364 11

$33286 $1215

7291 106 5.57

12361 560 4.90

3489 33 4.53

9975 427 .62

364 11 .53

5.11

6.03

4.53

.59

.53

4.78

11.12

5.24

.75

.43

.55

$16671

928

$1085

14

$33480 $1137

1090 15

16923 1042

28

2788 16

11861 286

323

3046 16

286

12186 322

323

$33440 $1443

9.30

4.74

4.42

5.68

.44

.55

$33013 $1365

Gains Losses Recognized in Other

comprehensive Income Loss

Note Ineffectiveness on cash flow and net investment hedges was not material for the years ended Oecember 31 2013 2012 and 2011

Gains Losses reclassified from other comprehensive income loss into interest income on loans and interest expense on long-term debt
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The 1able below shows the gains losses recognized in earnings for fair value hedges other economic hedges and the

customer-related positions for the years ended December 31

Dollars in Millions

Asset and Liability Management Positions

Fair value hedges

Interest rate contracts

Foeign exchange cross-currency swaps

Other economic hedges

Interest rate contracts

utures and forwards

urchased and written options

Receive fixed/pay floating swaps

Pay fixed/received floating swaps

Foreign exchange forward contracts

Equity contracts

Credit contracts

Customer-Related Positions

Interest rate contracts

Receive fixed/pay floating swaps

Pay fixed/receive floating swaps

Foreign exchange rate contracts

Forwards spots and swaps

Mortgage banking revenue

Mortgage banking revenue

Mortgage banking revenue

Mortgage banking revenue

Commercial products revenue

Compensation expense

Other noninterest income/expense

Derivatives are subject to credit risk associated with

counterparties to the derivative contracts The Company

measures that credit risk using credit valuation adjustment

and includes it within the fair value of the derivative The

Corn cany manages counterparty credit risk through

diversification of its derivative positions among various

counterparties by entering into master netting arrangements

and where possible by requiring collateral arrangements

master netting arrangement allows two counterparties who

have multiple derivative contracts with each other the ability

to net settle amounts under all contracts including any

related collateral through single payment and in single

currency Collateral arrangements require the counterparty

to deliver on daily basis collateral typically cash or U.S

Treasury and agency securities equal to the Companys net

derivative receivable For highly-rated counterparties the

collaieral arrangements may include minimum dollar

thresholds but allow for the Company to call for immediate

full collateral coverage when credit-rating thresholds are

triggered by counterparties

The Companys collateral arrangements are

predominately bilateral and therefore contain provisions

that require collateralization of the Companys net liability

derivative positions Required collateral coverage is based

on certain net liability thresholds and contingent upon the

Companys credit rating from two of the nationally

recognized statistical rating organizations If the Companys

credit rating were to fall below credit ratings thresholds

established in the collateral arrangements the

counterparties to the derivatives could request immediate full

collateral coverage for derivatives in net liability positions

The aggregate fair value of all derivatives under collateral

arrangements that were in net liability position at

December 31 2013 was $1.0 billion At December 31 2013

the Company had $792 million of cash posted as collateral

against this net liability position

Location of Gains Losses

Recognized in Earnings 2013 2012

Other noninterest income

Other noninterest income

2011

$36
42 69

615

243

322

49

437

854

175

63

23

456

518

81

Other noninterest income

Other noninterest income

Gains Losses on items hedged by interest rate contracts and foreign exchange forward contracts included in noninterest income expense were $8 million and zero for he year

enoed December 31 2013 respectively $3 million and $44 million for the
year

ended December 31 2012 respectively and $29 million and $72 million for the year ended

December31 20 respectively The ineffective portion was immaterial for the years ended December 31 2013 2012 and 2011

361 118 302

378 124 317

Commercial products revenue 51 50 53
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NOTE 20

The majority of the Companys derivative portfolio consists of

bilateral over-the-counter trades However due to legislative

changes effective during 2013 certain interest rate swaps

and credit contracts need to be centrally cleared through

clearinghouses In addition portion of the Companys

derivative positions are exchange-traded These are

predominately U.S Treasury futures or options on

U.S Treasury futures Of the Companys $109.6 billion of

total notional amount of derivative positions at December 31

2013 $8.3 billion related to those centrally cleared through

clearinghouses and $3.6 billion related to those that were

exchange-traded Irrespective of how derivatives are traded

the Companys derivative contracts include offsetting rights

referred to as netting arrangements and depending on

expected volume credit risk and counterparty preference

collateral maintenance may be required For all derivatives

fair value is determined daily and depending on the

collateral maintenance requirements the Company and

counterparty may receive or deliver collateral based upon

the net fair value of all derivative positions between the

Company and the counterparty Collateral is typically cash

but securities may be allowed under collateral arrangements

with certain counterparties Receivables and payables

related to cash collateral are included in other assets and

other liabilities on the Consolidated Balance Sheet along

with the related derivative asset and liability fair values Any

securities pledged to counterparties as collateral remain on

the Consolidated Balance Sheet Securities received from

counterparties as collateral are not recognized on the

Consolidated Balance Sheet unless the counterparty

defaults Securities used as collateral can be sold re

pledged or otherwise used by the party in possession No

restrictions exist on the use of cash collateral by either party

Refer to Note 19 for further discussion of the Companys

derivatives including collateral arrangements

As part of the Companys treasury and broker-dealer

operations the Company executes transactions that are

treated as securities sold under agreements to repurchase

or securities purchased under agreements to resell both of

which are accounted for as collateralized financings

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase include

repurchase agreements and securities loaned transactions

Securities purchased under agreements to resell include

reverse repurchase agreements and securities borrowed

transactions For securities sold under agreements to

repurchase the Company records liability
for the cash

received which is included in short-term borrowings on the

Consolidated Balance Sheet For securities purchased under

agreements to resell the Company records receivable for

the cash paid which is included in other assets on the

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Securities transferred to counterparties under

repurchase agreements and securities loaned transactions

continue to be recognized on the Consolidated Balance

Sheet are measured at fair value and are included in

investment securities or other assets Securities received

from counterparties under reverse repurchase agreements

and securities borrowed transactions are not recognized on

the Consolidated Balance Sheet unless the counterparty

defaults Under all transactions the fair values of the

securities are determined daily and additional cash is

obtained or refunded to counterparties where appropriate

The securities transferred under repurchase and reverse

repurchase transactions typically are U.S Treasury

securities or agency mortgage-backed securities The

securities loaned or borrowed are typically high-grade

corporate bonds traded by the Companys broker-dealer

The securities transferred can be sold repledged or

otherwise used by the party in possession No restrictions

exist on the use of cash collateral by either party

The Company executes its derivative repurchase

reverse repurchase and securities loaned/borrowed

transactions under the respective industry standard

agreements These agreements include master netting

arrangements that allow for multiple contracts executed with

the same counterparty to be viewed as single

arrangement This allows for net settlement of single

amount on daily basis In the event of default the master

netting arrangement provides for close-out netting which

allows all positions with the defaulting counterparty to be

terminated and net settled with single payment amount

The Company has elected to offset the assets and

liabilities under netting arrangements for the balance sheet

presentation of the majority of its derivative counterparties

excluding centrally cleared derivative contracts due to

current uncertainty about the legal enforceability of netting

arrangements with the clearinghouses The netting occurs at

the counterparty level and includes all assets and liabilities

related to the derivative contracts including those

associated with cash collateral received or delivered The

Company has not elected to offset the assets and liabilities

under netting arrangements for the balance sheet

presentation of repurchasereverse repurchase and

securities loaned/borrowed transactions

Netting Arrangements for Certain Financial Instruments
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NOTE 21 Fair Values of Assets and Liabilities

The Company uses fair value measurements for the initial

recording of certain assets and liabilities periodic

remeasurement of certain assets and liabilities and

disclosures Derivatives trading and available-for-sale

investment securities substantially all MLHFS and MSRs are

recorded at fair value on recurring basis Additionally from

time to time the Company may be required to record at fair

value other assets on nonrecurring basis such as loans

held for sale loans held for investment and certain other

assets These nonrecurring fair value adjustments typically

involve application of lower-of-cost-or-fair value accounting

or impairment write-downs of individual assets

Net Amount

Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would

be received for an asset or paid to transfer liability an exit

price in the principal or most advantageous market for the

asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market

participants on the measurement date fair value

measurement reflects all of the assumptions that market

participants would use in pricing the asset or liability

including assumptions about the risk inherent in particular

valuation technique the effect of restriction on the sale or

use of an asset and the risk of nonperformance

The Company groups its assets and liabilities

measured at fair value into three-level hierarchy for

The following tables provide information on the Companys netting adjustments and items not offset on the Consolidated

Balance Sheet but available for offset in the event of default

Gross

Recognized

Assets

Gross Amounts

Offset on the

Consolidated

Balance Sheet

Net Amounts

Presented on the

Consolidated

Balance Sheet

Gross Amounts Not Offset on the

Consolidated Balance Sheet

Financial Collateral

Instruments Received
Dollars in Millions

December 31 2013
Dervative assets $1349 $599 750 21 $729

Reverse repurchase agreements 87 87 59 28
Securities borrowed 723 723 698 25

Total $2159 $599 $1560 80 $726 $754

December 31 2012
Derivative assets $1546 $418 $1128 5148 $980

Reverse repurchase agreements 363 363 44 319
Securities borrowed 368 368 356 12

Total $2277 5418 $1859 $192 $675 $992

Includes $124 million and $79 million of cash collateral related payables that were netted against derivative assets at December31 2013 and 2012 respectively

Fm derivative assets this includes any derivative liability fair values that could be offset in the event of counterparty default for reverse repurchase agreements this includes any

reF urchase agreement payables that could be offset in the event of counterparry default for securities borrowed this includes any securities loaned payables that could be offset in the

event of counterparty default

Includes the fair value of securities received by the Company from the counterparty These securities are not included on the Consolidated Balance Sheet unless the counterparty

delhults

Excludes $55 million and $260 million of derivative assets centrally cleared or otherwise not subject to netting arrangements at December 31 2013 and 2012 respectively

Gross Amounts Net Amounts Gross Amounts Not Offset on the

Gross Offset on the Presented on the
Consolidated Balance Sheet

Recognized Consolidated Consolidated Financial Collatersl

Dollars in Millions
Liabilities Balance Sheet Balance Sheet Instruments Pledged Net Amount

December 31 2013

Derrvative liabilitiesd $1598 $1192 406 21 $385

RepLirchase agreements 2059 2059 59 2000

Securities loaned

Total $3657 $1192 $2465 80 sf2000 $385

December 31 2012

Derivative liabilitiesd $2178 sf1549 629 $148 $481

RepLirchase agreements 3389 3389 44 3345

Securities loaned

Total $5567 sf1549 $4018 $192 $3345 $481

Includes $717 million and $1 billion of cash collateral related receivables that were netted against derivative liabilities at December31 2013 and 2012 respectively

Foi derivative liabilities this includes any derivative asset fair values that could be offset in the event of counterparty default for repurchase agreements this includes any reverse

repurchase agreement receivables that could be offset in the event of counterparty default for securities loaned this includes any securities borrowed receivables that could be offset in

the event of counterparty default

Includes the fair value of securities pledged by the Company to the counterparty These securities are included on the Consolidated Balance Sheet unless the Company defaults

Eiicludes $119 million and $5 million of derivative liabilities centrally cleared or otherwise not subject to netting arrangements at December31 2013 and 2012 respectively
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valuation techniques used to measure financial assets and

financial liabilities at fair value This hierarchy is based on

whether the valuation inputs are observable or

unobservable These levels are

Level Quoted prices in active markets for identical

assets or liabilities Level includes U.S Treasury and

exchange-traded instruments

Level Observable inputs other than Level prices

such as quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities

quoted prices in markets that are not active or other

inputs that are observable or can be corroborated by

observable market data for substantially the full term of the

assets or liabilities Level includes debt securities that

are traded less frequently than exchange-traded

instruments and which are typically valued using third

party pricing services derivative contracts and other

assets and liabilities including securities whose value is

determined using pricing model with inputs that are

observable in the market or can be derived principally

from or corroborated by observable market data and

MLHFS whose values are determined using quoted prices

for similar assets or pricing models with inputs that are

observable in the market or can be corroborated by

observable market data

Level Unobservable inputs that are supported by little

or no market activity and that are significant to the fair

value of the assets or liabilities Level assets and

liabilities include financial instruments whose values are

determined using pricing models discounted cash flow

methodologies or similar techniques as well as

instruments for which the determination of fair value

requires significant management judgment or estimation

This category includes MSRs certain debt securities and

certain derivative contracts

When the Company changes its valuation inputs for

measuring financial assets and financial liabilities at fair

value either due to changes in current market conditions or

other factors it may need to transfer those assets or liabilities

to another level in the hierarchy based on the new inputs

used The Company recognizes these transfers at the end of

the reporting period that the transfers occur During the

years ended December31 2013 2012 and 2011 there

were no transfers of financial assets or financial liabilities

between the hierarchy levels

The Company has processes and controls in place to

increase the
reliability of estimates it makes in determining

fair value measurements Items quoted on an exchange are

verified to the quoted price Items provided by third party

pricing service are subject to price verification procedures

as discussed in more detail in the specific valuation

discussions provided in the section that follows For fair

value measurements modeled internally the Companys

valuation models are subject to the Companys Model Risk

Governance Policy and Program as maintained by the

Companys credit administration department The purpose of

model validation is to assess the accuracy of the models

input processing and reporting components All models are

required to be independently reviewed and approved prior

to being placed in use and are subject to formal change

control procedures Under the Companys Model Risk

Governance Policy models are required to be reviewed at

least annually to ensure they are operating as intended

Inputs into the models are market observable inputs

whenever available When market observable inputs are not

available the inputs are developed based upon analysis of

historical experience and evaluation of other relevant market

data Significant unobservable model inputs are subject to

review by senior management in corporate functions who

are independent from the modeling Significant

unobservable model inputs are also compared to actual

results typically on quarterly basis Significant Level fair

value measurements are also subject to corporate-level

review and are benchmarked to market transactions or other

market data when available Additional discussion of

processes and controls are provided in the valuation

methodologies section that follows

The following section describes the valuation

methodologies used by the Company to measure financial

assets and liabilities at fair value and for estimating fair value

for financial instruments not recorded at fair value as

required under disclosure guidance related to the fair value

of financial instruments In addition the following section

includes an indication of the level of the fair value hierarchy

in which the assets or liabilities are classified Where

appropriate the description includes information about the

valuation models and key inputs to those models During the

years ended December 31 2013 2012 and 2011 there

were no significant changes to the valuation techniques

used by the Company to measure fair value

Cash and Due From Banks The carrying value of cash

and due from banks approximate fair value and are

classified within Level Fair value is provided for disclosure

purposes only

Federal Funds Sold and Securities Purchased Under

Resale Agreements The carrying value of federal funds

sold and securities purchased under resale agreements

approximate fair value because of the relatively short time

between the origination of the instrument and its expected

realization and are classified within Level Fair value is

provided for disclosure purposes only

Investment Securities When quoted market prices for

identical securities are available in an active market these
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obligations and collateralized loan obligations and certain

prices are used to determine fair value and these securities

are classified within Level of the fair value hierarchy

Level investment securities are predominantly U.S

Treasury securities

For other securities quoted market prices may not be

readily available for the specific securities When possible the

Company determines fair value based on market observable

information including quoted market prices for similar

securities inactive transaction prices and broker quotes

These securities are classified within Level of the fair value

hierarchy Level valuations are generally provided by third

party pricing service The Company reviews the valuation

methodologies utilized by the pricing service and on

quarterly basis reviews the security level prices provided by

the pricing service against managements expectation of fair

value based on changes in various benchmarks and market

knowledge from recent trading activity Additionally each

quarter the Company validates the fair value provided by the

pricirg services by comparing them to recent observable

market trades where available broker provided quotes or

other independent secondary pricing sources Prices

obtained from the pricing service are adjusted if they are

found to be inconsistent with observable market data Level

investment securities are predominantly agency mortgage-

backed securities certain other asset-backed securities

municipal securities corporate debt securities agency debt

securities and perpetual preferred securities

The fair value of securities for which there are no market

trades or where trading is inactive as compared to normal

market activity are classified within Level of the fair value

hierarchy The Company determines the fair value of these

securities using discounted cash flow methodology and

incorporating observable market information where

available These valuations are modeled by unit within the

Companys treasury department The valuations use

assumptions regarding housing prices interest rates and

borrower performance Inputs are refined and updated at

least quarterly to reflect market developments and actual

performance The primary valuation drivers of these

securities are the prepayment rates default rates and default

seventies associated with the underlying collateral as well

as the discount rate used to calculate the present value of

the projected cash flows Level fair values including the

assumptions used are subject to review by senior

management in corporate functions who are independent

from the modeling The fair value measurements are also

compared to fair values provided by third party pricing

services where available Securities classified within Level

include non-agency mortgage-backed securities non-

agency commercial mortgage-backed securities certain

asset-backed securities certain collateralized debt

corporate debt securities

Mortgage Loans Held For Sale MLHFS measured at fair

value for which an active secondary market and readily

available market prices exist are initially valued at the

transaction price and are subsequently valued by

comparison to instruments with similar collateral and risk

profiles MLHFS are classified within Level Included in

mortgage banking revenue was $335 million net loss

$287 million net gain and $15 million net gain for the years

ended December 31 2013 2012 and 2011 respectively

from the changes to fair value of these MLHFS under fair

value option accounting guidance Changes in fair value due

to instrument specific credit risk were immaterial Interest

income for MLHFS is measured based on contractual

interest rates and reported as interest income on the

Consolidated Statement of Income Electing to measure

MLHFS at fair value reduces certain timing differences and

better matches changes in fair value of these assets with

changes in the value of the derivative instruments used to

economically hedge them without the burden of complying

with the requirements for hedge accounting

Loans The loan portfolio includes adjustable and fixed-rate

loans the fair value of which was estimated using discounted

cash flow analyses and other valuation techniques The

expected cash flows of loans considered historical

prepayment experiences and estimated credit losses and

were discounted using current rates offered to borrowers of

similar credit characteristics Generally loan fair values reflect

Level information Fair value is provided for disclosure

purposes only with the exception of impaired collateral-based

loans that are measured at fair value on non-recurring basis

utilizing the underlying collateral fair value

Mortgage Servicing Rights MSR5 are valued using

discounted cash flow methodology Accordingly MSRs are

classified within Level The Company determines fair value

by estimating the present value of the assets future cash flows

using prepayment rates discount rates and other

assumptions The MSR valuations as well as the assumptions

used are developed by the mortgage banking division and

are subject to review by senior management in corporate

functions who are independent from the modeling The MSR

valuations and assumptions are validated through comparison

to trade information publicly available data and industry

surveys when available and are also compared to

independent third party valuations each quarter Risks

inherent in MSR valuation include higher than expected

prepayment rates and/or delayed receipt of cash flows There

is minimal observable market activity for MSR5 on comparable

portfolios and therefore the determination of fair value

requires significant management judgment Refer to Note for

further information on MSR valuation assumptions
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Derivatives The majority of derivatives held by the Company

are executed over-the-counter and are valued using standard

cash flow Black-Derman-Toy and Monte Carlo valuation

techniques The models incorporate inputs depending on the

type of derivative including interest rate curves foreign

exchange rates and volatility In addition all derivative values

incorporate an assessment of the risk of counterparty

nonperformance measured based on the Companys

evaluation of credit risk as well as external assessments of

credit risk where available The Company monitors and

manages its nonperformance risk by considering its ability to

net derivative positions under master netting arrangements as

well as collateral received or provided under collateral

arrangements Accordingly the Company has elected to

measure the fair value of derivatives at counterparty level on

net basis The majority of the derivatives are classified within

Level of the fair value hierarchy as the significant inputs to the

models including nonperformance risk are observable

However certain derivative transactions are with counterparties

where risk of non performance cannot be observed in the

market and therefore the credit valuation adjustments result in

these derivatives being classified within Level of the fair value

hierarchy The credit valuation adjustments for nonperformance

risk are determined by the Companys treasury department

using credit assumptions provided by credit administration The

credit assumptions are compared to actual results quarterly and

are recalibrated as appropriate

The Company also has commitments to purchase and

originate mortgage loans that meet the accounting

requirements of derivative These mortgage loan

commitments are valued by pricing models that include

market observable and unobservable inputs which result in

the commitments being classified within Level of the fair

value hierarchy The unobservable inputs include

assumptions about the percentage of commitments that

actually become closed loan and the MSR value that is

inherent in the underlying loan value both of which are

developed by the Companys mortgage banking division

The closed loan percentages for the mortgage loan

commitments are monitored on an on-going basis as these

percentages are also used for the Companys economic

hedging activities The inherent MSR value for the

commitments are generated by the same models used for

the Companys MSRs and thus are subject to the same

processes and controls as described for the MSRs above

Other Financial Instruments Other financial instruments

include cost method equity investments and community

development and tax-advantaged related assets and

liabilities The majority of the Companys cost method equity

investments are in Federal Home Loan Bank and Federal

Reserve Bank stock whose carrying amounts approximate

their fair value and are classified within Level Investments

in private equity and other limited partnership funds are

estimated using fund provided net asset values These

equity investments are classified within Level Fair value is

provided for disclosure purposes only

Community development and tax-advantaged

investments generate return primarily through the

realization of federal and state income tax credits with

duration typically equal to the period that the tax credits are

realized Asset balances primarily represent the assets of the

underlying community development and tax-advantaged

entities the Company consolidated per applicable

authoritative accounting guidance Liabilities of the

underlying consolidated entities were included in long-term

debt The carrying value of the asset balances are

reasonable estimate of fair value and are classified within

Level Refer to Note for further information on community

development and tax-advantaged related assets and

liabilities Fair value is provided for disclosure purposes only

Deposit Liabilities The fair value of demand deposits

savings accounts and certain money market deposits is

equal to the amount payable on demand The fair value of

fixed-rate certificates of deposit was estimated by

discounting the contractual cash flow using current market

rates Deposit liabilities are classified within Level Fair

value is provided for disclosure purposes only

Short-term Borrowings Federal funds purchased

securities sold under agreements to repurchase commercial

paper and other short-term funds borrowed have floating

rates or short-term maturities The fair value of short-term

borrowings was determined by discounting contractual cash

flows using current market rates Short-term borrowings are

classified within Level Included in short-term borrowings is

the Companys obligation on securities sold short which is

required to be accounted for at fair value per applicable

accounting guidance Fair value for other short-term

borrowings is provided for disclosure purposes only

Long-term Debt The fair value for most long-term debt was

determined by discounting contractual cash flows using current

market rates Junior subordinated debt instruments were valued

using market quotes Long-term debt is classified within Level

Fair value is provided for disclosure purposes only

Loan Commitments Letters of Credit and

Guarantees The fair value of commitments letters of credit

and guarantees represents the estimated costs to terminate

or otherwise settle the obligations with third party Other

loan commitments letters of credit and guarantees are not

actively traded and the Company estimates their fair value

based on the related amount of unamortized deferred

commitment fees adjusted for the probable losses for these

arrangements These arrangements are classified within

Level Fair value is provided for disclosure purposes only
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Significant Unobservable Inputs of Level Assets and Liabilities

The following section provides information on the significant

inputs used by the Company to determine the fair value

measurements of Level assets and liabilities recorded at

fair value on the Consolidated Balance Sheet In addition the

following section includes discussion of the sensitivity of

the fair value measurements to changes in the significant

inputs and description of any interrelationships between

these inputs for Level assets and liabilities recorded at fair

value on recurring basis The discussion below excludes

nonrecurring fair value measurements of collateral value

used for impairment measures for loans and other real estate

owned These valuations utilize third party appraisal or

broker price opinions and are classified as Level due to

the significant judgment involved

Available-For-Sale Investment Securities The

signficant unobservable inputs used in the fair value

measurement of the Companys modeled Level available-

for-sale investment securities are prepayment rates

probability of default and loss seventies associated with the

underlying collateral as well as the discount margin used to

caIclate the present value of the projected cash flows

Increases in prepayment rates for Level securities will

typically result in higher fair values as increased

prepayment rates accelerate the receipt of expected cash

flows and reduce exposure to credit losses Increases in the

probability of default and loss seventies will result in lower

fair values as these increases reduce expected cash flows

Discount margin is the Companys estimate of the current

market spread above the respective benchmark rate Higher

discount margin will result in lower fair values as it reduces

the present value of the expected cash flows

Prepayment rates generally move in the opposite

direction of market interest rates In the current environment

an increase in the probability of default will generally be

accompanied with an increase in loss severity as both are

impacted by underlying collateral values Discount margins

are influenced by market expectations about the securitys

collateral performance and therefore may directionally move

with probability and severity of default however discount

margins are also impacted by broader market forces such

as competing investment yields sector liquidity economic

news and other macroeconomic factors

15

6%

40

20%

65

6%

40

13%

42

6%

40

The following table shows the significant valuation assumption ranges for Level available-for-sale investment securities at

December 31 2013

Minimum Maximum Average

6%

25

Residential Prime Non-Agency Mortgage-Backed Securities

Estimated lifetime prepayment rates

Lifetime probability of default rates

Lifetime loss severity rates

Discount margin

Residential Non-Prime Non-Agency Mortgage-Backed Securities

Estimated lifetime prepayment rates

Lifetime probability of default rates

Lifetime loss severity rates

Discount margin

Other Asset-Backed Securities

Estimated lifetime prepayment rates

Lifetime probability of default rates

Litetime loss severity rates

Discount margin

2% 10% 6%

12

70 54

Prime securities are those designated as such by the issuer at origination When an issuer designation is unavailable the Company determines at acquisition date the categorization

based on asset pool characteristics such as weightedaverage credit score loan-to-value loan type prevalence of low documentation loans and deal performance such as pool

delnquencies and security market spreads

lncudes all securities not meeting the conditions to be designated as prime
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Mortgage Servicing Rights The significant unobservable

inputs used in the fair value measurement of the Companys

MSRs are expected prepayments and the discount rate used

to calculate the present value of the projected cash flows

Significant increases in either of these inputs in isolation

would result in significantly lower fair value measurement

Significant decreases in either of these inputs in isolation

would result in significantly higher fair value measurement

There is no direct interrelationship between prepayments

and discount rate Prepayment rates generally move in the

opposite direction of market interest rates Discount rates are

generally impacted by changes in market return

requirements

The following table shows the significant valuation assumption ranges for MSRs at December 31 2013

Expected prepayment

Discount rate

Minimum Maximum Average

10% 21% 11%

10 13 10

Derivatives The Company has two distinct Level

derivative portfolios the Companys commitments to sell

purchase and originate mortgage loans that meet the

requirements of derivative and ii the Companys asset

liability
and customer-related derivatives that are Level due

to unobservable inputs related to measurement of risk of

nonperformance by the counterparty

The significant unobservable inputs used in the fair

value measurement of the Companys derivative

commitments to sell purchase and originate mortgage loans

are the percentage of commitments that actually become

closed loan and the MSR value that is inherent in the

underlying loan value significant increase in the rate of

loans that close would result in larger derivative asset or

liability significant increase in the inherent MSR value

would result in an increase in the derivative asset or

reduction in the derivative liability Expected loan close rates

and the inherent MSR values are directly impacted by

changes in market rates and will generally move in the same

direction as interest rates

The significant unobservable input used in the fair value

measurement of certain of the Companys assetIiability and

customer-related derivatives is the credit valuation

adjustment related to the risk of counterparty

nonperformance significant increase in the credit

valuation adjustment would result in lower fair value

measurement significant decrease in the credit valuation

adjustment would result in higher fair value measurement

The credit valuation adjustment is impacted by changes in

the Companys assessment of the counterpartys credit

position At December 31 2013 the minimum maximum

and average credit valuation adjustment as percentage of

the derivative contract fair value prior to adjustment was

percent 100 percent and percent respectively

The following table shows the significant valuation assumption ranges for the Companys derivative commitments to sell

purchase and originate mortgage loans at December31 2013

Expected loan close rate

Inherent MSR value basis points per loan

Minimum Maximum

43% 100%

48 221

Average

80%

124
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The lollowing table summarizes the balances of assets and liabilities

Dollars in Millions

December 31 2013

Available-for-sale securities

U.S Treasury and agencies

Mortgage-backed securities

Residential

Agency

Non-agency

Prime

Non-prime

Commercial

Agency

Asset-backed securities

Collateralized debt obligations/Collateralized loan obligations

Other

Obligations of state and political subdivisions

Obligations of foreign governments

Corporate debt securities

Perpetual preferred securities

Other investments

Total available-for-sale

Mortgage loans held for sale

Mortgage servicing rights

Derivative assets

Other assets

Total

Derivative liabilities

Short-term borrowings

Total

December 31 2012

Available-for-sale securities

U.S Treasury and agencies

Mcrtgage-backed securities

Residential

Agency

Non-agency

Prime

Non-prime

Commercial

Agency

Asset-backed securities

Collateralized debt obligations/Collateralized loan obligations

Other

Obligations of state and political subdivisions

Obligations of foreign governments

Corporate debt securities

Perpetual preferred securities

Other investments

Total available-for-sale

Mortgage loans held for sale

Mortgage servicing rights

Derivative assets

Other assets

Total

Derivative liabilities

Short-term borrowings

Total

42

577

6455

722

218

15

38458

7957

572

386

$47373

$2128

50 351

50 2479

Level

measured at fair value on recurring basis

Level Level Netting
Total

1038 1045

31553 31553

478 478

297 297

152 152

24 24

566 63 629

5738 5738

631 640

212 212

141 20 161

148 39940 847 40935

3263 3263

2680 2680

889 515 599 805

143 588 731

$291 $44680 $4042 599 $48414

1647 70 $1192 525

112 551 663

$112 2198 70 $1192 1188

$491 735 1226

29495 29495

624 624

355 355

193 193

187

678

94

$772

42

15 592

6455

731

218

202

1003 40139

7957

1700 1700

1234 418 1388

480

$3937 418 $51664

55 $1549 634

401

55 $1549 1035

Prime securities are hose designated as such by the issuer at origination When an issuer designation is unavailable the Company determines at acquisition date the categorization

based on asset pool characteristics such as weighted-average credit score loan-to-value loan type prevalence of low documentation loans and deal performance such as pool

delinquencies and security market spreads

Includes all securities not meeting the conditions to be designated as prime

Represents the Companys obligation on securities sold short required to be accounted for at fair value per applicable accounting guidance
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The following table presents the changes in fair value for all assets and liabilities measured at fair value on recurring basis

using significant unobservable inputs Level for the years ended December 31

Net Change in

Net Gains Unrealized Gains

Losses Losses Relating

Net Gains Included in to Assets and

Beginning Losses Other End Liabilities

of Period Included in Comprehensive Principal
of Period Still Held at

Dollars in Millions Balance Net Income Income Loss Purchases Sales Payments Issuances Settlements Balance End of Period

2013
Avaiabe-for-sae securities

Mortgage-backed securities

Residential non-agency
Prime 624 $148 478

Non-prime 355 13 17 20 42 297 17

Asset-backed securities

Other 15 51 63

Corporate debt securities

Total available-for-sale 1003 16c 26f 51 20 197 847 26

Mortgage servicing rights 1700 203d 769g 2680 203d
Net derivative assets and liabilities 1179 18e 712 445 321h
2012
Available-for-sale securities

Mortgage-backed securities

Residential non-agency
Prime 803 10 91 $109 $151 624 65

Non-prime 802 24 228 562 89 355 80

Commercial non-agency 42 38
Asset-backed securities

Collateralized debt obligations

Collateralized loan

obligations 120 13 104 21
Other 117 93 19 15

Corporate debt securities

Total available-for-sale 1893 13i 311f 906 285 1003 147

Mortgage servicing rights 1519 818d 42 957g 1700 818d
Net derivative assets and liabilities ... 1228 2398j 2445 1179 150k

2011
Available-for-sale securities

Mortgage-backed securities

Residential non-agency
Prime $1103 $115 $195 803

Non-prime 947 13 126 802

Commercial non-agency 50 42

Asset-backed securities

Collateralized debt obligations

Collateralized loan

obligations 135 13 33 120

Other 133 10 24 117

Corporate debt securities

Total available-for-sale 2377 25l 132 382 1893

Mortgage servicing rights 1837 972d 35 619g 1519 972d
Net derivative assets and liabilities ... 851 1550m 1166 1228 442n

Prime securities are those designated as such by the issuer at origination When an Lssuer designation is unavailable the Company determines at acquisition date the categorization

based on asset pool characteristics such as weighted-average credit score loan-to-value loan type prevalence
of low documentation loans and deal performance such as pool

delinquencies and security market spreads

Includes all securities not meeting the conditions to be designated as prime

Approximately $14 million included in securities gains losses and $2 million included in interest income

Included in mortgage banking revenue

Approximately $149 million included in other noninterest income and $131 million included in mortgage banking revenue

Included in changes in unrealized gains and losses on securities available-for-sale

Represents MSRs capitalized during the period

Approximately $340 million included in other noijinterest income and $19 million included in mortgage banking revenue

Approximately $47 million included in securities gains losses and $34 million included in interest income

Approximately $359 million included in other noninterest income and $2.0 billion included in mortgage banking revenue

Approximately $109 million included in other noninterest income and $259 million included in mortgage banking revenue

Approximately $3 million included in securities gains losses and $56 million included in interest income

mApproximately $716 million included in other noniriterest income and $834 million included in mortgage banking revenue

Approximately $262 million included in other noninterest income arid $180 million included in mortgage banking revenue
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The Company is also required periodically to measure certain other financial assets at fair value on nonrecurring basis

These measurements of fair value usually result from the application of lower-of-cost-or-fair value accounting or write-downs

of individual assets

The lollowing table summarizes the balances of assets measured at fair value on nonrecurring basis as of December 31

2013 2012

Dollars in Millions Level Level Level Total Level Level Level Total

Loans $128 $128 $140 $140

Other assetsb 150 150 194 194

Represents the carrying value of loans for which adjustments were based on the fair value of the collateral excluding loans fully charged-off

Primarily represents the fair value of foreclosed properties that were measured at fair value based on an appraisal or broker price opinion of the collateral subsequent to their initidl acquisition

The following table summarizes losses recognized related to nonrecurring fair value measurements of individual assets or

portfolios for the years ended December 31

Dollars in Millions 2013 2012 2011

Loans $83 68 $177

Other assets 96 160 316

Represents write-downs of loans which were based on the fair value of the collateral excluding loans fully ohs rged-off

Primarily represents related losses of foreclosed properties that were measured at fair value subsequent to their initial acquisition

Fair Value Option

Disclosures about Fair Value of Financial Instruments

The following table summarizes the estimated fair value

for financial instruments as of December 31 2013 and 2012

and includes financial instruments that are not accounted for

at fair value In accordance with disclosure guidance related

to fair values of financial instruments the Company did not

include assets and liabilities that are not financial

instruments such as the value of goodwill long-term

relationships with deposit credit card merchant processing

and trust customers other purchased intangibles premises

and equipment deferred taxes and other liabilities

Additionally in accordance with the disclosure guidance

insurance contracts and investments accounted for under

the equity method are excluded

The following table summarizes the differences between the aggregate fair value carrying amount of MLHFS for which the fair

value option has been elected and the aggregate unpaid principal amount that the Company is contractually obligated to

receive at maturity as of December 31

2013 2012

Fair value

carrying

Amount

Aggregate

unpaid

Principal

carrying

Amount Over

under unpaid

PrincipalDollars in Millions

Total loans $3263 $3195 $68 $7957 $7588 $369

Nonacrual loans 14 13

Loans 90 days or more past due

Fair Value

Carrying

Amount

Aggregate

Unpaid

Principal

carrying

Amount Over

Under Unpaid

Principal
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The estimated fair values of the Companys financial instruments as of December 31 are shown in the table below

The fair value of unfunded commitments standby letters of

credit and other guarantees is approximately equal to their

carrying value The carrying value of unfunded commitments

and standby letters of credit was $382 million and

$415 million at December 31 2013 and 2012 respectively

The carrying value of other guarantees was $278 million and

$452 million at December31 2013 and 2012 respectively

NOTE 22 Guarantees and Contingent Liabilities

Visa Restructuring and Card Association

Litigation The Companys payment services business issues

and acquires credit and debit card transactions through the

Visa U.S.A Inc card association or its affiliates collectively

Visa In 2007 Visa completed restructuring and issued

shares of Visa Inc common stock to its financial institution

members in contemplation of its initial public offering IPO
completed in the first quarter of 2008 the Visa

Reorganization As part of the Visa Reorganization the

Company received its proportionate number of shares of Visa

Inc common stock which were subsequently converted to

Class shares of Visa Inc Class shares Visa U.S.A Inc

Visa U.S.A and MasterCard International collectively the

Card Associations are defendants in antitrust lawsuits

challenging the practices of the Card Associations the Visa

Litigation Visa U.S.A member banks have contingent

obligation to indemnify Visa Inc under the Visa U.S.A bylaws

which were modified at the time of the restructuring in October

2007 for potential losses arising from the Visa Litigation The

indemnification by the Visa U.S.A member banks has no

specific maximum amount

Using proceeds from its IPO and through reductions to the

conversion ratio applicable to the Class shares held by Visa

U.S.A member banks Visa Inc has funded an escrow account

for the benefit of member financial institutions to fund their

indemnification obligations associated with the Visa Litigation

The receivable related to the escrow account is classified in

other liabilities as direct offset to the related Visa Litigation

contingent liability On October 19 2012 Visa signed

settlement agreement to resolve class action claims associated

with the multi-district interchange litigation the largest of the

remaining Visa Litigation matters The settlement has been

approved by the court but has been challenged by some class

members and is being appealed At December31 2013 the

carrying amount of the Companys liability related to the Visa

Litigation matters net of its share of the escrow fundings was

$41 million and included the Companys estimate of its

remaining share of the temporary reduction in interchange rates

specified in the settlement agreement The remaining Class

shares held by the Company will be eligible for conversion to

Class shares and thereby become marketable upon final

settlement of the Visa Litigation These shares are excluded

from the Companys financial instruments disclosures included

in Note 21

Commitments to Extend Credit Commitments to extend

credit are legally binding and generally have fixed expiration

dates or other termination clauses The contractual amount

represents the Companys exposure to credit loss in the event

of default by the borrower The Company manages this credit

risk by using the same credit policies it applies to loans

Collateral is obtained to secure commitments based on

managements credit assessment of the borrower The collateral

may include marketable securities receivables inventory

equipment and real estate Since the Company expects many

of the commitments to expire without being drawn total

commitment amounts do not necessarily represent the

2013 2012

Fair value Fair value

carrying carrying

Dollars in Millions
Amount Level Level Level Total Amount Level Level Level Total

Financial Assets

Cash and due from banks 8477 $8477 8477 8252 $8252 8252

Federal funds sold and

securities purchased under

resale agreements 163 163 163 437 437 437

Investment securities held-to-

maturity 38920 2589 35678 101 38368 34389 2984 31845 123 34952

Loans held for sale 19 19 19

Loansb 230857 231480 231480 218765 220354 220354

Other financial instruments 2422 1080 1362 2442 7367 1228 6157 7385

Financial Liabilities

Deposits 262123 262200 262200 249183 249594 249594

Short-term borrowings 26945 26863 26863 25901 25917 25917

Long-term debt 20049 20391 20391 25516 26205 26205

Excludes mortgages held for sale for which the fair value option under applicable accounting guidance was elected

Excludes loans measured affair value on nonrecurring
basis

Excludes the Companys obligation on securities sold short required to be accounted for at fair value per applicable accounting guidance
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Companys future liquidity requirements In addition the

commitments include consumer credit lines that are cancelable

upon notification to the consumer

The contract or notional amounts of unfunded commitments

to extend credit at December 31 2013 excluding those

commitments considered derivatives were as follows

Term

Less Than Greater Than

One Year One Year Total
Dollars in Millions

Commercial and commercial

real estate $20321 $83530 $103851

Corporate and purchasing

cards 20007 20007

Residential mortgages 98 11 109

Retai credit cards 71192 264 71456

Other retail 11382 17733 29115

Covered 31 807 838

FedeaI funds 4898 4898

Lease Commitments Rental expense for operating leases

totaled $311 million in 2013 $295 million in 2012 and

$291 million in 2011 Future minimum payments net of

sublease rentals under capitalized leases and

noncancelable operating leases with initial or remaining

terms of one year or more consisted of the following at

December 31 2013

Gapitalized Operating

Dollars in Millionsl
Leases Leases

2014 244

2015 215

2016 182

2017 154

2018 116

Thereafter 25 474

Total minimum lease payments 62 $1385

Less amount representing interest 23

Present value of net minimum lease

$39

Other Guarantees and Contingent Liabilities

The ollowing table is summary of other guarantees and

contngent liabilities of the Company at December 31 2013

Maximum

Potential

Future

Payments

$16891

Dollars in Millions

Standby letters of credit

Third-party borrowing

arrangements
12

Securities lending

indemnifications 5397 5261

Asset sales 185 3656

Merchant processing 648 69 83496

Cont ngent consideration

arrangements 12 12

Tender option bond program

guarantee 4604 4575

Minimum revenue guarantees 12 12

Other 468

Letters of Credit Standby letters of credit are

commitments the Company issues to guarantee the

performance of customer to third party The guarantees

frequently support public and private borrowing

arrangements including commercial paper issuances bond

financings and other similar transactions The Company

issues commercial letters of credit on behalf of customers to

ensure payment or collection in connection with trade

transactions In the event of customers nonperformance

the Companys credit loss exposure is the same as in any

extension of credit up to the letters contractual amount

Management assesses the borrowers credit to determine

the necessary collateral which may include marketable

securities receivables inventory equipment and real estate

Since the conditions requiring the Company to fund letters of

credit may not occur the Company expects its liquidity

requirements to be less than the total outstanding

commitments The maximum potential future payments

guaranteed by the Company under standby letter of credit

arrangements at December 31 2013 were approximately

$16.9 billion with weighted-average term of approximately

21 months The estimated fair value of standby letters of

credit was approximately $71 million at December 31 2013

The contract or notional amount of letters of credit at

December 31 2013 were as follows

Greater

Less Than Than

Dollars in Millions One Year One Year Total

Standby $7778 $9113 $16891

Commercial 252 43 295

Guarantees Guarantees are contingent commitments

issued by the Company to customers or other third parties

The Companys guarantees primarily include parent

guarantees related to subsidiaries third party borrowing

arrangements third party performance guarantees inherent

in the Companys business operations such as indemnified

securities lending programs and merchant charge-back

guarantees indemnification or buy-back provisions related

to certain asset sales and contingent consideration

arrangements related to acquisitions For certain guarantees

the Company has recorded liability
related to the potential

obligation or has access to collateral to support the

guarantee or through the exercise of other recourse

provisions can offset some or all of the maximum potential

future payments made under these guarantees

Third Party Borrowing Arrangements The Company

provides guarantees to third parties as part of certain

subsidiaries borrowing arrangements The maximum

potential future payments guaranteed by the Company

under these arrangements were approximately $12 million at

December 31 2013

Prircanly cancelable at the Companys dscretion

Term

collateral

Held

carrying

Amount

71
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Commitments from Securities Lending The Company

participates in securities lending activities by acting as the

customers agent involving the loan of securities The

Company indemnifies customers for the difference between

the fair value of the securities lent and the fair value of the

collateral received Cash collateralizes these transactions

The maximum potential future payments guaranteed by the

Company under these arrangements were approximately

$5.3 billion at December 31 2013 and represented the fair

value of the securities lent to third parties At December 31

2013 the Company held $5.4 billion of cash as collateral for

these arrangements

Asset Sales The Company has provided guarantees to

certain third parties in connection with the sale or syndication

of certain assets primarily loan portfolios and tax-

advantaged investments These guarantees are generally in

the form of asset buy-back or make-whole provisions that are

triggered upon credit event or change in the tax-

qualifying status of the related projects as applicable and

remain in effect until the loans are collected or final tax

credits are realized respectively The maximum potential

future payments guaranteed by the Company under these

arrangements were approximately $3.7 billion at

December 31 2013 and represented the proceeds received

from the buyer or the guaranteed portion in these

transactions where the buy-back or make-whole provisions

have not yet expired At December31 2013 the Company

had reserved $102 million for potential losses related to the

sale or syndication of tax-advantaged investments

The maximum potential future payments do not include

loan sales where the Company provides standard

representation and warranties to the buyer against losses

related to loan underwriting documentation defects that may

have existed at the time of sale that generally are identified

after the occurrence of triggering event such as

delinquency For these types of loan sales the maximum

potential future payments is generally the unpaid principal

balance of loans sold measured at the end of the current

reporting period Actual losses will be significantly less than

the maximum exposure as only fraction of loans sold will

have representation and warranty breach and any losses

on repurchase would generally be mitigated by any

collateral held against the loans

The Company regularly sells loans to GSEs as part of its

mortgage banking activities The Company provides

customary representation and warranties to the GSEs in

conjunction with these sales These representations and

warranties generally require the Company to repurchase

assets if it is subsequently determined that loan did not meet

specified criteria such as documentation deficiency or

rescission of mortgage insurance If the Company is unable to

cure or refute repurchase request the Company is generally

obligated to repurchase the loan or otherwise reimburse the

counterparty for losses At December 31 2013 the Company

had reserved $83 million for potential losses from

representation and warranty obligations compared with $240

million at December 31 2012 The $157 million decrease

reflected the settlement of substantially all representation and

warranty obligations on loans sold to the Federal Home Loan

Mortgage Corporation Freddie Mac between 2000 and

2008 The Companys reserve reflects managements best

estimate of losses for representation and warranty obligations

The Companys repurchase reserve is modeled at the loan

level taking into consideration the individual credit quality and

borrower activity that has transpired since origination The

model applies credit quality and economic risk factors to

derive probability of default and potential repurchase that

are based on the Companys historical loss experience and

estimates loss severity based on expected collateral value

The Company also considers qualitative factors that may

result in anticipated losses differing from historical loss trends

The following table is rollforward of the Companys

representation and warranty reserve

Year Ended December 31

Dollars in Millionsl 2013 2012 2011

Balance at beginning of period 240 160 180

Net realized losses 115 120 137

Change in reserve 42 200 117

Balance at end of period 83 240 160

As of December31 2013 and 2012 the Company had

$89 million and $131 million respectively of unresolved

representation and warranty claims from the GSE5 The

Company does not have significant amount of unresolved

claims from investors other than the GSEs

Merchant Processing The Company through its

subsidiaries provides merchant processing services Under

the rules of credit card associations merchant processor

retains contingent liability
for credit card transactions

processed This contingent liability
arises in the event of

billing dispute between the merchant and cardholder that

is ultimately resolved in the cardholders favor In this

situation the transaction is charged-back to the merchant

and the disputed amount is credited or otherwise refunded

to the cardholder If the Company is unable to collect this

amount from the merchant it bears the loss for the amount of

the refund paid to the cardholder

cardholder through its issuing bank generally has

until the latter of up to four months after the date the

transaction is processed or the receipt of the product or

service to present charge-back to the Company as the

merchant processor The absolute maximum potential

liability
is estimated to be the total volume of credit card

transactions that meet the associations requirements to be
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valid charge-back transactions at any given time

Management estimates that the maximum potential exposure

for charge-backs would approximate the total amount of

merchant transactions processed through the credit card

associations for the last four months For the last four months

this amount totaled approximately $83.5 billion In most

cases this contingent liability is unlikely to arise as most

products and services are delivered when purchased and

amoLints are refunded when items are returned to

mercnants However where the product or service is not

provided until future date future delivery the potential

for ths contingent liability increases To mitigate this risk the

Company may require the merchant to make an escrow

deposit place maximumvolume limitations on future delivery

transactions processed by the merchant at any point in time

or require various credit enhancements including letters of

credit and bank guarantees Also merchant processing

contracts may include event triggers to provide the

Company more financial and operational control in the event

of financial deterioration of the merchant

The Company currently processes card transactions in

the United States Canada Europe Mexico and Brazil through

wholly-owned subsidiaries and joint ventures with other

financial institutions In the event merchant was unable to

fulfill product or services subject to delayed delivery such as

airline tickets the Company could become financially liable for

refunding tickets purchased through the credit card

associations under the charge-back provisions Charge-back

risk related to these merchants is evaluated in manner

similar to credit risk assessments and as such merchant

processing contracts contain various provisions to protect the

Company in the event of default At December 31 2013 the

value of airline tickets purchased to be delivered at future

date was $5.2 billion The Company held collateral of $538

million in escrow deposits letters of credit and indemnities

from financial institutions and liens on various assets With

respect to future delivery risk for other merchants the

Company held $23 million of merchant escrow deposits as

collateral In addition to specific collateral or other credit

enhancements the Company maintains liability
for its

implied guarantees associated with future delivery At

December 31 2013 the liability was $58 million primarily

related to these airline processing arrangements

In the normal course of business the Company has

unresolved charge-backs The Company assesses the

likelihood of its potential liability
based on the extent and

nature of unresolved charge-backs and its historical loss

experience At December 31 2013 the Company held $87

million of merchant escrow deposits as collateral and had

recorded liability
for potential losses of $1 million

Contingent Consideration Arrangements The

Company has contingent payment obligations related to

certain business combination transactions Payments are

guaranteed as long as certain post-acquisition performance-

based criteria are met or customer relationships are

maintained At December31 2013 the maximum potential

future payments required to be made by the Company under

these arrangements was approximately $12 million If

required the majority of these contingent payments are

payable within the next 12 months

Tender Option Bond Program Guarantee As discussed

in Note the Company sponsors municipal bond

securities tender option bond program and consolidates the

programs entities on its Consolidated Balance Sheet The

Company provides financial performance guarantees related

to the programs entities At December 31 2013 the

Company guaranteed $4.6 billion of borrowings of the

programs entities included on the Consolidated Balance

Sheet in short-term borrowings The Company also included

on its Consolidated Balance Sheet the related $4.6 billion of

available-for-sale investment securities serving as collateral

for this arrangement

Minimum Revenue Guarantees In the normal course of

business the Company may enter into revenue share

agreements with third party business partners who generate

customer referrals or provide marketing or other services

related to the generation of revenue In certain of these

agreements the Company may guarantee that minimum

amount of revenue share payments will be made to the third

party over specified period of time At December 31 2013

the maximum potential future payments required to be made

by the Company under these agreements were $12 million

and the Company had recorded related
liability

of

$12 million

Other Guarantees and Commitments The Company

has also made other financial performance guarantees and

commitments related to the operations of its subsidiaries At

December 31 2013 the maximum potential future payments

guaranteed or committed by the Company under these

arrangements were approximately $468 million

Litigation and Regulatory Matters The Company is

subject to various litigation
and regulatory matters that arise in

the ordinary course of its business The Company establishes

reserves for such matters when potential losses become

probable and can be reasonably estimated The Company

believes the ultimate resolution of existing legal and regulatory

matters will not have material adverse effect on the financial

condition results of operations or cash flows of the Company

However changes in circumstances or additional information

could result in additional accruals or resolution in excess of

established accruals which could adversely affect the

Companys results from operations potentially materially
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Certain federal and state governmental authorities

reached settlement agreements in 2012 and 2013 with other

major financial institutions regarding their mortgage

origination servicing and foreclosure activities Those

governmental authorities have had settlement discussions

with other financial institutions including the Company The

Company has not agreed to any settlement however if

settlement were reached it would likely include an

agreement to comply with specified servicing standards

and settlement payments to governmental authorities as well

as monetary commitment that could be satisfied under

various loan modification programs in addition to the

programs the Company already has in place

The Company is currently subject to other investigations

and examinations by government agencies and bank

regulators concerning mortgage-related practices including

those related to origination practices for Federal Housing

Administration insured residential home loans compliance

with selling guidelines relating to residential home loans sold

NOTE 23 U.S Bancorp Parent Company

to GSE5 and various practices related to lender-placed

insurance The Company is cooperating fully
with these

examinations and investigations any of which could lead to

administrative or legal proceedings or settlements involving

remedies including fines penalties restitution or alterations

in the Companys business practices and in additional costs

and expenses

Due to their complex nature it can be years before

litigation and regulatory matters are resolved For those

litigation and regulatory matters where the Company has

information to develop an estimate or range of loss the

Company believes the upper end of reasonably possible

losses in aggregate in excess of any reserves established

for matters where loss is considered probable is

approximately $200 million This estimate is subject to

significant judgment and uncertainties and the matters

underlying the estimate will change from time to time Actual

results may vary significantly from the current estimates

138 134

11416 12772

683 730

41113 38998

$53350 $52634

Condensed Balance Sheet

At December31 Dollars in Millions 2013 2012

Assets

Due from banks principally interest-bearing 8371 3630

Available-for-sale securities 463 425

Investments in bank subsidiaries 37558 38007

Investments in nonbank subsidiaries 1546 1445

Advances to bank subsidiaries 2250 6173

Advances to nonbank subsidiaries 1534 1404

Other assets 1628 1550

Total assets $53350 $52634

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

Short-term funds borrowed

Long-term debt

Other liabilities

Shareholders equity

Total liabilities and shareholders equity

Condensed Statement of Income
Year Ended December31 Dollars in Millions 2013 2012 2011

Income
Dividends from bank subsidiaries $6100 250 $1500

Dividends from nonbank subsidiaries

Interest from subsidiaries 118 96 101

Other income 66 149 134

Total income 6293 499 1742

Expense
Interest expense 325 393 425

Otherexpense 81 122 79

Total expense 406 515 504

Income loss before income taxes and equity in undistributed income of subsidiaries 5887 16 1238

Applicable income taxes 88 85 83

Income of parent company 5975 69 1321

Equity in undistributed income losses of subsidiaries 139 5578 3551

Net income attributable to U.S Bancorp $5836 $5647 $4872
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Condensed Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December31 Dollars
in Millions

Operating Activities

Net income attributable to U.S Bancorp

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activIties

Equity in undistributed income losses of subsidiaries

Other net

Net cash provided by operating activities

Investing Activities

Proceeds from sales and maturities of investment securities

Purchases of investment securities

Equit distributions from subsidiaries

Net increase decrease in short-term advances to subsidiaries

Long-term advances to subsidiaries

Other net

Net cash provided by used in investing activities

Financing Activities

Net increase decrease in short-term borrowings

Proceeds from issuance of long-term debt

Principal payments or redemption of long-term debt

Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock

Proceeds from issuance of common stock

Redemption of preferred stock

Repurchase of common stock

Cash dividends paid on preferred stock

Cash dividends paid on common stock

Net cash provided by used in financing activities

Change in cash and due from banks

Cash and due from banks at beginning of year

Cash and due from banks at end of year

Transfer of funds dividends loans or advances from

bank subsidiaries to the Company is restricted Federal law

requires loans to the Company or its affiliates to be secured

and generally limits loans to the Company or an individual

affiliate to 10 percent of each banks unimpaired capital and

surplus In the aggregate loans to the Company and all

affiliates cannot exceed 20 percent of each banks

unimpaired capital and surplus

Dividend payments to the Company by its subsidiary

bank are subject to regulatory review and statutory

limitations and in some instances regulatory approval In

general dividends by the Companys bank subsidiary to the

parent company are limited by rules which compare

dividends to net income for regulatorily-defined periods

Furthermore dividends are restricted by regulatory minimum

capital constraints for all national banks

NOTE 24 Subsequent Events

The Company has evaluated the impact of events that have

occurred subsequent to December 31 2013 through the

date the consolidated financial statements were filed with the

United States Securities and Exchange Commission Based

on this evaluation the Company has determined none of

these events were required to be recognized or disclosed in

the consolidated financial statements and related notes

2013 2012 2011

5836 5647 4872

139 5578

40 35

3551
12

5935 34 1333

75 979 297

118 35 36
12 845 77

4543 207 4613
750 500

22

3753 1474 4278

105 31
1500 3550 2426

2850 5412 851

487 2163 676

524 395 180

500

2282 1856 514

254 204 118

1576 1347 817

4947 2606 951

4741 1098 1994

3630 4728 6722

8371 3630 4728
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US Bancorp
Consolidated Balance Sheet Five Year SummaryUnaudited

Change

At December31 Dollars
in Millions 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009 2013 2012

Assets

Cash and due from banks 8477 8252 13962 14487 6206 2.7%

Held-to-maturity securities 38920 34389 18877 1469 47 13.2

Available-for-sale securities 40935 40139 51937 51509 44721 2.0

Loans held for sale 3268 7976 7156 8371 4772 590
Loans 235235 223329 209835 197061 194755 5.3

Less allowance for loan losses 4250 4424 4753 5310 5079 3.9

Net loans 230985 218905 205082 191751 189676 5.5

Otherassets 41436 44194 43108 40199 35754 6.2

Total assets $364021 $353855 $340122 $307786 $281176 2.9

Liabilities and Shareholders Equity

Deposits

Noninterest-bearing 76941 74172 68579 45314 38186 3.7%

Interest-bearing 185182 175011 162306 158938 145056 5.8

Total deposits 262123 249183 230885 204252 183242 5.2

Short-term borrowings 27608 26302 30468 32557 31312 5.0

Long-term debt 20049 25516 31953 31537 32580 21.4

Other liabilities 12434 12587 11845 9118 7381 1.2

Total liabilities 322214 313588 305151 277464 254515 2.8

Total U.S Bancorp shareholders equity 41113 38998 33978 29519 25963 5.4

Noncontrolling interests 694 1269 993 803 698 45.3

Total equity 41807 40267 34971 30322 26661 3.8

Total liabilities and equity $364021 $353855 $340122 $307786 $281176 2.9
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US Bancorp
Consolidated Statement of Income Five-Year Summary
Unaudited

2013 2012 2011 2010

Change

2009 2013v2012

$10277 $10558 $10370 $10145 9564 2.7%

203 282 200 246 277 28.0

1631 1792 1820 1601 1606 9.0

174 251 249 166 91 30.7

12285 12883 12639 12158 11538 4.6

561 691 840 928 1202 18.8

353 442 531 548 539 20.1

767 1005 1145 1103 1279 23.7

1681 2138 2516 2579 3020 21.4

10604 10745 10123 9579 8518 1.3

1340 1882 2343 4356 5557 28.8

Year Ended December31 Dollars in Millions

Inteest Income

Loans

Loans held for sale

Investment securities

Other interest income

Toial interest income

Inteest Expense

Depcsits

Short-term borrowings

Long-term debt

Toal interest expense

Net interest income

Provision for credit losses

Net interest income after provision for credit

losses

Noninterest Income

Cred and debit card revenue

Corporate payment products revenue

Merchant processing services

ATM processing services

Trust and investment management fees

Deposit service charges

Treasury management fees

Commercial products revenue

Mortgage banking revenue

Investment products fees

Securities gains losses net

Othe

Total noninterest income

Noninterest Expense

Compensation

Employee benefits

Net occupancy and equipment

Professional services

Marketing and business development

Technology and communications

Postage printing and supplies

Other intangibles

Other

Tctal noninterest expense

Income before income taxes

Applicable income taxes

Net income

Net income loss attributable to noncontrolling

interests

Net income attributable to U.S Bancorp

Net income applicable to U.S Bancorp common

shareholders

Not neaningfu1

9264 8863 7780 5223 2961

965 892 1073 1091 1055

706 744 734 710 669

1458 1395 1355 1253 1148

327 346 452 423 410

1139 1055 1000 1080 1168

670 653 659 710 970

538 541 551 555 552

859 878 841 771 615

1356 1937 986 1003 1035

178 150 129 111 109

15 31 78 451

569 743 1011 731 672

8774 9319 8760 8360 7952

4371 4320 4041 3779 3135

1140 945 845 694 574

949 917 999 919 836

381 530 383 306 255

357 388 369 360 378

848 821 758 744 673

310 304 303 301 288

223 274 299 367 387

1695 1957 1914 1913 1755

10774 10456 9911 9383 8281

7764 7726 6629 4200 2632

032 2236 1841 935 395

5732 5490 4788 3265 2237

4.5

8.2

5.1

4.5

5.5

8.0

2.6

.6

2.2

30.0

18.7

23.4

5.8

1.2

20.6

3.5

28.1

8.0

3.3

2.0

18.6

13.4

1.7

.5

9.1

4.4

33.8

3.3

3.1

104 157 84 52 32

5836 5647 4872 3317 2205

5552 5383 4721 3332 1803
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US Bancorp
Quarterly Consolidated Financial Data Unaudited

Dollars in Millions Except Per Share Data

Interest Income
Loans $2562 $2552 $2568 $2595
Loans held for sale 72 54 46 31

Investment securities 410 392 420 409
Other interest income 67 40 34 33

Total interest income 3111 3038 3068 3068
Interest Expense

Deposits 155 144 134 128

Short-term borrowings 85 87 98 83

Long-term debt 218 191 178 180

Total interest expense 458 422 410 391

Net Interest income 2653 2616 2658 2677
Provision for credit losses 403 362 298 277

Net Interest income after provision for credit losses 2250 2254 2360 2400
Noninterest Income
Credit and debit card revenue 214 244 244 263

Corporate payment products revenue 172 176 192 166
Merchant processing services 347 373 371 367
ATM processing services 82 83 83 79
Trust and investment management fees 278 284 280 297

Deposit service charges 153 160 180 177

Treasury management fees 134 140 134 130

Commercial products revenue 200 209 207 243

Mortgage banking revenue 401 396 328 231

Investment products fees 41 46 46 45
Securities gains losses net

Other 138 159 115 157

Total noninterest income 2165 2276 2177 2156
Noninterest Expense

Compensation 1082 1098 1088 1103
Employee benefits 310 277 278 275

Net occupancy and equipment 235 234 240 240

Professional services 78 91 94 118

Marketing and business development 73 96 85 103

Technology and communications 211 214 214 209

Postage printing and supplies 76 78 76 80
Other intangibles 57 55 55 56
Other 348 414 435 498

Total noninterest expense 2470 2557 2565 2682

Income before income taxes 1945 1973 1972 1874
Applicable income taxes 558 529 542 403

Net Income 1387 1444 1430 1471
Net income loss attributable to noncont

rolling

Interests 41 40 38 15
Net Income attributable to U.S Bancorp $1428 $1484 $1468 $1456

Net income applicable to U.S Bancorp common

shareholders $1358 $1405 $1400 $1389

Earnings per common share .73 .76 .76 .76

Diluted earnings per common share .73 .76 .76 76

2013 2012

First Second Third Fourth First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

$2638 $2631 $2650 $2639

65 67 76 74

468 470 438 416

61 60 63 67

3232 3228 3227 3196

181 177 172 161

123 127 103 89

294 266 226 219

598 570 501 469

2634 2658 2726 2727

481 470 488 443

2153 2188 2238 2284

202 235 213 242

175 190 201 178

337 359 345 354

87 89 87 83

252 262 265 276

153 156 174 170

134 142 135 130

211 216 225 226

452 490 519 476

35 38 38 39

19
201 197 193 152

2239 2355 2396 2329

1052 1076 1109 1083

260 229 225 231

220 230 233 234

84 136 144 166

109 80 96 103

201 201 205 214

74 77 75 78

71 70 67 66

489 502 455 511

2560 2601 2609 2686

1832 1942 2025 1927

527 564 593 552

1305 1378 1432 1375

33 37 42 45

$1338 $1415 $1474 $1420

$1285 $1345 $1404 $1349

.68 .71 .74 .72

.67 .71 .74 .72
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67274 2168

38237 1589

47982 1959

16813 1691

47125 2318

217431 9725

10043 643

227474 10368

6896 175

315139 12513

4373
633

41281

$352680

60830 2168

36505 1638

40290 1827

16653 1693

47938 2488

202216 9814

13158 826

215374 10640

10548 251

306270 13112

4642
1077

40144

$342849

67241

45433 46

46874 62

29596 66

14509 248

32057 269

168469 691

28549 447

28448 1005

225466 2143

11406

4381

33230

37611

1125

38736

$342849

3.56

4.49

4.53

10.16

5.19

4.85

6.28

4.94

2.38

4.28

.10

.13

.22

1.71

.84

.41

1.57

3.53

.95

US Bancorp
Consolidated Daily Average Balance Sheet and Related

2013

Average
Yields

Year Ended December 31 Dollars in Millions
Balances Interest and Rates

75046

5723

2012

Average Yields

Balances Interest and Rates

1767

203

72501

7847

1939

282

2.67%

3.60

Assets

Investment securities

Loans held for sale

Loans

Commercial

Commercial real estate

Residential mortgages

Credit card

Other retail

Total loans excluding covered loans

Covered loans

Total loans

Other earning assets

Total earning assets

Allowance for loan losses

Unrealized gain loss on investment securities

Other assets

Total assets

LiabIities and Shareholders Equity

Noninterest-bearing deposits

Interest-bearing deposits

Interest checking

Money market savings

Savings accounts

Time certificates of deposit less than $100000

Time deposits greater than $100000

ThtaI interest-bearing deposits

Short-term borrowings

Longterm debt

Total interest-bearing liabilities

Other liabilities

Shareholders equity

Preferred equity

Common equity

fotal U.S Bancorp shareholders equity

Ncncontrolling interests

Total equity

Total liabilities and equity

Net interest income

Gross interest margin

Gross interest margin without taxable-equivalent

increments

Percent of Earning Assets

Interest income

Interest expense

Net interest margin

Net interest margin without taxable-equivalent increments

2.35%

3.56

3.22

4.16

4.08

10.06

4.92

4.47

6.41

4.56

2.53

3.97

.07

.14

.15

1.45

.66

.31

1.29

3.60

73

3.24%

3.17%

3.97%

.53

3.44%

3.37%

69020

48792 36

55512 76

31916 49

12804 186

32413 214

181437 561

27683 357

21280 767

230400 1685

11973

4804

35113

39917

1370

41287

$352680

$10828 $10969

interest and rates are presented on fully taxable-equivalent
basis utilizing tax rare of 35 percent

lrilerest income and rates on loans include loan fees Nonaccrual loans are included in average loan balances

3.33%

3.26%

4.28%

.70

3.58%

3.51%
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Yields and Rates Unaudited
2011 2010

Change

Average Yields Average Yields Average Yields Average

Balances Interest and Rates Balances Interest and Rates Balances Interest and Rates Balances

63645 1980 311%

4873 200 4.10

2009 2013 2012

51616

35514

33711

16084

48199

2071

1622

1632

1538

2649

47763 1763 3.69% 42809 1770 4.13%

5616 246 4.37 5820 277 4.76

47028 1977

34269 1530

27704 1436

16403 1516

47686 2756

4.01

4.57

4.84

9.56

5.50

5.14

5.69

5.18

1.87

4.54

52827

33751

24481

14937

47086

2074

1453

1380

1363

2762

4.20

4.46

5.18

9.25

5.78

5.32

4.94

5.28

2.94

4.91

3.93

4.30

5.64

9.12

5.87

5.22

4.54

5.17

3.20

4.95

185124 9512

16303 928

201427 10440

13345 250

283290 12870

5192
227

39939

$318264

53856

42827 65

45119 76

26654 112

15237 290

29466 297

159303 840

30703 537

31684 1145

173090 9215

19932 985

193022 10200

5641 166

252042 12375

5399
94

39124

$285861

40162

40184 77

39679 132

20903 121

16628 303

27165 295

144559 928

33719 556

30835 1103

173082 9032

12723 578

185805 9610

2853 91

237287 11748

4451
1594

37118

$268360

37856

36866 78

31795 145

13109 71

17879 461

30296 447

129945 1202

29149 551

36520 1279

.15

.17

.42

1.91

1.01

.53

1.75

3.61

2522 1.14

3.5%

27.1

10.6

4.7

19.1

1.0

1.7

7.5

23.7

5.6

34.6

2.9

5.8

41.2

2.8

2.9

2.6%

7.4

18.4

7.8

11.8

1.1

7.7

3.0

25.2

2.2

5.0

9.7

5.7

6.1

21.8

6.6

2.9

.19

.33

.58

1.82

1.08

.64

1.65

3.58

2587 1.24

.21

.46

.54

2.58

1.48

.93

1.89

3.50

3032 1.55221690

9602

2414

29786

32200

916

33116

$318264

209113

7787

1742

26307

28049

750

28799

$285861

195614

7869

4445

21862

26307

714

27021

$268360

$10348 9788 8716

3.40%

3.32%

4.54%

.89

3.65%

3.57%

3.67%

3.59%

4.91%

1.03

3.88%

3.80%

3.40%

3.32%

4.95%

1.28

3.67%

3.59%
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US Bancorp
Supplemental Financial Data Unaudited

The common stock of U.S Bancorp is traded on the New York Stock Exchange under the ticker symbol USB At January 31

2014 there were 46459 holders of record of the Companys common stock

Stock Performance Chart

The ollowing chart compares the

cumulative total shareholder return on the

Companys common stock during the five

years ended December 31 2013 with the

cumulative total return on the Standard

Poors 500 Index and the KBW Bank

Index The comparison assumes $100

was invested on December 31 2008 in

the Companys common stock and in

each of the foregoing indices and

assumes the reinvestment of all

dividends The comparisons in the graph

are based upon historical data and are

not indicative of nor intended to forecast

future performance of the Companys

common stock

Ratios

Earnings Per common Share Summary 2013 2012 2011 2010 2009

Earnings per common share 3.02 2.85 2.47 1.74 .97

Diluted earnings per common share 3.00 2.84 2.46 1.73 .97

Dividends declared per common share .885 .780 .500 .200 .200

Return on average assets 1.65% 1.65% 1.53% 1.16% .82%

Return on average common equity 15.8 16.2 15.8 12.7 8.2

Average total U.S Bancorp shareholders equity to average assets 1.3 11.0 10.1 9.8 9.8

Dividends per common share to net income per common shar 29.3 27.4 20.2 1.5 20.6

Other Statistics Dollars and Shares in Millions

Common shares outstanding 1825 1869 1910 1921 1913

Average common shares outstanding and common stock equivalents

Eanings per common share 1839 1887 1914 1912 1851

Diluted earnings percommon share 1849 1896 1923 1921 1859

Number of shareholders 46632 49430 52677 55371 58610

Common dividends declared 1631 1474 961 385 375

Defriod as total common shares loss common stock held in treasury at December 31

Baa ed on number of common stock shareholders of record at December 31

Stock Price Range and Dividends

2013 2012

Sales Price Sales Price

closing Dividends Closing Dividends

High Low Price Declared High Low Price Declared

First quarter $34.73 $32.40 $33.93 $195 $32.23 $27.21 $31.68 $195

Second quarter 36.40 31.99 36.15 .230 32.98 28.58 32.16 .195

Third quarter 38.23 35.83 36.58 .230 35.15 31.76 34.30 .195

Fourth quarter 40.83 35.69 40.40 .230 35.46 30.96 31.94 .195

Total Return

260

220

180

140

100

60

2008

tjSB SP 500 KBW Bank trdcx IBKXI
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Company Information

General Business Description U.S Bancorp is multi

state financial services holding company headquartered in

Minneapolis Minnesota U.S Bancorp was incorporated in

Delaware in 1929 and operates as financial holding

company and bank holding company under the Bank

Holding Company Act of 1956 The Company provides full

range of financial services including lending and depository

services cash management capital markets and trust and

investment management services It also engages in credit

card services merchant and ATM processing mortgage

banking insurance brokerage and leasing

U.S Bancorps banking subsidiary is engaged in the

general banking business principally in domestic markets

The subsidiary with $271 billion in deposits at December 31

2013 provides wide range of products and services to

individuals businesses institutional organizations

governmental entities and other financial institutions

Commercial and consumer lending services are principally

offered to customers within the Companys domestic

markets to domestic customers with foreign operations and

to large national customers operating in specific industries

targeted by the Company Lending services include

traditional credit products as well as credit card services

leasing financing and import/export trade asset-backed

lending agricultural finance and other products Depository

services include checking accounts savings accounts and

time certificate contracts Ancillary services such as capital

markets treasury management and receivable lock-box

collection are provided to corporate customers

U.S Bancorps bank and trust subsidiaries provide full

range of asset management and fiduciary services for

individuals estates foundations business corporations and

charitable organizations

U.S Bancorps non-banking subsidiaries primarily offer

investment and insurance products to the Companys

customers principally within its markets and fund processing

services to broad range of mutual and other funds

Banking and investment services are provided through

network of 3081 banking offices principally operating in

the Midwest and West regions of the United States The

Company operates network of 4906 ATMs and provides

24-hour seven day week telephone customer service

Mortgage banking services are provided through banking

offices and loan production offices throughout the

Companys markets Lending products may be originated

through banking offices indirect correspondents brokers or

other lending sources The Company is also one of the

largest providers of corporate and purchasing card services

and corporate trust services in the United States wholly-

owned subsidiary Elavon Inc Elavon provides

merchant processing services directly to merchants and

through network of banking affiliations Wholly-owned

subsidiaries and affiliates of Elavon provide similar

merchant services in Canada Mexico Brazil and segments

of Europe directly or through joint ventures with other

financial institutions The Company also provides corporate

trust and fund administration services in Europe These

foreign operations are not significant to the Company

On full-time equivalent basis as of December 31

2013 U.S Bancorp employed 65565 people

Risk Factors An investment in the Company involves risk

including the possibility that the value of the investment could

fall substantially and that dividends or other distributions on

the investment could be reduced or eliminated Below are risk

factors that could adversely affect the Companys financial

results and condition and the value of and return on an

investment in the Company There may be other factors not

discussed below or elsewhere that could adversely affect the

Companys financial results and condition

Industry Risk Factors

Difficult business and economic conditions may

continue to adversely affect the financial services

industry and reversal or slowing of the current

moderate economic recovery could adversely affect

the Companys lending business and the value of

loans and debt securities it holds The Companys

business activities and earnings are affected by general

business conditions in the United States and abroad

including factors such as the level and volatility of short-term

and long-term interest rates inflation home prices

unemployment and under-employment levels bankruptcies

household income consumer spending fluctuations in both

debt and equity capital markets liquidity of the global

financial markets the availability and cost of capital and

credit investor sentiment and confidence in the financial

markets and the strength of the domestic and global

economies in which the Company operates The

deterioration of any of these conditions can adversely affect

the Companys consumer and commercial businesses and

securities portfolios its level of charge-offs and provision for

credit losses its capital levels and liquidity and its results of

operations

Given the high percentage of the Companys assets

represented directly or indirectly by loans and the

importance of lending to its overall business weak economic

conditions are likely to have negative impact on the

Companys business and results of operations reversal or

slowing of the current economic recovery could adversely

impact loan utilization rates as well as delinquencies

defaults and customer ability to meet obligations under the

loans
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The value to the Company of other assets such as

investment securities most of which are debt securities or

other financial instruments supported by loans similarly

would be negatively impacted by widespread decreases in

credit quality resulting from weakening of the economy

Downward valuation of debt securities could also negatively

impact the Companys capital position

Continued elevated unemployment under-employment

and household debt along with continued stress in the

consumer real estate market and certain commercial real

estate markets pose challenges to domestic economic

performance and the financial services industry The

sustained high unemployment rate and the lengthy duration

of unemployment have directly impaired consumer finances

and pose risks to the financial services industry Continued

uncertainty in the housing market and elevated levels of

distressed and delinquent mortgages pose further risks to

the heusing market These factors continue to negatively

impact the credit performance of real estate related loans

and have resulted in and may continue to result in

signilicant write-downs of asset values by the Company and

other financial institutions Additionally the current

environment of heightened scrutiny of financial institutions

as well as continued concern regarding the possibility of

return to recessionary conditions has resulted in increased

public awareness of and sensitivity to banking fees and

praci ices

Notwithstanding improved financial market conditions in

Europe many of the structural issues remain and problems

could resurface which could have significant adverse effects

on the Companys business results of operations financial

condition and liquidity Further deterioration in economic

conditions in Europe could slow the recovery of the domestic

economy or negatively impact the Companys borrowers or

other counterparties that have direct or indirect exposure to

Europe Additional negative market developments may

further erode consumer confidence levels and may cause

adverse changes in payment patterns causing increases in

delinquencies and default rates Such developments could

increase the Companys charge-offs and provision for credit

losses Any future economic deterioration that affects

household or corporate incomes and the continuing concern

regarding the possibility of return to recessionary

conditions could also result in reduced demand for credit or

fee-based products and services worsening of these

concitions would likely
exacerbate the lingering effects cf the

difficult market conditions experienced by the Company and

others in the financial services industry

The Company is subject to extensive government

regulation and supervision and the regulatory

environment for the financial services industry is

being significantly impacted by financial regulatory

reform initiatives in the United States including the

Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer

Protection Act Federal and state regulation and supervision

has increased in recent years due to the implementation of the

Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act

the Dodd-Frank Act and other financial reform initiatives

The Company will continue to face such increased regulation

into 2014 and in future years as result of current and future

initiatives intended to provide economic stimulus financial

market stability and enhancement of the liquidity and

solvency of financial institutions Banking regulations are

primarily intended to protect depositors funds federal deposit

insurance funds and the banking system as whole not the

Companys debt holders or shareholders These regulations

affect the Companys lending practices capital structure

investment practices dividend policy ability to repurchase

common stock and growth among other things

Changes to statutes regulations or regulatory policies

or their interpretation or implementation and/or the

continued heightening of regulatory practices requirements

or expectations could affect the Company in substantial and

unpredictable ways Although many parts of the Dodd-Frank

Act are now in effect other parts are still in the

implementation stage which is likely to continue for several

years including new capital rules effective January 2014

which phase in through 2018 Accordingly some uncertainty

remains as to the aggregate impact upon the Company of

the Dodd-Frank Act as fully implemented

The Company expects more intense scrutiny from bank

supervisors in the examination process and more aggressive

enforcement of regulations on both the federal and state

levels particularly due to the Companys status as covered

institution for the enhanced prudential standards

promulgated under the Dodd-Frank Act Federal banking law

grants substantial enforcement powers to federal banking

regulators This enforcement authority includes among other

things the ability to assess civil money penalties to issue

cease and desist or removal orders and to initiate injunctive

actions against banking organizations and institution

affiliated parties These enforcement actions may be initiated

for violations of laws and regulations and unsafe or unsound

practices If the Company were the subject of an

enforcement action it could have an adverse impact on the

Company
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Compliance with new regulations and supervisory

initiatives will continue to increase the Companys costs In

addition regulatory changes may reduce the Companys

revenues limit the types of financial services and products it

may offer alter the investments it makes affect the manner

in which it operates its businesses increase its litigation and

regulatory costs should it fail to appropriately comply with

new laws and regulatory requirements and increase the

ability of non-banks to offer competing financial services and

products See Supervision and Regulation in the

Companys Annual Report on Form 10-K for additional

information regarding the extensive regulatory framework

applicable to the Company

The Company is subject to liquidity risk The

Companys liquidity is essential for the operation of its

business Market conditions unforeseen outflows of cash or

other events could negatively affect the Companys level or

cost of funding Although the Company has implemented

strategies to maintain sufficient and diverse sources of

funding to accommodate planned as well as unanticipated

changes in assets and liabilities under both normal and

adverse conditions any substantial unexpected or

prolonged changes in the level or cost of liquidity could

adversely affect the Companys business

More stringent requirements related to on-balance

sheet liquidity have been proposed by U.S banking

regulators that may require the Company to

purchase additional investment securities and

change its funding mix U.S banking regulators have

proposed new liquidity-related standards applicable to

larger banking organizations including the Company The

proposed new rules would require banks to hold sufficient

unencumbered liquid assets to meet certain regulatorily

defined stress scenarios The implementation of these

proposed rules could require the Company to increase its

investment security holdings or otherwise change aspects of

its liquidity measures including in ways that may adversely

affect its results of operations or financial condition See

Supervision and Regulation in the Companys Annual

Report on Form 10-K for additional information regarding the

capital requirements under the Dodd-Frank Act and Basel Ill

The Companys credit ratings affect its liquidity The

Companys credit ratings are important to its liquidity

reduction in one or more of the Companys credit ratings

could adversely affect its liquidity and competitive position

increase its funding costs or limit its access to the capital

markets The Companys credit ratings and credit rating

agencies outlooks are subject to ongoing review by the

rating agencies which consider number of factors

including the Companys own financial strength

performance prospects and operations as well as factors

not within the control of the Company including conditions

affecting the financial services industry generally There can

be no assurance that the Company will maintain its current

ratings and outlooks

Loss of customer deposits could increase the

Companys funding costs The Company relies on bank

deposits to be low cost and stable source of funding The

Company competes with banks and other financial services

companies for deposits If the Companys competitors raise

the rates they pay on deposits the Companys funding costs

may increase either because the Company raises its rates

to avoid losing deposits or because the Company loses

deposits and must rely on more expensive sources of

funding Higher funding costs reduce the Companys net

interest margin and net interest income Checking and

savings account balances and other forms of customer

deposits may decrease when customers perceive alternative

investments such as the stock market as providing better

risk/return tradeoff When customers move money out of

bank deposits and into other investments the Company may

lose relatively low cost source of funds increasing the

Companys funding costs and reducing the Companys net

interest income

The soundness of other financial institutions could

adversely affect the Company The Companys ability to

engage in routine funding or settlement transactions could

be adversely affected by the actions and commercial

soundness of other domestic or foreign financial institutions

Financial services institutions are interrelated as result of

trading clearing counterparty or other relationships The

Company has exposure to many different counterparties

and the Company routinely executes and settles transactions

with counterparties in the financial services industry

including brokers and dealers commercial banks

investment banks mutual and hedge funds and other

institutional clients As result defaults by or even rumors

or questions about one or more financial services

institutions or the financial services industry generally could

lead to losses or defaults by the Company or by other

institutions and impact the Companys predominately United

States-based businesses or the less significant merchant

processing corporate trust and fund administration services

businesses it operates in foreign countries Many of these

transactions expose the Company to credit risk in the event

of default by counterparty or client In addition the

Companys credit risk may be further increased when the

collateral held by the Company cannot be realized upon or is

liquidated at prices not sufficient to recover the full amount of

the financial instrument exposure due the Company There is

no assurance that any such losses would not adversely

affect the Companys results of operations
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The financial services industry is highly competitive

and competitive pressures could intensify and

adversely affect the Companys financial results The

Company operates in highly competitive industry that

could become even more competitive as result of

legislative regulatory and technological changes as well as

continued industry consolidation which may increase in

connection with current economic and market conditions

This consolidation may produce larger better-capitalized

and more geographically diverse companies that are

capable of offering wider array of financial products and

services at more competitive prices The Company

competes with other commercial banks savings and loan

associations mutual savings banks finance companies

mortgage banking companies credit unions investment

companies credit card companies and variety of other

financial services and advisory companies In addition

technology has lowered barriers to entry and made it

possible for non-banks to offer products and services that

traditonally were banking products and for financial

institutions to compete with technology companies in

providing electronic and internet-based financial solutions

Many of the Companys competitors have fewer regulatory

conslraints and some have lower cost structures Also the

potential need to adapt to industry changes in information

technology systems on which the Company and financial

services industry are highly dependent could present

operational issues and require capital spending The

Companys ability to compete successfully depends on

number of factors including among others its ability to

develop and execute strategic plans and initiatives

developing maintaining and building long-term customer

relationships based on quality service competitive prices

high ethical standards and safe sound assets and industry

and qeneral economic trends

The Company continually encounters challenges

brought by technological change The financial services

industry is continually undergoing rapid technological

change with frequent introductions of new technology-driven

products and services The effective use of technology

increases efficiency and enables financial institutions to

better serve customers and to reduce costs The Companys

conthued success depends in part upon its ability to

address customer needs by using technology to provide

products and services that customers demand and create

additional efficiencies in the Companys operations The

Company may not be able to effectively implement new

technology-driven products and services or be successful in

marketing these products and services to its customers

Failure to successfully keep pace with technological change

affecting the financial services industry could negatively

affect the Companys revenue and profit

Improvements in economic indicators

disproportionately affecting the financial services

industry may lag improvements in the general

economy Should the stabilization of the United States

economy continue the improvement of certain economic

indicators such as unemployment and real estate asset

values and rents may nevertheless continue to lag behind

the overall economy These economic indicators typically

affect certain industries such as real estate and financial

services more significantly Furthermore financial services

companies with substantial lending business like the

Companys are dependent upon the ability of their

borrowers to make debt service payments on loans Should

unemployment or real estate asset values fail to recover for

an extended period of time the Company could be

adversely affected

Changes in interest rates could reduce the

Companys net interest income The Companys

earnings are dependent to large degree on net interest

income which is the difference between interest income

from loans and investments and interest expense on

deposits and borrowings Net interest income is significantly

affected by market rates of interest which in turn are

affected by prevailing economic conditions by the fiscal and

monetary policies of the federal government and by the

policies of various regulatory agencies Like all financial

institutions the Companys balance sheet is affected by

fluctuations in interest rates Volatility in interest rates can

also result in the flow of funds away from financial institutions

into direct investments Direct investments such as United

States government and corporate securities and other

investment vehicles including mutual funds generally pay

higher rates of return than financial institutions because of

the absence of federal insurance premiums and reserve

requirements

Further downgrades in the U.S governments

sovereign credit rating could result in risks to the

Company and general economic conditions that the

Company is not able to predict In 2011 certain ratings

agencies downgraded their sovereign credit rating or

negatively revised their outlook of the U.S government and

have indicated that they will continue to assess fiscal

projections as well as the medium-term economic outlook

for the United States Because of these developments there

continues to be the perceived risk of sovereign credit

ratings downgrade of the U.S government including the

ratings of U.S Treasury securities If such downgrade were

to occur the ratings and perceived creditworthiness of

instruments issued insured or guaranteed by institutions

agencies or instrumentalities directly linked to the U.S

government could also be correspondingly affected

downgrade might adversely affect the market value of such
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instruments Instruments of this nature are often held by

financial institutions including the Company for investment

liquidity planning and collateral purposes downgrade of

the sovereign credit ratings of the U.S government and

perceived creditworthiness of U.S government-related

obligations could impact the Companys liquidity

Company Risk Factors

The Companys allowance for loan losses may not

cover actual losses When the Company loans money or

commits to loan money it incurs credit risk or the risk of

losses if its borrowers do not repay their loans As one of the

largest lenders in the United States the credit performance

of the Companys loan portfolios significantly affects its

financial results and condition If the current economic

environment were to deteriorate more of its customers may

have difficulty in repaying their loans or other obligations

which could result in higher level of credit losses and

provision for credit losses The Company reserves for credit

losses by establishing an allowance through charge to

earnings to provide for loan defaults and non-performance

The amount of the Companys allowance for loan losses is

based on its historical loss experience as well as an

evaluation of the risks associated with its loan portfolio

including the size and composition of the loan portfolio

current economic conditions and geographic concentrations

within the portfolio The stress on the United States economy

and the local economies in which the Company does

business may be greater or last longer than expected

resulting in among other things greater than expected

deterioration in credit quality of the loan portfolio or in the

value of collateral securing those loans In addition the

process the Company uses to estimate losses inherent in its

credit exposure requires difficult subjective and complex

judgments including forecasts of economic conditions and

how these economic predictions might impair the ability of its

borrowers to repay their loans These economic predictions

and their impact may no longer be capable of accurate

estimation which may in turn impact the reliability
of the

process As with any such assessments the Company may

fail to identify the proper factors or to accurately estimate the

impacts of the factors that the Company does identify The

Company also makes loans to borrowers where it does not

have or service the loan with the first lien on the property

securing its loan For loans in junior lien position the

Company may not have access to information on the position

or performance of the first lien when it is held and serviced

by third party and this may adversely affect the accuracy

of the loss estimates for loans of these types Increases in

the Companys allowance for loan losses may not be

adequate to cover actual loan losses and future provisions

for loan losses could materially and adversely affect its

financial results

The Company may suffer increased losses in its loan

portfolio despite its underwriting practices The

Company seeks to mitigate the risks inherent in its loan

portfolio by adhering to specific underwriting practices

These practices generally include analysis of borrowers

credit history financial statements tax returns and cash flow

projections valuation of collateral based on reports of

independent appraisers and verification of liquid assets

Although the Company believes that its underwriting criteria

are and historically have been appropriate for the various

kinds of loans it makes the Company has already incurred

high levels of losses on loans that have met these criteria

and may continue to experience higher than expected

losses depending on economic factors and consumer

behavior In addition the Companys ability to assess the

creditworthiness of its customers may be impaired if the

models and approaches it uses to select manage and

underwrite its customers become less predictive of future

behaviors Finally the Company may have higher credit risk

or experience higher credit losses to the extent its loans are

concentrated by loan type industry segment borrower type

or location of the borrower or collateral For example the

Companys credit risk and credit losses can increase if

borrowers who engage in similar activities are uniquely or

disproportionately affected by economic or market

conditions or by regulation such as regulation related to

climate change Continued deterioration in economic

conditions or real estate values in states or regions where the

Company has relatively larger concentrations of residential

or commercial real estate could result in significantly higher

credit costs For example at December 31 2013 23 percent

of the Companys commercial real estate loans and 17

percent of its residential mortgages were secured by

collateral in California Continued deterioration in real estate

values and underlying economic conditions in California

could result in significantly higher credit losses to the

Company

The Company faces increased risk arising out of its

mortgage lending and servicing businesses During

2011 the Company and its primary banking subsidiary

entered into consent orders with various regulatory

authorities as result of an interagency horizontal review of

the foreclosure practices of the 14 largest mortgage

servicers in the United States The consent orders mandated

certain changes to the Companys mortgage servicing and

foreclosure processes In addition to the interagency

examination by U.S federal banking regulators the

Company has received inquiries from other governmental

and regulatory authorities regarding mortgage-related

practices and has cooperated and continues to cooperate

with these inquiries These inquiries may lead to other

administrative civil or criminal proceedings possibly

U.S BANCORP 151



resulting in remedies including fines penalties restitution or

alterations in the Companys business practices

Additionally reputational damage arising from the consent

orders or from other inquiries and industry-wide publicity

could also have an adverse effect upon the Companys

existing mortgage business and could reduce future

business opportunities

In addition to governmental or regulatory investigations

the Company like other companies with residential

mortgage origination and servicing operations faces the risk

of class actions and other litigation arising out of these

operations The Company has reserved for these matters as

appropriate but the ultimate resolution could exceed those

rese ves

Changes in interest rates can reduce the value of

the Companys mortgage servicing rights and

mortgages held for sale and can make its mortgage

banking revenue volatile from quarter to quarter

which can reduce its earnings The Company has

portf3lio of MSRs which is the right to service mortgage

loan--collect principal interest and escrow amountsfor fee

The Company initially carries its MSRs using fair value

measurement of the present value of the estimated future net

servicing income which includes assumptions about the

likelihood of prepayment by borrowers Changes in interest

rates can affect prepayment assumptions and thus fair value

As interest rates fall prepayments tend to increase as

borrowers refinance and the fair value of MSRs can

decrease which in turn reduces the Companys earnings It is

possible that because of economic conditions and/or weak

or deteriorating housing market even if interest rates were to

fall or remain low mortgage originations may also fall or any

increase in mortgage originations may not be enough to offset

the decrease in the MSRs value caused by the lower rates

An increase in interest rates tends to lead to decrease

in demand for mortgage loans reducing the Companys

income from loan originations Although revenue from the

Companys MSRs may increase at the same time through

increases in fair value this offsetting revenue effect or

natural hedge is not perfectly correlated in amount or

timing The Company typically uses derivatives and other

instruments to hedge its mortgage banking interest rate risk

but this hedging activity may not always be successful The

Company could incur significant losses from its hedging

activities and there may be periods where it elects not to

hedge its mortgage banking interest rate risk As result of

these factors mortgage banking revenue can experience

significant volatility

Maintaining or increasing the Companys market

share may depend on lowering prices and market

acceptance of new products and services The

Companys success depends in part on its ability to adapt

its products and services to evolving industry standards

There is increasing pressure to provide products and

services at lower prices Lower prices can reduce the

Companys net interest margin and revenues from its fee-

based products and services In addition the widespread

adoption of new technologies including internet services

and mobile devices such as mobile phones and tablet

computers could require the Company to make substantial

expenditures to modify or adapt the Companys existing

products and services Also these and other capital

investments in the Companys businesses may not produce

expected growth in earnings anticipated at the time of the

expenditure The Company might not be successful in

developing or introducing new products and services

adapting to changing customer preferences and spending

and saving habits achieving market acceptance of its

products and services or sufficiently developing and

maintaining loyal customers

The Company relies on its employees systems and

certain counterparties and certain failures could

adversely affect its operations The Company operates

in many different businesses in diverse markets and relies on

the ability of its employees and systems to process high

number of transactions Operational risk is the risk of loss

resulting from the Companys operations including but not

limited to the risk of fraud by employees or persons outside

of the Company unauthorized access to its computer

systems the execution of unauthorized transactions by

employees errors relating to transaction processing and

technology breaches of the internal control system and

compliance requirements and business continuation and

disaster recovery This risk of loss also includes the potential

legal actions that could arise as result of an operational

deficiency or as result of noncompliance with applicable

regulatory standards adverse business decisions or their

implementation and customer attrition due to potential

negative publicity Third parties with which the Company

does business could also be sources of operational risk to

the Company including risks relating to breakdowns or

failures of those parties systems or employees In the event

of breakdown in the internal control system improper

operation of systems or improper employee or third party

actions the Company could suffer financial loss face

regulatory action and suffer damage to its reputation

Operational risks for large institutions such as the

Company have generally increased in recent years in part

because of the proliferation of new technologies the use of

Internet services and telecommunications technologies to

conduct financial transactions and the increased

sophistication and activities of organized crime hackers

terrorists activists and other external parties If personal

confidential or proprietary information of customers or clients
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in the Companys possession were to be mishandled or

misused the Company could suffer significant regulatory

consequences reputational damage and financial loss This

mishandling or misuse could include for example situations

in which the information is erroneously provided to parties

who are not permitted to have the information either by fault

of the Companys systems employees or counterparties or

where the information is intercepted or otherwise

inappropriately taken by third parties

breach in the security of the Companys systems

could disrupt its businesses result in the disclosure

of confidential information damage its reputation

and create significant financial and legal exposure

Although the Company devotes significant resources to

maintain and regularly upgrade its systems and processes

that are designed to protect the security of the Companys

computer systems software networks and other technology

assets and the confidentiality integrity and availability of

information belonging to the Company and its customers the

Companys security measures do not provide absolute

security In fact many other financial services institutions

and companies engaged in data processing have reported

breaches in the security of their websites or other systems

some of which have involved sophisticated and targeted

attacks intended to obtain unauthorized access to

confidential information destroy data disable or degrade

service or sabotage systems often through the introduction

of computer viruses or malware cyberattacks and other

means The Company and certain other large financial

institutions in the United States have experienced several

well-publicized series of apparently related attacks from

technically sophisticated and well-resourced third parties

that were intended to disrupt normal business activities by

making internet banking systems inaccessible to customers

for extended periods These denial-of-service attacks have

not breached the Companys data security systems but

require substantial resources to defend and may affect

customer satisfaction and behavior Furthermore even if not

directed at the Company attacks on other entities with whom

it does business or on whom it otherwise relies or attacks on

financial or other institutions important to the overall

functioning of the financial system could adversely affect

directly or indirectly aspects of the Companys business

Despite the Companys efforts to ensure the integrity of

its systems it is possible that the Company may not be able

to anticipate or to implement effective preventive measures

against all security breaches of these types especially

because the techniques used change frequently generally

increase in sophistication often are not recognized until

launched and because security attacks can originate from

wide variety of sources including persons who are involved

with organized crime or associated with external service

providers or who may be linked to terrorist organizations or

hostile foreign governments Those parties may also attempt

to fraudulently induce employees customers or other users

of the Companys systems to disclose sensitive information in

order to gain access to the Companys data or that of its

customers or clients These risks may increase in the future

as the Company continues to increase its mobile payments

and other internet-based product offerings and expands its

internal usage of web-based products and applications

If the Companys security systems were penetrated or

circumvented it could cause serious negative consequences

for the Company including significant disruption of the

Companys operations misappropriation of confidential

information of the Company or that of its customers or

damage to computers or systems of the Company or those of

its customers and counterparties and could result in

violations of applicable privacy and other laws financial loss

to the Company or to its customers loss of confidence in the

Companys security measures customer dissatisfaction

significant litigation exposure and harm to the Companys

reputation all of which could adversely affect the Company

The Companys framework for managing risks may

not be effective in mitigating risk and loss to the

Company The Companys risk management framework

seeks to mitigate risk and loss to it The Company has

established processes and procedures intended to identify

measure monitor report and analyze the types of risk to

which it is subject including liquidity risk credit risk market

risk interest rate risk operational risk legal and compliance

risk and reputational risk among others However as with

any risk management framework there are inherent

limitations to the Companys risk management strategies as

there may exist or develop in the future risks that it has not

appropriately anticipated or identified The recent financial

and credit crises and resulting regulatory reform highlighted

both the importance and some of the limitations of managing

unanticipated risks and the Companys regulators remain

focused on ensuring that financial institutions build and

maintain robust risk management policies If the Companys

risk management framework proves ineffective the

Company could suffer unexpected losses which could affect

its results of operations or financial condition

Change in residual value of leased assets may have

an adverse impact on the Companys financial

results The Company engages in leasing activities and is

subject to the risk that the residual value of the property

under lease will be less than the Companys recorded asset

value Adverse changes in the residual value of leased

assets can have negative impact on the Companys

financial results The risk of changes in the realized value of

the leased assets compared to recorded residual values
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depends on many factors outside of the Companys control

including supply and demand for the assets condition of the

assets at the end of the lease term and other economic

factors

The Companys investments in certain tax-

advantaged projects may not generate returns as

anticipated and have an adverse impact on the

Companys financial results The Company invests in

certain tax-advantaged projects promoting the development

of affordable housing community development and

reneviable energy resources The Companys investments in

these projects are designed to generate return primarily

through the realization of federal and state income tax

credils and other tax benefits over specified time periods

The Company is subject to the risk that previously recorded

tax credits which remain sublect to recapture by taxing

authcrities based on compliance features required to be met

at the project level will fail to meet certain government

compliance requirements and will not be able to be realized

The possible inability to realize these tax credit and other tax

benel its can have negative impact on the Companys

financial results The risk of not being able to realize the tax

credits and other tax benefits depends on many factors

outside of the Companys control including changes in the

applicable tax code and the ability of the projects to be

completed

Negative publicity could damage the Companys

reputation and adversely impact its business and

financial results Reputation risk or the risk to the

Companys business earnings and capital from negative

public opinion is inherent in the Companys business and

increased substantially because of the financial crisis

beginning in 2008 The reputation of the financial services

industry in general has been damaged as result of the

financial crisis and other matters affecting the financial

services industry including mortgage foreclosure issues

Negative public opinion about the financial services industry

generally or the Company specifically could adversely affect

the Companys ability to keep and attract customers and

expose the Company to litigation and regulatory action

Negative public opinion can result from the Companys

actual or alleged conduct in any number of activities

including lending practices mortgage servicing and

foreclosure practices corporate governance regulatory

compliance mergers and acquisitions and related

disclosure sharing or inadequate protection of customer

information and actions taken by government regulators and

community organizations in response to that conduct

Because most of the Companys businesses operate under

the U.S Bank brand actual or alleged conduct by one

business can result in negative public opinion about other

businesses the Company operates Although the Company

takes steps to minimize reputation risk in dealing with

customers and other constituencies the Company as

large diversified financial services company with high

industry profile is inherently exposed to this risk

The Companys reported financial results depend on

managements selection of accounting methods and

certain assumptions and estimates The Companys

accounting policies and methods are fundamental to how

the Company records and reports its financial condition and

results of operations The Companys management must

exercise judgment in selecting and applying many of these

accounting policies and methods so they comply with

generally accepted accounting principles and reflect

managements judgment regarding the most appropriate

manner to report the Companys financial condition and

results In some cases management must select the

accounting policy or method to apply from two or more

alternatives any of which might be reasonable under the

circumstances yet might result in the Companys reporting

materially different results than would have been reported

under different alternative

Certain accounting policies are critical to presenting the

Companys financial condition and results They require

management to make difficult subjective or complex

judgments about matters that are uncertain Materially

different amounts could be reported under different

conditions or using different assumptions or estimates

These critical accounting policies include the allowance for

credit losses estimations of fair value the valuation of

purchased loans and related indemnification assets the

valuation of MSRs the valuation of goodwill and other

intangible assets and income taxes Because of the

uncertainty of estimates involved in these matters the

Company may be required to do one or more of the

following significantly increase the allowance for credit

losses and/or sustain credit losses that are significantly

higher than the reserve provided recognize significant

impairment on its goodwill and other intangible asset

balances or significantly increase its accrued taxes liability

For more information refer to Critical Accounting Policies in

this Annual Report

Changes in accounting standards could materially

impact the Companys financial statements From time

to time the Financial Accounting Standards Board and the

United States Securities and Exchange Commission change

the financial accounting and reporting standards that govern

the preparation of the Companys financial statements

These changes can be hard to predict and can materially

impact how the Company records and reports its financial

condition and results of operations The Company could be

required to apply new or revised standard retroactively or
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apply an existing standard differently also retroactively in

each case potentially resulting in the Company restating

prior period financial statements

Acquisitions may not produce revenue

enhancements or cost savings at levels or within

timeframes originally anticipated and may result in

unforeseen integration difficulties and dilution to

existing shareholders The Company regularly explores

opportunities to acquire financial services businesses or

assets and may also consider opportunities to acquire other

banks or financial institutions The Company cannot predict

the number size or timing of acquisitions

There can be no assurance that the Companys

acquisitions will have the anticipated positive results

including results related to expected revenue increases cost

savings increases in geographic or product presence and

or other projected benefits from the acquisition Integration

efforts could divert managements attention and resources

which could adversely affect the Companys operations or

results The integration could result in higher than expected

customer loss deposit attrition run-off loss of key

employees disruption of the Companys business or the

business of the acquired company or otherwise adversely

affect the Companys ability to maintain relationships with

customers and employees or achieve the anticipated

benefits of the acquisition Also the negative effect of any

divestitures required by regulatory authorities in acquisitions

or business combinations may be greater than expected

The Company must generally receive federal regulatory

approval before it can acquire bank or bank holding

company The Companys ability to pursue or complete an

attractive acquisition could be negatively impacted by

regulatory delay or other regulatory issues The Company

cannot be certain when or if or on what terms and

conditions any required regulatory approvals will be

granted The Company may be required to sell banks or

branches as condition to receiving regulatory approval

Future acquisitions could be material to the Company and it

may issue additional shares of stock to pay for those

acquisitions which would dilute current shareholders

ownership interests

The Companys business could suffer if the Company
fails to attract and retain skilled people The

Companys success depends in large part on its ability to

attract and retain key people Competition for the best

people in most activities the Company engages in can be

intense The Company may not be able to hire the best

people or to keep them Recent strong scrutiny of

compensation practices has resulted and may continue to

result in additional regulation and legislation in this area as

well as additional legislative and regulatory initiatives and

there is no assurance that this will not cause increased

turnover or impede the Companys ability to retain and

attract the highest caliber employees

The Company relies on other companies to provide

key components of the Companys business

infrastructure Third party vendors provide key components

of the Companys business infrastructure such as internet

connections network access and mutual fund distribution

While the Company has selected these third party vendors

carefully it does not control their actions Any problems

caused by third parties including as result of their not

providing the Company their services for any reason or their

performing their services poorly could adversely affect the

Companys ability to deliver products and services to the

Companys customers and otherwise to conduct its business

Replacing third party vendors could also entail significant

delay and expense In addition failure of third party vendors to

handle current or higher volumes of use could adversely affect

the Companys ability to deliver products and services to

clients and otherwise to conduct business Technological or

financial difficulties of third party service provider could

adversely affect the Companys business to the extent those

difficulties result in the interruption or discontinuation of

services provided by that party

The Company is subject to significant financial and

reputational risks from potential legal liability and

regulatory action The Company faces significant legal

risks in its business and the volume of claims and amount of

damages and penalties claimed in litigation and regulatory

proceedings against it and other financial institutions remain

high Increased litigation costs substantial legal liability or

significant regulatory action against the Company could

negatively impact its financial condition and results of

operations or cause significant reputational harm to the

Company which in turn could adversely impact its business

prospects In addition the Company continues to face

increased litigation risk and regulatory scrutiny Customers

and clients have grown more litigious The Companys

experience with certain regulatory authorities suggests

migration towards an increasing supervisory focus on

enforcement including in connection with alleged violations

of law and customer harm

The Company is exposed to risk of environmental

liability when it takes title to properties In the course

of the Companys business the Company may foreclose on

and take title to real estate As result the Company could

be subject to environmental liabilities with respect to these

properties The Company may be held liable to

governmental entity or to third parties for property damage

personal injury investigation and clean-up costs incurred by

these parties in connection with environmental contamination

or may be required to investigate or clean up hazardous or
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toxic substances or chemical releases at property The

costs associated with investigation or remediation activities

could be substantial In addition if the Company is the owner

or former owner of contaminated site it may be subject to

common law claims by third parties based on damages and

costs resulting from environmental contamination emanating

from the property If the Company becomes subject to

significant environmental liabilities its financial condition and

resull of operations could be adversely affected

The Companys business and financial performance

could be adversely affected directly or indirectly by

disasters by terrorist activities or by international

hostilities Neither the occurrence nor the potential impact

of disasters terrorist activities or international hostilities can

be predicted However these occurrences could impact the

Company directly for example by interrupting the

Companys systems which could prevent the Company from

obtaining deposits originating loans and processing and

controlling its flow of business causing significant damage

to the Companys facilities or otherwise preventing the

Company from conducting business in the ordinary course

or indirectly as result of their impact on the Companys

borrowers depositors other customers suppliers or other

counterparties for example by damaging properties

pledged as collateral for the Companys loans or impairing

the ability of certain borrowers to repay their loans The

Company could also suffer adverse consequences to the

extent that disasters terrorist activities or international

hostilities affect the financial markets or the economy in

general or in any particular region These types of impacts

could lead for example to an increase in delinquencies

bankruptcies or defaults that could result in the Company

experiencing higher levels of nonperforming assets net

charge-offs and provisions for credit losses

The Companys ability to mitigate the adverse

consequences of these occurrences is in part dependent on

the quality of the Companys resiliency planning and the

Companys ability if any to anticipate the nature of any such

event that occurs The adverse impact of disasters terrorist

activities or international hostilities also could be increased to

the extent that there is lack of preparedness on the part of

national or regional emergency responders or on the part of

other organizations and businesses that the Company

transacts with particularly those that it depends upon but

has no control over Additionally the nature and level of

natural disasters may be exacerbated by global climate

charge

The Company relies on dividends from its

subsidiaries for its liquidity needs The Company is

separate and distinct legal entity from its bank and non-bank

subsidiaries The Company receives significant portion of

its cash from dividends paid by its subsidiaries These

dividends are the principal source of funds to pay dividends

on the Companys stock and interest and principal on its

debt Various federal and state laws and regulations limit the

amount of dividends that its bank and certain of its non-bank

subsidiaries may pay to the Company without regulatory

approval Also the Companys right to participate in

distribution of assets upon subsidiarys liquidation or

reorganization is subject to prior claims of the subsidiarys

creditors except to the extent that any of the Companys

claims as creditor of that subsidiary may be recognized

The Company has non-banking businesses that are

subject to various risks and uncertainties The

Company is diversified financial services company and

the Companys business model is based on mix of

businesses that provide broad range of products and

services delivered through multiple distribution channels In

addition to banking the Company provides payment

services investments mortgages and corporate and

personal trust services Although the Company believes its

diversity helps lessen the effect of downturns in any one

segment of its industry it also means the Companys

earnings could be subject to various specific risks and

uncertainties related to these non-banking businesses

The Companys stock price can be volatile The

Companys stock price can fluctuate widely in response to

variety of factors including

actual or anticipated variations in the Companys quarterly

operating results

recommendations by securities analysts

significant acquisitions or business combinations

strategic partnerships joint ventures or capital

commitments by or involving the Company or the

Companys competitors

operating and stock price performance of other

companies that investors deem comparable to the

Company

new technology used or services offered by the

Companys competitors

news reports relating to trends concerns and other issues

in the financial services industry and

changes in government regulations

General market fluctuations industry factors and general

economic and political conditions and events as well as

interest rate changes currency fluctuations or unforeseen

events such as terrorist attacks could cause the Companys

stock price to decrease regardless of the Companys

operating results

156 U.S BANCORP



Executive Officers

Richard Davis

Mr Davis is Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer

of U.S Bancorp Mr Davis 55 has served as Chairman of

U.S Bancorp since December 2007 Chief Executive Officer

since December 2006 and President since October 2004

He also served as Chief Operating Officer from October

2004 until December 2006 Mr Davis has held management

positions with the Company since joining Star Banc

Corporation one of its predecessors as Executive Vice

President in 1993

Jennie Carlson

Ms Carlson is Executive Vice President Human Resources

of U.S Bancorp Ms Carlson 53 has served in this position

since January 2002 Until that time she served as Executive

Vice President Deputy General Counsel and Corporate

Secretary of U.S Bancorp since the merger of Firstar

Corporation and U.S Bancorp in February 2001 From 1995

until the merger she was General Counsel and Secretary of

Firstar Corporation and Star Banc Corporation

Andrew Cecere

Mr Cecere is Vice Chairman and Chief Financial Officer of

U.S Bancorp Mr Cecere 53 has served in this position

since February 2007 Until that time he served as Vice

Chairman Wealth Management and Securities Services of

U.S Bancorp since the merger of Firstar Corporation and

U.S Bancorp in February 2001 Previously he had served as

an executive officer of the former U.S Bancorp including as

Chief Financial Officer from May 2000 through February

2001

James Chosy

Mr Chosy is Executive Vice President General Counsel and

Corporate Secretary of U.S Bancorp Mr Chosy 50 has

served in this position since March 2013 From 2001 to 2013

he served as the General Counsel and Secretary of Piper

Jaffray Companies From 1995 to 2001 Mr Chosy was Vice

President and Associate General Counsel of U.S Bancorp

having also served as Assistant Secretary of U.S Bancorp

from 1995 through 2000 and as Secretary from 2000 until

2001

Terrance Dolan

Mr Dolan is Vice Chairman Wealth Management and

Securities Services of U.S Bancorp Mr Dolan 52 has

served in this position since July 2010 From September

1998 to July 2010 Mr Dolan served as U.S Bancorps

Controller He additionally held the title of Executive Vice

President from January 2002 until June 2010 and Senior Vice

President from September 1998 until January 2002

John Elmore

Mr Elmore is Vice Chairman Community Banking and

Branch Delivery of U.S Bancorp Mr Elmore 57 has

served in this position since March 2013 From 1999 to 2013

he served as Executive Vice President Community Banking

of U.S Bancorp and its predecessor company Firstar

Corporation

Joseph Hoesley

Mr Hoesley is Vice Chairman Commercial Real Estate of

U.S Bancorp Mr Hoesley 59 has served in this position

since June 2006 From June 2002 until June 2006 he served

as Executive Vice President and National Group Head of

Commercial Real Estate at U.S Bancorp having previously

served as Senior Vice President and Group Head of

Commercial Real Estate since joining U.S Bancorp in 1992

Pamela Joseph

Ms Joseph is Vice Chairman Payment Services of

U.S Bancorp Ms Joseph 54 has served in this position

since December 2004 Since November 2004 she has been

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of Elavon Inc wholly

owned subsidiary of U.S Bancorp Prior to that time she had

been President and Chief Operating Officer of Elavon Inc

since February 2000

Michael LaFontaine

Mr LaFontaine is Executive Vice President and Chief

Operational Risk Officer of U.S Bancorp Mr LaFontaine 35

has served in this position since October 2012 From 2007 to

2012 he served as Senior Vice President with responsibility

for U.S Bancorps corporate compliance anti-money

laundering and fair lending divisions and also served as

Chief Compliance Officer since 2005

Howell McCullough lii

Mr McCullough is Executive Vice President and Chief

Strategy Officer of U.S Bancorp and Head of U.S Bancorps

Enterprise Revenue Office Mr McCullough 57 has served

in these positions since September 2007 From July 2005

until September 2007 he served as Director of Strategy and

Acquisitions of the Payment Services business of

U.S Bancorp He also served as Chief Financial Officer of

the Payment Services business from October 2006 until

September 2007 From March 2001 until July 2005 he

served as Senior Vice President and Director of Investor

Relations at U.S Bancorp
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P.W Parker

Mr Parker is Vice Chairman and Chief Risk Officer of

U.S Bancorp Mr Parker 57 has served in this position

since December 2013 From October 2007 until December

2013 he served as Executive Vice President and Chief Credit

Officer of U.S Bancorp From March 2005 until October

2007 he served as Executive Vice President of Credit

Portfolio Management of U.S Bancorp having served as

Senior Vice President of Credit Portfolio Management of

U.S Bancorp since January 2002

Richard Payne Jr

Mr Payne is Vice Chairman Wholesale Banking of

U.S Bancorp Mr Payne 66 has served in this position

since November 2010 when he assumed the additional

responsibility for Commercial Banking at U.S Bancorp From

July 2006 when he joined U.S Bancorp until November

2010 Mr Payne served as Vice Chairman Corporate

Banking at U.S Bancorp Prior to joining U.S Bancorp he

served as Executive Vice President for National City

Corporation in Cleveland with responsibility for Capital

Markets from 2001 to 2006

Mark Runkel

Mr Runkel is Executive Vice President and Chief Credit

Officer of U.S Bancorp Mr Runkel 37 has served in this

position since December 2013 From February 2011 until

December 2013 he served as Senior Vice President and

Credit Risk Group Manager of U.S Bancorp Retail and

Payment Services Credit Risk Management having served

as Senior Vice President and Risk Manager of U.S Bancorp

Retail and Small Business Credit Risk Management from

June 2009 until February 2011 From March 2005 until May

2009 he served as Vice President and Risk Manager of

U.S Bancorp

Kent Stone

Mr Stone is Vice Chairman Consumer Banking Sales and

Support of U.S Bancorp Mr Stone 56 has served in this

position since March 2013 He served as an

Executive Vice President of U.S Bancorp from 2000 to 2013

most recently with responsibility for Consumer Banking

Support Services since 2006 and held other senior

leadership positions with U.S Bancorp since 1991

Jeffry von Gillern

Mr von Gillern is Vice Chairman Technology and

Operations Services of U.S Bancorp Mr von Gillern 48

has served in this position since July 2010 From April 2001

when he joined U.S Bancorp until July 2010 Mr von Gillern

served as Executive Vice President of U.S Bancorp

additionally serving as Chief Information Officer from July

2007 until July 2010
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Directors

Richard Davis16

Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer

U.S Bancorp

Minneapolis Minnesota

Douglas Baker

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Ecolab Inc

Cleaning and sanitizing products

St Paul Minnesota

Marc Belton34

Executive Vice President Global Strategy

Growth and Marketing Innovation

General Mills Inc

Consumer food products

Minneapolis Minnesota

Victoria Buyniski Gluckman24

Retired Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

United Medical Resources Inc

wholly owned subsidiary of

UnitedHealth Group Incorporated

Healthcare benefits administration

Cincinnati Ohio

Arthur Collins Jr.12

Retired Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Medtronic Inc

Medical device and technology

Chicago Illinois

Roland Hernandez34

Founding Principal and Chief Executive Officer

Hernandez Media Ventures

Media

Pasadena California

Doreen Woo Ho36

Commissioner

San Francisco Port Commission

Government

San Francisco California

Executive Committee

Componsation and Human Resources Committee

Audit Committee

Community Reinvestment and Pub/ic Po/icy Committee

Governance Committee

Risk Management Committee

Joel Johnson36

Retired Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Hormel Foods Corporation

Consumer food products

Scottsdale Arizona

Olivia Kirtley123

Business Consultant

Consulting

Louisville Kentucky

Jerry Levin25

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Wilton Brands Inc

Consumer products and

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

JW Levin Partners LLC

Private investment and advisory

New York New York

David OMaley125

Retired Chairman President and Chief Executive Officer

Ohio National Financial Services Inc

Insurance

Cincinnati Ohio

Odell Owens M.D
President

Cincinnati State Technical and Community College

Higher education

Cincinnati Ohio

Craig Schnuck46

Former Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Schnuck Markets Inc

Food retail

St Louis Missouri

Patrick Stokes156

Former Chairman and Former Chief Executive Officer

Anheuser-Busch Companies Inc

Consumer products

St Louis Missouri

U.S BANCORP 159



CORPORATE INFORMATION

U.S Buno

800 NUolet Mal

nnca in MN 40

Computorsharo acts as our trar sIr agent

ar regStrar di írdcnd paying agorit and

dv dond rs ins ostment Ian adrn ncrtra or

an in Art sin at shareholder recur for

It uorporato ngu ns reNted to sI are

Ii Ider re rd sIn transfers hung

own ash lost stock cortrtr satcs

har go ot addr as an div dend pay ns-nt

rId he rs Is ts tI tranOrr ago it ot

Curs putnrst are

00 Bsx01/0

Co kgs Stahs 1X 77882

Ohs nc 888 311 ir

01 687 68 nter riot or al cat

Ir so ct wrsw.ompute ire.s sm vs br

135 gnt rod or Ocr ticd Ms
Con pa erstiare

Or rty cli Sin

logs SN io TX 84

lept ic reproscrrtatao avarlob

wcskdoy tror 8OOa.i tcbOoprn
Cr ntrnl Standard mc arid autor iate

support ass lobe 24 hours sy lays

week it irrtorrr at or shout yo ir

ass Ira rvs it In on rr puterslrar

nvoato Ccnt webs In

Er rist Turing scrs os the

SE audti an

noncia sterns rits

Bar corp cors rricn abcs is ted arid

traded on the vs Vs rk Sto Th ar oc

iridr ttic ticks syrnbo USB

U.S Bar rp urrent pass 7uartcrlv

dv donds orr cc ran so abs sir or

at rut the tl day ot arruary

Jr and Os Is suE sot Is approval

b7 our Board re tors Ban

iai ehs sIc rs is hon to partrc ah

ri ph that roy dcs ruts is ntis

rc sos sierit sit rder sls arid or opt or

ash ps rob ot addit sri ii share oh

Bun sit csi nra Is sor

nr ills casa Cs tas trs rats

rj nt Csuinps tcrshars

ía ía

Sean OConnor CFA

Sen or Vise Prcsi lent

Invest Br lation

sarr iconnoi usbank in

ho isa 20 78 866 9668

U.S corp ws and nans ral ressilts

avail 515 through our wehaite arid marl

Websto ml ii rn it or about

.S Barrcor iris hr nesvs firiaric

resu anriua ports arid hor

sIn rnarU rim with Ii sri an

Exchange Con rrii sron access ou horr

page the internet at usbankcom

rck on About Li B-ink

MaH At sour res uest we wil ma to you

our gsiarmors car nings news releases

uai ts rly iaricia data is ported or For

10 Torn 10 arid additior al copes

ot our annual reports use nntact

.S Bar corp hiss slur Us 1st ons

870 Nicollet Ma

Miinsapols MN ad 102

vs storri all ushank.c ni

Pho in 8h6 ft 9668

Ihsuin is Jo7e
Scrir Vice esident

Cor te Psibl Re atm is

thon as 107 barrk

Phcnr Cl 21b

.8 Bancor is cornrnittod to rcspo rg

ttro pm vi ot rr custor icr arid

its 7uard ig the trnarrc id pers ir al

tori atrorr rovidod to is ho Icarn mo

iont tt U.S Baracorp or imrtms nt

Is protctirig or sa -y vial usbankcom

aid skonPirs cy

At U.S Baricorp saava rc hgh ctt cal

sIan lards ihn is all eCo Our tli il ri

s-ph Ategrty rcs ccl resp nVhIit7

aid good ill Er strip jurda everyth rig

ino do Den ons rat
rig

th sc
prrr

nile

thiron ti ur Is ar tis na is owwe itUSlowsirktc sir

rip cys isIs ra or hamehc ldcrs in

rims us in Eich oar ovey ripovis

scr Ii ía orn Iran ía tI tIre otter ar

sri 010mb ud otttt irdBusiss
Con lust ir data abc it Cs Ic

th cs arid Us ness Coridsict

vial usbankcom ans cm About

Bark sift 4cr U.S Bi rk

Banconp nd ir ubsid iris5 arc

csimn ittest
sip rig

an ma Li

workp as Uiat mafia Is the sorely

of the con siun nina ws erss Wa vs us

creating cnturc ot nc 5nr wI err

ridividuol dtlarr cs arc vs srcd

respected wtnch eriablas so to ri invats

aid dr busrre5s succr ss We srpp rI

aía rk cnsirinn ant wbsro each dvd is

who shr irs mid in IA yamss tfrs

cs ra par liis ipport in Is rIm Is

ardgrowh sodsiimsr

.5 Banns rid sir srbsmdrn isa are

-s mnrnkted rs rid gus mem

Oppodunits emnpl iy an app mc mt
tsr erriployn em ri keep in kh th

sinnrimtmsrsn ci rloynsnil rror ss
crade based atuil Ic5 in racs cols

melrg ris ona org ancas hem

age sirs ibm
ly veter an status sex il

oriental on omits stat is ge nsiem Ic ilit7

sr exoressmor hEnst nrlnmmn itmor

any thor I-ar to pmols sled iw hs

arporatrs np es wm Fr in in ci1

state arid tails il lair orr ploymi crib awa
nclsrd rig rs gulat ons ap yr Is isi ma

ontro Os

hiS Bans rp islsm hug so ho

ribs aries sri Op ortsmn by

mp oyor Its Ito rsot
iS

divomsc workborss

Ba on tt0d to du
oadaa cssbus mmprolsitaadaei cc

al sn us on sms mrclsmdmmus

th sab It can is ns In sm

cmi more vs usbankcom in

ink As scit ill

bancorp



bancorp


